Public Document Pack

Agenda Reports & Other Papers
Presented to the
Meeting of the
Audit Committee
on
Friday, 19 July 2019

1.

AGENDA

1 - 508

Agenda

AGENDA for a meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE in COMMITTEE ROOM B at
County Hall, Hertford on FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 at 2:00PM
___________________________________________________________________
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE (10) (Quorum 3)
S N Bloxham, F Button (Chairman), J M Graham (Vice-Chairman), N A Hollinghurst, I M
Reay, S J Taylor, P Williams, T J Williams, W J Wyatt-Lowe, J F Wyllie
Meetings of the Committee are open to the public (this includes the press) and attendance
is welcomed. However, there may be occasions when the public are excluded from the
meeting for particular items of business. Any such items are taken at the end of the public
part of the meeting and are listed under “Part II (‘closed’) agenda”.
Committee Room B fitted with an audio system to assist those with hearing impairment.
Anyone who wishes to use this should contact main (front) reception.
Members are reminded that all equalities implications and equalities impact
assessments undertaken in relation to any matter on this agenda must be
rigorously considered prior to any decision being reached on that matter.
Members are reminded that:
(1)

if they consider that they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter
to be considered at the meeting they must declare that interest and must not
participate in or vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been granted
by the Standards Committee;

(2)

if they consider that they have a Declarable Interest (as defined in paragraph
5.3 of the Code of Conduct for Members) in any matter to be considered at
the meeting they must declare the existence and nature of that interest. If a
member has a Declarable Interest they should consider whether they should
participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it.

Agenda Pack Page 1
1

PART I (PUBLIC) AGENDA
1.

MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 8 May 2019.

2.

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL – DRAFT AUDIT RESULTS
REPORT
Report of Ernst & Young LLP

3.

AUDIT RESULTS REPORT: ACCOUNTS 2018/19
Report of the Director of Resources

4.

PENSION FUND AUDIT RESULTS REPORT
Report of Ernst & Young LLP

5.

RESPONSE TO THE AUDIT RESULTS REPORT 2018/19 – PENSION FUND
Report of the Director of Resources

6.

REPORT ON DELIVERY OF THE HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
ANTI-FRAUD PLAN 2018/19
Report of the Director of Resources

7.

SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
Report of the Director of Resources

8.

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL – SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT
SERVICE INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
Report of the Director of Resources

9.

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE
Report of the Director of Resources

10.

RISK FOCUS REPORT – PROPERTY/FACILITIES MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT
Report of the Director of Resources

11.

END-OF-YEAR REPORT ON THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT SERVICE
AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2018/19
Report of the Director of Resources

Agenda Pack Page 2
2

12.

WHISTLEBLOWING ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
Report of the Director of Resources

13.

FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME
The Committee is invited to agree its future rolling work programme,
suggested as follows:13 September 2019: 10:00AM
 Annual Audit Letter 2018/19
 Audit Plan Progress Report
 Risk Management Update Report
 Risk Focus Report
6 December 2019: 10:00AM
 SAFS Progress Report on Anti-Fraud Plan
 Mid-Year Report on Treasury Management Service / Prudential
Indicators
 HFRS Annual Statement of Assurance
 Audit Plan Progress Report
 Risk Management Update
 Risk Focus Report

14.

OTHER PART I BUSINESS
Such other part I (public) business which the Chairman agrees is of sufficient
urgency to warrant consideration.

PART II (‘CLOSED AGENDA’)
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
The Chairman will move:“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that
they/it involve/s the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
paragraph/s……………of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the said Act and the public interest
in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.”
If you require further information about this agenda please contact
Stephanie Tarrant, Democratic Services, on telephone no (01992) 555481 number
or email stephanie.tarrant@hertfordshire.gov.uk.
Agenda documents are also available on the internet at
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/mgCalendarMonthView.aspx
QUENTIN BAKER
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

Agenda Pack Page 3
3

This page is intentionally left blank

Minutes

To: All Members of the Audit
Committee, Chief Executive,
Chief Officers, All officers
named for ‘actions’

From:
Legal, Democratic & Statutory Services
Ask for: Stephanie Tarrant
Ext:
25481

AUDIT COMMITTEE
9 MAY 2019
ATTENDANCE
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE
F Button (Chairman), J Kaye (substituted for S N Bloxham), A J S Mitchell, I M Reay
(substituted for J M Graham), S J Taylor, M A Watkin (substituted for B A Gibson), W J
Wyatt-Lowe (Vice-Chairman), J Wyllie (substituted for S Gordon).
Upon consideration of the agenda for the Audit Committee meeting 9 May 2019, as
circulated, copy annexed, conclusions were reached and are recorded below:
Note: No declarations of interest were made by any Member of the Committee in relation
to the matters considered at this meeting.
PART I (‘OPEN’) BUSINESS
ACTION
1.

MINUTES

1.1

The minutes of the Committee meeting held on 29 March 2019 were
confirmed as a correct record subject to the inclusion of the following
two points under item :


Members requested that, given the associated costs, EY give
consideration as to whether they would once again require the
County Council to repeat their pension scheme liability
calculations as they had in the previous year.



Members requested that EY liaise with officers when considering
the approach to analysing the County Council’s reserves.

1.2

Actions arising from the minutes were confirmed as complete.

2.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2018/19 AND CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 2019/20
[Contact: Terry Barnett, Head of Assurance Services, Tel: 01438
845508]

Agenda Pack Page 5

1

2.1

The Committee received a report which set out the basis for the
recently completed review of the County Council’s governance
arrangements, including its system of internal control, and to present
the draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2018/19 for the
Committee’s consideration and approval. Members noted that the
Annual Governance Statement looked back over 2018/19 and the
Code of Corporate Governance 2019/20 looked forward to the next
twelve months and detailed how the authority would commit to good
governance principles.

2.2

Members first discussed the Annual Governance Statement and
noted the tabled document which provided some revisions to the
Statement. The tabled document can be viewed here Supplementary Document - Item 2 Update. Members noted that the
word Executive should be replaced with Cabinet and requested that
the direct link to the Code of Corporate Governance was provided at
2.1 of the Statement.

2.3

In response to a Member question around the role of the Audit
Committee towards trading entities, officers advised that whilst the
Audit Committee did not necessarily have a direct role, the
Committee had an interest across the whole of the County Council.
It was noted that a piece of Internal Audit work looking at
governance on these entities was taking place in 2019/20 as this
had been raised as part of the scrutiny of the Integrated Plan
Process. In addition it was noted that Herts Catering had its own
Audit Committee.

2.4

Members discussed the update to the joined up working taking in
place in highways, as detailed at 7.1 of the Statement. Officers
advised that the process was still in its early days and whilst
progress was moving in the right direction, it was too early to provide
a detailed update.

2.5

In response to financial risks detailed at 7.5 of the Statement,
officers advised that year on year savings were very challenging and
to help mitigate this risk financial planning was starting a lot earlier
this year. It was noted that a financial outlook report was to be
presented to Cabinet and then via each Cabinet Panel in June/July
to obtain a sense of the position.

2.6

Members noted that the Corporate Governance Statement would be
amended as discussed before sign off from the Leader of the
Council and Chief Executive.

2.7

The Committee discussed the Code of Corporate Governance and
noted the tabled document which provided an update to principle G
of the code. The tabled document can be viewed here
Supplementary Document - Item 2 Update. Members noted that the
amendment required a further update to read ‘Progress on Audit
Recommendations is presented to the Audit Committee which

Terry Barnett

2
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 6

reserves the right ….’
2.8

In response to a Member question on the possibility of rephrasing
the principles from CIPFA, officers advised that they had been taken
directly from CIPFA and therefore it was not appropriate to amend
them. Officers were to write to CIPFA expressing Members
concerns around the phrasing.

2.9

Conclusions:
The Audit Committee:
a) approved the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2018/19
prior to final sign off by the Leader of the Council and the Chief
Executive, as amended by the document circulated and the
discussion at the meeting.
b) approved the updated Code of Corporate Governance for
2019/20, as amended by the document circulated and discussion
at the meeting.

3.

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL – 2018/19 ANNUAL
ASSURANCE STATEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL
REPORT
[Contact: Terry Barnett, Head of Assurance, Tel: 01438 845508
/ Chris Wood, Head of Shared Internal Audit Service, Tel: 01438
845513 / Darren Williams, Client Audit Manager, Tel: 01438 844341]

3.1

The Committee received a report which presented the 2018/19
Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report.

3.2

Member’s attention was drawn to a tabled document which provided
an additional recommendation (listed as recommendation b) and an
update to section 4.2 on page 14 of the Annual Assurance
Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report. The tabled document
can be viewed at: Supplementary Document - Item 3 Update

3.3

Members commented on the wording of the additional tabled
recommendation and it was agreed to remove ‘…when agreed audit
recommendations implementation dates are missed’ in order to
expand the remit for audit to hold management to account.

3.4

Officers agreed to move section 2.11 of the Annual Assurance
Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report forward to 2.1 so that
the information it contained was presented first. It was also noted
that the last two words of paragraph 3.1 of the cover report should
read ‘non-financial systems’. Members noted that in appendix A
where it states ‘audit cancelled’ with a new date in future this should
read ‘audit deferred’.

3.5

Terry
Barnett/Chris
Wood

It was formally acknowledged by the S.151 Officer that during
3

CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 7

2018/19:
 No matters threatened SIAS’s independence; and
 SIAS was not subject to any inappropriate scope or resource
limitations.
3.6

Members commented on the client satisfaction performance
indicator and noted that a low rate of customer satisfaction
questionnaires were returned and asked officers what was being
done to increase returns. Officers advised that despite a low
response, when the service followed up with clients they were
generally satisfied. It was also noted that each directorate board had
a section on customer satisfaction. Officers agreed to consider ways
to increase responses, including moving to an online survey.
Conclusions:

3.7

The Audit Committee:
a) noted the Annual Assurance Statement and Internal Audit
Annual Report.
b) noted the increased robustness and effectiveness of follow-up
and implementation of internal audit recommendations, as well
as the strengthening of service engagement with the follow-up
process, but acknowledged that there were continued
improvements to be made to build on the past year. The
Committee recognised its right to call in officers and hold
management to account.
c) noted the results of the self-assessment required by the Public
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and the Quality
Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP).
d) accepted the SIAS Audit Charter 2019/20.
e) sought management assurance that the scope and resources for
internal audit were not subject to inappropriate limitations in
2018/19.

4.

REPORT OF THE HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2018 TO 31 MARCH
2019
[Contact: Terry Barnett, Head of Assurance Services, Tel: 01438
845508]

4.1

Members received the Report of the Hertfordshire County Council
Audit Committee for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019, prior
to its submission to the County Council.

4.2

The Committee noted that the report would be presented to County
Council on an annual basis.
4

CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 8

4.3

Members welcomed the inclusion of risk management and noted the
intention to update the Committee’s terms of reference.
Conclusions:

4.4

The Audit Committee approved the draft report of the Audit
Committee and agreed its submission to the County Council.

5.

PREVENT TRAINING UPDATE
[Officer Contact: Guy Pratt, Deputy Director Community Protection,
Tel: 01992 507501]

5.1

The Committee considered a report which provided information
regarding the risk and associated controls recorded on the
Hertfordshire County Council Corporate Risk Register relating to
‘Prevent’ (CP0004). Members noted that an update was requested
following the initial presentation to the 15 May 2018 meeting.

5.2

Members were reminded that the County Council had a duty to
safeguard people against radicalisation and terrorism and that a
mandatory iLearn module on ‘Prevent’ was to ensure that a
consistent approach was taken in order for all current and new staff
to understand ‘Prevent’.

5.3

The Committee discussed the statistics contained within the
appendices and officers noted that the timescales to complete the
Prevent module as detailed within appendix 3, detailed when an
employee completed their training following the creation of their
iLearn account. Therefore employees that have had an iLearn
account for a number of years prior to the Prevent module appeared
to have taken longer to complete the module. Members noted that
statistics should provide a more accurate picture going forward now
that the module had been fully rolled out.

5.4

Members discussed the use of the Performance Management and
Development Scheme (PMDS) to track the biennial completion of
the prevent module. Officers advised that the annual PMDS
document was word based and that discussions could take place
with HR regarding this.

5.5

The Committee commented on the de-commissioned Wrap training
and the impact of this. Officers advised that the Wrap training was a
portal previously hosted by the Home Office which provided the
knowledge for face to face training to take place. It was noted that
the County Council had now been provided with an up-to-date
version of the Home Office tool kit and that the Prevent Board would
oversee how the toolkit was kept up-to-date.

5.6

In response a Member question around the availability for Members
to access the Prevent module on iLearn, officers advised that this

Guy Pratt/Sally
Hopper

Guy Pratt/Sally

5
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 9

was possible and that the sign-up link would be circulated.

Hopper

Conclusions:
5.7

The Audit Committee:


noted and commented on the report, as detailed above.



noted that as part of a standard process with Service Boards,
recipients at each Service Board receive a quarterly update of
induction programme completion rates, which includes Prevent
eLearning . This provides reassurance to the Board that Services
have sight of and responsibility for the ongoing Prevent
awareness through training.



agreed that the Prevent iLearn module should be added to the
PMDS form.

6.

RISK FOCUS REPORT – LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT
[Contact: Sally Hopper, Assistant Director – Human Resources
Caroline Butler – Head of Strategy, Development & Reward]

6.1

The Committee considered a report which provided further
information regarding the risk (and associated controls) recorded on
the Hertfordshire County Council Corporate Risk Register relating to
risk number HR0018 in relation to staff training.

6.2

Officers advised that risks surrounding the training of staff and
ensuring competency were being managed adequately and
assurances were given around the systems in place. Members
heard that as there was not a central training department the report
detailed the great work of how individual departments managed their
training. Officers advised that 2018 saw the County Council face a
number of external reviews including the Corporate Peer Review
and Ofsted inspection and that feedback from inspectors around
learning and development had been positive.

6.3

Members heard that training is no longer only classroom based and
more recently a set of 10 core online courses were made mandatory
for all staff. Officers advised that on average the County Council
spent £382 per employee on training which is above the national
average of £250.

6.4

Officers referred to section 8.1 of the report and acknowledged that
there was more work required around the iLearn system and the
need to embed training into the PMDS process, with a section to be
included on the PMDS form to ensure managers track the
completion of courses.

6.5

Sally Hopper

Sally Hopper

Members expressed concerns around the iLearn package and its
inability to provide detailed reporting around staff learning for
6

CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 10

managers. Officers advised that the iLearn system was implemented
prior to current management and when officers looked at upgrading
the system the return on investment was not justifiable due to other
priorities.
6.6

Members queried if there were any risks associated with the
apprenticeship levy process. Officers advised that the main risks
were seen in 2016 when the scheme was first emerging. Members
heard that the County Council had nearly £1 million liabilities and
this was absorbed in to the existing training budget to ensure that it
was spent and to help manage the risk of losing it. Officers provided
examples of how the apprenticeship levy had been used, including
for leadership development and helping people gain formal
qualifications including children in care. Officers demonstrated how
the risks were mitigated and how opportunities to spend the levy
were sourced.
Conclusions:

6.7

The Audit Committee:





7.

noted the content of the report
noted the devolved nature of learning and development and the
associated updates from departments as outlined in paragraphs
5.1 and 5.7.
were assured that the risks outlined in 1.1 and 1.2 were being
managed to a large extent, with more work to take place on
mandatory i-learn packages.
raised concerns, issues and follow up actions, as detailed above.

FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME
The Committee noted the future work programme below:
(new items added at this meeting in bold)

7.1

19 July 2019: 2:00PM
NB: Training on the Accounts directly prior to the meeting
 HCC Audit Results Report 2018/19
 Response To Audit Results Report – HCC (Including Firefighters’
Pension Fund) Financial Statements
 Audit Results Report 2018/19 – HCC Pension Fund
 Response To The Audit Results Report 2018/19 – HCC Pension
Fund
 Annual Statement Of Accounts 2018/19 – HCC (Including Fire
Fighters’ Pension Fund) Financial Statements
 Internal Audit Progress Report (19/20)
 Risk Management Update Report
 Risk Focus Report
 End of Year Report on the Treasury Management Service and
Prudential Indicators 2018/19
7

CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 11





Whistle Blowing Annual Report 2018/19
Shared Anti-Fraud Service Annual Report
Shared Anti-Fraud Service progress with delivery of the 2019/20
Anti-Fraud Plan.

13 September 2019: 10:00AM
 Annual Audit Letter 2018/19
 Risk Management Update Report
 Risk Focus Report
8.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

8.1

There being no further PART I business the Chairman closed the
meeting.

QUENTIN BAKER
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

CHAIRMAN

8
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 12

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No:

AUDIT COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 AT 2:00PM

2

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL AUDIT RESULTS REPORT
Author of the report:

1.

Suresh Patel, Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Purpose of the Report

1.1 To present the results of the 2018/19 draft audit report.
2.

Recommendation

2.1 That the committee notes the draft audit report.
2.2 That the committee notes that there is still some audit work that remains to be
completed, and a verbal update will be provided at the meeting.

Agenda Pack Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA
ITEM NO:
2

Hertfordshire County Council
Audit results report
Year ended 31 March 2019
Agenda Pack Page 15

Draft for management - 03 July 2019

03 July 2019
Dear Audit Committee Members

Agenda Pack Page 16

We are pleased to attach our audit results report for the forthcoming meeting of the Audit Committee. This report summarises our
preliminary audit conclusion in relation to the audit of Hertfordshire County Council (the Authority) or 2018/19.
Our audit of Hertfordshire County Council for the year ended 31 March 2019 remains in progress.
Subject to concluding the outstanding procedures and matters listed in our report (page 6), we anticipate issuing an unqualified
audit opinion on the financial statements before the end of July. We currently have no matters to report on your arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.
This report is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee, other members of the Authority, and senior management. It
should not be used for any other purpose or given to any other party without obtaining our written consent.
We would like to thank your staff for their help during the engagement.
We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Audit Committee meeting on 19 July 2019.
Yours faithfully

Suresh Patel
Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Encl

2

Contents
01 Executive
Summary

of
Audit Report
04
02 Areas
Audit Focus 03

for
05 Value
Money

Audit
Differences

V
F
M

Agenda Pack Page 17

06 Other
reporting
issues

of
Data
07 Assessment
08
Control
Analytics

09

Independence

10 Appendices

Environment

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA
website (www.psaa.co.uk). This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities
of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional
requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which
are of a recurring nature.
This report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as appointed auditor, take no
responsibility to any third party.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up
with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any
complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our professional
institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

3

Agenda Pack Page 18

01 Executive Summary
4

Executive Summary
Scope update
In our Audit Plan tabled at the 29 March 2019 Audit Committee meeting, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope and approach for the
audit of the financial statements. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan, with the following exceptions.
Changes in materiality
• In our Audit Plan, we communicated that our audit procedures would be performed using a materiality of £31.3m, with performance materiality, at
75 % of overall materiality, of £23.5m, and a threshold for reporting misstatements of £1.5m. We updated our planning materiality assessment upon
receipt of the draft financial statements. Based on our materiality measure of gross expenditure on provision of services, we have updated our overall
materiality assessment to £30.5m. This results in updated performance materiality, at 75 % of overall materiality, of £22.9m. The threshold for
reporting misstatements remained at £1.5m.
• The materiality level set for sensitive disclosures (including senior officer remuneration and exit packages) remained unchanged at £50,000.

Agenda Pack Page 19

Changes in Risk
• We have identified no new audit risks to those included in the Audit Plan.
Audit differences

To date we have not identified any unadjusted misstatements. However, until all areas of the audit are complete there remains scope for audit
differences to be identified.

Areas of audit focus

Our Audit Plan identified key areas of focus for our audit of the Authority’s financial statements. This report sets out our observations and conclusions,
including our views on areas which might be conservative, and where there is potential risk and exposure. We summarise our consideration of these
matters, and any others identified, in the “Areas of Audit Focus" section of this report. We ask you to review these and any other matters in this report
to ensure:
• There are no other considerations or matters that could have an impact on these issues;
• You agree with the resolution of the issues; and there are no other significant issues to be considered.
There are no matters, apart from those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to your attention.

5

Executive Summary
Status of the audit
Our audit of Hertfordshire County Council financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 remains in progress. We are performing the
procedures outlined in our Audit Plan. At the date of this report we have commenced the majority of our audit procedures and are working to complete
them over the next few weeks. We will provide a verbal update to the Committee. Subject to their satisfactory completion we anticipate issuing an
unqualified opinion in the form which appears at Section 4. However until work is complete, further amendments may arise. We are currently completing
audit procedures on:

Agenda Pack Page 20

• Income and expenditure

• Property, plant and equipment

• Heritage assets

• Investments

• Provisions

• Debtors and creditors

• Cash

• Reserves

• Pensions

• PFI schemes

• Senior officer remuneration

• Payroll

• Disclosures

• Journals testing

• Related party transactions

• Firefighter pension fund

• Management specialists

In addition to the above, there is an ongoing national issue which may require a late change to the Authority’s reporting of its participation in the local
government pension scheme. It relates to legal rulings regarding age discrimination arising from public sector pension scheme transitional
arrangements, commonly described as the McCloud ruling. The draft accounts have recognised this matter as a contingent liability (note 42, page 111).
However, since the year-end there have been increasing indications that this may not be the correct treatment, and may need to be incorporated into
the assessment of the scheme liabilities depending on the materiality of the issue. We will continue to liaise with officers on the outcome of this matter.
Once we have completed the above procedures we will need to:
• Review of the final version of the financial statements
• Complete a subsequent events review
• Review the signed management letter of representation
The Whole of Government Accounts submission has been delayed and we do not expect to complete the work required by the National Audit Office
(NAO) until after the end of July. As a result we will not be issuing the audit certificate at the same time as the audit opinion.

6

Executive Summary
Value for money
We have considered your arrangements to take informed decisions; deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and work with partners and other third
parties. In our Audit Plan we identified no significant risks surrounding the Authority’s arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness on its use of resources
We acknowledge the scale of the financial challenge facing the Authority over the medium term and have seen evidence of actions being taken to
address those challenges.
We have no matters to report about your arrangements to secure economy efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.
Control observations

Agenda Pack Page 21

We have adopted a fully substantive approach, so have not tested the operation of controls. However, from the results of substantive procedures
performed we have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material
misstatement in your financial statement.

Other reporting issues

We have reviewed the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Hertfordshire County
Council. We have no matters to report as a result of this work.

Independence

We have no independence issues to report and include in Section 09 our independence update.

7

Agenda Pack Page 22

02 Areas of Audit Focus
8

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
Misstatements due to
fraud or error
(Fraud Risk)

What is the risk?
The financial statements as a whole are not free of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or
error.
As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because
of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify and
respond to this fraud risk on every audit engagement.
What are our conclusions?

We focussed on testing key areas that are susceptible to management bias.

We are yet to conclude on our testing of journal entry
testing; however we have not identified any material
weaknesses in controls or evidence of material
management override to date.

Agenda Pack Page 23

What judgements are we focused on?

What did we do?

•

Inquired of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address
those risks.
• Understood the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s
processes over fraud.
• Considered of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the
risk of fraud.
Performed mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified fraud risks,
including:
• Tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements
• Assessed accounting estimates for evidence of management bias, and
• Evaluated the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

We have not identified any instances of inappropriate
judgements being applied.
We did not identify any other transactions during our audit
which appeared unusual or outside the Authority‘s normal
course of business.

Fraud Risk

In addition to our overall response, we considered where these risks may present
themselves and identified a separate fraud risk relating to adjustments made between the
accounting and to the capitalisation of revenue expenditure as set out on the next slide.
9

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
Adjustments between the
Accounting and Funding
Basis
Agenda Pack Page 24

(Fraud Risk)

What is the risk?
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice requires the council to make adjustments between the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, prepared by management in accordance with proper
accounting practice, and the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the
Auhority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.
There is a risk that management make inappropriate or incomplete adjustments between the accounting
and funding basis. This would impact the Council’s Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) and it’s
General Fund balance.

What judgements are we focused on?

What are our conclusions?

We focused testing on adjustments as disclosed in Note 7 of the financial statements.

We are yet to fully complete procedures in relation to this
risk, as such we are not in a position to conclude on the
results of this risk.

What did we do?

•
•
•
•

Inquired of officers to understand the processes and controls in place to address this
risk.
Assessed the appropriateness and completeness of the adjustments made with
reference to the Local Authority Code of Practice.
Confirmed that the value of the adjustments are consistent with the substantive
procedures performed in other areas of the financial statements.
Verified the consistency between the Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) and
the Adjustments between Accounting and Funding Basis disclosure note.

Based on the procedures performed to date we have not
identified any misstatements or issues so far.

Fraud Risk

10

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
Property, Plantdue
& to
Misstatements
Equipment
Asset
fraud
or error
[Insert your
Valuation
Issue
/ Risk heading]
(Significant Risk)

What is the risk?
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) represents a significant balance in the Authority’s accounts and are
subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges.
Material judgemental inputs and estimation techniques are required to calculate the year-end PPE balances
held on the balance sheet.
As the Authority has changed its external valuer for 2018/19 compared to prior year there is a significant
risk that changes to judgemental inputs and estimation techniques may result in the under/overstatement
of valuation of PPE.

Agenda Pack Page 25

What judgements are we focused on?

What are our conclusions?

The reasonableness of the methodologies adopted by the valuer in undertaking their
valuations in 2018/19 and of the key assumptions input into these valuations. In
particular schools valuations with a Depreciated Replacement Cost valuation basis.

We are considering the work carried out by our EY
Valuations Specialists and finalising our review procedures
before we can conclude on this risk.

Additionally, we considered assets not revalued in the current year for the potential of
material misstatement in valuation as of 31 March 2019.

Based on the procedures performed to date we have not
identified any misstatements or issues so far.

What did we do?

Ø Considered the work performed by the Authority’s valuer, including the adequacy of
the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their
work;
Ø Engaged our EY Valuations specialist to review a sample of PPE asset valuations to
verify the reasonableness of the valuation methodology applied and key assumptions
used.
Ø Robustly challenged the assumptions used by the valuer. We sample tested key asset
information used by the valuer in performing their valuation (e.g. floor plans to support
valuations based on price per square meter).
Ø Reviewed assets not subject to valuation in 2018/19 to confirm that the valuation
remaining asset base was not materially misstated.

Significant Risk

11

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
Pensions Liability
Misstatements
due to
Valuation
fraud
or error [Insert your
Issue
/ Risk
(Significant
Risk) heading]

What is the risk?

Agenda Pack Page 26

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Authority to make extensive
disclosures within its financial statements regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension
Scheme administered by the County Council.
The Authority’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code requires that this liability
be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. At 31 March 2019 the net pension liability was £1.21 billion.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore management
engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf.

What judgements are we focused on?

What are our conclusions?

Information and judgements used by the Authority’s actuary to determine the pensions
liability.

We have requested assurances from the auditors of
Hertfordshire Pension Fund to support our audit of the
pensions information disclosed in the financial statements
of the Council. At the time of writing this report, we have
not yet received the response to our request and are
therefore unable to conclude on this risk.

What did we do?
Ø We put in place a programme of work and instruct the auditors of Hertfordshire
Pension Fund to obtain assurances over the information supplied to the actuary in
relation to Hertfordshire County Council;
Ø We assessed the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Hymans Robertson) including the
assumptions they have used by relying on the work of PwC - Consulting Actuaries
commissioned by the National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors,
and considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and
Ø We reviewed and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

The Council have requested a revised IAS19 report to
support their pensions disclosure. This revised report will
reflect the impact of the McCloud judgement, Guaranteed
Minimum Pension (GMP) requirements and any changes to
the net assets position. We will need to assess the impact of
this on the pensions disclosure once received.
Significant Risk

12

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
PFI Liability Valuation
Misstatements
due to
fraud
or Risk)
error [Insert your
(Significant
Issue / Risk heading]

What is the risk?
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice requires that PFI (Private Finance Initiative) schemes
should be accounted for on the basis of IFRIC 12 “Service Concessions”. The Authority’s liability in relation
to its two PFI schemes as at 31 March 2019 was £54.3 million. The Authority's total future obligation in
relation to its PFI schemes as at 31 March 2018 was £186.6 million.

Agenda Pack Page 27

These values are derived from complex models which reflects a number of assumptions which may change
over the life of the contract. The Authority’s ‘Building Schools for the Future’ PFI scheme model was last
externally reviewed in 2012/13. As the assumptions used in the model may have changed over time we
have considered this as a significant risk for the 2018/19 audit.

What judgements are we focused on?

Assumptions used in the Authority’s ‘Building Schools for the Future’ PFI scheme model .

What did we do?

Ø Confirmed our understanding of the process of how the PFI models are maintained
and updated; including how the output of the models are included within the
Authority’s financial statement closing processes.
Ø Engaged EY’s internal specialists to review the ‘Building Schools for the Future’ PFI
model to ensure the inputs and accounting are in line with our expectations and the
reviews of the models in prior years.
Ø Confirmed that year end journal entries in relation to the PFI schemes have been
processed accurately.

What are our conclusions?
We are awaiting assurance from our internal specialist
before we can conclude on this risk
Based on the procedures performed to date we have not
identified any misstatements or issues so far.

Significant Risk

13

Areas of Audit Focus

Other Areas of audit focus
Assessment of Group
Boundary

What is the area of focus?

Agenda Pack Page 28

The Authority has a number of controlling interests in private companies; including two new companies
that have recently been formed, Herts Living Ltd and Herts at Home Ltd. The Local Authority Accounting
Code of Practice requires the Council to prepare group financial statements to consolidate the Authority’s
interests, unless these interests are considered not material.
There is a risk that an incorrect assessment of the group boundary may result in the financial statements
being prepared on an incorrect basis.

What did we do?

What are our conclusion?

Ø Reviewed the Authority’s annual assessment of its group boundary
which considered whether its interests in private companies are
material.
Ø Corroborated information used in Authority’s assessment of its
group boundary back to financial forecasts or financial reporting
information of the companies that the Authority has an interest in.

The Authority’s assessment of its group boundary was reasonable. The
Authority’s financial statements have been prepared on an appropriate
basis.

14

Areas of Audit Focus

Other Areas of audit focus
New accounting standards

What is the area of focus?
The Code requires the Authority to comply with the requirements of two new accounting standards for
2018/19. These standards are:
Ø IFRS 9 – Financial instruments
Ø IFRS 15 – Revenue from contracts

There is a risk in relation to implementing new accounting standards and carrying out a sufficient
assessment and evaluation.

Agenda Pack Page 29

What did we do?

What are our conclusion?

Ø Reviewed the Authority’s impact assessments for the new
accounting standards.
Ø For IFRS 15, the review included consideration of each the
Authority’s income streams for whether the new accounting
standard was applicable.
Ø For IFRS 9, the review included consideration of the classification of
the Authority’s pooled investments. We sought an internal EY
technical review of the Authority’s approach to the classification of
its investments under IFRS 9.

IFRS 15 - The Authority determined that income streams relevant to this
accounting standard were not material. We have accepted this assertion.
IFRS 9 – We are liaising with the Authority on the treatment of some pooled
investments. As such we are not yet in a position to conclude on the
Authority’s compliance with this accounting standard.

15

Agenda Pack Page 30

03 Audit Report

16

Audit Report

Draft audit report
Our opinion on the financial statements
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF Hertfordshire
County Council
Opinion

Agenda Pack Page 31

We have audited the financial statements and the firefighters’ pension fund
financial statements of Hertfordshire County Council for the year ended 31
March 2019 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The
financial statements comprise the:
• Hertfordshire County Council Movement in Reserves Statement,
• Hertfordshire County Council Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement,
• Hertfordshire County Council Balance Sheet,
• Hertfordshire County Council Cash Flow Statement,
• and include the firefighters’ pension fund financial statements
comprising the Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and the related
notes.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.
In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Hertfordshire County
Council as at 31 March 2019 and of its expenditure and income for the
year then ended; and
• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
(UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of the
Hertfordshire County Council in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
FRC’s Ethical Standard and the Comptroller and Auditor General’s (C&AG)
AGN01, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to
which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
• the Chief Financial Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
• the Chief Financial Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the
Authority’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

17

Audit Report

Our opinion on the financial statements
Other information

Agenda Pack Page 32

The other information comprises the information included in the statement
of accounts, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are
required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014
Arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, having
regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG)
in November 2017, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects,
Hertfordshire County Council put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2019.
Matters on which we report by exception:
We report to you if:
• in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or
inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our
knowledge of the Council;
• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014;
• we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account
is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014;
• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014; or
• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014.
We have nothing to report in these respects

18

Audit Report

Our opinion on the financial statements

Agenda Pack Page 33

Responsibility of the Chief Financial Officer

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Financial
Officer Responsibilities set out on page 14, the Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which
includes the Authority’s financial statements and the firefighters pension
fund financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2018/19, and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Authority either
intends to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of
our auditor’s report.

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to
ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

19

Audit Report

Our opinion on the financial statements
Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources

Agenda Pack Page 34

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit
Practice, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by
the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in November 2017, as to
whether the Hertfordshire County Council had proper arrangements to
ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.
The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that
necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying
ourselves whether Hertfordshire County Council put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based
on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered
necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the
Hertfordshire County Council had put in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the National
Audit Office (NAO) requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to
proper arrangements.
We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent
us from concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all
aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Delay in certification of completion of the audit
We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we
have completed the work necessary to issue our assurance statement in
respect of the Authority’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack.
We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial
statements or on our value for money conclusion.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the members of Hertfordshire County Council, as
a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector
Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Hertfordshire County
Council and the Hertfordshire County Council’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Suresh Patel (Key Audit Partner)
Ernst & Young LLP (Local Auditor)
Luton
Date
The maintenance and integrity of the Hertfordshire County Council web site is
the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors does
not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors
accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the
financial statements since they were initially presented on the web site.
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

20

Agenda Pack Page 35

04 Audit Differences
21

Audit Differences
In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the
disclosures and amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known” or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be
accurately quantified and relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or
circumstances that are uncertain or open to interpretation.

Summary of adjusted differences

Agenda Pack Page 36

At the time of writing, we have not identified any audit differences above our reporting threshold of £1.53m.
We identified some minor disclosure amendments which management have accepted. We not consider them to merit reporting to the Committee.
There were no uncorrected misstatements. However, until the audit is fully concluded additional audit differences may be identified.

22

Agenda Pack Page 37

05 Value for Money Risks

01
23

V
F
M

Value for Money

Background
We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of
resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.
For 2018/19 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion “In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Agenda Pack Page 38

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:
§ Take informed decisions;
§ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
§ Work with partners and other third parties.
In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework for local government to ensure that our
assessment is made against a framework that you are already required to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual
governance statement.

Overall conclusion
We did not identify any significant risks around these criteria. We therefore have no matters to report about your arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources.
Commentary on the value for money conclusion
The Authority has estimated that over the next 4 years the cost of providing services will increase by £140m. Over the same period it expects its own
resources to increase by £50m, leaving a budget gap of £90m. In response, the Authority has put in place a new financial strategy which has several
interconnected strands focusing on:

Whilst the financial outlook for the Authority remains challenging, it has put in place arrangements aimed at giving it the best opportunity to meet those
challenges and continue to provide essential public services.
24

Agenda Pack Page 39

06 Other reporting issues

01
25

Other reporting issues
Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement
We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2018/19 with the audited
financial statements. We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from
our work, and whether it complies with relevant guidance.
We are yet to conclude on procedures for the other information published with the financial statements.

Agenda Pack Page 40

We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and can confirm it is consistent with other information from our audit of the financial statements
and we have no other matters to report.

Whole of Government Accounts

We anticipate that procedures on the Whole of Government Accounts return, as required by the National Audit Office (NAO) will be conducted by
September 2019. If any significant matters should are identified as part of the procedures performed we will communicate these with the Audit
Committee at the next available opportunity.

Other powers and duties
We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the
course of the audit, either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not
identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.
We also have a duty to make written recommendations to the Authority, copied to the Secretary of State, and take action in accordance with our
responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We did not identify any issues.

26

Other reporting issues
Other matters
As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other
matters if they are significant to your oversight of the Hertfordshire County Council’s financial reporting process. They include the following:
Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;
Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management;
Written representations we have requested;
Expected modifications to the audit report;
Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;
Findings and issues around the opening balance on initial audits (if applicable);
Related parties;
External confirmations;
Going concern;
Consideration of laws and regulations; and
Group audits.

Agenda Pack Page 41

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

No significant findings in relation to the above matters were identified as part of the audit.

27

Agenda Pack Page 42

Assessment of Control
07 Environment
28

Assessment of Control Environment
Financial controls

It is the responsibility of the Authority to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper arrangements to monitor
their adequacy and effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Authority has put adequate arrangements in
place to satisfy itself that the systems of internal financial control are both adequate and effective in practice.

Agenda Pack Page 43

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature,
timing and extent of testing performed. As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have therefore not tested the operation of controls.
Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control we are required to communicate to you significant
deficiencies in internal control.
We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your
financial statements of which you are not aware.

29

Agenda Pack Page 44

08 Data Analytics
30

Use of Data Analytics in the Audit
►

General Ledger and Payroll Data Analytics
Analytics Driven Audit

Data analytics
We used our data analysers to enable us to capture entire populations of your financial data. These
analysers:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be the focus of our substantive
audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than traditional, random sampling techniques.

Agenda Pack Page 45

In 2018/19, our use of these analysers in the authority’s audit included testing journal entries and
employee expenses, to identify and focus our testing on those entries we deem to have the highest
inherent risk to the audit.
We capture the data through our formal data requests and the data transfer takes place on a
secured EY website. These are in line with our EY data protection policies which are designed to
protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of business and personal information.
Journal Entry Analysis
We obtain downloads of all financial ledger transactions posted in the year. We perform
completeness analysis over the data, reconciling the sum of transactions to the movement in the
trial balances and financial statements to ensure we have captured all data. Our analysers then
review and sort transactions, allowing us to more effectively identify and test journals that we
consider to be higher risk, as identified in our audit planning report.
Payroll Analysis
We also use our analysers in our payroll testing. We obtain all payroll transactions posted in the year
from the payroll system and perform completeness analysis over the data, including reconciling the
total amount to the General Ledger trial balance. We then analyse the data against a number of
specifically designed procedures. These include analysis of payroll costs by month to identify any
variances from established expectations, as well as more detailed transactional interrogation.

Page 31

Data Analytics
Journal Entry Data Insights
The graphic outlined below summarises the journal population for 2018/19. We review journals by certain risk based criteria to focus on higher risk
transactions, such as journals posted manually by management, those posted around the year-end, those with unusual debit and credit relationships, and those
posted by individuals we would not expect to be entering transactions.
The purpose of this approach is to provide a more effective, risk focused approach to auditing journal entries, minimising the burden of compliance on
management by minimising randomly selected samples.

Agenda Pack Page 46

The analysis of the journal data provides some useful insights which assists the audit team to focus our journals testing, for example, the large majority of
journals are systems rather than manual which is indicative of an effective journals process with less reliance on manual journals; there are few manual journals
posted at the weekend; and that the types and preparers of journals are in line with our expectations.

Page 32

Data Analytics
Payroll Analyser Insights
The graphic outlined below summarises the payroll data for 2018/19. We review transactions for payroll at a more granular level, which allows
us to identify items with a higher likelihood of containing material misstatements or to identify unusual patterns within a population of data and
to design tests of details. This allows us to provide a more effective and risk focused audit on payroll, improving efficiency for both audit and
the management as we reduce the need for evidence support for larger random sample.
The payroll analysis below shows that, in line with expectations, the movements in payroll from starters and leaver are relatively stable and
that the levels of gross pay month on months are also consistent.

Agenda Pack Page 47
Page 33

Agenda Pack Page 48

09 Independence

34

Independence

Confirmation
We confirm that there are no changes in our assessment of independence since our confirmation in our Audit Plan dated 29 March 2019.
We complied with the FRC Ethical Standards and the requirements of the PSAA’s Terms of Appointment. In our professional judgement the
firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning of
regulatory and professional requirements.

Agenda Pack Page 49

We consider that our independence in this context is a matter which you should review, as well as us. It is important that the Audit Committee
consider the facts known to you and come to a view. If you would like to discuss any matters concerning our independence, we will be pleased
to do this at the meeting of the Audit Committee on the 19 July 2019

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and your Authority, and its directors and
senior management and its affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to your Authority, its directors and senior management
and its affiliates, and other services provided to other known connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our
integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence and the related safeguards that are in place and why they address the
threats.
There are no relationships from 1 April 2018 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence
and objectivity.

35

Independence

Fee analysis
As part of our reporting on our independence, we set out below a summary of the fees paid for the year ended 31 March 2019.
We confirm that we have undertaken non-audit work outside the NAO Code requirements in relation to Teacher’s Pensions Return. We have adopted the
necessary safeguards in completing this work and complied with Auditor Guidance Note 1 issued by the NAO.

Agenda Pack Page 50

Final Fee
2018/19

Planned Fee
2018/19

Scale Fee
2018/19

Final Fee
2017/18

£

£

£

£

Total Audit Fee – Code work

Note 1

109,392

109,392

142,067

Non-audit work – Teacher’s Pensions Return

Note 2

Note 2

Note 2

13,500

Note 1 - We have undertaken additional work in relation to significant risks. On completion we will seek to agree an additional audit fee
with the Director. The significant risks identified were:
1) Property, Plant and Equipment Valuation
2) Pensions Liability Valuation
3) PFI Liability

Note 2 – The final fee for non-audit work in relation to Teacher’s Pension Return is yet to be agreed with the council.

36

Agenda Pack Page 51

10 Appendices

37

Appendix A

Audit approach balance sheet
Our audit approach of the balance sheet is a fully substantive approach for all balance sheet categories. This is unchanged from the prior year.
Our audit procedures are designed to be responsive to our assessed risk of material misstatement at the relevant assertion level. Assertions relevant to
the balance sheet include:
Existence: An asset, liability and equity interest exists at a given date

•

Rights and Obligations: An asset, liability and equity interest pertains to the entity at a given date

•

Completeness: There are no unrecorded assets, liabilities, and equity interests, transactions or events, or undisclosed items

•

Valuation: An asset, liability and equity interest is recorded at an appropriate amount and any resulting valuation or allocation adjustments are
appropriately recorded

•

Presentation and Disclosure: Assets, liabilities and equity interests are appropriately aggregated or disaggregated, and classified, described and
disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. Disclosures are relevant and understandable in the context of the
applicable financial reporting framework

Agenda Pack Page 52

•

38

Appendix B

Summary of communications
Nature

Summary

07 November
2018

Meeting

The engagement manager and partner in charge of the engagement met with the management team to
discuss planning matters in relation to the 2018/19 audit.

29 January 2019

Meeting

The partner in charge of the engagement met with the audit committee chair for introductions and to discuss
focus areas of the audit committee this year.

31 January 2019

Letter

ISA 240 letters of enquiry sent both to management and to the audit committee.

29 March 2019

Report

The audit planning report, including confirmation of independence, was issued to the audit committee.

21 June 2019

Meeting

Audit progress update meeting with the management team, including discussion of value for money reporting.

July 2019

Letter of
Representation

Management letter of representation will be obtained as part of the conclusion of the audit

July 2019

Report

The audit results report, including confirmation of independence, will be issued to the audit committee.

Agenda Pack Page 53

Date

In addition to the above specific meetings and letters the audit team met with the management team multiple times throughout the audit to discuss audit findings.

39

Appendix C

Required communications with the Audit Committee
There are certain communications that we must provide to the Audit Committees of UK clients. We have detailed these here together with a reference of
when and where they were covered:

Terms of engagement

Agenda Pack Page 54

Confirmation by the audit committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as
written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as
the formal terms of engagement between
the PSAA’s appointed auditors and
audited bodies

Our responsibilities

Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter.

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and
the significant risks identified.

The statement of responsibilities serves as
the formal terms of engagement between
the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited
bodies.
Audit planning report
March 2019

Significant findings
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices
including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement
disclosures
• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with
management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting
process

Required
communications

Our Reporting to you
What is reported?

When and where

Audit results report
July 2019

40

Appendix C
Our Reporting to you
Required
communications
Public Interest Entities

What is reported?

Agenda Pack Page 55

For the audits of financial statements of public interest entities our written
communications to the audit committee include:
• A declaration of independence
• The identity of each key audit partner
• The use of non-member firms or external specialists and confirmation of their
independence
• The nature and frequency of communications
• A description of the scope and timing of the audit
• Which categories of the balance sheet have been tested substantively or
controls based and explanations for significant changes to the prior year,
including first year audits
• Materiality
• Any going concern issues identified
• Any significant deficiencies in internal control identified and whether they have
been resolved by management
• Subject to compliance with regulations, any actual or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations identified relevant to the audit committee
• Subject to compliance with regulations, any suspicions that irregularities,
including fraud with regard to the financial statements, may occur or have
occurred, and the implications thereof
• The valuation methods used and any changes to these including first year audits
• The scope of consolidation and exclusion criteria if any and whether in
accordance with the reporting framework
• The identification of any non-EY component teams used in the group audit
• The completeness of documentation and explanations received
• Any significant difficulties encountered in the course of the audit
• Any significant matters discussed with management
• Any other matters considered significant

When and where
Audit planning report, March 2019
and
Audit results report, July 2019

41

Appendix C
Our Reporting to you
Required
communications
Going concern

What is reported?

When and where

Agenda Pack Page 56

Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability Audit results report, July 2019
to continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Misstatements

•
•
•
•

Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion
The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report, July 2019

Subsequent events

• Enquiry of the audit committee where appropriate regarding whether any
subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

Fraud

• Enquiries of the audit committee to determine whether they have knowledge of Audit results report, July 2019
any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Authority
• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates
that a fraud may exist
• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the
Authority, any identified or suspected fraud involving:
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial
statements.
• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the
audit when fraud involving management is suspected
• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit Committee responsibility.

Audit results report, July 2019

42

Appendix C
Our Reporting to you
Required
communications

What is reported?

When and where

Related parties

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s
related parties including, when applicable:
• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the Authority

Agenda Pack Page 57

Audit results report, July 2019

Independence

Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all
Audit planning report, March 2019
individuals involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.
and
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of Audit results report, July 2019
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain
objectivity and independence
Communications whenever significant judgments are made about threats to
objectivity and independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

Significant deficiencies
in internal controls
identified during the
audit

• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit.

Audit results report, July 2019

43

Appendix C
Our Reporting to you
Required
communications
External confirmations

Agenda Pack Page 58

Consideration of laws
and regulations

What is reported?
• Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

When and where
Audit results report, July 2019

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or Audit results report, July 2019
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are
clearly inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected noncompliance may also include those that are brought to our attention that are
expected to occur imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they
may occur
• Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements
and that the audit committee may be aware of

Written representations • Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those
charged with governance

Audit results report, July 2019

Material inconsistencies • Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information
or misstatements
which management has refused to revise

Audit results report, July 2019

Auditors report

• Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s
report

Audit results report, July 2019

Fee Reporting

• Breakdown of fee information when the audit planning report is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit planning report, March 2019
and
Audit results report, July 2019

44

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory
About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.
© 2019 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.
ED None

Agenda Pack Page 59

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item No.

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

3

AUDIT COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 AT 2:00PM
AUDIT RESULTS REPORT: ACCOUNTS 2018/19
Report of the Director of Resources
Author:-

Ben Jay, Head of Corporate Finance
(Tel: 01992 556257)

Executive Member:-

Ralph Sangster, Resources and Performance
Portfolio

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

Each year, the Council has a statutory requirement to prepare a
Statement of Accounts and to have that statement independently
audited.

1.2

This report provides a summary of the key points arising during that
audit for the accounts for the year 2018/19 and the Council’s response
to those points. It reflects the formal report provided by the
independent auditor, as presented at item 2 of the Agenda.

1.3

The Committee should note that the meeting will take place before the
formal completion of the audit and the statutory deadline of the 31 July.
The report will therefore request delegation for the formal sign off of the
final version of the accounts, should this be required.

2.

Summary

2.1

The Committee received the audit plan from the independent auditor at
its meeting in March. The audit has progressed in line with that plan,
and this report provides an update on the current position. Further
issues have arisen during the course of the audit that was not included
in the audit plan, and an update is provided.

2.3

The report also sets out details of changes that have been made to the
pre-audit accounts which were published on the Council website at the
end of May 2019, in line with statutory requirements. The Committee is
invited to consider and agree these, as set out at appendix A to this
report.

Agenda Pack Page 61

1

3.

Recommendations

3.1

The Committee is asked:
Regarding the progress of the audit review I.

To note the progress update on the activity of the audit.

II.

To note that it is expected that the audit will be concluded by the
deadline.
Regarding accounting issues raised by the audit review -

III.

To agree the County Council position on the issues arising during
the audit.

IV.

To agree the changes set out in this report proposed to be made to
the pre-audit accounts, also included on this agenda.
Regarding the finalisation of the audit process and the signing of the
accounts –

V.

To agree that the final signing of the accounts in advance of the
statutory deadline of 31 July 2019, once all audit work and any
further necessary adjustments to the accounts are made, is
delegated to the Director of Resources (as Chief Finance Officer)
or, in his absence, the Assistant Director of Finance (as Deputy
Chief Finance Officer) and the Chair of this Committee, or, in her
absence, the Vice-Chair of the Committee.

VI.

To agree that any necessary changes made between the
Committee meeting and the final signing of the accounts are
reported back to the next meeting of the Committee.
Regarding the audit fee -

VII.

To support the Director of Resources in resisting additional charges
for the audit.
Regarding the Letter of Representation -

VIII.

To note the Letter of Representation to be signed by the Director of
Resources and the Chair of the Committee (or, in her absence, the
Vice Chair)

Agenda Pack Page 62

2

2.

Background

2.1

Accounts are prepared by the Council each year, as required under
statute. A detailed national guidance manual is provided, updated each
year, to assist in this process 1. The accounts are required to be audited
by an independent auditor, who is appointed by the Public Sector Audit
Appointments (PSAA – which inherited this responsibility from the Audit
Commission). The National Audit Office takes a role in the oversight of
this process.

2.2

The audit of the 2018/19 accounts is the second year in which local
government is working with shorter deadlines. The previous deadlines
were 30 June each year for the preparation of the accounts, and
conclusion of the audit to be finalised by 30 September. This has been
brought forward to 31 May and 31 July. The earlier deadlines are a
significant logistical and technical challenge, which has largely been
met through an earlier start point – the audit work now commences
during the year (in November) and undertakes significant levels of
testing through the November to February period, leaving less testing
work to be undertaken in June and July.

2.3

The audit last year was also overshadowed by media coverage of
significant financial pressures in local government and the wider public
sector. This included the financial crisis at Northamptonshire County
Council and the scrutiny of the role of the external auditor at that
authority, and the collapse of Carillion and the subsequent Public
Accounts Committee criticism of the role of audit firms in that
organisation.

2.4

In that context, PSAA pointed to a number of areas of audit activity
where councils place reliance on the input of third parties (for example,
in valuation of property plant and equipment, or actuarial valuation of
pensions assets and liabilities). This has clearly shaped the approach
taken by EY at HCC, both in the last year and also in this year. The
relevant extract is shown below.
The principal issues resulting from the [FRC’s Audit Quality Review
Team (AQRT)] reviews of financial statement audits, across all the
firms, following this year’s programme of work for PSAA were:
  insufficient challenge and independent corroboration of
management experts’ valuations of property, plant and equipment
(PPE) and other fixed assets, including approach to beacon properties;
 […] insufficient audit work over the valuation and allocation of
pension scheme assets, testing of information (including non-financial
data) provided to actuaries and direction and review of the pension
fund auditor2

1

This is the CIPFA/LASSAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
(2018/19).
2 Public Sector Audit Appointments, Annual Regulatory Compliance and Quality Report: EY LLP, July
2018, paragraph 15, p6-7.

Agenda Pack Page 63

3

3.

Analysis and issues

3.1

A number of issues arising from the audit of the 2018/19 accounts are
covered in the paragraphs below, which are:
 Valuation of pension assets
 Valuation of pension liabilities
 Valuation property plant and equipment
 Treatment of pooled assets under IFRS9
Pensions

3.2

A number of estimates are required to be made of the current net
assets and liabilities for the Council’s obligations to members of the
Local Government Pension Scheme. These estimates include a range
assumptions including for example the longevity of scheme members,
new members joining, and salary changes. These assumptions are
applied over a very long time period, and then analysed to assess their
value in the present, for the purposes of the accounts.

3.3

These estimates are prepared as part of the ‘IAS19’ report which is
compiled by the actuary (Hymans Robertson) and provided to the
Council. The report and its supporting calculations are extremely
complex, and, of necessity, make a range of assumptions in order
complete the calculation. These figures must be considered the best
estimates possible using the available information, but are sensitive to
changes in the assumptions used.

3.4

The net liability of the scheme for the Council is shown in the accounts
as £1.214bn (balance sheet, accounts p20 and also note 37, p102 £1.2bn reflects the total net liability for LGPS of £690m and for
Firefighters of £523m).

3.5

The sensitivity of the IAS19 report of the estimated net liability to the
Council is also set out in the accounts (note 37, p105). This shows that
a 0.5% movement in three key assumptions (salary increase rate,
pensions contribution increase rate, and the real discount rate) would
lead to an estimated £585m movement in the estimate of the net
liability.
Pensions – estimated asset valuation

3.6

The value of fund assets must be estimated using latest data on
investment values and, in some cases where values are more volatile,
the relevant market movements affecting investments to enable an
estimated value as at 31 March. The Council’s accounts are prepared
on the basis of an early estimate for the value of those investments,
but a later estimate becomes available in late May. An amendment to
the accounts is difficult until after the 31 May deadline, but can be
made during the audit period.

Agenda Pack Page 64

4

3.7

Once later information is available, it is possible to identify that the
estimated value of the assets was overstated in the pre-audit accounts
to the value of £10.95m (last year, a similar assessment identified a
potential understatement of £30m; these movements reflect the
inevitable change in different types of investments and the difficulty of
valuing them).

3.8

It is not proposed to change the value shown in the accounts due
to both the volatility of the estimation (as noted above) and the
materiality (£10.95m is 0.49% of the estimated value of fund
assets). However, the revised value will be noted in the
commentary within note 37 as non-material.
Pensions – estimated liabilities valuation (McCLoud and GMP)

3.9

The nature of the fund and the ability to accept new entrants is varied
from time to time. A recent change to the conditions for new entrants
was challenge in two legal cases, affecting Firefighters and the Courts
Service. It was contended that the change to entry rights discriminated
against potential new applicants on grounds of age. The appeal was
upheld, implying a potential liability for the pension schemes affected.

3.10

At the time of preparing the accounts, guidance indicated that the
expected appeal against this decision on behalf of Government meant
that the appropriate treatment would be to recognise a contingent
liability, properly included within note 37 to the accounts.

3.11

Subsequently, the Government has been denied leave to appeal, and
revised guidance has been provided. This is that the liability arising
from the judgement should be estimated (most usually through a
revised IAS19 report) and the materiality for the accounts should be
assessed, allowing a judgement to be arrived at over whether or not an
adjustment is required.

3.12

The current assessment of the additional liability arising for HCC is that
the highest level of liability arising from the McCloud/Sargeant
transitional protection judgement is 0.07% of estimated liabilities, or
£2m.

3.13

As above, based on this level of materiality, making an adjustment in
the accounts would not enhance the value of the accounts to any
informed reader of the accounts, and it is not proposed to make an
adjustment. Rather, the level of the estimated liability will be noted.

3.14

A further issue related to scheme liabilities is the GMP (Guaranteed
Minimum Pension) liability. The materiality of this is currently assessed
as 0.5% of liabilities (c£14m). A detailed assessment has been
commissioned and a decision on further adjustment will be made
based upon materiality.

Agenda Pack Page 65

5

3.15

It is not proposed to change the value reflected in the accounts
unless it is judged to be material. This decision will be taken by
the Director of Resources (Chief Finance Officer) in consultation
with the external auditor.
Valuation of property plant and equipment

3.16

The contract for valuation of Council property was changed from
Lambert Smith Hampton (LSH) to Carter Jonas (CJ). This was
identified as a potential risk in the EY audit plan.

3.17

The early work on asset valuations identified a number of substantial
valuation changes. Investigation identified that this was attributable to
the new valuer making different, but still professionally acceptable,
choices on certain specific aspects of the asset valuation process.
These choices relate almost entirely to the value placed on schools
land and buildings, in particular the valuation of car parks and the
application of building construction indices. These changes in values
have substantially affected the value attributed to schools, and this is
summarised in the table below.

Asset class

Opening net book value (NBV)

Other
land and
buildings

Vehicles
and
plant

Infrastructure

Surplus

AuC

Total

£’m

£’m

£’m

£’m

£’m

£’m

1,955

27

742

189

2

2,914

operational schools rolling programme

236

schools uplift

167

non-schools rolling programme

28

19

ATRs

2

-3

Valuation

433

16

Additions

32

Asset movements

7

86.4
0.9

449

3

1.2

123

-8

-0.9

-1

Depreciation

-26

-1

-27

Disposal

-72

-2

-74

Closing NBV

374

0

57

8

0

440

2,329

27

799

198

1.8

3,355

3.18

The table shows that there has been a £440m increase in the value of
assets, concentrated in additions to infrastructure assets (£57m) and
revaluation of land and buildings (£374m). Of this, £400m related to the
revaluation of schools.

3.19

To ensure that the new methodology was consistently applied across
all assets, a larger proportion of asset values were reviewed than is
usual. (Normal practice for the Council is to revalue assets every 3
years as part of a rolling programme (one third each year). For this
year, nearly 75% of assets (by value) were reviewed.) Officers
reviewed detailed valuation papers for more than 840 assets. These

Agenda Pack Page 66

6

were discussed with the local EY team and agreed as being
reasonable based on a sample of 80, but further assurance was
requested by the EY local team from the EY technical team. Further
review of a sample of the revaluations was undertaken by the EY
technical team.
3.20

These revised values have been reviewed by EY and confirmed to be
reasonable and consistent with both HCC policy and with national
guidance. The position has also been confirmed by the EY technical
team.

3.21

It is not proposed to make any further change to the values for
property plant and equipment, as these have been prepared on
behalf of the Council by an appropriate independent valuer.
Valuation of pooled investment assets

3.22

From time to time the regulatory framework governing the preparation
of the accounts is updated. One such update is reflected in IFRS9.
Under this guidance, local authority investments are required to be
treated in a manner more consistent with commercial practice.
However, one possible impact of this would be to have a real (ie cash)
impact on financial performance from year to year arising from actual
appreciation or depreciation in the value of pooled investment assets.
Further to consultation, it was clear that there was widespread
opposition to the idea that a change in accounting treatment might lead
to a real detriment to local taxpayers.

3.23

Two alternative treatments were therefore advanced: a phased
adoption of the new rules, which would allow a phased retreat from
specific investments in such a way as to minimise losses during
transition (a ‘statutory override’ for a limited period; or an ‘election’ to
treat permanently the affected classes of assets as equity. The
treatment as equity will allow asset value movements to be taken
through Other Comprehensive Income and not through the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, thereby avoiding
any loss to the local taxpayer. The Council chose to take the ‘election’
route, as set out in the accounts (p114).

3.24

As part of the audit review, EY have challenged whether this treatment
of the pooled asset values under the ‘election’ route is correct, arguing
that the detail of the contract would invalidate that conclusion. They
have received technical advice that the election is not appropriate and
the phased adoption (statutory override) is more appropriate and also
more consistent with wider commercial practice.

3.25

The Council takes a different view, which is that the statutory override
would place local taxpayers at detriment, as this change in the
accounting practice would have an eventual impact on budget planning
and potentially lead to service reductions. The argument that it
preserves consistency with commercial practice is invalid, as taxpayers

Agenda Pack Page 67

7

(who are under a legal obligation to pay) should not properly be
compared with shareholders (who make a choice to invest or not based
on an assessment of future risks and benefits).
3.26

At the time of preparing this report, this matter remains unresolved and
the Council is seeking legal advice to help to resolve the position. The
issue is not confined to this Council but is common to many clients of
the independent treasury advisor used by the Council (Arlingclose).

3.27

It should be noted by the Committee that impact for the accounts would
be for a change to disclosure in a number of places with no impact on
the overall position. However, the Council currently receives benefits of
c3% per year on £30m, or c £500k per year. In this way, there would
be a real impact for local taxpayers in future years, as a source of
income would effectively be denied to the Council, with a consequence
for the wider Integrated Plan financial position and, potentially, for local
taxpayers.

4.

Resourcing the audit

4.1

EY have reported nationally that they will be unable to conclude audit
work on time at 19 locations due to resources constraints. At present,
resource constraints are not an issue for the completion of the audit
work needed at this Council and it is expected that the required work
will all be completed by the deadline. However, and as last year, there
are a number of areas that have been identified by officers and the
local audit team where further refinement of processes could be
undertaken to make future work more efficient, without compromising
the necessary independence of both teams.
Audit Fee

4.2

The draft audit results report sets out, at page 36, that the auditor will
be seeking additional fees to be paid in respect of work on the
technical elements of work on property and pensions valuations and
also on PFI accounting.

4.3

It is intended by Officers that this will be resisted as the additional work
actually required is not clearly explained, and, further, that these areas
were flagged in the audit plan (and the original fee estimate) as being
areas of specific review, and so it is to be expected that the original fee
included the necessary work required to complete the review of those
areas set out in the plan with no increase to the estimated fee.

4.4

It should also be noted that the bulk of the work required relating to
property valuation feel to the HCC Officer team; that the pensions
liability work was the subject of national discussion and advice, and not
specific to the Council; and that PFI accounting has been reviewed
each year and that the overall requirements and the Council’s
presentation of the relevant accounts has not changed. So it is unclear

Agenda Pack Page 68

8

on what basis material additional technical review of the HCC accounts
was, in fact, required by EY.
5.

Changes to the pre-audit accounts

5.1

A number of small changes are intended to be been made to the preaudit accounts that were published on the Council website further to
the progress of the audit review. These are detailed in Appendix A and
reflect the points made previously in this report as well as other
changes.

5.2

The Committee is invited to agree to approve the proposed
changes to the accounts.

5.3

It remains possible, however, that further changes arise from the
remaining audit work not yet completed between the Committee
meeting and the statutory deadline.

5.4

In which case (and as last year) it is requested that the Committee
agrees that the signing of the accounts for those final
amendments is delegated to the Director of Resources (Chief
Finance Officer), or, in his absence the Assistant Director Finance
(as Deputy Chief Finance Officer), and also to the Chair of the
Audit Committee, or, in her absence, the Vice-Chair of the
Committee.

5.5

Should further changes be required, it is recommended that the final
version of the accounts is brought to the September Committee
meeting.

6.

Conclusion

6.1

This report sets out the position regarding progress against the audit
plan submitted by the external auditor in the March meeting of the
Committee. It notes that there is good progress against that plan, and
that it is expected that the accounts will be signed off by the deadline.

6.2

It also notes a number of technical matters that have arisen, including
matters affecting the estimation of pension liability and pension assets,
the valuation property, and the treatment of certain types of pooled
investment. Officers have resolved all but one of these issues with the
audit team, and the outstanding matter (treatment of pooled
investments) is not expected to delay the finalisation of the accounts.

Agenda Pack Page 69

9

Appendix1 – schedule of proposed changes to the pre-audit accounts

Description

Reason

Agenda Pack Page 70

North Herts
District Council
NNDR

Late figures received from the District
Council which require this adjustment

Movement
between
Reserves

Correction of classification error

IAS19 Asset
Revaluation

IAS 19 Liabilities
Revaluation

Consideration of the impact and
materiality of later estimates for the
fair value of Fund assets. As noted
elsewhere in this report it is not
intended to change the values in the
accounts but a note will be included of
the materiality (value) of the
difference in the estimates.
Consideration of the impact and
materiality of the revised liability
estimates taking into accounts the
McCloud judgement and GMP. As
noted elsewhere in this report it is not
intended to change the values in the
accounts but a note will be included of
the materiality (value) of the
difference in the estimates.

DR

CR

Page Number (Note)

Comprehensive Income
& Expenditure
Statement (CIES) - £70k

Movement in reserves
Statement (MIRS) £70k

P.19-P.21 (CIES, Balance Sheet & MIRS)
P.50 (Note 7 Adjustment between Accounting
Standards)
P.60 (Note 11 Taxation & Non Specific Grant
Income)
P.77-78 (Note 21 Creditors & Note 22
Provisions)
P.85 (Note 24 Collection Fund Adjustment)

ITT Reserve - £254k

Thriving Families
Reserve - £254k

Nil

Nil

P.100-106 (Note 37 Defined Benefit Pension
Schemes)

Nil

Nil

P.100-106 (Note 37 Defined Benefit Pension
Schemes)

P.21 (MIRS)

10

Appendix1 – schedule of proposed changes to the pre-audit accounts

Description

Reason

DR

CR

Agenda Pack Page 71

Exit Packages

Adjustment for additional information
that was not available at the time of
the first draft but which properly
relates to 2018-19.

CIES - £34k

Balance Sheet - £34k

Intangibles

Reclassification of spend from
Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) to
Intangible Assets

Intangibles (Balance
Sheet) - £219k

PPE (Balance Sheet) £219k

Expenditure
Funding Analysis
Adjustment

Correction of classification error

Taxation & Non-Specific
Grant Income (CIES) £5,661k

Cost of Services (CIES)
- £5,661k

Leases

Amendment required due to
revaluation of assets for Finance
Leases, Other Land & Buildings
(Increase of £6k)

Nil

Nil

PPE (Balance Sheet) £6,910k
MIRS - £6,910k

Deficit on revaluation
of available for sale
financial assets (CIES) 156k

Asset Valuations

Amendment to valuation following
clarification of asset tenure

Revaluation Reserve
(Balance Sheet) £6,910k
Other Comprehensive
Income & Expenditure
(CIES) - £6,910k

IRFS 9

The Council does not currently intend
to make any change to the
presentation of pooled asset
investments under the IFRS 9
provisions, however in the event that
a change in required, the adjustment

Financing and
Investment Income &
Expenditure (CIES) £156k

Page Number (Note)
P.19-P.20 (CIES, Balance Sheet)
P.50 (Note 7 Adjustment between Accounting
Standards)
P.94 (Note 34 Termination Benefits & Exit
Packages
Balance Sheet
Note 14
P.61-P.64 (Note 12 PPE)
P.19 (CIES)
P.60 (Note 11 Taxation & Non Specific Grant
Income)
P.70 (Note 16 Leases)

P.19-P.21 (CIES, Balance Sheet & MIRS)
P.61-P.64 (Note 12 PPE)
P.81 (Note 24 Revaluation Reserve)
P.19 (CIES)
P.60 (Note 10 Financing Investment Income &
Expenditure
P.82 (Note 24 Pooled Investment Fund
Adjustment Account)
P114 (Note 43 Financial Instruments)

11

Appendix1 – schedule of proposed changes to the pre-audit accounts

Description

Reason

DR

CR

Nil

Nil

Page Number (Note)

will be as set out in this table

Agenda Pack Page 72

Audit Cross
Casting errors

Various minor adjustments were
identified by Audit and will be
amended for the final pack to improve
consistency between tables, which do
not require any new postings

Various

12

APPENDIX 2: Letters of Representation (HCC)

Resources
Private & Confidential
Suresh Patel
Associate Partner
Ernst & Young LLP
400 Capability Green
LUTON
Bedfordshire
LU1 3LU

Resources
Hertfordshire County Council
Postal Point 243
County Hall
Pegs Lane
Hertford, Herts SG13 8DF
www.hertfordshire.gov.uk
Tel:
01992 555601
Email: Scott.Crudgington@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Scott Crudgington
Contact:
19 July 2019
Date:

Dear Suresh
This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial
statements of Hertfordshire County Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 31
March 2019. We recognise that obtaining representations from us concerning the
information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form an
opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the Council
financial position of Hertfordshire County Council as of 31 March 2019 and of its
income and expenditure for the year then ended in accordance with CIPFA LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.
We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to express
an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), which involves an examination of the
accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent you considered
necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify – nor necessarily be
expected to disclose – all fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any
exist.
Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the
purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:
A. Financial Statements and Financial Records
1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities,
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Accounts

Agenda Pack Page 73

and Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.
2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our
responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements. We believe
the financial statements referred to above give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (or results of operations) and cash
flows of the Council in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19. We have
approved the financial statements.
3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements are appropriately described in the financial statements.
4. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has a
system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate
financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
5. We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, summarised in
the accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during the current audit and
pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in
the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. We have not
corrected these differences because of this level of immateriality, which we
have discussed with you.
B. Non-compliance with law and regulations, including fraud
1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Council’s
activities are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that we
are responsible to identify and address any non-compliance with applicable law
and regulations, including fraud.
2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.
3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with
laws or regulations, including fraud that may have affected the Council
(regardless of the source or form and including without limitation, any
allegations by “whistleblowers”), including non-compliance matters:

involving financial statements;

Agenda Pack Page 74







related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the Council’s
financial statements;
related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with which
may be fundamental to the operations of the Council’s activities, its
ability to continue to operate, or to avoid material penalties;
involving management, or employees who have significant roles in
internal controls, or others; or
in relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other noncompliance with laws and regulations communicated by employees,
former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions
1. We have provided you with:




Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation
and other matters;
Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose
of the audit; and
Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements.
3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council and
committees; Cabinet and Audit Committee (or summaries of actions of recent
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared) held through the
period of the most recent meeting on the following date:
4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the
identification of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the
Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of
which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets,
liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary
transactions and transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well
as related balances due to or from such parties at the period end. These
transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the
financial statements.
5. We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.
6. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial

Agenda Pack Page 75

statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions
or other requirements of all outstanding debt.
D. Liabilities and Contingencies
1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees,
whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements.
2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims,
whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.
3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related
litigation and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in relevant
notes to the financial statements all guarantees that we have given to third
parties.
E. Subsequent Events
1. There have been no events subsequent to year end which require adjustment
of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto.
F. Other information
1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the narrative report.
2. We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent
with the financial statements.
G. Use of the Work of a Specialist
1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate the
values of the Council’s land and buildings and surplus assets and have
adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the
amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements and the
underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be
given to the specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an
attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that
have had an effect on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.
H. Estimates – Property Valuations
1. We believe that the measurement processes, including related assumptions
and models, used to determine the accounting estimate(s) have been
consistently applied and are appropriate.
2. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the property
valuations appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific

Agenda Pack Page 76

courses of action on behalf of the entity, where relevant to the accounting
estimates and disclosures.
3. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with respect
to the accounting estimate(s) are complete and made in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.
4. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimate(s) and
disclosures in the financial statements due to subsequent events.
I. Retirement benefits
1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate
enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the
scheme liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the business. All
significant retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments have been
identified and properly accounted for.
J. Going Concern
1. We have made you aware of any issues that are relevant to the Council’s ability
to continue as a going concern, including significant conditions and events, our
plans for future action and the feasibility of those plans.
Yours faithfully

______________________________
Scott Crudgington, Director of Resources (Chief Finance Officer)

_______________________________
Frances Button, Chairman of the Audit Committee

Agenda Pack Page 77

This page is intentionally left blank

ITEM 3 - APPENDIX A

Hertfordshire County Council
Statement of Accounts 2018/19

Agenda Pack Page 79

Agenda Pack Page 80

Contents
Narrative Report

1

Statement of Accounts:

12

• Statement of Responsibilities

12

• Expenditure and Funding Analysis

15

• Presentation of Financial Statements:

18

1. Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

19

2. Balance Sheet

20

3. Movement in Reserves Statement

21

4. Cash Flow Statement

22

• Statement of Accounting Policies

23

• Notes to the Accounts

41

• Local Government Pension Fund Accounts

127

• Firefighters’ Pension Fund Accounts

159

• Glossary

164

Annual Governance Statement

174

Independent Auditor’s Report

189

Agenda Pack Page 81

Narrative Report

Agenda Pack Page 82

Page | 1

Narrative Report
Introduction
Hertfordshire County Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2018/19 gives a detailed analysis of the
council’s finances for that year. These are prepared in accordance with relevant accounting and
reporting standards and other statutory requirements.
This Narrative Report provides an introduction to the accounts. It includes:
 some key facts about Hertfordshire;
 a brief description of the leadership, management and staffing of the County Council;
 our priorities;
 an overview of the services provided by the council, and an overview of our performance against
key objectives in 2018/19 financial year; and
 a description of the financial position at the end of the year as set out in the accounts.
The description of the financial position includes:
 analysis of revenue spending, including a description of the budget for the year and the
performance against it, and an explanation of where taxpayers’ money has been spent to provide
services;
 the medium term financial outlook and the future challenges we face;
 an analysis of capital investment made during the year; and
 a summary of our key financial liabilities and reserves.
Key Facts about Hertfordshire
Hertfordshire is currently home to a population of just under 1.2 million residents. Hertfordshire’s
population is growing – it is projected to increase from 1.177 million to 1.333 million by 2029. This
requires corresponding growth in infrastructure – schools and community facilities as well as capacity on
our transport network.
The number of children and young people under the age of 19 is forecast to grow by 17% between 2014
and 2029; and the number of over 65’s by 38%. Demographic changes in within Hertfordshire, coupled
with longer life expectancy, is anticipated to result in greater complex care needs; demand for disability
services is rising with longer life expectancy, improved diagnosis and the responsibilities and
expectations arising from the 2014 Care Act.
Improving our understanding of our communities and their needs is a central element of how we develop
our priorities. We use techniques including regular communication, public engagement, formal
consultation and where appropriate and possible, co-production of strategies and operational plans with
residents and service users. In addition to service-specific engagement activity, a biennial telephone
survey with around 1,000 residents and the use of a Citizens’ Panel help inform priority setting. The last
Residents’ Survey was conducted between September and November 2018. Some of the headline
responses are set out below:




69% of Hertfordshire residents stated that they were satisfied with the way Hertfordshire County
Council operates (compared to 60% nationally);
85% of Hertfordshire residents stated they were satisfied with their area as a place to live
(compared to 78% nationally); and
81% of Hertfordshire residents stated that they felt they strongly belonged to their local area
(compared to 62% nationally).

Agenda Pack Page 83

Page | 2

Narrative Report
The leadership, management and staffing of the County Council
The decisions that affect the services we provide to our residents are made by elected Councillors.
There are 78 Councillors at Hertfordshire County Council. The last local election was in 2017 and the
next will be in 2021. The Full Council is a meeting of all 78 Council members and it is at these meetings
that councillors decide the overall policies of the council and set the annual revenue budget and the
capital investment programme.
The Full Council is also responsible for electing a Leader of the Council. The current leader is Cllr David
Williams is responsible for the strategic direction and priorities of the council. This includes the overall
revenue and capital strategy, which is supported by 8 other councillors and together they form a Cabinet.
One of the members of the Cabinet is also the Deputy Leader. This is currently Cllr Teresa Heritage.
Decisions are taken by the Cabinet (representing each of the council’s service portfolios) following
consideration by Cabinet Panels.
Oversight is provided by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Audit Committee. Council staff
are then responsible for implementing these decisions within agreed delegations.
The Council’s Constitution, including its Financial Regulations, are reviewed regularly to ensure they
remain effective. Financial Regulations were reviewed and refreshed in November 2017. The Council
Constitution was updated and agreed in May 2019. There were no significant changes to governance
arrangements during 2018/19.
Senior Officers are led by the Chief Executive, Owen Mapley, and the Directors of the different council
services. Together, the Chief Executive and the service Directors for the Strategic Management Board
are responsible for:




Advising Councillors on policy;
Implementing Councillors’ decisions; and
Service performance.

During the year the previous Chief Executive, John Wood, retired. There was a well-planned transfer of
the role from John Wood to Owen Mapley with a handover period to ensure continued stability within the
council.
The table below shows the whole time equivalent for staffing in each Director’s area.

Staff Number (Whole Time Equivalent)

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

Adult Care Services

1,796

1,906

Children's Services

1,893

1,884

Resources

1,428

1,446

Fire & Rescue and Other Community Protection

675

670

Environment

315

319

Public Health

50

53

6,157

6,278

Total

Agenda Pack Page 84

Page | 3

Narrative Report
County of Opportunity: Our priorities
Hertfordshire County Council’s Corporate Plan: County of Opportunity 2017-2021 was adopted following
the May 2017 local elections. A summary of the anticipated challenges we will face in the future are set
out in the Council’s Corporate Plan (https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/freedom-ofinformation-and-council-data/open-data-statistics-about-hertfordshire/what-our-priorities-are-and-howwere-doing/corporate-plan-2017-21.aspx).
The Corporate Plan sets out our vision for Hertfordshire “to continue to be a county where people have
the opportunity to live healthy, fulfilling lives in thriving, prosperous communities” and outlines the
council’s overall vision, aspirations and overarching priorities for Hertfordshire and the County Council
under four core themes or ‘Opportunities’.
The Corporate Plan provides an overall framework for the council’s other key strategies and
departmental plans which set out more detail of how key priorities are to be addressed. This is currently
being refreshed, following the recent appointment of the new Chief Executive and the previous election
of Councillor David Williams as Leader of the Council.
Services provided by the council
The council provides a wide range of services, including:











caring for and supporting children, young people and families; also, caring for the elderly and
vulnerable and people with disabilities, mental health, drugs or alcohol problems;
the Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service;
road maintenance and safety;
co-ordinating bus services and providing home to school transport for children;
recycling and waste disposal;
responding to major planning applications – for example, housing and mineral extraction;
economic development;
providing libraries, archives and local studies material;
protecting consumers against poor quality goods and services and upholding fair trading laws;
and
community safety (crime / anti-social behaviour reduction initiatives) and emergency planning.

The performance of the council in key areas is set out in the Annual Report, prepared each year
alongside the accounts. The final version of the accounts will be published by the 31 July 2019 deadline,
once the review of the independent local auditor has been completed, and this part of the narrative
report will be updated at that point.
Revenue Spending Plans
The budget for 2018/19 was set in the context of ongoing financial challenge for the council, in common
with the whole of the local government sector. This arises from the combination of ongoing national
reductions in public sector spending, compounded by inflationary pressures and growing demand for our
services. The budget plan at the start of 2018/19 is set out overleaf, which shows how the budget was
allocated between different areas of spending. The largest areas of spending can be identified as
Schools funding and Adult Care Services.

Agenda Pack Page 85

Page | 4

Narrative Report
2018/19 Gross Budget by Service £1,934.9 million
Capital Financing and
Interest, £21.0m,
1.1%
Legal, Statutory and

Adult Care Services,
£427.2m, 22.1%

other central
Services, £11.3m,
0.6%

Environment ,
£121.0m, 6.3%
Public Health,
£47.6m, 2.5%
Community
Protection, £37.4m,
1.9%

Libraries and other
Community Services,
£11.2m, 0.6%

Support for Frontline
Services, £93.3m,
4.8%
Contingency and
Resources for future
investment, £28.5m,
1.5%

Schools, £938.3m,
48.5%

Children’s Services,
£198.1m, 10.2%

The budget for the year included planned savings of £29.7m, which is set out in more detail below.
Delivery of savings was monitored through the year and, at the end of the financial year, £25m had been
delivered as planned; the balance of savings that were not delivered were offset by alternative savings
identified during the year.

Service Area

Policy Choice

Efficiency
Savings

2018/19
Total Savings

£m

£m

£m

1.0

3.0

4.0

-

0.2

0.2

Environment

0.5

2.3

2.8

Adult Care Services

2.0

13.8

15.7

-

1.5

1.5

0.1

2.7

2.7

-

2.8

2.8

3.6

26.2

29.7

Children’s Services
Community Protection

Public Health
Resources
Central Items

Outturn revenue performance
A number of key pressures on our budgets arose during the course of the year, specifically within social
care services for adults and children. With no other changes, this could have led to a £8m overspend.
However, as a result of proactive budget management taken during the year across all services and also
due to unexpected external factors, the final outturn was an underspend of £0.7m.

Agenda Pack Page 86

Page | 5

Narrative Report
Summary Revenue Budget Monitor as at 31 March 2019
Latest
Approved
Budget
£’000

SERVICE

Outturn at
Variance
Year End (Incl after C/F at 31
C/Fs)
March 2019
£’000
£’000

Adult Care Services

324,584

327,583

2,999

Public Health
Children's Services
Environment & Infrastructure
Resources
Community Protection
Service Subtotal
Central Items
NET REVENUE BUDGET
Transfers to/(from) Reserves

48,727
173,812
109,064
71,052
36,125
763,364
26,533
789,897
3,938

48,727
178,051
109,136
69,387
36,292
769,176
20,040
789,216
3,938

4,239
72
(1,665)
167
5,812
(6,493)
(681)
-

Contribution to Capital
COUNTY FUND TOTAL
CS Schools funded by direct government grant
Schools Grant & Other Funding
Schools Overspend/ (Underspend)

5,181

5,181

799,016
613,509
(613,509)
-

798,335
601,833
(605,064)
(3,231)

(681)
(11,676)
8,445
(3,231)

The key mitigations to overspending against social care budgets were wider action to secure additional
underspending in other services, or to maintain spending close to plans, and to unexpected grants from
Government (worth £4.7m), unanticipated benefits arising from utilities costs and property rates rebates
(£2m), and also benefits arising from delays in delivery of some capital schemes which reduced
financing costs (£2m). In addition, there was an underspend against planned spending on schools
(largely due to the timing of some schools becoming academies).
Savings were largely delivered as planned – where savings were identified as being unlikely to be
delivered, alternative savings were identified. This enabled the overall budget to be held in balance.
At the end of the year, a number of budget areas requested amounts to be carried forward to the new
financial year. Principally, these were ring-fenced grant amounts, where the purpose of the spending is
limited in the terms of the grant. Had those amounts not been carried forward (including funding such as
schools funding, the Better Care Fund, and the Public Health grant), there is a risk that we would have
had to repay those amounts to Government. These amounts have been transferred to the specific
reserve held for these purposes.
Also at the end of the year, the planned contingency budget (to be used in the event of overspending
that could not be addressed elsewhere) had not been required. This has been largely transferred to the
Transition Reserve in line with decision made by Cabinet, with a smaller amount being added to the
Invest to Transform reserve.

Agenda Pack Page 87

Page | 6

Narrative Report
Revenue Funding
The chart below shows how spending was planned to be funded. It can be seen that the largest
contributors to our funding are the ring-fenced grant for schools (the Dedicated Schools Grant) and the
income arising from Council Tax receipts.

2018/19 Gross Budget Funding Breakdown £1,934.9 million
Sales, Fees &
Charges, £118.0m,
6.1%

Partner
Contributions,
£21.1m, 1.1%

Council Tax General, £540.7m,
27.9%

Council Tax - Adult
Social Care Precept,
£42.3m, 2.2%

Other Ringfenced
Grant, £52.9m, 2.7%

Collection Fund
Balance, £11.9m,
0.6%

Ringfenced - Public
Health, £47.6m, 2.5%

Business Rates
Retention Scheme,
£120.0m, 6.2%
Revenue Support
Grant, £22.6m, 1.2%

Ringfenced Dedicated Schools
Grant, £938.3m,
48.5%

Non-ringfenced
Grants, £19.5m, 1.0%

Outlook – 2019/20 and later years
The budget for 2019/20 was agreed by Full Council in February 2019. The medium term financial outlook
for the council is set out in the Integrate Plan document. This shows the planned spending for each
cabinet portfolio area for the new financial year and includes indicative figures for the next 3 years. This
financial outlook shows that there is expected to be further pressure on budgets across the next 4 years,
as shown in the following chart. The savings requirement is expected to increase to £90m by 2022/23, of
which plans have been laid for £45m. Further savings of £45m have yet to be identified – given the
extent of this requirement, work has begun much earlier than usual on the new round of budget planning

Agenda Pack Page 88

Page | 7

Narrative Report
Capital investment programme
The capital programme for the year 2018/19 saw investment of £172.2m in the infrastructure of the
County, with specific emphasis on highways and schools expansion. This is shown in the chart below,
which provides comparator figures for previous years. Since April 2015, it can be seen that there has
been £650m invested in Hertfordshire through the council’s capital investment programme.

Significant investment schemes progressed during the year include:






£60m of investment in the Hertfordshire Highways network, including highways and lighting
£22m has invested in additional Secondary School places
£6m has invested in additional Primary School places
£19m invested in general improvements and maintenance of Hertfordshire schools
£6.4m was invested in Superfast Broadband.

Capital Funding
Capital investment in the year has been funded from a variety of sources, shown below. This shows that
most investment was funded either through capital grants received for specific purposes, or through
borrowing.
Capital investment
Capital Grants
Borrowing
Contributions from Third
Parties
Revenue contributions
Specific Reserves
Capital Receipts
Total

Outturn
£'000
82,597
58,195
18,187
8,875
3,476
866
172,196

48%
34%
11%
5%
2%
1%

Agenda Pack Page 89

Page | 8

Narrative Report
Our key financial assets and liabilities and reserves
The council has significant assets, such as land and buildings, through which it delivers services. The
value for many of these will need to be estimated as there is no active market for them. For example,
there are a large number of schools of all sizes and their value is estimated for the purposes of the
accounts, based on the size of the school and an estimate of the rebuilding costs. The council engages
independent accredited valuers to ensure these valuations are robust.
A significant liability for the council is the pension liability. This is an estimate of the current value of all
future pensions payments for those currently part of the LGPS fund administered by the council. It
considers the future liability for all payments, adjusted to current values and the future value of all assets
held by the scheme (which are invested to help ensure the liability is funded). The net liability is a key
figure in the accounts. The estimation of the current value of future assets and liabilities is a complex
process, and the council requests this information from the pension fund independent actuary each year
as part of the preparation of the accounts.
Reserves are held by the council and reflect specific future risks or liabilities. The reserves held by the
council include a number of reserves held on behalf of third parties, for example, balances held by
schools which are controlled by the school governors, and amounts held on behalf of the Local
Enterprise Partnership (Herts LEP). Other reserves are held for accumulated balances relating to grants
that are ringfenced – were these to be used for other purposes, the council would expect to become
liable to repay funds used for expenditure that is not allowable under the conditions of the ringfenced
grant. A limited number of reserves are more flexible and are can be used for more general purposes.
Guide to the Statement of Accounts
The Statement of Accounts sets out the council’s income and expenditure for the year and its financial
position at 31 March 2019. The format and content of the financial statements is prescribed by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, which in turn is underpinned by International Financial
Reporting Standards. Accounting policies are applied in accordance with these standards; there have
been no material changes since last year.
The Expenditure & Funding Analysis Statement shows spend as managed by each of the council’s
directorates and provides a reconciliation between the way services are budgeted and funded from
resources (government grants, council tax and business rates). Their presentation in the CIES is in
accordance with accounting standards and statutory requirements.
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) records all of the council’s income
and expenditure for the year, including that for Hertfordshire’s maintained schools. The top half of the
statement provides an analysis by service area, on the same basis that these services are organised
and managed by the council during the year. The bottom half of the statement deals with county wide
transactions and funding; the section ‘Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure’ records
accounting gains and losses that have yet to be realised (for example, the change in value of an asset
which is only realised when the asset is sold).
The statement shows the true cost of providing services in accordance with required accounting
practices (including depreciation costs, the impact of changes in asset values, and the value of future
years’ pension benefits earned during the year). As such, the net cost of services shown in the accounts
can vary significantly from the actual costs shown in the revenue monitor, chargeable to taxpayers.
The Balance Sheet is a “snapshot” of the council’s financial position at year end. The top half of the
balance sheet sets out the council’s assets and liabilities, including provision for known liabilities from
past events that can be reliably estimated. The lower half of the balance sheet shows the council’s

Agenda Pack Page 90

Page | 9

Narrative Report
reserves: Usable reserves reflect actual cash amounts (of which a significant proportion is held by the
council on behalf of other bodies, such as schools); and unusable reserves result from accounting
adjustments required by statute or accounting standards and cannot be spent.
The Movement in Reserves Statement is a summary of the changes to the council’s reserves over the
course of the year. Reserves are divided into “usable”, which are cash backed can be invested in capital
projects or service improvements; and “unusable” , the majority of which are not cash backed (for
example, valuation reserves that represent the change in book value of assets and liabilities) and which
are set aside for specific purposes.
The Cash Flow Statement shows the reason for changes in the council’s cash balances during the year
and whether that change is due to operating activities, new investment (including capital spend and
disposals), or financing activities (such as repayment of borrowing and other long term liabilities).
These Statements are supplemented by disclosure notes that give further explanation of the figures in
the Statements.
The Statement of Accounts also includes:




Statements setting out the respective responsibilities of the council and its Chief Financial Officer,
and of the Audit Committee;
the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts for Hertfordshire and the Firefighters’ Pension
Fund accounts; and
the Annual Governance Statement, which sets out the governance structures of the council and
its key internal controls.

A Glossary of key terms can be found at the end of this publication.
Investments in Other Companies
The council also has an interest in wholly owned subsidiary companies (Herts Catering Ltd, Herts Full
Stop Ltd and Herts Living Ltd) and is a 19% shareholder in Herts for Learning Ltd. These companies
have been set up to provide services on behalf of the council, where an arm’s length structure gives the
opportunity to deliver these in a commercial and cost effective way. Further details of these investments
can be found in note 48 to the accounts. While the companies provide services to Hertfordshire, their
financial scale currently has minimal impact on the council’s overall finances therefore they are not
included in these accounts.
The Annual Governance Statement
The Annual Governance Statement (included in the accounts), sets out these arrangements and reviews

their effectiveness, highlighting specific areas of risk and how these are being addressed. They include:


Ongoing financial risks in relation to demand for services, particularly in the area of adult social
care;significant uncertainty on funding beyond 2019/20, with the end of the current four year
settlement;proposed changes to business rates retention; andthe impact of the Fair Funding
review on the distribution of resources. Finance will continue to work with services and members
to support the development of savings options to close the gap in resources in future years,
which is estimated to be £45m by 2022/23. They will also monitor the delivery of current savings
proposals, to support decision making for future years’ Integrated Plans. In addition, Finance
continues to monitor specific developments and make representations on behalf of the council.



Recruitment of staff in key operational areas, in particular, Legal Services, Property, Environment
(in particular engineers and planning staff), Children’s Services and Adult Social Care continue to

Agenda Pack Page 91

Page | 10

Narrative Report
be a priority. For the latter, workforce and associated cost pressures including the unavailability
of care workers in some high employment areas of the County remains an area of significant
challenge, impacting activities such as delayed transfers of care etc. The council continues to
look at ways to address vacancies in these harder to fill areas and is using the Apprentice Levy to
address key skills shortages. Work has already begun around a recruitment campaign for social
workers, occupational therapists and proposals around market forces payments.


The County Council is one of the partners in the Croxley Rail Link (now called Metropolitan Line
Extension) scheme. During 2017/18, the Mayor of London reversed Transport for London’s (TfL)
previous position accepting cost risk beyond the agreed funding package. Despite the
Government agreeing to provide the extra £70m, TfL would not agree to cover any ongoing cost
risk and as a result there is an impasse. Should this lead to the scheme not progressing, funding
partners may seek all funding to be returned. Furthermore, investigations into alternative uses of
the corridor are being explored. The accounts have been prepared in line with the guidance
reflecting the latest information on the scheme.



The potential creation of new delivery models, for example for Library Services to be transferred
to a Mutual: for these, a full business plan and transition plan, including governance model,
financial modelling; and risk and control implications will be developed.

The overall review of effectiveness set out in the Annual Governance Statement rates financial
systems as having “Satisfactory Assurance”.
The council maintains a Corporate Risk Register, reported regularly to the Resources and Performance
Cabinet Panel as part of the Quarterly Performance monitor. Mitigating actions are in place for all
identified risks. The Register can be found at https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-thecouncil/freedom-of-information-and-council-data/open-data-statistics-about-hertfordshire/
In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of risk management
arrangements, receiving regular reports concerning the operation and effectiveness of the Corporate
Risk Process and updates on other risk management activity, along with focussed review of specific
areas of risk from the Risk Register.
NOTE: values throughout these accounts are presented rounded to the nearest thousand. Totals in supporting
tables and notes may not appear to cast, cross-cast, or exactly match to the core statements or other tables due to
rounding differences.

Agenda Pack Page 92

Page | 11

Statement of Responsibilities

Agenda Pack Page 93

Page | 12

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Hertfordshire
County Council
This statement sets out the respective responsibilities of the council and the Chief Finance Officer for the accounts.

The County Council’s responsibilities
The council is required:


To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this council, that officer is the
Director of Resources;



To manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets;
and



To approve the Statement of Accounts before 31 July 2019.

I confirm that the final accounts were approved by the Audit Committee.

Signed on behalf of Hertfordshire County Council

Councillor Frances Button
Chairman
Audit Committee

Agenda Pack Page 94

Page | 13

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Hertfordshire
County Council
The Chief Finance Officer’s responsibilities
The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation of the council’s Statement of Accounts in accordance
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom.
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Finance Officer has:


Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;



Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and



Complied with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

The Chief Finance Officer has also:


Kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and



Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Chief Finance Officer's Certificate
I certify that the Statement of Accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the council, the
Hertfordshire County Council Pension Fund and the Firefighters’ Pension Fund as at 31 March 2019 and the
income and expenditure for the year then ended.

Scott Crudgington, CPFA, MBA
Director of Resources

Agenda Pack Page 95

Page | 14

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

Agenda Pack Page 96

Page | 15

Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Introduction
The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax and rate payers how the
funding available to the council (i.e. government grants, council tax and business rates) for the year has been used
in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure
is allocated for decision making purposes between the council’s directorates. Income and expenditure accounted
for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

2017/18

Adult Care Services
Central Items
Children's Services
Community Protection
Environment and Infrastructure
Public Health
Resources
Net Cost of Services

Net
Expenditure
Chargeable to
the General
Fund

Adjustments
between
Funding and
Accounting
Basis

£000s

£000s

Net Expenditure in
the
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement
£000s

316,358

9,038

1,642

720

325,396
2,362

154,313

33,815

188,128

35,780

10,011

45,791

103,276

28,790

132,066

(691)

227

(464)

71,514

14,325

85,839

682,193

96,925

779,118

(720,200)

97,093

(623,107)

Surplus or Deficit

(38,007)

194,018

156,011

Opening General Fund
Add (surplus)/deficit on General
Fund
Transfers to/(from) Earmarked
Reserves

(31,809)

Closing General Fund at 31st March

(31,497)

Other Income and Expenditure

(38,007)
38,319

Agenda Pack Page 97

Page | 16

Expenditure and Funding Analysis
2018/19

Adult Care Services
Central Items
Children's Services
Community Protection
Environment and Infrastructure
Public Health
Resources
Net Cost of Services

Net
Expenditure
Chargeable to
the General
Fund

Adjustments
between
Funding and
Accounting
Basis

Net Expenditure in
the
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement

£000s

£000s

£000s

320,045

9,010

329,055

1,257

(12,531)

(11,274)

172,781

(57,799)

114,983

36,220

9,466

45,687

111,912

39,175

151,086

213

227

440

78,967

10,922

89,888

721,395

(1,531)

719,865

(746,035)

(17,545)

(763,580)

Surplus or Deficit

(24,640)

(19,076)

(43,715)

Opening General Fund

(31,497)

Add (surplus)/deficit on General
Fund

(24,640)

Other Income and Expenditure

Transfers to/(from) Earmarked
Reserves
Closing General Fund at 31st March

24,804
(31,333)

A number of adjustments are required to the amounts chargeable to the General Fund, in order to arrive at the Net
Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The major adjustments are explained in
Note 28.

Agenda Pack Page 98

Page | 17

Presentation of Financial Statements

Agenda Pack Page 99

Page | 18

Presentation of Financial Statements
1.

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

This statement shows the accounting cost of providing services in the year in accordance with accepted accounting
practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. The position against actual income is shown in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

2017/18
Gross
Expenditure
£000s
415,066
2,298
918,003

Gross
Income
£000s
(89,670)
64
(729,875)

2018/19
Net
Expenditure
£000s
325,396
2,362
188,128

48,938

(3,146)

45,791

155,010

(22,944)

132,066
(464)

Note

Gross
Expenditure
£000s

Adult Care Services

431,431

Central Items

(11,264)

Children's Services

845,812

Community Protection
Environment and Infrastructure

(102,376)
(10)
(730,830)

Net
Expenditure
£000s
329,055
(11,274)
114,983

48,103

(2,416)

45,687

170,586

(19,500)

151,086

48,500

(48,964)

105,111

(19,272)

85,839

1,692,925

(913,807)

779,118

Cost of Services - Total Continuing
Operations

195,197

Other Operating expenditure

9

69,623

Financing and Investment Income &
Expenditure

10

51,259

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

11

(884,461)

40,798
(859,101)
156,011
(65,618)
(103,752)
(3,784)
(173,154)
(17,143)

Public Health

Gross
Income
£000s

Resources

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of
Services (A)
(Surplus) or Deficit on revaluation of
Property, Plant and Equipment
Remeasurements on the Net Defined
Pensions Liability
(Surplus) or Deficit on revaluation of
available for sale financial assets*
Other Com prehensive Incom e &
Expenditure (B)
Total Com prehensive Incom e &
Expenditure (A+B)

48,238

(47,798)

440

105,397

(15,509)

89,888

1,638,303

(918,439)

719,865

(43,715)
24

(333,632)

24

131,033

24

1,993
(200,606)
(244,321)

* May affect the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services in future years

Agenda Pack Page 100

Page | 19

Presentation of Financial Statements
2.

Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the value of the assets and liabilities recognised by the council as at the Balance Sheet
date. The net assets of the council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the council.
Reserves are reported in two categories; usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the council may use to provide
services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use; and
unusable reserves resulting from accounting adjustments, which the council is not able to use to provide services.

31 March 2018
£000s

31 March 2019

£000s

2,914,842

Note

£000s

Property, Plant & Equipment

12

3,354,935

Heritage Assets

13

32,006

Intangible Assets

14

3,446

34,974

Long Term Investments

43

33,122

25,831

Long Term Debtors

18

23,554

32,555
3,721

3,011,923

Long Term Assets

3,447,062

40,809

Short Term Investments

43

77,935

11,606

Assets Held for Sale

20

12,952

4,187

Inventories

5,151

123,733

Short Term Debtors

18

135,033

123,964

Cash and Cash Equivalents

19

115,729

304,299

Current Assets

346,800

(2,848)

Short Term Borrow ing

43

(5,535)

(1,707)

Short Term Liabilities

43

(1,868)

(156,354)

Short Term Creditors

21

(190,621)

(13,787)

Provisions for Accumulated Absences

24

(7,178)

(15,177)

Short Term Provisions

22

(13,366)

(189,872)

Current Liabilities

(218,567)

(1,244)

Long Term Creditors

21

(1,241)

(3,566)

Long Term Provisions

22

(3,044)

(260,760)

Long Term Borrow ing

43

(278,074)

Liability relating to the defined benefit
pension scheme

37

(1,213,991)

(52,806)

Other Long Term Liabilities

43

(50,934)

(47,064)

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance

38

(53,698)

(1,030,918)

(1,396,359)
1,729,991
(343,299)
(1,386,692)

(1,729,991)

£000s

Long Term Liabilities

(1,600,983)

Net Assets

1,974,312

Usable Reserves

23

(396,430)

Unusable Reserves

24

(1,577,882)

Total Reserves

(1,974,312)

These financial statements are the draft financial statements certified by the Chief Finance Officer on 31 May 2019.

Scott Crudgington
Director of Resources

Agenda Pack Page 101

Page | 20

Presentation of Financial Statements
3.

Movement in Reserves Statement

Note

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the council, analysed into ‘usable
reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. These are
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Council Tax setting
purposes. The Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory General
Fund Balances before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the council.

Balance at 31 March 2017 carried
forward
Movement in reserves during
2017/18
Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
Adjustments betw een accounting basis
& funding basis under regulations

7

Net Increase / Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves
Transfer to / from Earmarked Reserves

8

(Increase) / Decrease in 2017/18
Balance at 31 March 2018 carried
forward

General
Fund
Balance

Earmarked
General Fund
Reserves

£000s

Total
General
Fund

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

Capital
Grants
Unapplied

Total Usable
Reserves

£000s

£000s

£000s

Unusable
Reserves

Total Council
Reserves

£000s

£000s

(31,809)

(149,785)

(181,593)

(500)

(72,174)

(254,269)

(1,458,580)

£000s

(1,712,849)

£000s

156,011

-

156,011

-

-

156,011

(173,154)

(17,143)

(194,018)

-

(194,018)

(11,755)

(39,269)

(245,042)

245,042

-

(38,007)

-

(38,007)

(11,755)

(39,269)

(89,031)

71,888

(17,142)

38,319

(38,319)

-

-

-

-

-

-

312

(38,319)

(38,007)

(11,755)

(39,269)

(89,031)

71,888

(17,142)

(31,497)

(188,104)

(219,600)

(12,255)

(111,443)

(343,299)

(1,386,692)

(1,729,991)

(43,715)

-

(43,715)

-

-

(43,715)

(200,606)

(244,321)

19,075

-

19,075

-

(28,491)

(9,416)

9,415

-

(24,640)

-

(24,640)

-

(28,491)

(53,131)

(191,191)

(244,322)

24,804

(24,804)

-

-

-

-

-

-

164

(24,804)

(24,640)

-

(28,491)

(53,131)

(191,191)

(244,322)

(31,333)

(212,908)

(244,240)

(12,255)

(139,934)

(396,430)

(1,577,883)

(1,974,313)

Movement in reserves during 2018/19
Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
Adjustments betw een accounting basis
& funding basis under regulations

7

Net Increase / Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves
Transfer to / from Earmarked Reserves

Increase / (Decrease) in 2018/19
Balance at 31 March 2019 carried
forward

8

Agenda Pack Page 102

Page | 21

Presentation of Financial Statements
4.

Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the council during the reporting
period. The statement shows how the council generates and uses the cash and cash equivalents by classifying
cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating
activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the council are funded by way of taxation and
grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the council. Investing activities represent the extent to
which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the council’s future service
delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by
providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the council.

2017/18

2018/19
Note

£000s
(156,011)
343,603
(150,639)

36,953

Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services
Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services for noncash
movements
Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of
services that are investing and financing activities

£000s
43,715

25

93,284

25

(141,645)

(21,746)

Net Cash flows from operating activities

(4,646)

21,425

Net Cash flow s from Investing Activities

26

(34,694)

Net Cash flow s from Financing Activities

27

23,683

Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(8,235)

100,281

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period

123,964

123,964

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

Agenda Pack Page 103

18,156

115,729

Page | 22

Statement of Accounting Policies

Agenda Pack Page 104

Page | 23

Statement of Accounting Policies
This section explains the accounting policies that the council has applied in preparing these accounts. The
Statement of Accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the financial year 2018/19 and its position at the
year-end 31st March 2019. The statement has been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 (the ‘Code’). The council has adopted the historical cost
accounting convention modified by the revaluation of certain types of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure
An activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place and not simply when cash payments are made or
received.
In particular:


The accounts are maintained on an accruals basis in accordance with the Code. The accounts are
prepared on the basis of income being due and expenditure becoming payable in the financial year. This
means that sums due to or from the council during the year are included in the accounts whether or not the
cash has actually been received or paid in that year. Any differences between the actual and accrued
amounts will be reflected in the accounts of the following year.



Income and expenditure are credited and debited respectively to the relevant service revenue account,
unless they properly represent capital receipts or capital expenditure.



Income is recognised when and to the extent that performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable



A debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet where income and
expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid at the balance sheet date.



Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, provisions are made for bad and doubtful debts.



Supplies and services are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. Where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the
balance sheet.



Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date the council provides
the relevant goods and services.



Interest receivable on cash deposits and interest payable on borrowings are accounted for on the basis of
the effective rate of interest for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flow fixed or
determined by the contract. The amounts due or receivable at the year-end are included in the balance
sheet in current assets and liabilities respectively.

Acquired and Discontinued Operations
Acquired and Discontinued Operations are accounted for in accordance with the Code and separately disclosed
where material. Where functions have transferred as a result of the reorganisation of public sector services, the
acquisition is accounted for as a combination of business under common control, with any assets or liabilities
transferring at their carrying amounts.

Capital Accounting Accounts
These comprise:

The Revaluation Reserve, which represents the balance of any net surplus arising on the periodic
revaluation of fixed assets analysed on an individual asset basis.



The Capital Adjustment Account, which represents amounts set aside from revenue resources or capital
receipts to finance expenditure on non-current assets, provision for the repayment of external loans and

Agenda Pack Page 105

Page | 24

Statement of Accounting Policies
the reversal of amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by
statute to be excluded when determining the movement on the General Fund Balance for the year.
The above accounts are not available to fund future expenditure.

Capital Receipts
When an asset is disposed of the value of the asset in the balance sheet is written off to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation
Reserve applicable to the asset disposed of are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. Receipts from
disposals are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The gain or loss on the disposal
of an asset is the amount by which the disposal proceeds are more (gain) or less (loss) than the carrying amount of
the asset.
Capital receipts are required to be credited to the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve and can then only be used to
finance capital expenditure or to repay debt. Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the Movement on
Reserves Statement.
The written-off value of assets disposed of is not a charge to the General Fund Balance as the cost of fixed assets
is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital
Adjustment Account from the Movement on Reserves Statement.
Such income that is not reserved for the repayment of external loans and has not been applied in financing capital
expenditure is held on the balance sheet as usable capital receipts.

Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)
The Council is required to participate in the Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy Efficiency Scheme. This
scheme is now in phase 2 of its operation, which runs until 31 March 2019. The council is required to purchase and
surrender allowances, currently retrospectively, on the basis of emissions i.e. carbon dioxide produced as energy is
used. The cost of the scheme is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to meet the obligation,
normally at the current market price of the number of allowances required to meet the liability at the reporting date.
The cost to the council is accrued in the costs of the council’s services and is apportioned to services on the basis
of energy consumption.
The government has announced its decision to close the CRC scheme following the 2018/19 compliance year and
replace it with an increase in the Climate Change Levy to streamline the business energy tax landscape, in a
revenue neutral way.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is defined as cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution, repayable without penalty and on notice
of not more than 24 hours. They include deposits in constant Net Asset Value money market funds that are
available for withdrawal within 24 hours’ notice. Cash equivalents comprise investments that are held to meet short
term cash flow requirements rather than for investment or other purposes. Bank overdrafts, repayable on demand
and which form an integral part of the council’s treasury management, are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.

Charges to Revenue for Non-current Assets
Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are charged with the following amounts to record
the real cost of holding Property, Plant & Equipment during the year:



Depreciation attributable to Property, Plant & Equipment used in service delivery
Amortisation of intangible assets used in service delivery

Agenda Pack Page 106

Page | 25

Statement of Accounting Policies


Impairment losses due to consumption of economic benefits on intangible assets and Property, Plant &
Equipment used in service delivery and other losses where there are no accumulated gains in the
Revaluation Reserve against which they can be written off.

Depreciation provided on surplus assets is charged to the Resources directorate.
The council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation, impairment losses or amortisations.
However, it is required to make a prudent annual provision from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its
overall borrowing requirement, calculated in accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation, impairment losses
and amortisation charges are therefore reversed and replaced by a revenue provision (the Minimum Revenue
Provision) for debt repayment in the Movement in Reserves Statement. These adjusting entries are reflected in the
Capital Adjustment Account.

Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not provided for within the statement of accounts whilst uncertainty
remains over the final outcome or if it is not practicable to estimate the amounts involved. These items are
disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.

Council Tax and National Non Domestic Rates
Council Tax and a share of National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR, or business rates) are collected by billing
authorities acting as agent on behalf of precepting authorities. They are included in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as the accrued income for the year, together with the council’s share of any surplus or
deficit at year end on each billing authority’s Council Tax and NNDR Collection Funds, plus the council’s share of
any surplus/deficit from the preceding year that has not been distributed or recovered.
The difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the
amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund in the year is taken to the Collection Fund
Adjustment Account.
The council recognises debtors in the Balance Sheet for its share of net cash collected by billing authorities but not
paid over to it at the Balance Sheet date, as well as its share of amounts owed by Council Tax and NNDR payers
to the billing authority (net of an allowance for doubtful debts).
The council recognises creditors for cash received from billing authorities in advance of the billing authority
receiving the cash from payees along with its share of any prepayments or overpayments made. It also includes its
share of any provision for the impact of Non Domestic Rating Appeals.

Employee Benefits
Benefits payable during employment
Short term Employee Benefits are those that fall due within 12 months of the reporting year end, and include
wages, salaries and social security contributions, compensated absences and non-monetary benefits, such as flexitime.
Compensated absences are periods of paid leave, and may be accumulating or non-accumulating. Accumulating
absences are those that are carried forward and can be used in future periods if the current period entitlement is
not used in full. They include annual leave, flexi-time and time in lieu. They may be vesting or non-vesting: where
vesting, employees who leave are entitled to a cash payment in respect of any unused entitlement; where nonvesting, benefits lapse if an employee leaves before the vesting date.
The Government has issued regulations that mean the council is only required to fund holiday pay and similar
benefits when they are used, rather than when employees earn the benefits. The value of these benefits, for
example the value of leave that an employee carries forward at year end, is accrued and transferred to the
Accumulated Absences Account until used. The accrual is based on the salary applicable in the following

Agenda Pack Page 107

Page | 26

Statement of Accounting Policies
accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The Accumulated Absences Account
absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated
absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March.
Non-accumulating absences are those that cannot be carried forward for use in future periods if the current period
entitlement is not used in full. Sick leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and jury service will usually be nonaccumulating. The cost of non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised when the absences occur.
Termination benefits
Termination benefits are dealt with separately from other employee benefits because the event which gives rise to
an obligation is the termination rather than employee service. Termination benefits are payable as a result of either:
a) an employer’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or
b) an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.
Termination benefits are often lump-sum payments, but also include:
a) enhancement of retirement benefits; and
b) salary until the end of a specified notice period if the employee renders no further service that provides
economic benefits to the entity.
Voluntary early retirement benefits under scheme rules are not termination benefits since such benefits are a right
of all scheme members. They are accounted for as post-employment benefits rather than termination benefits.
As termination benefits do not provide the council with any future economic benefits or service potential they are
always immediately posted as an expense in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when they are recognised i.e. when the council has made a
firm commitment to the offer.
Where the termination benefits are granted under the provisions of a pension scheme, they will be covered by the
adjustment rules applicable to post-employment benefits. Adjustments will then be permissible in the Movement in
Reserves Statement to ensure the impact on the bottom line of the General Fund is limited to the amounts actually
payable in the financial year.

Estimation Techniques
The accounting policy specifies the basis on which an item is measured. However where there is uncertainty over
the monetary amounts corresponding to the measurement basis selected for assets, liabilities, gains, losses and
changes in reserves, the amount is arrived at using an estimation technique that most closely reflects the economic
reality of the transaction. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Where material, events that occur after the balance sheet date that provide additional evidence relating to
conditions existing at that date are reflected within the accounting statements. Post balance sheet events that
relate to conditions that did not exist at the balance sheet date are disclosed by way of a note to the accounts, if the
impact on the accounts would be material.

Exceptional Items, Extraordinary Items and Prior Period Adjustments
Exceptional items are included in the cost of the service to which they relate when to do so would not distort the
service expenditure. Otherwise they are to be disclosed separately in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (CIES). The Code prohibits the treatment of any items of income or expense as ‘extraordinary’, therefore

Agenda Pack Page 108

Page | 27

Statement of Accounting Policies
the council accommodates all items within one of the specified lines of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services or the Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. Prior
period adjustments, if material, would be accounted for by restating comparative figures for the preceding
accounting period.

Fair Value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:



In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The measurement assumes that the transaction takes place in an orderly fashion between willing participants in the
instrument’s main market, who act in their own financial best interests, under the market conditions prevailing on
the measurement date.
The fair value of a financial liability is the price that would be paid to transfer it to another participant of equal credit
standing, not the price that would be paid to cancel it with the lender. If there is no quoted price in an active market,
and the liability is a financial asset of the counterparty, then it should be measured from the counterparty’s
perspective – i.e. the price they would receive to sell it to another lender.


IFRS 13 provides a three level hierarchy for the inputs into a fair value calculation:






Level 1 – quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, e.g. bond prices
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, e.g. interest rates or
yields for similar instruments
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, e.g. non-market data such as cash flow forecasts

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use, or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Financial Instruments – Assets
Financial Instruments are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the council becomes party to the contractual
provisions of a financial instrument. They are classified based on the business model for holding the instruments
and their expected cashflow characteristics. To meet the new Code requirements following the introduction of
IFRS9, financial assets are now classified into one of three categories:


Financial assets held at amortised cost. These represent loans and loan-type arrangements where
repayments or interest and principal take place on set dates and at specified amounts. The amount
presented in the Balance Sheet represents the outstanding principal received plus accrued interest.
Interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable as per the loan agreement. This includes most trade
receivables, loans receivable and other simple debt instruments.



Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – These assets are measured and carried at
fair value. All gains and losses due to changes in fair value (both realised and unrealised) are accounted
for through a reserve account, with the balance debited or credited to the CIES when the asset is disposed
of. This may also include investments in equity instruments where a designation to classify as FVOCI has
been made.

Agenda Pack Page 109

Page | 28

Statement of Accounting Policies


Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL). These assets are measured and carried at fair value. All
gains and losses due to changes in fair value (both realised and unrealised) are recognised in the CIES as
they occur.

Allowances for impairment losses have been calculated for amortised cost assets, applying the expected credit
losses model. Changes in loss allowances (including balances outstanding at the date of derecognition of an asset)
are debited/credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.
Changes in the value of assets carried at fair value are debited/credited to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the CIES as they arise.

Financial Instruments – Liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. For the
Council’s borrowing this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal
repayable (plus accrued interest).
Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest
for the instrument.

Foreign Currency transactions
The council had no investment holdings in foreign currencies during the year. Where transactions have taken
place in a foreign currency, these are recorded in the accounts at the exchange rate applicable at the time of the
transaction.

Grants and Contributions
Grants and contributions relating to capital and revenue expenditure are accounted for on an accruals basis and
recognised immediately in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as income, except to the extent
that the grant or contribution has a condition (as distinct from a restriction) that the council has not satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired
using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic
benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. Restrictions are stipulations that limit or direct the
purposes for which a transferred asset may be used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service
potential are required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified. The key difference between a
condition and a restriction is that a condition requires the grant funder or donor to have a right to the return of their
monies or the donated asset (or similar equivalent compensation).
In the cases where the conditions of a grant has not been satisfied and there is an explicit requirement to repay the
grant if the conditions are not met, any balances unspent are treated as creditors (for revenue grants) or Capital
Grants Received in Advance (capital).
When the conditions of a grant have been met and it has been reflected as income in the Consolidated Income &
Expenditure Statement, the council still has discretion to carry the grant income forward through an earmarked
reserve if it deems this appropriate. This could arise in cases where there is no condition on the timescale in which
a grant can be spent, but it has not been spent at the year-end.
In relation to capital grants or contributions which have been used to fund capital expenditure, when these are
recognised as income in the Consolidated Income & Expenditure Statement, then the effect of this is reversed
through the Movement in Reserves Statement and added to the Capital Adjustment Account.
In relation to capital grants or contributions recognised as income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, where the expenditure has not yet been incurred at the Balance Sheet date, the recognised income is
transferred to Usable Reserves (Capital Grants Unapplied Account), representing capital resources not yet utilised.

Agenda Pack Page 110

Page | 29

Statement of Accounting Policies
The transfer from the General Fund for both these adjustments is recorded in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. When expenditure is subsequently incurred, the grant or contribution is transferred from the Capital
Grants Unapplied Account to the Capital Adjustment Account. This transaction represents the application of capital
resources to finance the expenditure incurred and is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement for these
Reserves or in the notes to the accounts.

Group Accounts
The boundary for Group Accounts is determined by the extent of the council’s control or influence over an entity,
and the materiality of the relationship to users of the council’s accounts. Group Accounts are prepared in
accordance with IFRS3, IFRS10, IFRS11 and IFRS12, and with IAS27, IAS28 and the Code, where required and
material.
A Subsidiary is an entity which the council controls through the power to govern its financial and operational
activities; where it has exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement in the entity, and where it has the
ability to use its power to influence the level of those returns. Control will normally, but not necessarily, be
presumed to exist where the council is the majority shareholder.
An Associate is an entity where the council has significant influence to participate in the financial and operational
decision making of the entity, but stopping short of control. It is normally, but not necessarily, presumed that
significant influence exists where the council owns 20% or more of the entity.
A Joint Venture exists where the council is party to the contractually and binding agreed shared control of an
organisation, where strategic financial and operating decisions that significantly affect returns require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control; and where the council has rights to the net assets of the
arrangement, but not the rights or obligations to particular assets or liabilities.
Joint Operations are activities undertaken by the council in conjunction with other ventures that involve the use of
the assets and resources of the ventures rather than the establishment of a separate entity. To meet the definition
of Joint Operation, the parties must have rights to particular assets or obligations for particular liabilities; and there
must be joint control, that is decisions on relevant activities require the unanimous agreement of all parties. Joint
Operations are accounted for in the council’s single entity accounts rather than group accounts, and the
councilrecognises on its Balance Sheet the assets that it controls and the liabilities that it incurs; and includes in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement the expenditure it incurs and the share of income it earns from
the operations.
A Subsidiary is consolidated into Group Accounts by adding like items of income, expense, assets and liabilities,
and eliminating transactions and balances between the entities.
Associates and Joint Ventures are consolidated into Group Accounts by the equity method, adjusting the original
investment for any post acquisition change in the council’s share of the assets of the entity; and including in the
Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement the council’s share of the entity’s profit or loss for the
year.
In previous years, group accounts have been prepared for Hertfordshire Catering Ltd (100% owned subsidiary) and
for Herts for Learning (20% owned associate in 2016/17), to consolidate with the council’s single entity accounts.
An annual assessment is taken however, to review the council’s investments in companies and determining if a
group boundary exists. This review uses the standard determination of group status provided in the national Code
of Practice for local government accounts.
The latest review has resulted in a decision not to produce group accounts for 2018/2019, on the basis that the
adjustment to produce group accounts is neither material in nature, nor enhances the overall value and clarity of
the accounts for stakeholders. This decision will be reviewed each year in line with recommended good practice.
Investments in Hertfordshire Catering Limited, Herts Living Limited, Herts Fullstop Ltd and Herts at Home Ltd are
recognised on the council’s Balance Sheet as unquoted equity investments at cost. Investments in the PFI
companies are not recognised as they are not material.
The extent of these investments is shown in Note 48 Investment in Companies.

Agenda Pack Page 111

Page | 30

Statement of Accounting Policies
Heritage Assets
A Heritage Asset is an asset that is intended to be preserved in trust for future generations because of their
cultural, environmental or historical associations. Heritage assets can have historical, artistic, scientific, geophysical
or environmental qualities; and may be tangible or intangible. Currently, the council holds no intangible heritage
assets. The councilclassifies its heritage assets under the following headings:


Paintings



Artefacts



Sculptures

Heritage assets are normally measured at fair value. Valuations may be made by any method that is appropriate
and relevant. The council uses insurance valuations as an appropriate and relevant valuation and these valuations
are carried out and verified by external valuers, Townley Valuation Services (TVS). In exceptional circumstances
where a cost or valuation of a heritage asset cannot be determined and is not reported in the balance sheet, the
council will disclose any information available which is helpful in assessing the value of those assets, including why
it has not been possible to obtain a value along with the significance and nature of those assets.
The council has not been able to determine a cost or valuation for its Record Office documents known as
Hertfordshire Archives and Local Studies (HALS). HALS is treated as part of the council’s library assets. Whilst
these may be of interest to a historian, it has not been possible to obtain an insurance valuation and there are no
recorded costs for the collection of documents, accordingly HALS is not reported in the balance sheet.
The council’s heritage asset collection is relatively static and acquisitions and donations are rare. If they do occur
acquisitions will be capitalised and initially recognised at cost and donations or bequeaths at nil consideration are
recognised at valuation as provided by our external valuers.
It is considered that the council’s heritage assets have an indefinite life and are not depreciated but tested for
impairment annually. Impairment to a heritage asset will be considered in circumstances of any physical
deterioration, breakage or where doubts have been identified regarding its authenticity.
Disposals of heritage assets require member approval. On disposal the carrying amount of the heritage asset is
derecognised. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition is the difference between the net disposal proceeds (if
any) and the heritage asset’s carrying amount and is included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.

Intangible Assets
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. It is controlled by the council
as a result of past events and future economic or service benefits are expected to flow from the intangible asset to
the council. The council distinguishes between two classes of intangible assets: software & licences and portal &
web design.
An intangible asset is measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an intangible asset may be carried at a
revalued amount where its fair value can be determined by reference to an active market. Otherwise, an intangible
asset will be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.
The depreciable amount of an intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortised on a systematic basis over its
useful life, beginning when the intangible asset is available for use and reflecting the expected pattern of use of the
economic or service benefits. If the pattern cannot be determined reliably, the straight-line method is used. The
amortisation period and method is reviewed annually.
An intangible asset with an indefinite life is not amortised, but is tested annually at year end for impairment and to
confirm the indefinite life.

Investment Property
An investment property is one that is used solely to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both. Property that
is used to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods as well as to earn rentals or for capital

Agenda Pack Page 112

Page | 31

Statement of Accounting Policies
appreciation does not meet the definition of an investment property and is accounted for as property, plant and
equipment (“PPE”).
An investment property is measured initially at cost. After initial recognition, an investment property is measured at
fair value. A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of investment property is recognised in the Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Services for the period in which it arises. The fair value of investment property reflects
market conditions at the balance sheet date. This means that a periodic revaluation approach may only be used
where the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the
balance sheet date. An investment property held at fair value is not depreciated.
The council currently has no Investment Properties, however an annual assessment is undertaken to ensure that
no such properties need recognition at each balance sheet date.

Inventories
Inventories comprise such items as vehicle spares, uniforms, stationery, equipment and other materials. All
consumable and non-durable items are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
year of purchase. Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Leases
Leases are classified as either finance leases or operating leases based on the extent to which the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. Whether a lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease depends on the substance of the transaction rather than the form of the contract.
The council as lessee
Finance leases
The council, as lessee, initially recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair value
of the asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. Future valuations are in line with the
council’s general PPE revaluation policy. Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge
and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is calculated so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred.
The depreciation policy for assets held under finance leases is consistent with the depreciation policy for owned
assets.
Operating leases
Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
The Council as lessor
Finance leases
The council, as lessor, recognises assets held under finance leases as a receivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. The lease payment receivable is treated as repayment of principal and finance income,
with the interest element shown in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure on the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and the principal element reducing a long term debtor on the Balance Sheet.
The finance income is calculated so as to produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment. The
asset itself is derecognised from Property, Plant and Equipment.
The depreciation policy for depreciable leased assets is consistent with the depreciation policy for other similar
assets.

Agenda Pack Page 113

Page | 32

Statement of Accounting Policies
Operating leases
Items of property, plant and equipment let out under operating leases are presented according to the nature of the
asset. Income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Arrangements that may contain a lease
An arrangement (other than PFI arrangements), comprising a transaction that does not take the legal form of a
lease but nevertheless conveys a right to use an item of property, plant and equipment, in return for a payment or
series of payments, may be accounted for as though the arrangement is, or contains, a lease.
If an arrangement is, or contains, a lease, the lease is classified either as a finance lease or an operating lease as
appropriate.

Long Term Contracts
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
being charged in the year during which the cost of goods or services were received or provided.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
A non-current asset is classified as held for sale if the asset’s carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continued use and it meets the following criteria:


The asset must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such assets;



The sale must be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must be committed to a plan to sell
the asset and an active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated;



Management must be committed to a plan to sell the asset, and it must be actively marketed for a sale at a
price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value;



The sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year of the date of
classification and action required to complete the plan should indicate that it is unlikely that significant
changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

A non-current asset classified as held for sale is measured at the lower of its carrying value and fair value less
costs to sell at initial reclassification and at the end of each reporting period.
No depreciation is charged on tangible assets and no amortisation is made in relation to intangible assets whilst
they are classified as Assets Held for Sale.
The Code requires that an asset held for sale should be declassified as such, as soon as any of the qualifying
criteria detailed above are no longer met. However an asset that is taking more than a year to sell will not
automatically mean that it fails to meet the ‘available for immediate sale’ criterion if the delay is caused by events or
circumstances beyond the council’s control and there is sufficient evidence that the council remains committed to
its plan to sell the asset; however, it will be presented as a non-current asset. Where an asset is declassified as
held for sale, the asset is valued at the lower of its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale,
adjusted for depreciation, amortisations or revaluations that would have taken place if the asset had not been put
into Assets Held for Sale, or its recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.
For assets previously held at historical cost, any adjustments in the carrying amount of the asset on declassification
is posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services as gains and losses in Other Operating Expenditure.
The impact on the General Fund Balance is offset by a compensating transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account in
the Movement in Reserves Statement. For assets previously carried at a valuation, any adjustments in the carrying
amount is treated as revaluation gains or losses and posted to the Revaluation Reserve. If there are insufficient
revaluation gains in the reserve to absorb a loss, the excess is debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services as Other Operating Expenditure, and the impact on the General Fund Balance is offset by a
compensating transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Agenda Pack Page 114

Page | 33

Statement of Accounting Policies
Private Finance Initiative schemes (PFI)
The Code of Practice
The Code of Practice requires that PFI schemes should be accounted for on the basis of IFRIC 12 “Service
Concessions”. To be within the scope of IFRIC 12, the PFI scheme must contractually oblige the private sector
operator to deliver, on behalf of the council, public services related to infrastructure. In addition, IFRIC 12 requires
the council to:



Control or regulate what services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide
them and at what price; and to
Control any significant residual interest, through beneficial entitlement or otherwise, in the infrastructure at
the end of the term of the scheme.

Services received
The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure within the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
PFI asset
The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets are
measured initially at fair value in accordance with the principles of IFRIC 12. Subsequently, the assets are
measured at fair value, which is kept up to date in accordance with the council’s approach for each relevant class
of asset.
PFI liability
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the same
amount as the fair value of the PFI assets (less any capital contributions) and is subsequently measured as a
finance lease liability.
An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease liability
for the period, and is charged to ‘Interest Payable’ in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure within
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the annual
finance cost and to repay the lease liability over the contract term.
An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance lease.
This amount is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead treated as contingent rent and is
expressed as incurred. In substance, this amount is a finance cost in respect of the liability and the expense is
presented as a contingent ‘Interest Payable’ in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Lifecycle replacement
Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (lifecycle replacement) are capitalised where
they meet the council’s criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided by the
operator and are measured initially at their fair value.
The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for each year of the
contract from the operator’s planned programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is
provided earlier or later than expected, a short-term finance lease liability or pre-payment is recognised
respectively.
Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is
recognised as an expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount
determined in the contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance is recognised.
The deferred income is released to the operating income over the shorter of the remaining contract period or the
useful economic life of the replacement component.

Agenda Pack Page 115

Page | 34

Statement of Accounting Policies
Assets contributed by the council to the operator for use in the scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of property, plant and equipment in
the council’s Balance Sheet.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets with physical substance that are held for use in the provision of
services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one
period.
Recognition
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised when it is probable that future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the council and that the cost can be measured
reliably.
Subsequent costs arising from day-to-day servicing of an asset (that is, labour costs and consumables), commonly
referred to as ‘repairs and maintenance’, are not recognised as property, plant and equipment because the
expenditure does not add to the future economic benefits or service potential of the asset. Rather, the expenditure
maintains the asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential that it was expected to
provide when originally acquired.
Where a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is replaced or restored, the carrying amount of the
old component is derecognised and the cost of the new component reflected in the carrying amount, subject to the
above recognition principle being met.
The council applies the following de-minimus levels for the recognition of expenditure on the acquisition, creation or
enhancement of property, plant and equipment:

Category of Expenditure
Property (Non-Schools)
Property (Schools)
Infrastructure

De-Minimis
Level
£10,000
£2,000
£10,000

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment (Non-Schools)

£5,000

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment (Schools)

£2,000

Measurement
An item of property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and all
expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for its intended
use.
Subsequently, an item of property, plant and equipment is carried in the balance sheet using the following
measurement bases:

Agenda Pack Page 116

Page | 35

Statement of Accounting Policies
Type of Asset
Infrastructure
Community Assets
Assets Under Construction
Other Land & Buildings
Vehicles, Plant, Equipment
and Furniture
Surplus Assets
Investment Property
Assets Held For Sale

Basis of Valuation
Depreciated historical cost
Current value based on existing use value (EUV).
Depreciated replacement cost (DRC)
if EUV cannot be determined
Depreciated historical cost as a proxy for fair value,
where assets have short useful lives
Fair value based on highest and best use value
Market value

Land and buildings are revalued by professionally qualified valuers at intervals of no more than five years. The
revaluation process includes a rolling programme, with assets within a class completed within a short period of
time; a material change review at year end, with revaluation if required; and revaluations when there has been a
significant change to the asset (e.g. major building works).
Where the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is increased as a result of a revaluation, the
increase is recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and reversed into the
Revaluation Reserve through the Movement In Reserves Statement, unless the increase is reversing a previous
impairment loss charged to Cost of Services on the same asset or reversing a previous revaluation decrease
charged to Cost of Services on the same asset.
Where the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is decreased as a result of a revaluation
(that is, a significant decline in an asset’s carrying amount during the period that is not specific to the asset) as
opposed to an impairment, the decrease is recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
and reversed into the Revaluation Reserve through the Movement in Reserves Statement up to the credit balance
existing in respect of the asset and thereafter in Cost of Services.
Impairment
At the end of each reporting period, an assessment is made of whether there is any indication that an item of
property, plant and equipment may be impaired. If there is indication of impairment, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated to determine any impairment loss.
Where impairment losses are identified, the asset is written down to its recoverable amount and:



where there is no balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
where there is a balance for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is
written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains). Any excess is written down
against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation
that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. Any excess is credited to the Revaluation
Reserve.
Depreciation
Depreciation applies to all items of property, plant and equipment whether held at historical cost or revalued
amount, with the exception of land where it can be demonstrated that the asset has an unlimited useful life.
The depreciation charge is based on the asset’s value, allocated over its useful life. The following methods are
used, reflecting the pattern in which the future economic benefits or service potential of different assets are
expected to be consumed:

Agenda Pack Page 117

Page | 36

Statement of Accounting Policies




Buildings: Straight-line allocation over the life of the property, generally between 10 and 100 years;
Vehicles, plant and equipment: Straight line allocation over the life of the asset generally between 3 and
10 years;
Infrastructure: Straight-line allocation over the life of the asset generally between 8 and 60 years.

Items of property, plant and equipment are not depreciated until they become available for use (that is, when the
asset is in the location and condition necessary for its intended use). Depreciation ceases at the earlier of the date
that items of property, plant and equipment are classified as held for sale and the date they are derecognised.
The residual value of an item of property, plant and equipment, its useful life and depreciation method are reviewed
at least at each financial year end and, if expectations differ from previous reviews or there has been a significant
change in the pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits or service potential, the change is accounted
for as a change in accounting estimate. Plant and equipment with a gross book value of less than £0.1m are written
out of the accounts when they are fully depreciated.
De-recognition
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from derecognition is the difference between the net disposal proceeds (if any) and the asset’s carrying amount and is
included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.
Componentisation:
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the
item is depreciated separately. Where there is more than one significant part of the same asset which has the
same useful life and depreciation method, such parts are to be grouped in determining the depreciation charge.
The council has determined that only individual buildings over £2m are subject to componentisation and these are
assessed against 3 components determined by the valuers, namely:

Component

Useful Life

Flat Roof

20 years

Services (heat source, electrical
installations, lifts, alarms, etc.)

20 years

Window Walling/Concrete Cladding

50 years

In addition, a component is only separately identified if it represents 20% or greater of the total asset value. The
balance of the cost of the total asset not assigned to components is held against the Main Structure and subject to
depreciation over 20 to 100 years.
st

The council has decided to apply the componentisation policy to an asset from 1 April 2010 when triggered by the
following events: 

When acquired as a new asset;



where an asset is enhanced, with components being recognised for existing components as well as to the
enhancement work; and



where an asset is revalued
st

As at 31 March 2019 all assets have been assessed for componentisation purposes.

Agenda Pack Page 118

Page | 37

Statement of Accounting Policies
Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the council an obligation that probably requires
settlement by a transfer of economic benefits, where a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made but where
the timing of the transfer is uncertain or there is uncertainty of the amount.
Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the year that they are recognised and are
detailed in the notes to the accounts. Expenditure incurred on items for which the provision was originally set up is
charged directly to the provision. The level of each provision is reviewed at the balance sheet date. Provisions that
are no longer required will be credited back to the original service revenue account from where the provision was
created.

Post-Employment Benefits
The council participates in four different pension schemes that meet the needs of employees in particular services.
All the schemes provide members with defined benefits related to pay and service. The schemes are as follows:


Teachers - this is an unfunded scheme administered by the Teachers’ Pension Agency (TPA). The
pension cost charged to the accounts is the contribution rate set by the TPA on the basis of a notional fund.
However, the arrangements for the Teachers’ scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits cannot be
identified to the council. The scheme is therefore accounted for as a defined contribution scheme, that is,
no liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the balance sheet and the Education service
revenue account is charged with the employer’s contributions payable to the TPA for the year.



NHS Pension Scheme - for Public Health employees transferred from the National Health Service. It is
accounted for as a defined contribution scheme, as it is a multi-employer scheme where it would be
extremely difficult to identify the underlying scheme assets and liabilities to the council. Employer
contributions paid into the scheme are charged to the Public Health service revenue account in year.



Uniformed Firefighters - this scheme is unfunded. With effect from 1 April 2006 the council pay an
employer’s pension contribution based on a percentage of pay into the Firefighter’s Pension Fund. The
Pension Fund will be balanced to nil at the end of the year through a cash settlement with central
government.



Other employees, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government Pension
Scheme. The council pay an employer contribution rate of a percentage of pensionable pay.

The Uniformed Firefighters and Local Government Pension Schemes are both accounted for, under IAS 19
Employee Benefits, as defined benefit schemes.




The liabilities of these pension schemes attributable to the council are included in the balance sheet on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method, that is, an assessment of the future payments that will be
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality
rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of future earnings for current employees.
Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the yield of a
basket of AA-rated bonds (Iboxx Sterling Corporate Bond Index, AA over 15 Years).

The assets of the Local Government Pension Fund attributable to the council are included in the balance sheet at
their fair value:





Quoted securities – current bid price
Unquoted securities – professional estimate
Unitised securities – current bid price
Property – market value

The change in the net pension’s liability is analysed into the following components:


Current Service Cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year –
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the revenue accounts of services for
which the employees worked

Agenda Pack Page 119

Page | 38

Statement of Accounting Policies


Employer Contributions paid to the pension funds



Past Service Cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to
years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement as part of Central Items



Settlements and Curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the council of liabilities or events that
reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees – debited to the Net Cost of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Central Items



Net Interest on the Net Defined Liability – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability
(asset) that arises from the passage of time. The net interest on the net defined liability (asset) comprises
the interest income on plan assets, interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest on the effect
of the asset ceiling – debited to Financing and Investment income in the Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure Statement.



Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability – comprising Actuarial Gains and Losses, i.e.
changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from a) experience adjustments and
b) the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. These are debited to Other Comprehensive Income &
Expenditure. Re-measurements also include Return on Plan Assets, excluding the amount included in the
net interest on the net defined liability, which is credited to Other Comprehensive Income & Expenditure.

Statutory provisions limit the council to raising Council Tax to cover the amounts payable by the council to the
pension fund in the year. In the Movement in Reserves Statement this means that there are appropriations to and
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with
debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the fund but unpaid at the year-end.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Expenditure that may be capitalised under statutory provisions, but does not result in the creation of non-current
assets, has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the year. Where the council
has decided to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer to the
Capital Adjustment Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement then reverses out the amounts charged in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, thereby ensuring there is no impact on the level of
General Fund Balances.

Schools Accounting Treatment
The council as Local Education Authority has responsibility for the provision of education within Hertfordshire, and
allocates funding to Hertfordshire maintained schools, which may be Community, Voluntary Aided, Voluntary
Controlled or Foundation Schools. Where schools are deemed under IFRS 10 to be entities under the council’s
control, and hence fall within the group boundary, the Code provides a specific adaptation of IFRS10 and
consequently IAS27 Separate Financial Statements, such that they are consolidated and reported within the
council’s single entity financial statements.
Whilst this applies to the income and expenditure, liabilities, current assets and reserves of all maintained schools,
the determination of control of assets in line with the relevant standards means that treatment varies by type of
school as below. Control is assessed by consideration of who determines access to the school via admissions
policy, and who makes decisions on the use of the asset and is responsible for its maintenance and development.
While aspects of control over assets are held by the schools’ governing bodies, they act independently of the
council and so are deemed to be outside the group boundary in this context.
Community Schools
As the council is normally the freeholder of Community School premises, controls admissions, is responsible for
maintenance and development and has a significant role in the running of the school, the school premises are
recognised under Property, Plant and Equipment in line with the accounting policy stated above.
Voluntary Controlled Schools
Schools are usually owned by a charity but the council is responsible for the running of the school, employing the
staff and determining and administrating the admissions policy. Although the council does not have any clear legal

Agenda Pack Page 120

Page | 39

Statement of Accounting Policies
entitlement to the asset, using the principal of faithful representation, the council has determined that it will receive
future service potential from these assets, and that it holds significant control over them through the admissions
policy which determines access to the asset, and its responsibility for the maintenance and development of the
assets. The land, buildings and equipment of these schools will therefore be recognised by the council under
Property, Plant and Equipment on the Balance Sheet of the council.
Voluntary Aided Schools
Schools are owned and managed by a charity or trust but the council partially funds and also provides support
services to the school. Although the council will occasionally own the freehold of the land and buildings, the schools
buildings are maintained and controlled by the respective charities/trusts and the council’s only statutory duty is for
the playing fields. The admissions policy is set by the governing body, so the council does not control access to the
asset or the services provided, and hence IFRIC 12 does not apply. It has therefore been determined in
conjunction with the council’s valuers that the playing field element of the schools premises will be recognised by
the council under Property, Plant and Equipment but that the building element fails the test of the council holding
significant control to allow them to be retained on the council’s Balance Sheet. IFRIC 4 has been deemed not to
apply as the council does not rely on the use of a specific school to ensure sufficient pupil places are available, and
so the arrangement does not rely on specific assets.
Foundation Schools
Schools are funded by the council but owned and managed by the governing body or other entity, including the
provision of any support services, and decisions on the maintenance and development of land and buildings. The
governing body acts independently of the council in making these decisions. IFRIC 12 has been deemed not to
apply as the council does not control to whom the services are provided, as the governing body is the admissions
authority and the Government controls the service and sets the curriculum. IFRIC 4 has been deemed not to apply
as the council does not rely on the use of a specific school to ensure sufficient pupil places are available and hence
the arrangement does not rely on specific assets.
Academies
Schools are managed completely independently of the council with funding provided directly by central
government. The council grants long leases as part of the Academies transfer which are covered under IAS 17
definition of leases and treated accordingly. The council will retain the title. However as responsibility for the land
and buildings is with the school, which will hold these on their balance sheet, the council has derecognised the land
and buildings from Property, Plant and Equipment within its balance sheet. De-recognition takes place at the time
that the long lease is granted. IFRIC 12 has been deemed not to apply as the council does not control to whom the
services are provided as Governors are the admissions authority and the Government controls the service and sets
the curriculum. IFRIC 4 has been deemed not to apply as the council has leased the land to the Academy and
therefore covered by lease arrangement under IAS 17 and treated in accordance with the leases policy above.
Free Schools
Schools are established, owned and managed completely independently of the council with funding provided
directly by central government. There are currently four Free Schools in Hertfordshire in which the council has a
property interest: these assets have been the subject of major construction or refurbishment and will be transferred
by way of long lease once the defects period on these works is expired.

Specific Reserves
Specific Reserves are sums of money earmarked to provide, in the main, flexibility in funding between years. A
detailed make up of specific reserves is given in Note 8 to the accounts. Transfers to create or replenish reserves
are made via the Movement in Reserves Statement. Expenditure incurred on items for which the reserve was
originally established is shown as service expenditure offset by a contribution from the reserve to the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

Value Added Tax
Income and expenditure are shown net of Value Added Tax (VAT). VAT is included in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement to the extent that it is irrecoverable.

Agenda Pack Page 121

Page | 40

Notes to the Accounts

Agenda Pack Page 122

Page | 41

Notes to the Accounts
NOTE

PAGE

Note 1: Restatement and change in accounting policies

42

Note 2: Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

44

Note 3: Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies

45

Note 4: Assumptions made about the future and other major sources on estimation uncertainty

48

Note 5: Material Items of Income and Expense

49

Note 6: Events after the Balance Sheet Date

49

Note 7: Adjustment between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations

50

Note 8: Transfers to / from earmarked reserves

54

Note 9: Other Operating Expenditure

60

Note 10: Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

60

Note 11: Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

60

Note 12: Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment Properties

61

Note 13: Heritage Assets

65

Note 14: Intangible Assets

68

Note 15: Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

69

Note 16: Leases

70

Note 17: Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) and Similar Contracts

73

Note 18: Debtors

75

Note 19: Cash and Cash Equivalents

76

Note 20: Assets held for Sale

76

Note 21: Creditors

77

Note 22: Provisions

77

Note 23: Usable Reserves

79

Note 24: Unusable Reserves

80

Note 25: Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities

86

Note 26: Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities

87

Note 27: Cash Flow Statements – Financing Activities

87

Note 28: Notes to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

88

Note 29: Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

90

Note 30: Trading Operations

90

Note 31: Agency Services

91

Note 32: Pooled Budgets

92

Note 33: Members’ Allowances

92

Note 34: Termination Benefits and Exit Packages

94

Note 35: Officers’ Remuneration

95

Note 36: Pensions Schemes Accounted for as Defined Contributions Schemes

99

Note 37: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

100

Note 38: Grant Income

106

Agenda Pack Page 123

Page | 42

Notes to the Accounts
Note 39: Dedicated Schools Grant

108

Note 40: External Audit Costs

109

Note 41: Contingent Assets

109

Note 42: Contingent Liabilities

109

Note 43: Financial Instruments

111

Note 44: Impairment Losses

115

Note 45: Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

118

Note 46: Trust Funds

123

Note 47: Related Parties

123

Note 48: Investments in Companies and Group Relationships

125

Note 49: Acquired and Discontinued Operations

126

Agenda Pack Page 124

Page | 43

Notes to the Accounts
Note 1: Restatement and change in accounting policies
Local authorities are permitted to change an accounting policy only if the change:



is required by a standard or interpretation; or
results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of
transactions, other events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash
flows.

Changes to accounting policies may result in retrospective application where adjustments will be required to restate
opening balances on a like-for-like basis, i.e. a Prior Period Adjustment (PPA), or prospective application i.e. only in
the year the changes is being introduced and beyond.
PPA may also be required to correct for material errors or omissions which resulted in a misstatement in the
accounts.
For 2018/19:
1) No PPA's were required to correct for material errors or omissions in the accounts.
2) There were no changes to accounting policies which required retrospective application.
3) There was one change to accounting policies which applies from 2018/19, in relation to IFRS9 Financial
Instruments. Details of the new policy are given in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Note 2: Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
Under the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 (the Code), the council is
required to disclose information setting out the impact of an accounting change required by a new accounting
standard that has been issued but not yet adopted by the Code.
The following accounting standards have been issued but have not been adopted under the Code until 1 April
2019:







IAS 40 Investment Property has been amended to require evidential change of use, on transfers of
property to, or from, the investment property classification.
Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014 – 2016 Cycle has made changes to three IFRS’s:
- IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of IFRS; the short term exemption has been removed
- IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities; the scope of the standard has been clarified
- IFRS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures; clarified that election to measure at fair value for
certain entities is available on an investment-by-investment basis.
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration provides guidance on determining
the appropriate interest rate in situations where foreign currency is either paid or received in advance of
recognising the related asset, expense or income.
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments provides guidance on how to correctly determine the
tax treatment where there is uncertainty under IAS 12 Income Taxes.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation amendment enables
entities to measure at amortised cost some prepayable financial assets with so-called negative
compensation.

These changes are not significant and are not expected to have a material effect on the council’s Statement of
Accounts.

Agenda Pack Page 125

Page | 44

Notes to the Accounts
Note 3: Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies
In applying the accounting policies set out earlier the council has had to make certain judgements about complex
transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of
Accounts 2018/19 are:
Schools Fixed Assets
While the Code requires the transactions of the council's maintained schools to be consolidated in its single entity
accounts, the inclusion of school fixed assets is determined by the assessment of the council's control of those
assets, and its rights to receive service potential or economic benefits. Judgement has been made that control
depends on who controls access to the asset and hence its service potential, through control of pupil admissions;
and who has responsibility for the maintenance and development of the asset. These powers may outweigh the
control conferred by ownership of the asset. Aspects of control may be exercised by the governing body, who are
judged to be independent of the control of the local authority.
On this basis, Community schools are included on the balance sheet, as pupil admissions are determined by the
council and all decisions on maintenance and development of the asset are taken by the council. Voluntary
Controlled (VC) schools are similarly included as the council controls their admissions and is responsible for
maintenance and development of the asset (and has been since these schools took VC status under the 1944
Education Act). Although ownership in general rests with the relevant Diocese, it is judged extremely unlikely that
they would exercise their right to take back the asset; and under the 1998 Schools Standards and Framework Act,
any such decision requires the consent of the Secretary of State.
The assets of Voluntary Aided (VA) schools have been judged not to be controlled by the council, as it is the
governing body who sets the admissions policy, and has responsibility for the maintenance and development of the
assets. Capital Maintenance grant is paid to the Diocese rather than being administered by the council, and they
contribute to the cost of major capital works. However, the playing fields of VA schools are included in the balance
sheet because the council has a statutory duty to maintain these.
Foundation Schools are similarly excluded as the governing body sets the admissions policy, and is responsible for
decisions on the assets' maintenance and development.
Complex Leases
As detailed in the 2011/12 financial statements, the decision was taken to classify leases of care homes from the
council to Quantum Care as operating leases. This is viewed as a critical judgement, given the classification as a
finance lease would have resulted in the de-recognition of a large number of assets. This means that assets are
retained on the council's Balance Sheet even though they are leased to Quantum Care on a long-term basis. This
is because the lease of the properties is tied up with the provision of services by Quantum and so is not intended to
transfer benefits of ownership, only to secure best value from service contracts.
Heritage Assets
As detailed in the 2011/12 accounts, judgement was made that the council would use insurance valuations as an
appropriate and relevant valuation for heritage assets. These valuations were carried out and verified by external
valuers, except for its Record Office documents, known as Hertfordshire Archives and Local Studies (HALS), where
a cost or valuation could not be determined.
Icelandic Bank Deposits
The council held deposits totalling £28m with Icelandic banks that defaulted on their obligations in October 2008.
Since then the value of these deposits has been adjusted in the accounts, to reflect such repayments as have been
received, and with the impairment value calculated in accordance with accounting practice. In October 2011 the
Icelandic Supreme Court upheld the priority status of deposits held by UK local authorities and other UK wholesale

Agenda Pack Page 126

Page | 45

Notes to the Accounts
depositors, and distributions have been received from Glitnir and Landsbanki HF. In February 2014 the council sold
its claim against the insolvent estate of Landsbanki through an auction process. The sale of this claim means that
the council has recovered 92% of the amounts originally deposited with Landsbanki in 2008.
In February 2012 the Glitnir claim was paid out in full in various currencies, however part was in Icelandic Kroner
subject to currency controls. In 2014/15 HCC sold its Icelandic Krona via a currency auction held by the Central
Bank of Iceland. This has resulted in a final return of 101% of the original balances deposited.
The administrators for Heritable Ltd have to date made distributions for 98% of the original claim. The council has
included an impairment in the accounts to reflect the possibility that there will be no further recovery following
settlement of the administrator's fees. This is based on the latest report from the administrators.
The administrators for Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander Ltd continue to make distributions in the form of dividends
and impairment has been recognised based on forecasts in the latest administrator's report.
Better Care Fund
The Better Care Fund (BCF) "is a programme spanning both the NHS and local government. It has been created to
improve the lives of some of the most vulnerable people in our society, placing them at the centre of their care and
support, and providing them with ‘wraparound’ fully integrated health and social care, resulting in an improved
experience and better quality of life."
Within Hertfordshire, the pooled budget arrangements are governed by the Section 75 agreed between
Hertfordshire County Council and East & North Herts CCG, Herts Valleys CCG and Cambridgeshire &
Peterborough CCG through the Health & Wellbeing Board. Following Department of Health Group Accounting
Manual 2018-19 Chapter 4 Annex 8 – Accounting for Pooled Budgets and Joint Arrangements, it is important that
the accounting reflect in substance the differing patterns of control in place for different elements of the BCF.
Where funding and control is shared the elements have been treated as joint operations and shown in Note 32 (as
is the case for CCG monies comprising the core BCF allocation determined by social care relative needs formula,
Protection of Social Care, Carers, and jointly funded staff together with joint schemes with East and North
Hertfordshire CCG for Westgate and Intermediate Care). Where sole control is exercised by either HCC or the
CCGs (as is the case for residual base budgets) the elements are reported within the relevant entity accounts.
Local Enterprise Partnership
The council is acting as the Accountable Body for the Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).
Hertfordshire LEP was formed in 2011 and is a partnership between local businesses within the county of
Hertfordshire and local authorities. Their priorities are based around 4 areas: Strategic Infrastructure, Skills and
Employment, Enterprise and Innovation and Business Support.
The LEP is a non-statutory body and the LEP Board has 15 elected members made up of Chair, 5 Business
representatives, 2 SME representatives, 2 Further or Higher Education representatives, 1 from not for profit sector
and 4 from local authorities. They are elected for a set period and are unremunerated. Reporting into the Board
are the Programme Management Committee (which scrutinises the work of the Programme Boards and includes
Accountable Body membership); Chairs Panel, 3 Programme Boards and the Enterprise Zone Partnership Board.
The over-riding governance structure is the Assurance Framework which is updated annually, is subject to audit
and sets out decision making routes and the structures of all the Boards and Sub groups. The LEP produces a
Strategic Economic Plan which sets out the priorities for the period. From this the LEP then bids to Central
Government for Growth Deal funding. There have been 3 Growth Deal rounds so far, with the LEP having secured
over £133m until 2021.
In accounting for the LEP it has been assessed that the council is acting as the principal in accordance with IAS 18
Revenue and the LEP's transactions have been included in the council’s accounts.
Balances relating to the LEP included with the council's accounts as at 31st March 2019 include earmarked
reserves totalling £6.914m, capital grants unapplied of £57.3m and usable capital receipts of £0.5m.

Agenda Pack Page 127

Page | 46

Notes to the Accounts
Group Accounts
The council has interests in other entities which fall within the group boundary of the council on the grounds of
control and significant influence in line with the Code. The council’s interests in Hertfordshire Catering Limited,
Herts Living Limited, Herts at Home Ltd and Herts Fullstop Ltd (which are all wholly owned subsidiaries) are not
considered material to the council’s overall financial position. Therefore group accounts have not been prepared for
2018/19.
Future Funding for Local Government
The Statement of Accounts has been produced on a going concern basis. Despite the high degree of uncertainty
about future levels of funding for local government, the council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet
sufficient to materially impact on its financial statements. The council is well placed to achieve the level of savings
required in the Medium Term Finance Forecast (MTFF), and continue to deliver its statutory services.

Agenda Pack Page 128

Page | 47

Notes to the Accounts
Note 4: Assumptions made about the future and other major sources on estimation
uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for
the revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could
differ from those estimates. The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are as follows:
Item

Uncertainties

Property,
Plant and
Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are
dependent on assumptions about the level of repairs
and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to
individual assets. The current economic climate makes it
uncertain that the council will be able to sustain its
current spending on repairs and maintenance, which
could impact on the useful lives of assets. The council
has Property, Plant and Equipment with a Net Book
st
Value of £3.355 billion on the Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2019, with £66.381 million charged as
depreciation during the year.

Pension
Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends
on a number of complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are
projected to increase, changes in retirement ages,
mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund
assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to
provide the council with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied. The liability estimated as at
31st March 2019 was £1.2 billion.

Provision
for NNDR
Appeals

The value of National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR)
income included in the accounts is reduced by a
provision for the estimated value of appeals against
valuation decisions, including backdating. These
estimates have been calculated by billing authorities,
using information from the Valuation Office on
outstanding appeals and experience of successful
appeal rates. The council’s provision is based on its 10%
share of the income lost on successful appeals.

Provision
for
Doubtful
Debts

The value of outstanding debtors in the accounts is
reduced by a provision for estimated doubtful debts,
based on the experience that it is not economic or
possible to recover all debt. The council operates a
policy of making provision for specified percentages of
debt in age bands above 9 months. The council does not
make provision for debt secured by legal charge against
property, where checks have provided a high degree of
certainty that the debt is recoverable.

Effect if actual results differ from
Assumptions
If the useful life of assets is reduced,
depreciation increases and the carrying
amount
of
the
assets
falls.
It is estimated that the annual
depreciation charge for buildings would
increase by approximately £0.746
million for every year that useful lives
had to be reduced.

The effects on the net pension liability of
changes in individual assumptions can
be measured. For instance, a 0.5%
decrease
in
the
discount
rate
assumption would result in an increase
in the pension liability of £253 million.
Full sensitivity analysis is disclosed in
Note 37 Defined Benefit Pension
Schemes.

Each 1% increase in the value of
appeals that is provided for would give
an additional cost of £0.079 million.

Any debt deemed as irrecoverable over
and above this provision will be a charge
to service expenditure. Each 1%
increase in the level of bad debt
requiring write off will give an additional
cost of £0.047m.

Agenda Pack Page 129

Page | 48

Notes to the Accounts
Note 5: Material Items of Income and Expense
Service Income
There are no significant income streams to disclose.
Service Expenditure
The council has made significant payments to the following contractors and providers that are not disclosed
separately:


















Abbots Care Ltd – county-wide block contract for the provision of homecare and enablement homecare
services (£7.9m);
Arriva Kent and Surrey Ltd – Provision of supported bus service including concessionary fares (£8.2m);
Biffa Waste Services Limited – for the disposal of waste at the Westmill landfill site (£5.7m);
Care By Us Ltd – county-wide block contract as well as additional spot rate provision of homecare and
enablement homecare services (£14.9m);
Central London Community Healthcare NHS Trust – For the provision of sexual health services
(£6.8m);
Crime Reductions Initiatives – (known as CRI) for the provision of drug and alcohol support and
prevention services (£6.8m);
FCC Recycling Ltd – contractor for Waterdale and Hitchin Transfer Stations, Bletchley & Milton Landfill
Sites, Greatmoor Energy From Waste site and haulage to all disposal points (£11m);
Hertfordshire Community NHS Trust – for the provision of sexual health services and school nurses
(£20.6m)
Hertfordshire School Building Partnership – contract for Building Schools for the Future, Public Finance
Initiative, Marriott’s and Lonsdale Schools, Design Build Finance & Operate where a Unitary Charge is paid
for the schools plus, as a pass through, utility costs (£8.4m);
Quantum Care Ltd – contract for the provision of residential care home placements (£20.9m);
Ringway Infrastructure Services Ltd – for the provision of highway maintenance work (£47.6m);
Runwood Homes Plc – contract for the provision of residential care home placements (£6.1m);
Serco Plc – for the provision of a range of support services and customer services as per the Core Shared
Managed Services contract, broadening and deepening work, and for the provision of Social Care Access
& Telecare; (£25m);
Viridor Waste Management Ltd – disposal of waste at the Lakeside and Ardley Energy Recovery
Facilities (£6m);
WSP UK Limited – Highways consultants; main contractor for highways design (£6.8m).

Note 6: Events after the Balance Sheet Date
The draft Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of Resources on 31 May 2019. Events
taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events have taken place
before this date, provided information about conditions existed at 31 March 2019, the figures in the financial
statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.
There have been no material events after the reporting date to be disclosed in these financial statements.

Agenda Pack Page 130

Page | 49

Notes to the Accounts
Note 7: Adjustment between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations

Capital Receipts Reserve

Capital Grants Reserve

Movement in Unusable
Reserves

2017/18

General Fund Balance

This note details the adjustments that are made between the total comprehensive income and expenditure
account, recognised by the council in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice, and the resources
that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the council to meet future capital and revenue
expenditure.

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Adjustm ents involving the Capital Adjustm ent Account
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Capital grants and contributions

(40,722)

-

-

40,722

(952)

-

-

952

47,165

-

-

(47,165)

(30,056)

-

-

30,056

(219,097)

-

-

219,097

3,161

-

-

(3,161)

10,824

-

-

(10,824)

(65)

-

-

65

83,462

-

(83,462)

-

-

-

44,193

(44,193)

-

-

-

-

19,874

(19,874)

-

-

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure

-

18,119

-

(18,119)

Transfer of LEP Loan repayment

-

(10,000)

-

10,000

-

-

-

-

(105)

-

-

105

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Amounts of non current assets w ritten off on disposal or sale as part of
the gain / loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund balance
Use of Capital Reserves (Earmarked Reserves) to finance expenditure

Adjustm ents involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account
Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account
Repayment of Grant

Adjustm ent involving the Capital Receipts Reserve
Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain / loss on disposal
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Adjustm ents involving the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Transfer of deferred sale proceeds to the general fund in relation to
Finance Leases

Agenda Pack Page 131

Page | 50

General Fund Balance

Capital Receipts Reserve

Capital Grants Reserve

Movement in Unusable
Reserves

Notes to the Accounts

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

2017/18

Adjustm ents prim arily involving the Financial Instrum ents
Adjustm ent Account:
Premiums incurred in the year and charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial years to be
charged against the General Fund Balance in accordance w ith statutory
requirements
Adjustment for Equivalent Interest Rate on finance costs , in accordance
w ith statutory requirements

-

-

-

-

112

-

-

(112)

8

-

-

(8)

208

-

-

(208)

-

-

-

-

(139,685)

-

-

139,685

71,314

-

-

(71,314)

(2,097)

-

-

2,097

2,633

-

-

(2,632)

(194,018)

(11,755)

(39,269)

245,042

Soft Loans

Adjustm ents involving the Pooled Fund Investm ent Account
Fair Value through P&L Revaluations 2017/18

Adjustm ents involving the Pensions Reserve
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners
payable in the year

Adjustm ents involving the Collection Fund Adjustm ent Account
Amount by w hich Council Tax and NNDR income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from
Council Tax and NNDR income calculated for the year in accordance
w ith statutory requirements
Adjustm ent involving the Accum ulated Absences Account
Amount by w hich officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from
remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance w ith statutory
requirements

Total Adjustments

Agenda Pack Page 132

Page | 51

Capital Receipts Reserve

Capital Grants Reserve

Movement in Unusable
Reserves

2018/19

General Fund Balance

Notes to the Accounts

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Adjustm ents involving the Capital Adjustm ent Account
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Capital grants and contributions

49,967

-

-

(49,967)

(812)

-

-

812

50,336

-

-

(50,336)

(51,220)

-

-

51,220

(74,691)

-

-

74,691

4,232

-

-

(4,232)

12,747

-

-

(12,747)

-

-

-

-

89,824

-

(89,824)

-

-

-

61,333

(61,333)

-

-

-

-

1,396

(1,396)

-

-

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure

-

1,396

-

(1,396)

Transfer of LEP Loan repayment

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(111)

-

-

111

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Amounts of non current assets w ritten off on disposal or sale as part of the
gain / loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund balance
Use of Capital Reserves (Earmarked Reserves) to finance expenditure

Adjustm ents involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account
Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account
Repayment of Grant

Adjustm ent involving the Capital Receipts Reserve
Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain / loss on disposal to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Adjustm ents involving the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Transfer of deferred sale proceeds to the general fund in relation to Finance
Leases

Agenda Pack Page 133

Page | 52

General Fund Balance

Capital Receipts Reserve

Capital Grants Reserve

Movement in Unusable
Reserves

Notes to the Accounts

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

2018/19

Adjustm ents prim arily involving the Financial Instrum ents
Adjustm ent Account:
Premiums incurred in the year and charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement
Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial years to be charged
against the General Fund Balance in accordance w ith statutory
requirements
Adjustment for Equivalent Interest Rate on finance costs , in accordance
w ith statutory requirements
Soft Loans

(10,078)

-

-

10,078

280

-

-

(280)

8

-

-

(8)

112

-

-

(112)

(15)

-

-

15

(128,004)

-

-

128,004

75,964

-

-

(75,964)

(7,468)

-

-

7,468

6,609

-

-

(6,609)

14,376

-

(28,491)

14,116

Adjustm ents involving the Pooled Fund Investm ent Account
Fair Value through P&L Revaluations 2018/19

Adjustm ents involving the Pensions Reserve
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners
payable in the year

Adjustm ents involving the Collection Fund Adjustm ent Account
Amount by w hich Council Tax and NNDR income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from Council
Tax and NNDR income calculated for the year in accordance w ith statutory
requirements
Adjustm ent involving the Accum ulated Absences Account
Amount by w hich officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from
remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance w ith statutory
requirements

Total Adjustments

Agenda Pack Page 134

Page | 53

Notes to the Accounts
Note 8: Transfers to / from earmarked reserves
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance in earmarked reserves to provide
financing for future expenditure plans, and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General
Fund expenditure in 2018/19.
The following gives a short description of each reserve, with a summary table provided at the end of this note:
Balances not under HCC control


East Coast & Humberside Control Room Consortium – Hertfordshire has taken over as the lead
authority of the East Coast and Humberside Control Room Consortium from Humberside. The Consortium
is comprised of 4 authorities (Hertfordshire, Humberside, Norfolk and Lincolnshire) and was set up to
improve the resilience and efficiency of the control rooms of each authority. The consortium is funded by a
MHCLG grant and Humberside have transferred the balance of the grant which will be held on a reserve to
fund the Consortium going forward.



East Coast & Herts CRC – ESN - A reserve created from specific grant funding received to support the
upgrade to the Emergency Services Network (ESN), previously in East Coast & Humberside Control Room
Consortium Reserve.



Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Capital Reserves – these funds are set aside to support the Local
Enterprise Partnership infrastructure initiative, providing funding for schemes to develop Hertfordshire's
economy and infrastructure. The purpose of the reserve is to act as loan fund against infrastructure.



Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Revenue Reserves – These funds have been set aside to generate
economic activity by local enterprise partnerships. They also support the operating costs of the LEP.



Shared Anti-Fraud Service (SAFS) Surplus – surplus to be used to fund additional expenditure/meet any
shortfall in future years.



Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) Surplus – surplus to be used to fund additional expenditure/meet
any shortfall in future years.

Balances held by schools under a scheme of delegation


School Balances – cash reserves held in schools shown as carry forward balances.



Strategic Area Partnership - to finance the provision of new learning opportunities to deliver the learner
entitlement for 14 to 19 year olds (now included in schools budget shares).



Community Focused Extended School Activities - balances carried forward by schools relating to
community focused activities.



Schools Budget Central Expenditure - previous underspend against the central expenditure budgets
within the Schools Budget. This will be used to finance the council's Schools Budget in future years, in line
with the requirements of the Dedicated Schools Grant.



ESC Balances – cash reserves held in Education Support Centres shown as carry forward balances.

Balances under HCC control


Academy Conversion Reserve - to finance the planning and legal costs associated with Academy
conversions as the number of schools converting escalates.



Adult Care Services (Grants) Carryforwards – carry forward reserve to be used for Local Welfare
Provision and Health Funding.

Agenda Pack Page 135

Page | 54

Notes to the Accounts


Bad Debt Reserve – to provide for additional bad debt should this be required.



BSF PFI Reserve – the excess of PFI credits over current expenditure levels carried forward to fund future
obligations in respect of the Building Schools for the Future project.



Business Rates Equalisation Reserve – to manage volatility in council tax and business rates forecasting
from District and Borough Councils.



Capital Financing Reserve – created from revenue underspends, to be applied as Revenue Contributions
to Capital Outlay to support future years’ capital programmes.



Capital Receipts Spend to Release Reserve – to be applied as Revenue Contributions to Capital Outlay
to support capital spend enabling achievement of capital receipts.



Commuted Maintenance – sums secured in year through the development of legal agreements to fund
maintenance of non-standard assets in the future. A withdrawal is made on the basis of a long term plan of
maintenance need. Income is added at the end of each year from negotiated settlements with contractors
for new developments.



Corporate Carry Forwards – this relates to the carry forward of agreed budgets relating to specific
projects planned for 2017/18 but now expected to complete in later years.



Corporate Managed Properties – monies carried forward to be used for maintenance on shared
managed properties.



Corporate Transformation Reserve - A dedicated reserve for collaborative, corporate transformation to
meet the anticipated future cost of organisational change (beyond the provisions made via the ITT fund).



County Council Elections – to meet the cost of County Council elections held every 4 years.



Cuffley Camp Reserve – to cover costs arising following termination of lease at Cuffley Camp.



Economic Growth Fund – Hertfordshire County Council has set aside 32% of its share of the Business
Rates Pool gain (8% of the total Net Retained Levy) in an Economic Growth Fund, to be allocated to
projects and initiatives that support economic development and the growth of the NNDR taxbase in
Hertfordshire.



Education & Early Intervention Reserve - to be used for education, support & intervention in Schools,
Learning Centres and alternative education and recreation settings.



Education Support Reserve – to support improved educational outcomes in schools.



Flood and Water Management – funds set aside to support the new sustainable urban drainage
responsibility.



General Contingency Reserve – reserve held to address known issues that have arisen but not be
resolved within the year.



Hadham Towers Restoration – to provide for essential restoration work to return the former Hadham
Towers Waste Disposal site to its original use as agricultural land.



Hertfordshire Safeguarding Adults
expenditure/meet any future shortfalls.



Herts Music Service - Music Donations – this fund comprises of legacy donations to the Music Service
held in practice on trust for the purposes for which it was donated, namely to support Music Centres across
the County.

Board

–

partner

Agenda Pack Page 136

contributions

held

to

fund

additional

Page | 55

Notes to the Accounts


Infrastructure & Sustainable Transport - To fund projects for development of major infrastructure and
sustainable transport to address future growth.



Innovation Grant Wave 3 - Funding for the roll-out of the Family Safeguarding model as part of the
Department for Education’s Strengthening Families programme, in addition to some other funding relating
to the Family Safeguarding programme.



Innovation Fund (Children’s Services) – this reserve will be used to fund both phase 1 and phase 2 of
the Family Safeguarding (Innovation Fund) project.



Invest to Transform – reserve set aside to support innovative projects across the council that will underpin
service transformation and deliver future efficiencies.



Investment Reserve – reserve created from MRP savings to be used for capital financing and other
investments.



LAMS Reserve - holds funds set aside to support the council's participation in the LAMS scheme which
facilitates mortgage lending to eligible Hertfordshire residents. As the scheme is now closed, these funds
have been redesignated to support the Property Development Programme.



Members Highway Locality Reserve - funding for Member prioritised highway spending.



MMI Reserve - a specific reserve set up in recognition of the increased risk relating to the Municipal Mutual
Insurance contingent liability.



Nobel Lifecycle fund – reserve set up to be used over the next 10 years to fund future obligations for
lifecycle works as they become required.



Non-Ringfenced Grants Carryforward Reserve - To carryforward non-ringfenced grants where they
have been received towards the end of the financial year and funding is required to support expenditure in
the next financial year.



Planning Delivery Grant – reserve held for the installation of a new development management IT system.



Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Equalisation Reserve – the reserve represents the excess of PFI credits
over current expenditure levels carried forward to fund future obligations in respect of young persons’
homes and family centres.



Proceeds of Crimes Act (POCA) Receipts - Proceeds of Crimes Act held by the council in respect of
ongoing trading standards and Serious and Organised Crime Agency (SOCA) court cases, to be spent on
Community Protection activities.



Public Health – carry forward reserve to support Public Health priorities and development.



Safeguarding & Specialist Services - to be used to finance safeguarding vulnerable children.



Salix - to meet capital costs of energy conservation works; replenished by repayment of a proportion of
ongoing savings.



School Improvement Grant Reserve - to support continued monitoring of performance of maintained
schools, broker school improvement provision and intervene where it is felt appropriate.



Self-Insurance Reserve - a reserve to cover for uninsured liabilities in respect of employer’s liability, third
party insurance and potential costs incurred as a result of storm damage.



SEND Reform Grant – a reserve created from grant funding received to support the transition from
statements of SEN to combined Education, Health & Care (EHC) Plans.

Agenda Pack Page 137

Page | 56

Notes to the Accounts


Spatial Planning Reserve - to fund development of strategic spatial framework for the County and in
particular, support the outcomes from the "Devo" discussions which are specifically examining joint working
on planning and infrastructure issues. There is also a need to use this reserve to fund transport strategy
work to support the next round of transport infrastructure bids to the LEP's Strategic Growth Fund.



Statutory Planning Authority Inquiries – to meet costs associated with attending public inquiries as the
Statutory Planning Authority, which vary significantly between years and the public examination of local
plans.



Thriving Families Reserve – relates to grant monies for Thriving Families, a multi-year programme which
has recently been extended by central government.



Transition Reserve – to support the management of the identified savings gap between 2019/20 and
2021/22, recognising the risk to the council of the implementation of a new local government financing
model.



Waste Reserve – set up to support the project dealing with the long term treatment of residual waste.



Waste Week 53 Reserve - to provide payment to contractor as per an agreed schedule. The annual
schedule is payment for exactly 52 weeks over any given year. Every six or seventh year the schedule has
to increase to 53 weeks and an annual contribution is made to the reserve to cover this.



Watford Music Service – this fund (a requirement of the agreement with Watford Grammar School for
Boys), is held against future liabilities for this Music Centre.

Agenda Pack Page 138

Page | 57

Notes to the Accounts
Balance
at 1 April
2017

Transfers
out
2017/18

Transfers
in
2017/18

£000s

£000s

£000s

Net
Transfers
during
2017/18
£000s

Balance at
31 March
2018

Capital (C) Balance at
or Revenue
1 April
(R)
2018

£000s

£000s

(2,896)

1,265

(8)

1,256

(1,640)

-

-

-

-

(62)

62

-

(6,925)

485

(97)

13

(70)

Transfers
out
2018/19

Transfers
in 2018/19

£000s

£000s

Net
Transfers
during
2018/19
£000s

Balance at 31
March 2019
£000s

Agenda Pack Page 139

East Coast & Humberside Control Room Consortium

R

(1,640)

1,453

(7)

1,447

(193)

-

East Coast & Herts CRC - ESN

R

-

-

(560)

(560)

(560)

62

-

Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Capital Reserves

R

-

-

-

-

-

(333)

152

(6,774)

(6,774)

228

(370)

(141)

(6,915)

-

13

(84)

Shared Anti Fraud Service (SAFS) Surplus

R

(84)

30

-

30

(54)

-

(7)

(7)

(77)

Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) Surplus

R

(77)

-

(69)

(69)

(146)

(10,050)

1,825

(348)

1,476

(8,575)

Balances not under HCC control

-

(8,575)

1,712

(1,005)

707

(7,868)

(58,783)

59,195

(61,936)

(2,741)

(61,523)

Schools Balances

R

(61,523)

66,359

(68,129)

(1,770)

(63,293)

(194)

193

-

193

-

Strategic Area Partnership

R

-

-

-

-

-

(846)

434

-

434

(412)

Community Focused Extended School Activities

R

(412)

352

-

352

(60)

(21,289)

8,560

(10,605)

(2,045)

(23,334)

Schools Budget Central Expenditure

R

(23,334)

5,821

(4,153)

1,668

(21,666)

(1,731)

1,731

(1,516)

215

(1,516)

ESC Balances

R

(1,516)

1,546

(1,866)

(320)

(1,836)

(86,785)

74,078

(74,148)

(70)

(86,855)

(82,842)

70,114

(74,057)

(3,943)

(86,785)

Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Revenue Reserves

Balances held by schools under a schem e of
delegation

(1,000)

-

-

-

(1,000)

Academy Conversion Reserve

R

(1,000)

-

-

-

(1,000)

(472)

472

(6,154)

(5,682)

(6,154)

Adult Care Services Carryforw ards

R

(6,154)

5,054

(5,862)

(808)

(6,962)

-

-

(1,115)

(1,115)

(1,115)

Adult Care Services Grant Carryforw ards

R

(1,115)

1,233

(1,709)

(476)

(1,591)

-

-

(2,583)

(2,583)

(2,583)

Bad Debt Reserve

R

(2,583)

-

-

-

(2,583)

(4,116)

350

(582)

(232)

(4,348)

BSF PFI Reserve

R

(4,348)

442

(702)

(259)

(4,607)

-

-

(1,103)

(1,103)

(1,103)

Business Rates Equalisation Reserve

R

(1,103)

-

(337)

(337)

(1,440)

-

-

(2,287)

(2,287)

(2,287)

Capital Financing Reserve

C

(2,287)

-

-

-

(2,287)

(823)

-

-

-

(823)

Capital Receipts Spend to Release Reserve

C

(823)

-

-

-

(823)

(516)

-

(492)

(492)

(1,008)

Commuted Maintenance

R

(1,008)

-

(243)

(243)

(1,251)

(1,091)

366

(4,820)

(4,454)

(5,545)

Corporate Carry Forw ards

R

(5,545)

3,421

(1,141)

2,280

(3,265)

(290)

-

-

-

(290)

Corporate Managed Properties

R

(290)

290

-

290

-

-

-

-

-

-

Corporate Transformation Reserve

R

-

-

(417)

(417)

(417)

(1,016)

1,016

(4)

1,011

(5)

County Council Elections

R

(5)

-

(347)

(347)

(352)

-

-

(705)

(705)

(705)

Cuffley Camp Reserve

R

(705)

643

-

643

(62)

(190)

-

-

-

(190)

Economic Grow th Fund

R

(190)

147

(474)

(327)

(517)

(290)

43

(155)

(112)

(402)

Education & Early Intervention Reserve

R

(402)

33

(80)

(47)

(449)

-

-

(1,290)

(1,290)

(1,290)

Education Support Reserve

R

(1,290)

-

-

-

(1,290)

(159)

159

-

159

-

Flood and Water Mgmt

R

-

-

-

-

-

Page | 58

Notes to the Accounts
Balance
at 1 April
2017

Transfers
out
2017/18

£000s

£000s

Transfers
in
2017/18

Net
Transfers
during
2017/18

Balance at
31 March
2018

£000s

£000s

£000s

Capital (C) Balance at
or Revenue
1 April
(R)
2018
£000s

Agenda Pack Page 140

-

-

(2,789)

(2,789)

(2,789)

(126)

-

-

-

(162)

14

-

(264)

-

-

Transfers
out
2018/19

Transfers
in 2018/19

Net
Transfers
during
2018/19

Balance at 31
March 2019

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

General Contingency Reserve

R

(2,789)

2,815

(2,789)

26

(126)

Hadham Tow ers Restoration

R

(126)

126

-

126

(2,763)
-

14

(148)

Hertfordshire Safeguarding Adults Board

R

(148)

5

-

5

(143)

(3)

(3)

(266)

Herts Music Service - Music Donations

R

(266)

-

-

-

(266)

-

-

-

-

Infrastructure & Sustainable Transport

R

-

-

(2,000)

(2,000)

(2,000)

-

-

-

-

Innovation Grant Wave 3

R

-

-

(158)

(158)

(158)

(2,489)

756

-

756

(1,733)

Innovation Fund (Children's Services)

R

(1,733)

99

-

99

(1,634)

(21,070)

2,278

(2,090)

187

(20,883)

Invest to Transform

R

(20,883)

5,496

(6,428)

(932)

(21,815)

-

-

(6,300)

(6,300)

(6,300)

Investment Reserve

R

(6,300)

-

(6,300)

(6,300)

(12,600)

(2,234)

242

(111)

131

(2,103)

LAMS reserve

R

(2,103)

-

(6)

(6)

(2,109)

(50)

50

(321)

(271)

(321)

Members Highw ay Locality

R

(321)

321

(475)

(154)

(475)

(953)

320

-

320

(633)

MMI Reserve

R

(633)

276

-

276

(357)

(358)

9

-

9

(349)

Nobel Lifecycle Fund

R

(349)

219

(2)

217

(132)

-

-

-

-

-

Non-Ringfenced Grants Carryforw ard Reserve

R

-

-

(3,071)

(3,071)

(3,071)

Planning Delivery Grant

R

(90)

48

-

48

(42)

PFI Equalisation Reserve

R

(1,760)

-

(12)

(12)

(1,772)

POCA Receipts

R

(337)

50

(57)

(7)

(344)

(109)

58

(39)

19

(90)

(1,754)

-

(6)

(6)

(1,760)

(329)

43

(51)

(9)

(337)

(3,946)

578

(1,312)

(734)

(4,680)

Public Health

R

(4,680)

1,127

(946)

181

(4,499)

(342)

140

(80)

60

(282)

Safeguarding & Specialist Services

R

(282)

156

(360)

(204)

(486)

(77)

266

(301)

(35)

(111)

Salix

R

(111)

329

(326)

4

(107)

-

-

-

-

-

School Improvement Grant Reserve

R

-

-

(619)

(619)

(619)

(1,832)

-

(4,819)

(4,819)

(6,651)

Self-Insurance Reserve

R

(6,651)

-

(2,966)

(2,966)

(9,617)

(489)

519

(564)

(45)

(534)

SEND Reform grant

R

(534)

412

-

412

(122)

(111)

-

-

-

(111)

Spatial Planning Reserve

R

(111)

-

-

-

(111)

(387)

-

-

-

(387)

Statutory Planning Authority Inquiries

R

(387)

387

-

387

-

(565)

19

(258)

(239)

(804)

Thriving Families

R

(804)

595

-

595

(209)

-

-

(3,000)

(3,000)

(3,000)

Transition Reserve

R

(3,000)

-

(11,960)

(11,960)

(14,960)

(8,000)

-

-

-

(8,000)

Waste Reserve

C

(8,000)

-

-

-

(8,000)

(1,064)

-

(192)

(192)

(1,257)

Waste Week 53

R

(1,257)

760

(139)

621

(636)

(221)

-

(22)

(22)

(243)

Watford Music Service

R

(243)

-

-

-

(243)

(56,893)

7,697

(43,548)

(35,851)

(92,746)

(92,746)

24,484

(49,926)

(25,441)

(118,185)

(149,785)

79,636

(117,953)

(38,318)

(188,105)

(188,105)

100,274

(125,079)

(24,804)

(212,908)

Balances under HCC control

Total

Page | 59

Notes to the Accounts
Note 9: Other Operating Expenditure
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

2,112
199,224
(6,139)

195,197

Levies

2,046

(Gains) / Losses on the disposal of non
current assets
Operating expenditure and income not
attributable to services

Total

73,295
(5,718)

69,623

Levies are paid to the Environment Agency and the Lee Valley Regional Park.
The loss on the disposal of non-current assets in 2018/19 includes accounting for maintained schools converting to
Foundation, Academy or Voluntary Aided status. This has resulted in a transfer of land, property, plant and
equipment of £70.2m.
The figure for operating income not attributable to services includes £5.0m of rental income to the council relating
to properties leased out as care homes. The comparative figure for 2017/18 was £5.6m.

Note 10: Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

17,622

Interest payable and similar charges

27,849

28,216

Pensions interest cost and expected return on
pensions assets

28,028

(4,248)

Interest receivable and similar income

(3,661)

(792)

40,798

Surplus or Deficit on Trading Operations

Total

(957)

51,259

Note 11: Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

(549,462)

Council Tax income

(588,765)

(114,732)

Non domestic rates

(119,761)

(194,907)

Non-ringfenced government grants

(175,936)

(859,101)

Total

(884,461)

Agenda Pack Page 141

Page | 60

Notes to the Accounts
Note 12: Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment Properties

Vehicles, Plant,
Furniture and
Equipment

Infrastructure
Assets

Community Assets

Surplus Assets

Assets under
Construction

Total Property,
Plant and
Equipment

PFI Assets Included
in Property, Plant &
Equipment

Movements in 2017/18

Land and Buildings

Property, Plant & Equipment – Movement on Balances

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2017
Additions
Donations
Revaluations Increases / (Decreases)
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluations Increases / (Decreases)
recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services
Derecognition - Disposals

2,126,256

51,979

979,310

-

127,004

13,523

3,298,072

65,848

27,367

8,705

68,552

-

10,459

4,498

119,581

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

13,523

-

-

-

41,556

-

55,078

-

9,318

-

-

-

4,150

-

13,468

-

(192,849)

(12,039)

-

-

(988)

-

(205,875)

-

Derecognition – Other

(916)

(1,446)

-

-

(8)

-

(2,371)

-

Assets reclassified (to) / from Held for Sale

(625)

-

-

-

(50)

-

(675)

-

Other movements in Cost or Valuation

1,759

6,095

-

-

(772)

-

1,983,833

53,293

1,047,862

-

189,962

1,556

3,276,506

65,848

At 1 April 2017

(26,386)

(26,350)

(277,539)

-

(334)

-

(330,610)

(2,375)

Depreciation Charge

(28,696)

(11,408)

(28,086)

-

(670)

-

(68,860)

(2,582)

10,785

-

-

-

239

-

11,023

-

15,365

-

-

-

105

-

15,470

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Derecognition - Disposals

4

11,311

-

-

-

-

11,315

-

Derecognition – Other

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Assets reclassified (to) / from Held for Sale

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(4)

-

-

-

4

-

-

-

(28,934)

(26,447)

(305,625)

-

(656)

-

(361,661)

(4,957)

At 31 March 2017

2,099,870

25,628

701,771

-

126,670

13,523

2,967,462

63,473

At 31 March 2018

1,954,899

26,846

742,237

-

189,306

1,556

2,914,845

60,891

At 31 March 2018

7,840 (16,466)

Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment

Depreciation w ritten out to the Revaluation
Reserve
Depreciation w ritten out to the Surplus /
Deficit on the Provision of Service
Impairment losses / (reversals) recognised
in the Revaluation Reserve
Impairment losses / (reversals) recognised
in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of
Services

Other movements in Depreciation and
Impairments
At 31 March 2018
Net Book Value

Agenda Pack Page 142

Page | 61

Vehicles, Plant,
Furniture and
Equipment

Infrastructure
Assets

Community Assets

Surplus Assets

Assets under
Construction

Total Property,
Plant and
Equipment

PFI Assets Included
in Property, Plant &
Equipment

Movements in 2018/19

Land and Buildings

Notes to the Accounts

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2018

1,983,833

53,293

1,047,862

-

189,962

1,556

3,276,506

65,848

Additions

31,842

9,479

86,374

-

3,072

1,216

131,982

-

Donations

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

282,950

-

-

-

22,418

-

305,368

-

112,367

-

-

-

(6,980)

-

105,387

-

(71,522)

(7,096)

-

-

(1,474)

-

(80,091)

-

(908)

-

-

-

-

-

(908)

-

-

-

-

-

(1,391)

-

(1,391)

-

6,763

972

-

-

(6,763)

(972)

-

-

2,345,325

56,648

1,134,236

-

198,843

1,800

3,736,853

65,848

At 1 April 2018

(28,934)

(26,447)

(305,625)

-

(656)

-

(361,661)

(4,957)

Depreciation Charge

(26,203)

(10,030)

(29,402)

-

(746)

-

(66,381)

(2,329)

27,449

-

-

-

789

-

28,238

-

10,779

-

-

-

183

-

10,962

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Revaluations Increases / (Decreases)
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluations Increases / (Decreases)
recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services
Derecognition - Disposals
Derecognition – Other
Assets reclassified (to) / from Held for Sale
Other movements in Cost or Valuation
At 31 March 2019
Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment

Depreciation w ritten out to the Revaluation
Reserve
Depreciation w ritten out to the Surplus /
Deficit on the Provision of Service
Impairment losses / (reversals) recognised
in the Revaluation Reserve
Impairment losses / (reversals) recognised
in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Derecognition - Disposals

24

6,903

-

-

-

-

6,927

-

Derecognition – Other

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Assets reclassified (to) / from Held for Sale

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other movements in Depreciation and
Impairments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(16,885)

(29,575)

(335,026)

-

(430)

-

(381,916)

(7,286)

At 31 March 2018

1,954,899

26,846

742,237

-

189,306

1,556

2,914,845

60,891

At 31 March 2019

2,328,440

27,074

799,209

-

198,414

1,800

3,354,937

58,562

At 31 March 2019
Net Book Value

Agenda Pack Page 143

Page | 62

Notes to the Accounts
Capital Commitments
The value of material contracts to which the council is committed to as at the 31st March 2019 is estimated at
£50.317m (£36.915m in 2017/18). For the purposes of this note a commitment is considered material if it exceeds
a value of £500,000.
Description

£000s

Schools - Secondary Development Agreements

16,065

Schools - other improvement w orks

8,008

Other School expansion / development schemes

2,980
21,258

Carriagew ay w orks

1,377

Other Highw ays w orks

629

Structures

50,317

Total

Revaluations
The council carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be
measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. The valuations were carried out by an external valuer,
Carter Jonas. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases
for estimation set out in the statements of Asset Valuation Practice and Guidance Notes of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors.
Assets are then carried in the balance sheet using the following measurement basis:
Type of Asset
Infrastructure
Community Assets
Assets Under Construction
Other Land & Buildings
Vehicles, Plant, Equipment
and Furniture
Surplus Assets
Investment Property
Assets Held For Sale

Basis of Valuation
Depreciated historical cost
Current value based on existing use value (EUV).
Depreciated replacement cost (DRC)
if EUV cannot be determined
Depreciated historical cost as
a proxy for fair value, where assets have short useful lives
Fair value based on highest and best use value
Market value

Agenda Pack Page 144

Page | 63

Notes to the Accounts
There have been no significant assumptions applied in estimating the fair values, which are:

Land and Buildings

Vehicles, Plant,
Furniture and
Equipment

Infrastructure
Assets

Community Assets

Surplus Assets

Assets under
Construction

Total Property,
Plant and
Equipment

PFI Assets Included
in Property, Plant
and Equipment

5 year revaluation table

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Valued at Historic Cost

-

27,073

799,209

-

-

1,801

828,083

2,604

2014/15

19,268

-

-

-

-

-

19,268

13,544

2015/16

47,982

-

-

-

-

-

47,982

42,414

2016/17

199,786

-

-

-

5,181

-

204,967

-

2017/18

164,969

-

-

-

67,507

-

232,476

-

2018/19

1,896,435

-

-

-

125,725

-

2,022,160

-

2,328,440

27,073

799,209

-

198,413

1,801

3,354,936

58,562

Valued at Current Value in:

Grand Total

Disposals
Disposals include assets transferred to schools that have converted to academy status, where a 125 year lease is
granted.
Investment Properties
There are currently no assets held as Investment Properties by the council.
Surplus Assets
Information about the fair values of the surplus assets as at 31st March 2019 is as follows:
31 March 2019
Level 1

Level 2

Quoted Prices in
active market for
identical assets

Level 3

Fair Value

Observable inputs
Unobservable
for the asset
inputs for the asset

£000s

£000s
-

169,912

£000s

£000s
28,502

Agenda Pack Page 145

198,413

Page | 64

Notes to the Accounts
Note 13: Heritage Assets
Paintings Artefacts
£000s

£000s

Sculptures

Total
Assets

£000s

£000s

Cost or valuation
1 April 2017
Additions
Disposals
Revaluations
Impairments

31 March 2018

1,879

87

31,072

33,038

-

-

-

-

-

-

28

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,908

87

30,560

32,555

1,908

87

30,560

32,555

-

-

-

-

(512)

(483)

Cost or valuation
1 April 2018
Additions
Disposals
Revaluations
Impairments

31 March 2019

(544)

-

(30)

(574)

26

-

(1)

25

-

-

-

-

1,390

87

30,529

32,006

The collection consists of nearly 1700 paintings, sculptures, murals and other art works in County Hall, in other
council properties including libraries and schools and on loan to museums.
During 2018/19, an exercise was undertaken by the council’s Valuers which resulted in a revaluation gain of
£0.025m recognised in year.
152 works were sold at auction during 2018/19. Part of these proceeds have been earmarked for ongoing
maintenance of the remaining collection.
Asset values are as shown in the summary of transactions below.
Sculptures
The council's collection of sculptures is reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based on
market values. These sculptures will be revalued as part of the council's five year revaluation programme and be
subject to an annual existence check on a sample basis. The council's external valuer for its art work Townley
Valuation Services (TVS) carried out a full valuation of the collection of sculptures as at 31 March 2013 based on
TVS inspecting all our documented records and our photographic archive, undertaking desk based research by art
experts in TVS that has included visits to museums and inspecting a number of pieces by visiting the location
where they are displayed or stored.
The highest value items are reviewed annually and TVS have advised that the value of these items have not
changed since 31 March 2018.
The council has four key sculptures:





Henry Moore, family group valued at £25m;
The stone figures of Queen Eleanor from Waltham Cross (on loan) valued at £3.5m;
Barbara Hepworth, Eocene valued at £1.5m;
Barbara Hepworth, Turning Forms valued at £350k.

Agenda Pack Page 146

Page | 65

Notes to the Accounts
Paintings
The council's external valuer for its art work, Townley Valuation Services (TVS), carried out a full valuation of the
collection of paintings as at 31 March 2012. The valuations were based on TVS inspecting our documented records
and our photographic archive, and undertaking desk based research by art experts in TVS that has included visits
to museums and inspecting a number of pieces by visiting the location where they are displayed or stored.
A review of items within the collection was carried out as at 31 March 2019, resulting in a revaluation gain of
£28,000. TVS have confirmed that there are no other significant changes in value.
During the year none of the paintings was deemed to have suffered major damage requiring write down to be
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Key works within the remaining art collection are: 









Philip Mercier, Portrait of Frederick Lewis, Prince of Wales valued at £100,000;
Philip Mercier, Portrait of Princess Caroline valued at £80,000;
Philip Mercier, Portrait of Princess Amelia, Daughter of King George II and Queen Caroline valued at
£80,000;
Philip Mercier, Portrait of Princess Anne, Daughter of King George II and Queen Caroline valued at
£80,000;
Ceri Richards, ‘Matisse’ mural valued at £60,000;
Sir Thomas Lawrence, Portrait of William Plummer valued at £60,000;
Circle of Jean Baptiste van Loo, Portrait of Queen Caroline valued at £40,000;
Charles Jervas, Portrait of King George II, standing full length valued at £40,000;
Richard Westall, The Shepherd in a Storm valued at £50,000.

Artefacts
This contains the civic regalia including a forty inch sterling silver chain, pendants and badges associated with the
position of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, an old school door and frame and a Flemish Landscape Tapestry,
probably Oudenaard, circa 1670-1690.
Hertfordshire Archives and Local Studies (HALS)
The Hertfordshire Archives and Local Studies (HALS) consist of the council’s Record Office documents and are
included as part of the council’s library assets. Whilst these may be of interest to an historian they hold no
determinable value and accordingly are not reported in the balance sheet.
Preservation and Management
The council has not undertaken any major repairs or restoration of any of its heritage assets in 2018/19. The cost of
any such repairs and restoration if incurred would be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
The council employs a fully qualified archive conservator for any repairs needed at HALS. Schedules of work
needed are kept and are undertaken on a rolling programme. Sometimes grant funding can be acquired to help
with a major conservation project e.g. from the National Manuscripts Conservation Trust. The art collection is
currently being reviewed and rationalised by the Resources directorate. As part of this process an audit of the
retained collection will be undertaken to identify conservation requirements; and the collection management system
updated. The remaining collection is managed by Property, who administers a limited range of repairs and
maintenance, related to investment projects or requests for intervention for support for maintenance from schools.
The County Archivist manages the archive collections held at HALS. There are various policies in existence for the
management of certain types of records e.g. the County Council’s archives are governed by the council’s Records
Management Policy (Aug 2009 held on the Intranet) and the Retention Guidelines (also on the Intranet).

Agenda Pack Page 147

Page | 66

Notes to the Accounts
Acquisitions are rare and primarily made by donation. However, on rare occasions when a particularly important
asset is available for purchase, the council will undertake the purchase provided that it meets the objectives of the
council in terms of its collection of heritage assets. HALS has a formal Acquisitions Policy.
Assets are collated, preserved and managed in accordance with the aforementioned guidelines. The register for
each collection records the nature, provenance, condition and current location of each asset.
Each individual collection at HALS has a unique Accession number which is recorded in a manual register. During
2013/14 a project was completed to transfer this information to computer using archive software (CALM), and new
accessions are routinely added to this database. The other collections’ registers have been made available
previously and validated as part of the recent revaluation programme.
Disposal of heritage assets require member approval supported by guidance from officers who hold accountability
for the collections. In order to dispose of any archive held at HALS permission would have to be sought from the
individual owner of the collection. Many collections owned by the council are inalienable as grant funding was
awarded in order to purchase them, making their disposal very unlikely.

Agenda Pack Page 148

Page | 67

Notes to the Accounts
Note 14: Intangible Assets
The council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an integral part of a
particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment. All software
is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period that the software is expected to be of use to the
council. Major systems such as SAP and the Integrated Education System are normally assessed at 10 years life
while PC based software is typically assessed at 5 years. These software and web intangible assets are carried at
historical cost as a proxy for current replacement costs, and are amortised on a straight-line basis. Centrally
charged amortisation is absorbed as overheads across all service headings if deemed material.
The movement of intangible asset balances during the year is as follows:

2017/18
Software &
Portal &
Licences Web Design

2018/19
Software &
Portal &
Licences Web Design

Total

Total

Balance at start of year
6,513

63

6,575

(2,976)

(50)

(3,026)

3,537

13

3,550

352

-

352

Gross carrying amount
Accumulated amortisation
Net carrying amount at start of year

7,587

63

7,649

(3,865)

(63)

(3,928)

3,721

-

3,721

537

-

537

(812)

-

(812)

Changes in year
(940)

(13)

(952)

772

-

772

3,721

-

3,721

Purchases
Amortisation for the period
Other changes

Net carrying amount at end of year

-

-

-

3,446

-

3,446

Comprising:
7,587

63

7,649

(3,865)

(63)

(3,928)

3,721

-

3,721

Gross carrying amount
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount at end of year

8,045

63

8,107

(4,599)

(63)

(4,661)

3,446

Agenda Pack Page 149

-

3,446

Page | 68

Notes to the Accounts
Note 15: Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value of
assets acquired under finance leases and PFI/PPP contracts), together with the resources that have been used to
finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by
the council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the
capital expenditure incurred historically by the council that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the
second part of this note.

2017/18
£000s

2018/19

£000s

£000s

531,007

£000s

Opening Capital Financing Requirement

558,361

Capital investment
119,581

Property, Plant and Equipment

762
352

-

Loans for another body’s capital expenditure

-

Investments treated as capital

-

Intangible Assets

30,056

131,982

Investment Properties

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

537
51,220

150,750

183,739
Sources of finance

(18,119)

Capital receipts

65

Capital Reserves

(91,358)

Government grants and other contributions

(1,396)
(111,670)

Sums set aside from revenue:
(3,161)

Minimum Revenue Provisions

(10,824)

Direct revenue contributions

(123,397)
558,361

(4,232)
(12,747)

(130,044)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement

612,056

Explanation of movements in year:
30,514

Increase in the underlying need to borrow

57,927

(3,161)

Decrease in the underlying need to borrow

(4,232)

-

Assets acquired under finance leases

-

-

Assets acquired under PFI/PPP contracts

-

27,354

Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing
Requirement

Agenda Pack Page 150

53,695

Page | 69

Notes to the Accounts
Note 16: Leases
Council as Lessee
Finance Leases
The council has acquired a number of vehicles and non-property assets under finance leases.
The assets acquired under these leases are carried as Property, Plant and Equipment in the Balance Sheet at the
following net amounts:
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
Other Land and Buildings

33,524
28

32,693
-

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment

33,552

Total

32,693

The council is committed to making the minimum payments under these leases comprising settlement of the longterm liability for the interest in the property acquired by the council and finance costs that will be payable by the
council in future years while the liability remains outstanding. The council’s last outstanding finance lease in
(council as lessee) expired during this financial year and therefore no further lease payments are due.
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
Finance lease liabilities (Net Present
Value of minimum lease payments):

35
2
36

current

-

non-current

-

Finance costs payable in future years

-

Minimum Lease Payments

-

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Finance Lease
Liabilities

Minimum Lease
Payments

Finance Lease
Liabilities

Minimum
Lease
Payments

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

35

36

Not later than one year

-

-

-

-

Later than one year and not later than
five years

-

-

-

-

Later than five years

-

-

35

36

Total

-

-

Agenda Pack Page 151

Page | 70

Notes to the Accounts
Operating Leases
The council has a number of arrangements classified as operating leases, consisting of Land & Buildings and
Vehicles. The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
3,898

Not later than one year

4,145

9,518

Later than one year and not later than
five years

8,068

19,222

32,638

19,437

Later than five years

Minimum lease payments

31,650

The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in relation to
these leases was:
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
3,395
574

3,969

Land & Buildings

3,404

Vehicles

746

Total

4,150

Council as Lessor
Finance Leases
The council has leased out a number of Land & Buildings assets under finance leases. These assets are
derecognised from the council’s Balance Sheet.
The council has a gross investment in the lease, made up of the minimum lease payments expected to be received
over the remaining term and the residual value anticipated for the property when the lease comes to an end. The
minimum lease payments comprise settlement of the long-term debtor for the interest in the property acquired by
the lessee and finance income that will be earned by the council in future years whilst the debtor remains
outstanding. The gross investment is made up of the following amounts:
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
Finance lease liabilities (Net Present
Value of minimum lease payments):
111
2,970

current
non-current

118
2,852

8,044

Unearned finance income

7,460

2,359

Unguaranteed residual interest of
property

2,359

13,484

-

Gross investment in the lease

Agenda Pack Page 152

12,789

Page | 71

Notes to the Accounts
The minimum lease payments will be payable to the council over the following periods:
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Gross investment
in the lease

Minimum Lease
Payments

Gross
investment in
the lease

Minimum
Lease
Payments

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

695

695

2,779

2,779

10,010

7,651

13,484

11,124

Not later than one year

695

695

Later than one year and not later than
five years

2,779

2,779

Later than five years

9,315

6,956

12,789

10,430

Total

Operating Leases
The council has a number of arrangements classified as operating leases consisting of Land & Buildings. These
are arrangements where council-owned properties are leased to other organisations for a range of purposes.
These include leases of land for electricity substations or communications infrastructure, leases to other public or
voluntary sector organisations for use in delivery of their services or leases to private sector individuals or
organisations where the land is surplus to the council's operating requirements. The future minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are:
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
5,978

Not later than one year

19,716

Later than one year and not later than
five years

90,412

Later than five years

116,107

6,033
22,190
103,108

Total

131,330

The income credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in relation to these
leases was:

2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s
6,804
-

6,804

Land & Buildings
Vehicles

Total

5,978
-

5,978

Agenda Pack Page 153

Page | 72

Notes to the Accounts
Note 17: Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) and Similar Contracts
The Code of Practice 2018/19 requires that PFI schemes should be accounted for on the basis of IFRIC 12
“Service Concessions”. To be within the scope of IFRIC 12, the PFI scheme must contractually oblige the private
sector operator to deliver, on behalf of the council, public services related to infrastructure. In addition, IFRIC 12
requires the council to:



Control or regulate what services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide
them and at what price; and to
Control any significant residual interest, through beneficial entitlement or otherwise, in the infrastructure at
the end of the term of the scheme.

Children’s Services
The council entered into a PFI scheme in June 2007 for the design, finance and maintenance of seven new
children's' homes, a family assessment centre, a disability resource centre, a children’s centre and the
refurbishment of five family support centres, through a private sector operator, with a facility for 25 years. The
private sector operator is Young Herts and Unitary Charge payments are made monthly on invoice. The PFI
scheme involved rebuilding /refurbishing existing council buildings and the operation of those centres. The units
became operational at various times from 2007/08 to 2009/10. The scheme is due to end on 31 March 2033 at
which stage all the assets will revert to the council. The value of these assets (land & buildings) following
revaluation as at the dates they became operational were £18.17m as at 31 March 2010. During 2010/11 a number
of the homes were converted from six to seven bed units. This was a low cost change achieved by converting a
staff sleep in room to a resident’s room, any revenue costs as a result of this change will be minimum.
The council’s PFI obligation for the capital (finance lease) element is:

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Capital

Interest

Service

Capital

Interest

Service

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

695

989

1,287

Not later than one year

3,191

3,455

5,696

4,938

2,968

8,882

6,138

1,216

11,352

14,964

8,628

27,218

741

941

1,321

Later than one year and not later than five years

3,363

3,239

5,906

Later than five years and not later than ten years

5,033

2,636

9,532

Later than ten years and not later than fifteen years

Total

5,131

822

9,029

14,268

7,639

25,788

The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come into use. The assets are
measured initially at fair value in accordance with the principles of IFRIC 12. Subsequently, the assets are
measured at fair value, which is kept up to date in accordance with the council’s approach for each relevant class
of asset.
There was a re-valuation exercise in 2014/15 as a result of which new values have been reflected in the accounts.
The net book value as at 31 March 2015 was £14.743m.
The outstanding liabilities to be paid to the contractors for capital expenditure incurred are as follows:

2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

16,185
(586)

Balance outstanding at start of year
Payments during the year

15,599
(695)

-

Capital expenditure incurred during the year

-

-

Other movements

-

15,599

Balance outstanding at end of year

Agenda Pack Page 154

14,903

Page | 73

Notes to the Accounts
Building Schools for the Future
This project reached Financial Close in January 2011 on a limited scheme which included Marriott’s & Lonsdale
Schools, with Nobel School being a design & build project financed by the council. Whilst it was originally expected
that the PFI funded schools would become operational and unitary charge payable to the operator (at that time
Balfour Beatty Education) from September 2012 the actual handover date was 7 January 2013.
The scheme is still due to end on 31 August 2037 at which stage all assets will revert to the council.
The value of the Marriott’s and Lonsdale Schools (land and buildings) at the date they became operational was
£43.24m
The council’s PFI obligation for the capital (finance lease) element is:

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Capital

Interest

Service

Capital

Interest

Service

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

977

3,656

2,147

Not later than one year

1,127

3,562

2,133

4,765
7,801

13,587

9,377

Later than one year and not later than five years

4,840

13,142

10,079

14,250

14,303

Later than five years and not later than ten years

8,513

13,507

14,713

10,709

9,963

18,381

Later than ten years and not later than fifteen years

11,666

8,944

18,904

15,258

3,781

16,823

Later than fifteen years and not later than tw enty years

12,388

2,426

13,020

39,510

45,238

61,030

38,534

41,582

58,849

Total

As the schools are operational they have been recognised as assets within the balance sheet. They have initially
been recognised at cost and are reflected in the assets as at 31 March 2013.
Subsequently the assets have been measured at fair value, and be kept up to date in accordance with the councils'
approach for the relevant class of asset. There was a re-valuation exercise in 2015/16 as a result of which new
values have been reflected in the accounts. The net book value as at 31 March 2016 was £51.109m.
The outstanding liabilities to be paid to the contractors for capital expenditure incurred are as follows:

2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

41,388

Balance outstanding at start of year

(1,054)

Payments during the year

40,335
(977)

-

Capital expenditure incurred during the year

-

-

Other movements

-

40,335

Balance outstanding at end of year

Agenda Pack Page 155

39,358

Page | 74

Notes to the Accounts
Note 18: Debtors
The following amounts were owed to the council by third parties at financial year end.
Short-Term:

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
31,475

Central government bodies

33,650

54,802

Other local authorities

51,173

6,491
-

NHS bodies

4,578

Public corporations and trading funds

1

53,314

Other entities and individuals

66,756

(22,349)

Provisions for doubtful debts

(21,125)

123,733

Total

135,033

Long-Term:

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
8,809

Central government bodies

-

Other local authorities

8,827

-

NHS bodies

-

-

Public corporations and trading funds

-

17,022

Other entities and individuals

-

Provisions for doubtful debts

25,831

Total

14,727
-

23,554

Analysis of provisions for doubtful debts:

2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s
Short Term:

(22,462)
113

(22,349)

Balance at start of the year
Change in general provision

Balance at end of Year

(22,349)
1,224

(21,125)

Long Term:

-

Balance at start of the year

-

-

Change in general provision

-

-

Balance at end of Year

(22,349)

Total

Agenda Pack Page 156

(21,125)

Page | 75

Notes to the Accounts
Note 19: Cash and Cash Equivalents
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
69,284
(16,334)
71,014

123,964

Cash held by the Council w ith bank

73,068

Bank current account balance /
(overdraft)

(23,744)

Short-term deposits

66,402

Total

115,729

The bank position is managed on a daily basis as part of the Treasury Management function, and all account
balances are pooled, with any overdrawn accounts offset by cash balances on other accounts within the pooled
arrangements. Short-term deposits have been classified as Cash & Cash Equivalents if the deposits have a
maturity of less than 24 hours at the date of inception.

Note 20: Assets held for Sale
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

NonCurrent

Current

NonCurrent

Current

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

-

33,897

Balance outstanding at start of year

-

11,606

- Property, Plant and Equipment

-

1,409

Assets newly classified as held for sale:
-

675

-

-

- Intangible Assets

-

-

-

-

- Other assets / liabilities in disposal groups

-

-

Revaluation losses

-

-

-

(800)

-

-

Revaluation gains

-

-

-

-

Impairment losses

-

-

Assets declassified as held for sale:
-

-

- Property, Plant and Equipment

-

-

-

- Intangible Assets

-

-

-

-

- Other assets / liabilities in disposal groups

-

-

-

(22,166)

Assets sold

-

(18)

(45)

-

-

Transfers from non current to current

-

-

-

-

Other movements

-

-

-

11,606

Balance outstanding at end of year

-

12,952

Agenda Pack Page 157

Page | 76

Notes to the Accounts
Note 21: Creditors
The following amounts were owed by the council to third parties at financial year end:
Short-Term:

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s

(22,241)

Central government bodies

(22,314)

(24,517)

Other local authorities

(31,049)

(2,789)
(36)
(106,772)

(156,354)

NHS bodies

(2,709)

Public corporations and trading funds

(3)

Other entities and individuals

(134,545)

Total

(190,621)

Long-Term:

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
(386)

Central government bodies

(325)

(603)

Other local authorities

(686)

-

NHS bodies

-

-

Public corporations and trading funds

-

(256)

(1,244)

Other entities and individuals

(231)

Total

(1,241)

Note 22: Provisions
The following provisions have been set aside in the 2018/19 accounts to meet future expenditure where liabilities
are known or expected.

Insurance Provision
Teachers Pension Provision

Balance at 1
April 2018

Additional
provisions
made in
2018/19

Amounts
used in
2018/19

Unused
amounts
reversed in
2018/19

Unwinding of
discounting in
2018/19

Balance at
31 March
2019

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

(9,269)

(1,767)

3,439

-

-

(7,597)

(157)

(197)

20

-

-

(334)

Sleep-in Provision

(1,338)

-

-

1,338

-

-

NNDR Appeals Provision

(7,533)

(2,108)

1,699

-

-

(7,942)

(246)

(100)

-

-

-

(346)

Municipial Mutual Insurance
Provision
Other Liabilities

Total

(200)

-

-

8

-

(192)

(18,743)

(4,172)

5,159

1,346

-

(16,410)

Agenda Pack Page 158

Page | 77

Notes to the Accounts
Expected outflow of economic benefits:

Not later than
one year
£000s
Insurance Provision
Teachers Pension Provision
Sleep-in Provision
NNDR Appeals Provision
Municipial Mutual Insurance
Provision
Other Liabilities

Total

Later than one
year and not
later than five
years
£000s

Later than
five years

Total
Provisions

£000s

£000s

(4,737)

(2,860)

-

(7,597)

(334)

-

-

(334)

-

-

-

-

(7,942)

-

-

(7,942)

(346)

-

-

(346)

(8)

(31)

(153)

(192)

(13,366)

(2,891)

(153)

(16,410)

Insurance Provisions
This provision is to meet known insurance claims for which it is anticipated the council may be liable. The council
operates insurance provisions and reserves to meet self-insured liabilities in respect of fire damage, motor,
employers and third party liabilities and storm damage.
Teachers’ Pension Provision
This provision is set aside for teachers not currently employed by schools, for whom pension contribution payments
had not been made. These employees may have thought that they had opted-out of the scheme however this is
difficult to evidence and the council would be required to pay a back-dated contribution if this was not the case.
This provision was made as Serco undertook an audit of both active and leaver teaching records where the
employee was not paying into the Teachers Pensions scheme, identifying cases of potential arrears of
contributions. Whilst the initial project was resolved, TPA themselves have started a data cleansing exercise which
has identified further discrepancies.
Sleep-ins
A ruling by the Employment Appeals Tribunal in April 2017 confirmed that National Living Wage (NLW)
requirements applied for sleep-in support, as the employee is required to remain at the premises regardless of
whether they are awake or asleep.
The council has complied with this ruling from 2017/18 by processing backdated payments to providers where a flat
fee was paid for sleep-ins. However, a provision is set aside for providers that have not yet come forward to make a
claim against the council.
NNDR Appeals
Hertfordshire County Council as precepting authority discloses its share of the provision calculated by billing
authorities (districts) for the estimated costs of backdated appeals on National Non Domestic Rating (NNDR)
values in the ratings list. These calculations are based on the lists of outstanding appeals with the Valuation Office
as at 31/3/19. Billing authorities have used local experience of the % success of appeals, adjusted where relevant
for the likely outcome on the largest valuations.
Municipal Mutual Insurance Provision
In common with most other local authorities, until 30 September 1992 the council insured with the Municipal Mutual
Insurance (MMI) Company. Following MMI’s insolvency a Scheme of Arrangement was put in place, pursuant to
section 425 of the Companies Act 1985, now section 899 of the Companies Act 2006. The Scheme is managed by
the Scheme Administrator and overseen by the Creditors’ Committee as well as MMI’s regulator appointed by the
Financial Conduct Authority. The Scheme of Arrangement monitors MMI’s solvency and provides for a levy to be
imposed on all the Scheme Creditors in the event funds are required to pay for outstanding claims.

Agenda Pack Page 159

Page | 78

Notes to the Accounts
On 13 November 2012, the Scheme was triggered by the Directors of MMI as they could no longer foresee a
solvent run-off for the payment of outstanding claims. This resulted in the imposition of a levy on all Scheme
Creditors that have had claims paid since inception of the Scheme of Arrangement. This first levy of 15%
amounting to £705,000 was issued on 1 January 2014 based on claims valued at £4.7m (less £50,000 retention).
In recognition of a contingent liability for any future claims a reserve has been maintained to cover further levy
payments required. There has been and still remains uncertainty about the total level of a levy, with the reserve
holding sufficient to cover the worst case scenario.
Other Provisions
HCC has been required to make pension payments following a decision by the Pensions Ombudsman. The value
of this provision is assessed on an ongoing basis as part of the triennial valuation of pension’s liability. The outflow
of funds represents pension payments made.

Note 23: Usable Reserves
The following balances were held in usable reserves at year end:

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s
(188,105)
(12,255)
(111,443)
(31,497)

(343,300)

£000s
Earmarked Reserves (see note 8)

(212,908)

Capital Receipts Reserve
Capital Grants Unapplied

(12,255)
(139,934)

General Fund

Total

(31,333)

(396,430)

Capital Receipts Reserve
The Capital Receipts Reserve represents the capital receipts available to either repay external debt or finance
capital expenditure.

31 March 2018
£000s

31 March 2019

£000s
(500)

£000s
Balance at 1 April
Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain / loss
on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure

(19,874)
18,119
(10,000)

Loan Repayments

(11,755)
(12,255)

£000s
(12,255)

(1,396)
1,396
-

Balance at 31 March

Agenda Pack Page 160

(12,255)

Page | 79

Notes to the Accounts
Capital Grants Unapplied
Capital Grants Unapplied is the balance of grants and other contributions received but not yet applied to capital
expenditure where there is no requirement to repay if conditions attached to the funding are not met. Where grants
and contributions do have repayment conditions, the funds are held as a creditor balance in Capital Grants
Received in Advance (see note 38). The total balance held in Grants Unapplied and Received in Advance was
£193.6m at 31 March 2019.
31 March 2018
£000s

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s

(72,174)

£000s

Balance at 1 April

(111,443)

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(83,607)

(90,432)

Capital grants and contributions transferred to Capital Grants unapplied
and credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(3)

(19)

Capital grants and contributions transferred from Capital Grants
unapplied and credited/debited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account

148
44,193

627
61,333

(39,269)

(28,491)

(111,442)

Balance at 31 March

(139,934)

Note 24: Unusable Reserves
The following balances were held in unusable reserves at year end:
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s

(666,315)
(4,360)

Revaluation Reserve
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve

-

Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account

-

Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve

(1,747,162)
3,865
1,030,918
(5,440)
(11,985)
13,787

(1,386,692)

Capital Adjustment Account
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account
Pensions Reserve

(979,364)
31
(2,381)
(1,821,034)
13,543
1,213,991

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

(5,329)

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

(4,517)

Accumulating Compensated Absences
Adjustment Account

Total

7,178

(1,577,882)

Agenda Pack Page 161

Page | 80

Notes to the Accounts
Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the council arising from increases in the value of its Property,
Plant and Equipment [and Intangible Assets]. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:




Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
Disposed of and any gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was
created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment
Account.
31 March 2018
£000s

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s

(664,922)

Balance at 1 April

(87,087)

(666,315)

Upw ard revaluation of assets

(385,681)

Dow nw ard revaluation of assets and impairment losses not
charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

21,469

52,050

Surplus or Deficit on revaluation of non-current assets
not posted to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of
Services

(65,618)

(333,632)

Difference betw een fair value depreciation and historical cost
depreciation

5,760
58,466

5,162

Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped

64,226

15,421

Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account

(666,315)

£000s

20,583

Balance at 31 March

(979,364)

Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve
The Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve contains any gains or losses made by the council arising
from increases in the value of its investments that have quoted market prices or otherwise do not have fixed or
determinable payments. The Available for Sale Financial Instruments reserve has now been replaced by the
Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account and the Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve which are detailed
below.

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s

(575)
(3,784)

Balance at 1 April
Revaluations of Available for Sale Financial
Instruments

-

Transfer out to Pololed Investment Fund
Adjustment Account

-

Transfer out to Financial Instrument Revaluation
Reserve

(4,360)

Balance at 31 March

Agenda Pack Page 162

(4,360)
(15)
4,374
-

Page | 81

Notes to the Accounts
Pooled Investment Fund Adjustment Account
The Pooled Investment Fund holds any unrealised Gains or Losses made by the council from changes in market
value of financial instruments, which are reversed from the General Fund under statutory provisions and would
otherwise result in a charge to the tax payer.
This is a new Unusable Reserve and the balances held in this reserve were previously classified as Available for
Sale financial instruments.
Two investments were held in money market funds with a variable net. These funds are revalued to their market
value as at 31st March 2019.
31 March 2018
£000s

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
-

Balance at 1 April

-

Transferred from Available for Sale Financial
Instruments

-

£000s

15
16

Unrealised Fair Value Lossses 2018/19

-

Fair Value through P&L Revaluations 2018/19

16

-

Balance at 31 March

31

Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve
The Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve contains any unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of equity investments where the cash flows are not made up solely of payments of principal and interest,
and for which the council has made an irrevocable election to account at fair value through other comprehensive
income.
This is a new unusable reserve created for use on adoption of IFRS9 Financial Instruments from 1st April 2018.
Balances held in this reserve were previously classified as Available for Sale Financial Instruments.
The council's equity instruments include shareholdings in subsidiaries and associates, along with investments in six
Pooled Funds with various underlying asset classes. These instruments were subject to an election to treat as
equity instruments at FVOCI, details of which can be found in note 43.
31 March 2018
£000s

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
-

Balance at 1 April

-

Transferred from Available for Sale Financial Instruments

-

Revaluation of Pooled Funds Elected FVOCI

-

Revaluation of Company Investments Elected FVOCI

-

Total FVOCI Revaluations

-

Balance at 31 March

Agenda Pack Page 163

£000s
(4,374)

156
1,836
1,993

(2,381)

Page | 82

Notes to the Accounts
Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition,
construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to
convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the
council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.
The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated
assets that have yet to be consumed by the council. The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on
Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold
such gains. Note 7 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those
involving the Revaluation Reserve.

31 March 2018
£000s

31 March 2019

£000s
(1,860,367)

£000s
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current
assets
- Revaluation (gains) / losses on Property, Plant and
Equipment

68,860
(28,138)
952

Amortisation of intangible assets

30,056
219,097
(64,226)

(1,747,163)

66,381
(116,348)
812

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

51,220

Amounts of non-current assets w ritten off on disposal or
sale as part of the (gain)/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

74,691

Adjusting amounts w ritten out of the Revaluation Reserve

226,601

£000s

Opening Balance at 1 April

(20,583)

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current
assets consumed in the year

56,173

Capital financing applied in the year:
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure

(18,119)
10,000

Transfer of LEP Loan repayment
Use of the Capital Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure
Capital grants and contributions credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that
have been applied to capital financing
Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital
Grants Unapplied Account
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment
charged against the General Fund

65
(47,165)
(44,193)
(3,161)
(10,824)

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund

(113,397)
(1,747,163)

(1,396)
(50,336)
(61,333)
(4,232)
(12,747)

(130,044)
Balance at 31 March

Agenda Pack Page 164

(1,821,034)

Page | 83

Notes to the Accounts
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account
The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for income and expenses relating to certain financial instruments and for bearing
losses or benefiting from gains per statutory provisions. The council uses the Account to manage premiums paid on
the early redemption of loans. Premiums are debited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
when they are incurred, but reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. Over time, the expense is posted back to the General Fund Balance in accordance with statutory
arrangements for spreading the burden on Council Tax.
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s

£000s
4,193

Balance at 1 April

3,865

-

Premiums incurred in the year and charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

10,078

(112)

Proportion of premiums incurred in previous financial years to be charged
against the General Fund Balance in accordance w ith statutory requirements

(280)

(8)

Adjustment for Equivalent Interest Rate on finance costs, in accordance w ith
statutory requirements

(8)

Soft Loans

(208)

£000s

(112)

(328)

Amount by w hich finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are different from finance costs chargeable in the year in
accordance w ith statutory requirements

3,865

Balance at 31 March

9,678
13,543

Pension Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for
post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The council accounts for
post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions
and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require
benefits earned to be financed as the council makes employer’s contributions to pension fund or eventually pays
any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a
substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the council has set
aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the
benefits come to be paid.
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s

1,066,299

Balance at 1 April

1,030,918

Actuarial (gains) or losses on pensions assets and liabilities
benefits debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

131,033

139,685

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

128,004

(71,314)

Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year

(75,964)

(103,752)

1,030,918

Balance at 31 March

Agenda Pack Page 165

1,213,991

Page | 84

Notes to the Accounts
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current assets but for
which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the council does not treat these gains
as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash
settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve, except in the case of
finance leases where amounts are transferred to the General Fund.
2017/18
£000s

2018/19

£000s

£000s

(5,545)

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss
on disposal to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement

105

£000s

Balance at 1 April

Transfer to General Fund upon receipt of cash

(5,440)
111

105

111

(5,440)

Balance at 31 March

(5,329)

Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of Council Tax and
National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls
due from Council Tax and Business ratepayers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across
amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund.
Council Tax
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

(15,903)
3,254

(12,649)

Balance at 1 April

(12,649)

Amount by w hich Council Tax income credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is different from Council Tax
income calculated for the year in accordance w ith statutory
requirements

Balance at 31 March

5,214

(7,435)

NNDR
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

1,821

Balance at 1 April

(1,157)

Amount by w hich business rates (NNDR) income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from
NNDR income calculated for the year in accordance w ith statutory
requirements

664

Balance at 31 March

Agenda Pack Page 166

664
2,254

2,918

Page | 85

Notes to the Accounts
Accumulated Absences Account
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund
Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave and flexi
leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund
Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.
2017/18
£000s

2018/19

£000s

£000s

16,419
(16,419)

13,787

Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year

13,787

(13,787)

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year

(2,632)
13,787

£000s

Balance at 1 April
7,178

Amount by w hich officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from
remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance w ith statutory
requirements

(6,609)

Balance at 31 March

7,178

Note 25: Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities
The cash flows for operating activities include the following interest related items, in addition to operating costs:
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

4,372
(14,902)
750

Interest received

3,641

Interest paid

(27,848)

Dividends paid

1,000

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash movements:
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

68,860
(28,138)
952
6,460
12,600
(270)
68,371
219,097
(4,329)

Depreciation

66,381

Impairment and dow nw ard valuations
Amortisation

(116,348)
812

(Increase)/decrease in impairment for bad debts

-

(Increase)/decrease in creditors

34,528

(Increase)/decrease in debtors

(9,013)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Movement in pension liability
Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current
assets held for sale, sold or derecognised
Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or
deficit on the provision of services

343,603

(964)
52,040
74,691
(8,842)

93,284

Agenda Pack Page 167

Page | 86

Notes to the Accounts
The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following items that are investing and
financing activities:
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

(138)
(19,874)
(130,627)

Proceeds from short-term (not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes
investments in associates, joint ventures and
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets
Any other items for w hich the cash effects are
investing or financing cash flow s

(150,639)

(89)
(1,396)
(140,160)

(141,645)

Note 26: Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities
2017/18

2018/19

£000s
(120,121)

£000s
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property
and intangible assets

(132,812)

(5,070)

Purchase of short-term and long-term investments

(2,973)

Other payments for investing activities

(826)

19,769

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment,
investment property and intangible assets

1,285

995

(37,075)

Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments

128,825

Other receipts from investing activities

21,425

Net cash flows from investing activities

89
147,593

(21,746)

Note 27: Cash Flow Statements – Financing Activities
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s
-

Cash receipts of short- and long-term borrow ing

-

Other receipts from financing activities
Cash payments for the reduction of outstanding liabilities relating
to finance leases and on-Balance-Sheet PFI contracts

(1,496)
(32,950)
(248)

(34,694)

Repayments of short- and long-term borrow ing
Other payments for financing activities

Net cash flows from financing activities

Agenda Pack Page 168

20,000
(1,707)
(5)
(133)

18,156

Page | 87

Notes to the Accounts
Note 28: Notes to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis
28a: Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis contains an analysis of the adjustments required to the amounts chargeable
to the General Fund, in order to arrive at the Net Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The major adjustments are explained below:

2017/18

Adjustments for
Capital Purposes

Net Change for
the Pensions
Adjustments

Other
Adjustments

Total
Adjustments

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Adult Care Services

2,864

6,158

17

9,038

19

701

0

720

10,459

26,029

(2,674)

33,815

2,273

7,749

(11)

10,011

26,912

1,866

11

28,790

0

221

7

227

9,455

4,844

26

14,325

Net Cost of Services

51,982

47,568

(2,624)

96,925

Other Income and Expenditure

74,530

20,803

1,760

97,093

126,511

68,371

(864)

194,018

Central Items
Children's Services
Community Protection
Environment and Infrastructure
Public Health
Resources

Surplus or Deficit

2018/19

Adult Care Services
Central Items
Children's Services
Community Protection
Environment and Infrastructure
Public Health
Resources

Adjustments for
Capital Purposes

Net Change for
the Pensions
Adjustments

Other
Adjustments

£000s

£000s

£000s

Total
Adjustments

£000s

2,258

6,718

34

9,010

(12)

(12,519)

0

(12,531)

(76,803)

25,671

(6,667)

(57,799)

2,730

6,749

(12)

9,466

37,276

1,884

15

39,175

10

221

(4)

227

6,120

4,778

23

10,922

Net Cost of Services

(28,421)

33,502

(6,612)

(1,531)

Other Income and Expenditure

(53,246)

18,538

17,164

(17,545)

Surplus or Deficit

(81,668)

52,040

10,552

(19,076)

Further details about these adjustments are shown below:


Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains
and losses in the services line, and for the following items in Other Income & Expenditure:
o
o

Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of
assets and the amounts written off for those assets.
Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing i.e.
Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and
expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

Agenda Pack Page 169

Page | 88

Notes to the Accounts
o





Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for income
not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from
those receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were
satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is
credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were
satisfied in the year.

Net change for the pensions adjustments – this column reflects the removal of pensions contributions and
the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income:
o

For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the
council as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service
costs.

o

For Financing and investment income and expenditure –- the net interest on the defined benefit
liability is charged to the CIES.

Other adjustments between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:
o

For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises
adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts.

o

The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the
difference between the amount that is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and
NNDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under
generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference
will be brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund.

28b: Segmental Expenditure and Income
Revenue from external customers is analysed on a segmental basis below. This is the only material category of
income or spend in column 1 of the EFA required to be disclosed separately.
2017/18

2018/19

Revenue from
external
customers

Revenue from
external
customers

£000s

£000s

(56,524) Adult Care Services
- Central Items
(67,939) Children's Services
(1,737) Community Protection
(11,719) Environment and Infrastructure
(91) Public Health
(19,225) Resources

(157,234) Total Analysed on a Segmental Basis

Agenda Pack Page 170

(60,071)
(10)
(67,316)
(1,659)
(12,057)
(90)
(17,298)

(158,501)

Page | 89

Notes to the Accounts
Note 29: Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature
The council’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

Employee Benefits Expense

2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

779,558

758,876

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (capital charges)

41,674

(49,155)

Interest Payments

17,633

27,875

Precepts & Levies

2,112

2,046

Gain/Loss on disposal of non-current assets

199,224

73,295

Other service expenses

971,131

991,691

2,011,331

1,804,627

Total Expenditure
Fees, charges and other service income

(239,775)

(191,672)

Government grants and other contributions

(947,095)

(938,771)

Income from Council Tax and Business Rates

(664,194)

(714,187)

(4,256)

(3,713)

(1,855,320)

(1,848,342)

Interest & investment income

Total Income
Net Expenditure

156,011

(43,715)

Note 30: Trading Operations
The council has established trading units where the service manager is required to operate in a commercial
environment and balance their budget by generating income from other parts of the council or other organisations.
The following were active trading operations in 2018/19:
Hertfordshire Business Services (HBS)
HBS offers a professional purchasing, supply and contract management service to the council. HBS acts as client
manager for the school meals service and vehicle maintenance. HBS is a leading member of the Central Buying
Consortium consisting of 17 local authorities and negotiates both joint and council specific contracts.
Hertfordshire Reprographics
Hertfordshire Reprographics are the council’s in-house print unit. It provides a range of reprographic services
including printing, fast print, plan print and photocopying.

2017/18
£000s

2018/19

£000s

(36,097)

£000s
Turnover for Hertfordshire Business Services (HBS)

35,304

Expenditure for Hertfordshire Business Services (HBS)

(793)
(966)

Expenditure for Hertfordshire Reprographics

1
(792)

30,646

(Surplus) / Deficit for Hertfordshire Business
Services
Turnover for Hertfordshire Reprographics

967

(Surplus) / Deficit for Hertfordshire
Reprographics
Net Surplus on trading operations

Agenda Pack Page 171

£000s

(31,655)

(1,009)
(855)
907

52
(957)

Page | 90

Notes to the Accounts
Note 31: Agency Services
Services on behalf of CCGs
The Joint Commissioning Partnership Board was established in 2002 by the Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) (now
Clinical Commissioning Groups) in Hertfordshire and Hertfordshire County Council in order to implement and direct
joint commissioning for Health and Social Care services. Most of these services are Pooled Budget arrangements.
In line with reporting guidance for pooled budgets, Hertfordshire County Council only account for their contributions
in respect of these arrangements (with pooled budget details disclosed as note 32). However some services are
provided through the Partnership arrangements (and services commissioned by the Integrated Health & Care
Commissioning Team), but funding is not pooled. The funding is not pooled as the pooling of funding leads to the
sharing of risk, and in some areas it is considered that the risk (e.g. in terms of level of funding required) should lie
exclusively with Health.
For non-pooled services that are provided on behalf of the council, the expenditure is reflected against the relevant
service reporting line.
For non-pooled services that are provided on behalf of the Clinical Commissioning Groups, the total effect is net nil
as the services are fully funded by the Clinical Commissioning Group. As this expenditure and income relate to
health (and not social care) services, it would not be appropriate to disclose them against the Adult Care Services
line.
The entries relating to agency services, which are net nil in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure table, are
detailed below:

2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

11,677 Expenditure incurred on behalf of CCGs / NHS England
(11,677) Expenditure recovered from CCGs / NHS England

8,983
(8,983)

- Net expenditure on service for NHS Hertfordshire

-

Services on behalf of HHIA
The Hertfordshire Home Improvement Agency (the HHIA) was established in October 2017 and is a shared service
between Hertfordshire County Council (HCC), East Herts District Council, North Herts District Council, Broxbourne
Borough Council, Watford Borough Council and Stevenage Borough Council (from April 2018), to provide home
and housing adaptations to Hertfordshire residents with Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) allocations. Hertfordshire
County Council provides the shared service through the HHIA in accordance with the Partnership Agreement.
2018/19 is the first full year of operation.
Further details are shown in the table below:

2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s
244 Expenditure incurred on behalf of HHIA
Expenditure recovered in accordance w ith the Partnership
(102)
Agreement
Income received in accordance w ith the Partnership
(87)
Agreement
(50) Better Care Fund - funding tow ards HHIA

4 Net expenditure on service for HHIA

Agenda Pack Page 172

487
(205)
(259)
(23)

-

Page | 91

Notes to the Accounts
Note 32: Pooled Budgets
The Hertfordshire pooled budgets are governed by an overarching S75 Framework Partnership Agreement with
separate schedules detailing the individual elements making up the pooled budgets. These are:
 Schedule 1.1 East & North Herts and Cambridge & Peterborough Better Care Fund.
 Schedule 1.2 Herts Valleys Better Care Fund.
 Schedule 1.3 Mental Health & Learning Disability Pooled Budget.
 Schedule 1.4 Hertfordshire Equipment Service.
The overarching S75 agreement between Hertfordshire County Council, the Hertfordshire Clinical Commissioning
Group's and Cambridge & Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group was updated and signed in November
2015 to include the Better Care Fund (BCF). During the 2016/17 financial year the S75 was updated via a BCF
Variation Partnership Agreement, however as the majority of the document was unchanged the November 2015
document is still current. A S75 Deed of Variation was finalised at the end of 2018/19.
Year-end variances for the Better Care Fund are detailed in the S75 Risk Sharing Arrangements. For the Mental
Health & Learning Disability and Herts Equipment Service pooled budgets the variances are shared between
partners in proportion to their contribution.
In 2018/19 funding was provided by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to
Hertfordshire County Council for the Improved Better Care Fund (IBCF). This funding is part of the BCF pooled
budget but is separately identified in the table.
The Better Care Fund in Hertfordshire is significantly larger than the specifically pooled amounts identified in the
table and is included within the Quarter 4 Better Care Fund Template submitted to NHS England.
Summary information for the pooled budgets that the council contributed to is shown below:

Westgate – East and
North Herts

Intermediate care and
Enablement beds in east
and North Hertfordshire

Better Care Fund East &
North Herts

Better Care Fund
Cambridgeshire &
Peterborough

Better Care Fund Herts
Valleys

Mental haelth, learning
disability (was JCPB)

Integrated Community
Equipment Service

2017/18

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Funding provided to the pooled budget
The Council
BCF Transfer betw een Pools

(2,325)

(191)

(45)

-

(57)

(186,103)

(2,877)

-

(776)

776

-

-

-

-

(715)

(2,219)

(13,980)

-

-

(73,900)

(1,395)

Herts Valleys CCG

-

-

-

-

(13,757)

(74,159)

(1,414)

Cambs & Peter CCG

-

-

-

(322)

-

(2,420)

(58)

(3,040)

(3,185)

(13,249)

(322)

(13,814)

(336,582)

(5,745)

2,996

1,927

12,917

322

12,929

336,528

5,074

(44)

(1,258)

(331)

-

(885)

(55)

(671)

East & North Herts CCG

Funding provided to the pooled
budget
Expenditure m et from the pooled
budget

Net (surplus) / deficit arising on the
pooled budget during the year

Agenda Pack Page 173

Page | 92

Notes to the Accounts

Westgate – East and
North Herts

Intermediate care and
Enablement beds in east
and North hertfordshire

Better Care Fund East &
North Herts

Better Care Fund
Cambridgeshire &
Peterborough

Improved Better Care
Fund Hertfordshire
County Council

Better Care Fund Herts
Valleys

Improved Better Care
Fund Hertfordshire
County Council

Mental haelth, learning
disability (was JCPB)

Integrated Community
Equipment Service

2018/19

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Funding provided to the pooled budget
The Council

(2,375)

BCF Transfer betw een Pools

(183)

(53)

-

(8,113)

(63)

(8,270) (188,811)

(2,878)

-

(826)

826

-

-

-

-

-

-

(735)

(1,231)

(14,166)

-

-

-

-

(78,033)

(1,395)

Herts Valleys CCG

-

-

-

-

-

(10,433)

-

(77,830)

(1,414)

Cambs & Peter CCG

-

-

-

(328)

-

-

-

(2,583)

(53)

(3,109)

(2,240)

(13,393)

(328)

(8,113)

(10,496)

(8,270) (347,257)

(5,740)

3,057

1,981

11,799

328

5,587

9,767

7,332

346,760

5,566

(52)

(259)

(1,594)

-

(2,526)

(729)

(938)

(497)

(174)

East & North Herts CCG

Funding provided to the pooled
budget
Expenditure m et from the pooled
budget

Net (surplus) / deficit arising on the
pooled budget during the year

Note 33: Members’ Allowances
The council paid the following amounts in respect of Members’ Allowances in 2018/19. In addition to the amounts
paid to elected members, the table below includes amounts paid on behalf of the members in respect of Income
Tax, National Insurance, pension contributions, and employers’ pension contributions paid by the council. The table
also disclosed the allowances paid to co-opted public members of certain committees.

2017/18

2018/19

Paid to
individual

Other
Costs

Total

Paid to
individual

Other
Costs

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

1,179

88

1,267

1,219

78

1,297

47

-

47

Expenses

55

-

55

15

-

15

Lunches

13

-

13

1,242

88

1,330

1,287

78

1,365

3

-

3

Allow ances

4

-

4

Expenses

Elected Mem bers
Allow ances

Others

-

-

-

3

-

3

1,245

88

1,333

Total

Agenda Pack Page 174

-

-

-

4

-

4

1,291

78

1,369

Page | 93

Notes to the Accounts
Note 34: Termination Benefits and Exit Packages
The authority terminated the contracts of 162 employees in 2018/19, who were either made redundant as part of
the authority’s rationalisation of these services or had departures agreed with their line management. This incurred
liabilities of £1.150 million. The table below details the number of exit packages and total cost per band. No
packages in 2018/19 exceeded £150,000. In accordance with the requirements of the Code of Practice, the costs
disclosed are the additional costs of early termination, and exclude any amounts paid to employees under the
standard terms of membership of their pension schemes.
Exit package cost
band (including
special payments)

£0 – £20,000

Number of
compulsory
redundancies
2017/18
2018/19

Number of other
departures agreed
2017/18

2018/19

Total number of exit
packages by cost
band
2017/18
2018/19

Total cost of exit
packages in each
band
2017/18
2018/19

74

39

122

109

196

148

1,213,921

795,781

£20,001 – £40,000

9

2

26

12

35

14

939,272

354,078

£40,001 - £60,000

1

-

3

-

4

-

207,951

-

£60,001 - £80,000

-

-

1

-

1

-

69,761

-

£80,001 - £100,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

107,499

-

£100,001 - £150,000

Total

1

-

-

-

1

85

41

152

121

237

Agenda Pack Page 175

162 2,538,404 1,149,859

Page | 94

Notes to the Accounts
Note 35: Officers’ Remuneration
The remuneration paid to the council’s employees (including Community Schools) earning over £50,000 is shown
in the table below. These figures exclude pension contributions:

2017/18

2018/19

HCC Employees

Remuneration Band (£’s)

HCC Employees

218

50,000 - 54,999

242

126

55,000 - 59,999

138

116

60,000 - 64,999

100

72

65,000 - 69,999

82

45

70,000 - 74,999

43

18

75,000 - 79,999

27

15

80,000 - 84,999

11

8

85,000 - 89,999

10

6

90,000 - 94,999

7

10

95,000 - 99,999

8

6

100,000 -104,999

1

3

105,000 - 109,999

5

2

110,000 - 114,999

2

-

115,000 - 119,999

-

1

120,000 -124,999

-

1

125,000 -129,999

2

-

130,000 -134,999

1

1

135,000 -139,999

1

2

140,000 -144,999

-

-

145,000 -149,999

1

-

150,000 -154,999

1

-

155,000 -159,999

-

-

160,000 -164,999

-

-

165,000 -169,999

-

-

170,000 -174,999

-

-

175,000 -179,999

-

-

180,000 -184,999

-

1

185,000 -189,999

-

-

190,000 -194,999

651

1

683

Remuneration is defined in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2017 as including:
o

Sums paid to or receivable by an employee - Remuneration is usually taken to comprise gross pay (i.e.
before the deduction of employee’s pension contributions), compensation for loss of office and any other
payments receivable on the termination of employment, even where these are not taxable and any ex
gratia payments other than those for direct reimbursement of costs. Remuneration does not include
employer’s pension contributions.

o

Expense allowances chargeable to tax - For example the profit element of car allowances.

o

The money value of benefits - Other benefits, such as car loans, leased cars, travel cards and mobile
phones.

Agenda Pack Page 176

Page | 95

Notes to the Accounts
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the disclosure of information to provide greater transparency in respect of the total remuneration package for the senior
team charged with stewardship of the organisation.
For senior members of the organisation disclosure is also made under the following categories:







Salary, fees and allowances
Bonuses
Expenses allowances
Compensation for loss of employment
Employer’s pension contribution
Any other emoluments

The following table sets out the Senior Officers whose salary is £150,000 or more per year.

Agenda Pack Page 177

Position

Chief Executive - J Wood
Chief Executive - O Mapley

Notes

Year

Salary

Benefits in
Kind (*)

£

£

Total
Remuneration
Compensation
Pension
excluding
Payments
Contributions
pension
contributions
£

£

£

Remuneration
including
Pension
Contributions
£

2018/19

192,587

722

-

193,309

39,673

232,982

2017/18
2018/19
2017/18

186,850
45,000
N/A

546
N/A

N/A

187,396
45,000
N/A

38,491
9,270
N/A

225,887
54,270
N/A

(*) Benefits in Kind covers Car Lease payments

The following table sets out the remuneration disclosures for Senior Officers whose salary is less than £150,000 but equal to, or more than, £50,000 per year. For the
purposes of this disclosure Senior Officers have been defined as the Chief Executive, his direct reports, deputy chief officers and the Monitoring Officer. The total number
of employees whose salary is between £50,000 and £150,000 is shown within £5,000 bands in the earlier table within this Note.

Page | 96

Notes to the Accounts

Position

Notes

Director Adult Care Services

Agenda Pack Page 178

Operations Director (Older People), Deputy
Director - see note 2
from 01/12/17
Director Community Protection (CFO) - see
note 3
Deputy Chief Fire Officer - see note 3
Deputy Director Community Protection - see
note 3
Chief Legal Officer
Director of Children's Services
Director Family Safeguarding - see note 4
Operations Director (Children & Families),
Deputy Director - see note 4
Director, Environment and Infrastructure
Deputy Director, Environment see note 5

to 01/10/18
from 28/08/18
from 03/09/18
to 02/09/18

Director Public Health
Deputy Director Public Health
Director Resources (S151 officer) - see
note 6

from 01/01/19

Director Resources (S151 officer) - see
note 1

to 31/12/18

Year

Salary

Benefits in
Kind (*)

£

£

2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18
2018/19
2017/18

139,077
136,350
107,100
35,000
127,303
121,106
98,900
95,000
96,900
95,000
109,875
110,721
147,319
144,430
48,127
97,465
59,409
N/A
72,222
N/A
46,309
108,962
112,786
110,575
130,067
123,376
30,882
N/A

2018/19

109,253

2017/18

142,814

Total
Remuneration
Remuneration
Com pensation
Pension
including
excluding
Paym ents
Contributions
Pension
pension
Contributions
contributions
£
£
£
£

5,047
6,120
3,413
4,573
N/A
N/A
41
23
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

139,077
136,350
107,100
35,000
132,350
127,227
102,313
99,573
96,900
95,000
109,875
110,721
147,319
144,430
48,127
97,465
59,409
N/A
72,222
N/A
46,309
108,962
112,786
110,575
130,108
123,399
30,882
N/A

28,650
28,088
22,063
7,210
17,327
15,102
13,631
12,854
19,961
19,570
22,634
22,808
30,347
29,753
9,914
20,078
12,238
N/A
14,878
N/A
9,540
22,446
23,234
22,778
17,122
16,174
6,362
N/A

167,727
164,438
129,163
42,210
149,677
142,329
115,944
112,427
116,861
114,570
132,509
133,529
177,666
174,183
58,041
117,543
71,647
N/A
87,100
N/A
55,849
131,408
136,020
133,353
147,230
139,573
37,244
N/A

-

-

109,253

22,506

131,759

-

-

142,814

29,420

172,234

(*) Benefits in Kind covers Car Lease payments
Page | 97

Notes to the Accounts
Note 1: John Wood, Chief Executive retired on 31/03/19. There was a handover period with Owen Mapley who is the newly appointed Chief Executive (effective
01/01/19).
Note 2: To bring Adult Care Services into line with all other council departments it was agreed that the Operations Director (Older People) would act as Deputy Director of
Adult Care Services. This role provides a deputy for the statutory DASS role.
Note 3: As a result of the secondment of the Director Community Protection a number of Community Protection (Herts Fire & Rescue) roles were re-organised to cover.
Following the retirement of the Director Community Protection these roles have now become permanent.
Note 4: The post holder for Director Family Safeguarding left the authority on 28th August 2018. Following a review of the management structure this post no longer exists
as it was and the post holder for Operations Director (Children & Families) has taken over the role of Deputy Director.
Note 5: The post holder for Deputy Director, Environment was seconded to Buckinghamshire County Council from 03/09/18. They have subsequently left HCC (effective
from 31/01/19) and the post is currently vacant.

Agenda Pack Page 179

Note 6: The Assistant Director Finance assumed acting Director Resources (S151 Officer) responsibility from 1 January 2019.

Page | 98

Notes to the Accounts
Note 36: Pensions Schemes Accounted for as Defined Contributions Schemes
Teacher’s Pension Scheme
Teachers employed by the council are members of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by the Teachers’
Pension Agency (TPA) in the Department for Education. The Scheme provides teachers with specified benefits
upon their retirement, and the council contributes towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage
of members’ pensionable salaries. The pension cost charged to the accounts is the contribution rate of 16.48% for
2018/19.
The Scheme is technically a defined benefit scheme. However, the Scheme is unfunded and the Department for
Education uses a notional fund as the basis for calculating the employers’ contribution rate paid by local authorities.
The council is not able to identify its share of underlying financial position and performance of the Scheme with
sufficient reliability for accounting purposes. For the purposes of this Statement of Accounts, it is therefore
accounted for on the same basis as a defined contribution scheme - no liability for future payments of benefits is
recognised in the balance sheet and the Education service revenue account is charged with the employer’s
contributions payable for the year.
Council contributions to the Teachers’ Pensions Agency in respect of teachers’ retirement benefits have amounted
to £36.528m for 2018/19 (£37.389m in 2017/18).
The council is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon early retirement outside of the
terms of the Teachers’ scheme. During 2018/19 the cost of these unfunded discretionary awards amounted to
£4.125m (£4.165m in 2017/18).
Public Health
Public Health employees who were compulsorily transferred from the PCTs to the council and who had access to
st
the NHS Pension Scheme on 31 March 2013 retained access to that Scheme on transfer at 1 of April 2013. The
Scheme provides these employees with specified benefits upon their retirement, and the council contributes
towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of members’ pensionable salaries. The pension
cost charged to the accounts is the contribution rate of 14.38% for 2018/19.
The Scheme is technically a defined benefit scheme. However, the Scheme is unfunded and the council is not able
to identify its share of underlying financial position and performance of the Scheme with sufficient reliability for
accounting purposes. For the purposes of this Statement of Accounts, it is therefore accounted for on the same
basis the balance sheet and the Public Health service revenue account is charged with the employer’s
contributions payable for the year.
Council contributions to the NHS Pension Fund in respect of these employees’ retirement benefits have amounted
to £0.217m for 2018/19 (£0.205m in 2017/18).

Agenda Pack Page 180

Page | 99

Notes to the Accounts
Note 37: Defined Benefit Pension Schemes
Participation in Defined Benefit Pension Schemes:
The council offers retirement benefits as part of the employment terms and conditions of its officers and other
employees. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the council has a
commitment to disclose the payments which have been accumulated as at 31 March 2019 and which will become
payable upon retirement.
The council participates in two defined benefit pension schemes:




The Local Government Pension Scheme for employees other than teachers and fire-fighters. This
scheme operates under the regulatory framework for the Local Government Pension Scheme and its
governance is the responsibility of Hertfordshire County Council’s Pensions Committee. The scheme is
administered by the council and is a funded scheme, meaning that the council and employees pay
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment
assets.
The Fire-fighters Pension Scheme – this is an unfunded scheme, meaning that there are no investment
assets built up to meet the pension liability. Employer and employee contributions together will meet the full
costs of pension liabilities being accrued in respect of currently serving employees while central
Government will meet the costs of retirement pensions in payment, net of employee and the new employer
contributions.

In addition to the above, the council also makes contributions into the Teachers’ Pension Scheme and the NHS
Pension Scheme. Further information relating to these schemes, which provide retirement benefits for teaching and
Public Health staff is shown in the note to the accounts “Defined Contribution Schemes” (Note 36). IAS 19 does not
apply to the council’s contribution to these pension schemes.
Hymans Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries, has valued the council’s fund asset share and liabilities for
both the Local Government Pension Scheme and Fire-fighters Pension Scheme.
The pension increase assumption, as with the accounting exercise in 2011, will be in line with the Consumer Price
Index (CPI) which will be calculated at 1% per annum below RPI.
The underlying assets and liabilities for retirement benefits attributable to the council as at 31 March together with
the movement from the previous year are shown below.
The most recent actuarial valuation of the Local Government Pension scheme was carried out as at 31 March
2016. This valuation identified that the council’s share of assets were sufficient to meet 96% of its liabilities (i.e. the
present value of promised retirement benefits) accrued up to that date. The certified employer contribution rate for
the period 1 April 2017 - 31 March 2020 remained unchanged at 20.6% of pensionable payroll.
Transactions relating to retirement benefits:
The council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the council is
required to make against Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of postemployment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the
General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:

Agenda Pack Page 181

Page | 100

Notes to the Accounts
2017/18

2018/19

Local
Government
Pension
Scheme

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme

Local
Government
Pension
Scheme

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Service:
100,268

10,500

701

-

Current service cost
Past service cost

-

-

Settlements

15,716

12,500

116,685

23,000

102,995

9,500

237

-

(12,756)

-

14,628

13,400

105,104

22,900

(101,675)

-

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
comprising:
Expected Return on scheme assets (excluding the
amount included in the net interest in the net defined
benefit liability)

(58,512)

-

-

(5,100)

Actuarial (gains) and losses due to changes in
demographic assumptions

-

(35,100)

(48,675)

(8,800)

Actuarial (gains) and losses due to changes in
financial assumptions

213,876

34,200

86

17,250

Actuarial (gains) and losses due to other experience

1,718

18,014

(107,101)

3,350

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

113,919

17,114

9,584

26,350

219,023

40,014

2017/18

2018/19

Local
Government
Pension
Scheme

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme

£000s

£000s

Local
Government
Pension
Scheme

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme

£000s

£000s

Movement in reserves statement:
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or
Deficit for the Provision of Services for post
employment benefits in accordance w ith the Code

(116,685)

(23,000)

-

-

56,061

3,327

employers’ contributions payable to scheme

-

7,923

top-up grant contribution

4,004

-

(56,620)

(11,750)

Actual amount charged against Council Tax for
pensions in the year

retirement benefits payable to pensioners

Agenda Pack Page 182

(105,104)

(22,900)

-

-

58,522

3,342

-

10,072

4,028

-

(42,554)

(9,486)

Page | 101

Notes to the Accounts
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement to the 31 March 2019 is a gain of £81.386m.
The following amounts are carried in the balance sheet:

2017/18
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
£000s

2018/19
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme
£000s

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme
£000s

2,635,595

497,100

(2,101,777)

-

533,818

497,100

Present Value of the defined benefit obligation
Fair Value of scheme assets

Net Liability arising from the defined benefit
obligation

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme
£000s

2,944,168

523,700

(2,253,877)

-

690,291

523,700

Assets and liabilities in relation to retirement benefits
Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities

2017/18

2018/19

Local
Government
Pension
Scheme

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme

Local
Government
Pension
Scheme

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

2,565,719

482,000

Opening balance at 1 April

2,635,595

497,100

104,914

10,500

Current service costs

107,098

9,500

67,329

12,500

16,421

2,200

Interest costs

71,076

13,400

Contributions by scheme participants

17,150

2,200

-

(35,100)

213,876

34,200

Remeasurement gain/loss
-

(5,100)

• Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from
changes in demographic assumptions

(48,675)

(8,800)

• Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes
in financial assumptions

(410)

16,700

(66,400)

(12,900)

• Other experience
Benefits paid

1,803

17,200

(69,974)

(14,800)

701

-

Past service costs

237

-

(4,004)

-

Entity combinations

(4,028)

-

-

-

Settlements

(28,665)

-

2,635,595

497,100

2,944,168

523,700

Closing balance at 31 March

The future liabilities valued by the actuary do not include any provision for the outcome of the McCloud/Sargeant
transitional protection case. Due to the uncertainty of the appeal the impact cannot be known until the legal
decision is clear.

Agenda Pack Page 183

Page | 102

Notes to the Accounts
Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets

2017/18

2018/19

Local
Government
Pension
Scheme

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme

Local
Government
Pension
Scheme

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

1,981,420

-

Opening balance at 1 April

2,101,777

-

56,448

-

101,675

-

Employer contributions

62,710

12,600

Contributions by scheme participants

17,150

2,200

4,028

-

(69,974)

-

Remeasurement gain/loss
51,613

-

• Net interest income on Scheme Assets

24,056

-

• Expected return on assets (excluding the
amount included in the net interest expense)

60,211

10,700

16,421

2,200

4,004

-

Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits

(66,400)

-

Benefits paid

(4,004)

-

Unfunded benefits paid

-

(12,900)

-

-

Settlements

2,067,321

-

Closing balance at 31 March

(4,028)

-

-

(14,800)

(15,909)

-

2,253,877

-

Pension and lump sum expenditure

The above asset values as at 31 March 2019 are at bid value as required under IAS 19.
The Fire-fighters’ Pension Scheme has no assets to cover its liabilities. The Local Government Pension Scheme’s
assets consist of the following categories, by proportion of the total assets held.

Agenda Pack Page 184

Page | 103

Notes to the Accounts
2017/18

2018/19

Local Government Pension
Scheme
Quoted prices Quoted prices
in active
not in active
markets
markets
£000s

Local Government Pension
Scheme
Quoted prices Quoted prices
in active
not in active
markets
markets

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme

£000s

£000s

£000s

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme

£000s

£000s

Equity

142,877

-

-

Consumer

100,252

-

-

133,768

-

-

Manufacturing

87,398

-

-

27,334

-

-

Energy and Utilities

23,265

-

-

216,811

-

-

Financial Institutions

92,934

-

-

24,058

-

-

Health and Care

18,333

-

-

94,833

-

-

Information Technology

70,514

-

-

6,793

-

-

Other

6,022

-

-

Debt Securities
-

-

-

Corporate Bonds (investment grade)

-

-

-

-

-

UK Government

-

-

-

-

841

-

Other

-

1,034

-

-

78,853

-

-

105,679

-

Private Equity

-

Real Estate
-

68,245

-

UK Property

-

79,849

-

-

68,343

-

Overseas Property

-

85,484

-

Investment Funds and Unit Trusts
480,012

-

-

Equities

568,711

-

-

529,549

-

-

Bonds

784,146

-

-

-

-

-

Commodities

-

-

-

-

5,478

-

Infrastructure

-

21,848

-

14,114

99,286

-

Other

19,046

119,118

-

-

2,976

-

73,150

-

-

Cash & Cash Equivalents

1,743,299

324,022

-

Total

Derivatives

-

(2,690)

-

72,935

-

-

1,843,555

410,322

-

Foreign Exchange

Asset and Liability Matching Strategy
The council, having taken appropriate professional advice, has taken steps to mitigate investment risk and to set an
investment strategy that is appropriate for the Fund’s liabilities. A summary of the key steps taken is provided
below:


Diversification – the Fund has adopted a strategy that is diversified by asset class, region, sector and
investment manager.



De-risking plan –the Fund has now moved to a lower risk strategy that comprises 65% in “growth” assets
and 35% in “defensive” assets. The composition of the “defensive” assets will change over the coming year
as the chosen closed ended funds drawdown capital. The allocation between growth and defensive assets
as at the accounting year end date was approximately 66% growth / 34% defensive.



Defensive asset portfolio – the Fund has appointed a number of specialist mandates to manage the
defensive assets (UK corporate bonds, Index Linked Gilts, Infrastructure Debt, PRS Property and HLV
Property). The Index Linked Gilt mandate will seek to offer some protection from changes in inflation and
interest rates.



Monitoring – the Fund’s investment arrangements are regularly monitored. The council receives
independent reporting from the custodian and the Fund’s Investment Consultant and the Pensions
Committee meet the investment managers on an ongoing basis.

Agenda Pack Page 185

Page | 104

Notes to the Accounts
Impact on Future Cash flows
The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the council has in the long-term to pay retirement benefits.
The total liability as at 31 March 2019 of £1.214bn has a substantial impact on the net worth of the council as
recorded on the balance sheet. However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean:



The deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme will be made good by increased contributions over
the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary, and;
In the case of Firefighters pensions the underlying principle is that employer and employee contributions
together will meet the full costs of pension liabilities being accrued in respect of currently serving
employees while central Government will meet the costs of retirement pensions in payment, net of
employee and the new employer contributions.

The total contributions estimated to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the council in the year
to 31 March 2020 is £62.5m. Expected contributions for the Firefighters Pension Scheme in the year to 31 March
2020 have not been estimated as being an unfunded scheme, the employer contribution depends on the benefits
that will be paid in the year, the employee contributions and transferred in amounts received.
The maturity profile is as follows:
Local Government
Pension Scheme
Liability Split

Fire Fighters Pension
Scheme

Weighted
Average
Duration

Liability Split

Weighted
Average
Duration

Active Members

46.10%

22.20

43.20%

25.10

Deferred Members

23.30%

21.80

4.60%

26.00

Pensioner Members

30.60%

11.20

52.20%

11.80

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions
that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both the
Fire-fighters Scheme and the Local Government Pension Fund liabilities have been assessed by Hymans
Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the County Council Fund being based on the latest full
valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2017.
The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:
2017/18
Local
Government
Pension
Scheme

2018/19

Fire-Fighters
Pension
Scheme New
Scheme

Local
Government
Pension
Scheme

Combined FireFighters
Pension
Scheme

Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
22.5 years

28.6 years

o

Men

22.5 years

27.3 years

24.9 years

31.0 years

o

Women

24.9 years

29.4 years

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
24.1 years

29.7 years

o

Men

24.1 years

28.4 years

26.7 years

32.2 years

o

Women

26.7 years

30.6 years

2.50%

3.40%

Rate of increase in salaries

2.60%

3.50%

2.40%

2.40%

Rate of increase in pensions

2.50%

2.50%

2.70%

2.70%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

2.40%

2.40%

75%

90%

75%

90%

Take-up of option to convert annual pension into
retirement lump sum *

Agenda Pack Page 186

Page | 105

Notes to the Accounts
* An allowance is included for future retirements to elect to take 75% of the maximum tax-free cash for post-April
2008 service and 50% of the maximum additional tax-free cash up to HMRC limits for pre- April 2008 service
The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table above.
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption analysed changes
while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life
expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some
of the assumptions may be interrelated.
Sensitivity Analysis
Local Government
Pension Scheme
Change in Assumptions at 31st March 2019

Approximate
% increase to
Employer
Liability

Approximate
monetary
amount
£000s

Fire Fighters Pension
Scheme
Approximate Approximate
% increase to
monetary
Employer
amount
Liability
£000s

0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate

1.00%

29,638

1.00%

4,840

0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate

9.00%

261,284

8.00%

41,484

10.00%

294,767

10.00%

50,598

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate

Note 38: Grant Income
The council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in 2018/19:
Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

(44,535)

Revenue Support Grant

(22,599)

(4,153)

Adult Social Care (New Burdens)

(3,221)

Education Services Grant

(7,849)

Transition Grant

(5,642)

New Homes Bonus

(3,474)

(4,253)

Business Rates Retention Tax Loss Reimbursement

(5,661)

(1,440)

Send Reform

(2,070)

Independent Living Fund

(2,873)

Other grants less than £1m each

(7,923)

Fire Pension Top-up Grant

-

School Improvement Brokering & Monitoring Grant

-

Levy Account Surplus

(194,907)

-

-

(110,948)

(2,584)

Capital Grants and Contributions

Total

(2,005)
(1,695)
(10,072)
(655)
(1,873)
(125,318)

(175,936)

Agenda Pack Page 187

Page | 106

Notes to the Accounts
Credited to Services
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s
Education Funding Agency

(14,617)
(584,632)
(24,294)

Grant for Sixth Formers
Dedicated Schools Grant
Pupil Premium

(6,150)

Building Schools for the Future

(5,299)

PE and Sports Grant

(13,677)
(194)

Universal Infant Free School Meals
Teachers Pay Grant
Other grants less than £1m each

(13,734)
(585,424)
(23,331)
(6,150)
(6,450)
(12,517)
(2,268)
(167)

Departm ent for Education
(247)
(1,199)

Youth Innovation Fund
Others grants less than £1m each

(251)
(1,384)

Departm ent of Health
(48,813)
-

Public Health
Others grants less than £1m each

(47,558)
(353)

Youth Justice Board
(791)

Other grants less than £1m each

(848)

Departm ent for Com m unities and Local Governm ent
(1,871)
(13,071)
(2,110)
(584)

PFI Credits
Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF)

(1,871)
(20,518)

Troubled Families Grant

(2,072)

Others grants less than £1m each

(1,544)

Hom e Office
(2,504)
(991)

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children
Other grants less than £1m each

(3,116)
(615)

Departm ent for Transport
(1,212)
(165)

Bus Services Operators Grant (BSOG)
Other grants less than £1m each

(1,212)
(106)

Highw ays England
(2,000)

A5 Detrunking

-

Skills Funding Agency
(1,858)
(766)

Community Learning
Other grants less than £1m each

(2,224)
(581)

Various Other bodies
(1,642)
(23,501)

Music Services Grant

(1,639)

Big Lottery Fund

(1,201)

Other grants less than £1m each & contributions

(752,188)

(25,701)

(762,835)

Agenda Pack Page 188

Page | 107

Notes to the Accounts
Capital Grants Received in Advance
The council has received a number of grants, contributions and donations that have yet to be recognised as
income as they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies or property to be returned to the giver
in the event that these conditions are not met. The balances at the year-end are as follows:
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

(48,901)
(45,284)
(118)
74
47,165

(47,064)

Balance at start of year

(47,064)

New grants received in advance

(56,365)

Grants reclassifed in year to Capital Grants Received in
Advance
Grants reclassifed in year from Capital Grants Received in
Advance

(625)
19

Application of grants used in year

50,336

Balance at end of year

(53,698)

These balances, together with Capital Grants Unapplied (see Note 23), give a total £193.6m at 31 March 2019
available for funding capital spending.

Note 39: Dedicated Schools Grant
The council’s expenditure on schools is funded primarily by grant monies provided by the Department for
Education, the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). DSG is ring-fenced and can only be applied to meet expenditure
properly included in the Schools Budget, as defined in the School Finance (England) Regulations 2011. The
Schools Budget includes elements for a range of educational services provided on a council-wide basis and for the
Individual Schools Budget, which is divided into a budget share for each maintained school.
Details of the deployment of DSG received for 2018/19 are as follows:
Schools Budget Funded by Dedicated Schools Grant
Central
Expenditure

Individual
Schools Budget

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

Final DSG for 2018/19 before deductions for academy recoupment
and direct funding of high needs places by the EFA
Deductions for academy recoupment and direct funding of high
needs places by the EFA for 2018/19
Total DSG after deductions for academy recoupment and direct
funding of high needs places by the EFA for 2018/19

941,029
(355,605)
585,424
23,334

Plus: Brought forw ard from 2017/18

(19,784)

Less: Carry-forward to 2019/20 agreed in advance

Agreed initial budgeted distribution in 2018/19

97,405

491,570

588,974

-

-

-

In year adjustments

Final budget distribution for 2018/19
Less: Actual central expenditure

97,405

491,570

588,974

(97,422)

-

(97,422)

-

(489,670)

(489,670)

Less: Actual ISB deployed to schools

-

-

-

(17)

1,899

1,882

-

-

19,784

Plus: Local authority contribution for 2017/18
2018/19 in year balance carried forw ard to 2019/20
Carry forw ard to 2019/20 agreed in advance

Total carry forward to 2019/20

21,666

Comparatives for 2017/18 of the deployment of DSG received are as follows:

Agenda Pack Page 189

Page | 108

Notes to the Accounts
Schools Budget Funded by Dedicated Schools Grant
Central
Expenditure

Individual
Schools Budget

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

Final DSG for 2017/18 before deductions for academy recoupment
and direct funding of high needs places by the EFA
Deductions for academy recoupment and direct funding of high
needs places by the EFA for 2017/18
Total DSG after deductions for academy recoupment and direct
funding of high needs places by the EFA for 2017/18

908,740
(324,108)
584,632
21,289

Plus: Brought forw ard from 2016/17

(11,954)

Less: Carry-forward to 2018/19 agreed in advance

Agreed initial budgeted distribution in 2017/18
In year adjustments

Final budget distribution for 2017/18

93,633

500,334

593,967

-

-

-

93,633

500,334

593,967

(86,976)

-

(86,976)

Less: Actual ISB deployed to schools

-

(495,611)

(495,611)

Plus: Local authority contribution for 2017/18

-

-

-

6,657

4,723

11,380

-

-

11,954

Less: Actual central expenditure

2017/18 in year balance carried forw ard to 2018/19
Carry forw ard to 2018/19 agreed in advance

Total carry forward to 2018/19

23,334

Note 40: External Audit Costs
The council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of
grant claims and to non-audit services provided by the council’s external auditors:
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s
121
13

134

Fees payable w ith regard to external audit services carried out by the
appointed auditor for the year
Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and returns for the
year
Fees payable in respect of other services provided during the year

Total

109
14

123

Fees payable in respect of other services provided during the year relate to the audit of the Teachers’ Pension
return.

Note 41: Contingent Assets
There were no contingent assets as at 31 March 2019.

Note 42: Contingent Liabilities
At 31 March 2019 the council was aware of the following potential liabilities it may face in the future. These items
have not been reflected in the accounts as there is no certainty that an actual liability may arise, or because there is
uncertainty as to the amount of liability or when it will arise.
The Contingent liabilities identified relate to:

Agenda Pack Page 190

Page | 109

Notes to the Accounts
Municipal Mutual Insurance
In common with most other local authorities, until 30 September 1992 the council insured with the Municipal Mutual
Insurance (MMI) Company. Following MMI’s insolvency a Scheme of Arrangement was put in place, pursuant to
section 425 of the Companies Act 1985, now section 899 of the Companies Act 2006. The Scheme is managed by
the Scheme Administrator and overseen by the Creditors’ Committee as well as MMI’s regulator appointed by the
Financial Conduct Authority. The Scheme of Arrangement monitors MMI’s solvency and provides for a levy to be
imposed on all the Scheme Creditors in the event funds are required to pay for outstanding claims.
On 13 November 2012, the Scheme was triggered by the Directors of MMI as they could no longer foresee a
solvent run-off for the payment of outstanding claims. This resulted in the imposition of a levy on all Scheme
Creditors that have had claims paid since inception of the Scheme of Arrangement. This first levy of 15%
amounting to £705,000 was issued on 1 January 2014 based on claims valued at £4.7m (less £50,000 retention).
During 2016/17 an interim levy was paid, taking the overall levy to 25% based on current estimated liabilities of
MMI relating to HCC.
The 25% levy applies to all current and future claims relating to the period that MMI were the council’s insurers.
The provision for currently open claims is £345,881.
There is continued uncertainty around the scale of future payments and further levy charges and in recognition of a
contingent liability a reserve of £357,021 is maintained.
Local Authority Mortgage Scheme (LAMS)
Under this scheme, the council entered into arrangements that provided a guarantee to meet first losses on
specified mortgages within the local authority area. £10m was deposited with Lloyds Bank and Leeds Building
Society during 2012/13, and these institutions will make mortgage advances within this amount. The schemes in
which the council participated were closed by 31 March 2016, and the £10m deposited was repaid by 31 March
2018.
Under the terms of the scheme the council’s liability to meet losses on mortgages issued by the lenders expires five
years after each loan was completed, provided that there are no arrears on repayments. As at 31 March 2019
there had been no arrears, and two loans remain within the five year initial period. The value of the financial
guarantee, based on estimated mortgage default rates, was shown as a charge in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account. The residual amount as at 31 March 2019 is immaterial and has been written out of the
accounts. However, as two loans continue to be indemnified by the council, there remains a contingent liability that
the council will have to meet the cost of any defaults which may occur.
The council received an interest premium on the LAMS deposits for the risk associated with the Scheme, which
was added to the commercial deposit rate. This premium was set aside in an earmarked reserve to contribute
towards funding any future potential liabilities. The maximum remaining liability is £76k.
Hertfordshire Pension Fund
The council has a contingent liability in respect of admitted bodies in the Hertfordshire Pension Fund to which it has
contracted services and transferred staff. Under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, the
council is responsible for the liabilities of these admitted bodies in the event that they fail to pay their obligations to
the Pension Fund. The council operates a risk management strategy for these admitted bodies and its standard
approach is to require a financial bond to be maintained to offset their actuarially assessed liabilities.
Sleep-Ins backdated for 6 Years
A ruling by the Employment Appeals Tribunal in April 2017 confirmed that National Living Wage (NLW)
requirements applied for sleep-in support, as the employee is required to remain at the premises regardless of
whether they are awake or asleep.
Initially it was decided the council would ensure that across a payment period of 1 week the employee was paid on
average above NLW, and all Supported Living packages with a Sleep-In were uplifted and backdated to
01/04/2017. These packages were paid at the uplifted average rate for the rest of 2017/18.

Agenda Pack Page 191

Page | 110

Notes to the Accounts
However, Commercial Law advised that there may be a risk if Providers decided to legally challenge the council’s
position. Therefore an Officer Key Decision was made stating that In-County Providers would be paid at the NLW
rate plus National Insurance and Pension costs for all sleep-ins from 26/07/2017 - the date from which penalties for
underpayment were payable. Supported Living Providers were to keep the average rate uplifts from 01/04/2017 to
25/07/2017, and Out of County Supported Living Providers would keep the average rate uplifts for the full financial
year. The council identified sleep-in support within Residential, Supported Living and Direct Payments packages.
Sleep-ins were also identified within In-House Provision, however these are being managed within the service to
ensure the average hourly rate for employees is above the NLW. For Direct Payments it was decided to uplift from
01/04/2018.
On 13/07/2018 the Court of Appeals overturned the Employment Appeals Tribunal; this means that currently NLW
is not required to be paid for sleep-in support. On 12/02/2019 the Supreme Court agreed to an appeal submitted by
UNISON.
There is a possibility that Providers could request 6 years of backdated payments from the council as they may be
liable to pay these costs to their employees if the Supreme Court overturn the Court of Appeals. Providers would
then need to pay HMRC taxes relating to these back payments; the council assumes that HMRC would try to
collect the 6 years prior to the original Employment Appeals Tribunal ruling.
The estimated cost of backdating the current known Sleep-In packages (for Residential, Supported Living and
Direct Payments) at the National Living Wage for the past 6 years is £12.4m.
Metropolitan Rail Extension (Croxley Rail Link)
Partners have halted work on this project and future payments by funding partners have therefore been
suspended. The council has also postponed its capital investment against this scheme pending clarification on
future plans. There could be potential liabilities for the council relating to the scheme, which at 31 March 2019
were uncertain and not quantified.
Pensions (McCloud Judgement)
A ruling has been made regarding age discrimination arising from public sector pension scheme transition
arrangements. Court of Appeal judgements were made in cases affecting judges pensions (e.g. McCloud) and
firefighter pensions (e.g. Sergeant) which had previously been considered by employment tribunals. The rulings
have implications for the LGPS, Police and Fire schemes since similar reforms were implemented.
The indication from Government (Home Office circular to Fire and Rescue authorities of 4 April 2019) is that ‘the
Government is currently seeking permission to appeal this decision, with an unknown timeframe for this permission
to be granted or denied’; whether the appeal progresses or not is expected to impact upon the valuation of liabilities
associated with the pension scheme, but the impact cannot be known until the legal decision is clear.

Note 43: Financial Instruments
Financial Instruments - Classification
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such as those relating to taxes and government grants,
do not give rise to financial instruments.
Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the council and can be represented
by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation to exchange financial assets and
liabilities with another entity that are potentially unfavourable to the council.


The majority of the council’s financial liabilities held during the year are measured at amortised cost and
comprised:
 Long-term loans from the Public Works Loan Board and commercial lenders
 Lease payables detailed in Note 16
 Private Finance Initiative contracts detailed in Note 17
 Trade payables for goods and services received
 Guarantees for Local Authority Mortgage Scheme loans

Agenda Pack Page 192

Page | 111

Notes to the Accounts
Financial Assets
A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the council that is represented by cash, equity
instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets or a right to exchange financial assets
and liabilities with another entity that is potentially favourable to the council. The financial assets held by the
council during the year are accounted for under the following classifications:


Amortised cost (where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest and the council’s business
model is to collect those cash flow) comprising:
 Cash in Hand
 Bank current and deposit accounts with Barclays Bank
 Fixed term deposits with banks and building societies
 Loans to other local authorities
 Loans to subsidiaries and associates
 Loans made for service purposes as detailed below as Soft Loans
 Lease receivables, detailed in Note 16
 Trade receivables for goods and services provided



Fair value through other comprehensive income (where cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest and the council’s business model is to both collect those cash flows and sell the instrument; and
equity investments that the council has elected into this category) comprising:
 - Equity Investments held for services purposes
 - Pooled bond, equity, property and multi-asset funds managed by six fund managers held as
strategic investments



Fair value through profit and loss (all other financial assets) comprising:
 - Money market funds managed by 10 individual fund managers
 - Equity Investment in the Municipal Bond Agency

Financial assets held at amortised cost are shown net of a loss allowance reflecting the statistical likelihood that the
borrower or debtor will be unable to meet their contractual commitments to the council.
Financial Instruments - Balances
Financial Liabilities
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Short Term

Long Term

£000s

£000s

Financial Liabilities

Short Term

Long Term

£000s

£000s

Loans at amortised cost:
-

(258,779)

(2,848)

-

(2,848)

(1,981)

- Principal sum borrow ed

(2,678)

(276,101)

- Accrued interest

(2,857)

-

- EIR adjustments

-

(1,973)

(260,760) Total Borrow ing *

(5,535)

(278,074)

-

(50,934)

-

(50,934)

Liabilities at amortised cost:
-

(52,802)

-

(52,802) Total Other Long-term Liabilities

- PFI arrangements

Liabilities at amortised cost:
(120,311)

(1,244)

- Trade payables

(151,388)

(1,241)

(35)

-

- Finance leases

-

-

(1,672)

-

- PFI arrangements

(122,018)

(1,244) Included in Creditors **

-

(5)

-

-

(124,866)

(1,868)

-

(153,256)

(1,241)

- Financial guarantees

-

-

- Loan commitments

-

475

(5) Included in Provisions
(314,810) Total Financial Liabilities

-

475

(158,790)

(329,774)

Agenda Pack Page 193

Page | 112

Notes to the Accounts
* The total short-term borrowing includes £5.535m (2018: £2.848m) representing accrued interest and principal
repayments due within 12 months on long-term borrowing.
** The creditors lines on the Balance Sheet include £39.233m (2018: £36.043m) short-term creditors that do not
meet the definition of a financial liability as they relate to non-exchange transactions.
Financial Assets
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Short Term

Financial Assets

£000s

Short Term

Long Term

£000s

£000s

Investments amortised cost:
23,044

-

- Principal

60,061

-

6

-

- Accrued interest

106

-

-

-

- Loss allow ance

(6)

-

298

32,822

17,475

300

77,935

33,122

56,477

-

4

-

(21)

-

59,267

-

115,727

-

Investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
-

34,674

- Equity investments elected FVOCI
Investments at fair value through profit & loss:

17,759
40,809

300

- Fair value

34,974 Total Investm ents *

62,917

-

- Principal

-

-

- Accrued interest

-

-

- Loss allow ance

61,047

-

- Fair value

123,964

- Total Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Receivables at amortised cost:

74,213

25,831

- Trade receivables

91,100

9,480

6,673

122,918

- Lease receivables

7,131

123,515

-

-

- Loans made for service purposes

90

14,074

-

-

- Accrued interest

-

-

-

- Loss allow ance

(8)

(54)

80,886

-

148,749 Included in Debtors **

98,313

147,016

245,659

183,723 Total Financial Assets

291,974

180,137

** The debtors lines on the Balance Sheet include £43.581m (2018: £49.519m) short-term debtors that do not meet
the definition of a financial asset as they relate to non-exchange transactions.
Material Soft Loans
Soft loans are those advanced at below market rates in support of the council's service priorities. Loans of cash
value £14.5 m are included in the long-term debtors figure on the balance sheet at their adjusted value of £14.02m.
There is one significant individual soft loan made by Hertfordshire County Council. This has been made at nil
interest using Local Enterprise Partnership balances to lend £6m to Watford Borough Council. The remaining
£8.07m is mostly comprised of Adult Social Care and Children's Services loans to service users (or their families)
at nil interest to pay for home adaptations which will support the service user to live at home, and reduce their need
for council services. These loans are secured against the property to ensure full repayment on the sale of the
property.

Agenda Pack Page 194

Page | 113

Notes to the Accounts
2017/18

Material Soft Loans

£000s

2018/19
£000s

13,856 Opening carrying am ount of soft loans on 1st April

14,050

192 Cash value of new loans made in year

76

(29) Fair value adjustment on initial recognition

(14)

(115) Amounts repaid to the Council

(182)

- Change in impairment loss allow ance

(54)

146 Increase in discounted amount due to passage of time

144

14,051 Closing Carrying Am ount of Soft Loans on 31st March

14,019

Soft loans have been valued by discounting the contractual payments at the estimated market rate of interest for a
similar loan. The market rate has been arrived at by taking the council’s average return on investments and adding
a credit risk premium to cover the risk that the borrower is unable to repay the council.
Equity Instruments elected to Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
The council has elected to account for the following investments in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income because they are long-term strategic holdings and changes in their fair value are not
considered to be part of the council’s annual financial performance.

Dividends

Fair Value

2017/18

31 March 2018

£000s

Equity Instruments at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income

£000s
750
750
495

534 Shares in Herts for Learning Ltd (Associate)
3,245 Shares in Herts Catering Ltd (Subsidiary)
10 Shares in Herts Fullstop Ltd (Subsidiary, Formerly Surecare Supplies)
175 Shares in Herts Living Ltd (Subsidiary)
- Shares in Herts at Home Ltd (Subsidiary
3,964 Total Equity Investm ents in Subsidiaries and Associates
10,744 CCLA LAMIT - Property Fund

Dividends

Fair Value

2018/19

31 March 2019

£000s

£000s
-

545

1,000

1,448

-

41

-

75

-

159

1,000

2,268

473

10,911

181

2,974 Investec Diversified Income Fund

138

2,949

189

5,250 M&G Strategic Corporate Bond Fund

190

5,158

177

5,079 Threadneedle Strategic Bond Fund

156

5,035

36
424

929 UBS Multi-Asset Income Fund
5,734 Schroder Income Maximiser Fund

40

917

429

5,583

1,502

30,710 Total Investm ents in Pooled Funds - Elected FVOCI

1,425

30,554

2,252

34,674 Total

2,425

32,822

Agenda Pack Page 195

Page | 114

Notes to the Accounts
Financial Instruments Gains and Losses
Financial
Liabilities
2017/18
Total

Financial Assets

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost

£'000

£000s

17,617 Interest expense
- Losses from changes in fair value
(14) Impairment losses

£000s

Elected to Fair
Value through
OCI
£000s

Fair Value
through Profit
and Loss
£000s

2018/19 Total
£000s

27,763

-

-

-

27,763

-

-

-

15

15

-

35

-

-

35

112

-

-

-

112

27,874

35

-

15

27,925

(2,688) Interest income

-

(1,765)

-

-

(1,765)

(1,450) Dividend income

-

-

(1,441)

(506)

(1,948)

- Gains on de-recognition

-

-

-

-

-

- Impairment loss reversals

-

(26)

-

-

(26)

(4,138) Interest and investment income **

-

(1,790)

(1,441)

(506)

(3,738)

Net im pact on surplus/deficit
on provison of services

27,874

(1,755)

(1,441)

(491)

24,187

-

-

(228)

-

(228)

-

-

2,221

-

2,221

-

-

1,993

-

1,993

28,164

(1,773)

552

(476)

26,467

27 Fees paid
17,631

13,493

Interest payable and similar
charges **

(3,784) Gains on revaluation
- Losses on revaluation
Im pact on other
(3,818)
com prehensive incom e
9,709 Net Gain/(Loss) for the Year

Financial Instruments Fair Value
Financial instruments, except those classified at amortised cost, are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value. For
most assets, including shares in money market funds and other pooled funds, the fair value is taken from the
market price. The fair values of other instruments have been estimated by calculating the net present value of the
st
remaining contractual cash flows at 31 March 2019, using the following methods and assumptions:


Shares in the council's Subsidiaries and Associates have been valued from the company’s balance sheet
net assets.

Financial instruments classified at amortised cost are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair
st
values have been estimated by calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual cash flows at 31
March 2019, using the following methods and assumptions:









Loans borrowed by the council have been valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over the whole
life of the instrument at the appropriate market rate for local authority loans.
The value of “Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option” (LOBO) loans have been increased by the value of the
embedded options. Lenders’ options to propose an increase to the interest rate on the loan have been
valued according to a proprietary model for Bermudan cancellable swaps. Borrower’s contingent options to
accept the increased rate or repay the loan have been valued at zero, on the assumption that lenders will
only exercise their options when market rates have risen above the contractual loan rate.
The fair values of other long-term loans and investments have been discounted at the market rates for
st
similar instruments with similar remaining terms to maturity on 31 March.
The fair values of financial guarantees have been estimated based on the likelihood of the guarantees
being called and the likely payments to be made.
The fair values of finance lease assets and liabilities and of PFI scheme liabilities have been calculated by
discounting the contractual cash flows (excluding service charge elements) at the appropriate AA-rated
corporate bond yield.
No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument.
The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables, is assumed to
approximate to the carrying amount given the low and stable interest rate environment.

Agenda Pack Page 196

Page | 115

Notes to the Accounts
Fair values are shown in the table below, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy:




Level 1 – fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, e.g.
bond prices
Level 2 – fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar instruments
Level 3 – fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data such as cash flow
forecasts or estimated creditworthiness
31 March 2018

Carrying
Amount
£000s

31 March 2019
Fair Value
Level

Fair Value

Fair Value Financial Liabilities

£000s

Carrying
Amount
£000s

Fair Value
Level

Fair Value
£000s

Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost:
(104,724)

(149,950)

2

Long-Term PWLB Loans

(153,505)

(201,500)

2

(50,827)

(94,362)

2

Long-term LOBO Loans

(20,240)

(35,332)

2

(108,056)

(176,814)

2

Other Long-term Loans

(107,006)

(171,933)

2

(54,508)

(87,314)

2

Lease payables and PFI Liabilities

(50,934)

(86,347)

2

Future repayments on mortgages and
advances

-

-

2

(154,497)

(154,497)

2

(486,182)

(649,609)

5

5

2

(121,555)

(121,555)

2

(439,665)

(629,990)

Creditors
TOTAL

* The fair value of short-term financial liabilities held at amortised cost, including trade payables, is assumed to
approximate to the carrying amount.

The fair value of financial liabilities held at amortised cost is higher than their balance sheet carrying amount
because the authority’s portfolio of loans includes a number of loans where the interest rate payable is higher than
the current rates available for similar loans as at the Balance Sheet date.

31 March 2018
Carrying
Amount
£000s

31 March 2019
Fair Value
Level

Fair Value

Fair Value Financial Assets

£000s

Carrying
Amount
£000s

Fair Value

Fair Value
Level

£000s

Financial Assets Held at Fair Value:
78,806

-

2

Money Market Funds

59,267

59,267

2

30,710

-

1

Bond, Equity and Property Funds

32,822

32,822

1

4,264

-

N/A

2,568

2,568

2

45,000

45,000

2

Shares in Unlisted Companies

Financial Assets Held at Amortised Cost:
23,006

23,006

2

Loans to Local Authorities

62,917

62,917

-

Bank Deposits

68,008

68,008

2

129,590

93,924

-

Lease Receivables

130,646

103,787

2

100,044

100,044

2

Debtors

100,580

100,580

2

429,338

393,672

TOTAL

438,891

412,031

* The fair value of short-term financial assets held at amortised cost, including trade receivables, is
assumed to approximate to the carrying amount.
The fair value of financial assets held at amortised cost is lower than their balance sheet carrying amount because
the interest rate on similar investments is now higher than that obtained when the investment was originally made.

Agenda Pack Page 197

Page | 116

Notes to the Accounts
Note 44: Impairment Losses
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s
14

Icelandic Investments

25

14

Total

25

Accounting
A £0.025m reversal of previous years’ impairment loss for Kaupthing, Singer and Friedlander Ltd (KSF) has been
recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account in 2018/19, reflecting an improvement in the
forecast recovery for the KSF investments based on the latest forecast dividend from the administrators. This has
been calculated by discounting the assumed cash flows at the effective interest rate of the original deposits in order
to recognise the anticipated loss of interest to the council until remaining outstanding monies are recovered.
The Heritable investments were fully impaired in 2015/16 as a result of the administrators’ forecast that there would
be no further distributions in respect of the Heritable investments. They have not changed their view on Heritable
and (as detailed below) we expect no further dividend to be paid for these investments. No adjustment has
therefore been made to impairment losses for Heritable investments during 2018/19.
Notional interest is also credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure account in 2018/19 of £0.003m.
Icelandic Investments
In October 2008, the Icelandic banks Landsbanki, Kaupthing and Glitnir collapsed and the UK subsidiaries of the
banks, Heritable and Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander went into administration. The council had £28m deposited
with these institutions, with varying maturity dates and interest rates. All monies invested with these institutions are
subject to the respective administration and receivership processes, and the amounts and timing of payments to
depositors such as the council are determined by the administrators / receivers. Since 2009/10, the council has
considered an impairment adjustment for the deposits, based on latest information, and has calculated the
impairment. These amounts have been adjusted as updated information on the amounts and timings of payments
has been provided by the administrators / receivers
The current position in relation to recovery of the sums deposited is set out below.
Heritable Bank
Heritable Bank is a UK registered bank under English law. The company was placed in administration on 7 October
2008.
Following a dividend payment in August 2015, 98p in the £ has been distributed to Creditors.
The latest administrators report from March 2019 states that there are currently no planned distributions to
creditors. This is unchanged from the report from March 2018, and in 2016/17 the council recognised impairment
based on there being no expectation of further recovery.
Recoveries are expressed as a percentage of the council’s claim in the administration, which includes interest
accrued up to 6 October 2008. Details of the council’s deposits with Heritable Bank and the associated impairment
are shown overleaf:
Date
Invested

Maturity
Date

15/09/2008
19/09/2008

15/04/2009
23/12/2008

Amount
Invested

Interest
Rate

£2m
£5m

6.00%
6.05%

Recovered
by 31/3/18
£000s
1,967
4,914

Agenda Pack Page 198

Carrying
Amount
£000s
0
0

Impairment
£000s
283
693

Page | 117

Notes to the Accounts
Kaupthing, Singer and Friedlander Ltd (KSF)
The latest creditor report issued in October 2017 by the administrators Ernst and Young noted that the return to
creditors was projected to be in the range of 86.50p to 87.0p in the £. The council has recognised impairment
based on a recovery of 86.75% of its claim, (this is the mid-point of the range estimated by the administrators).
Following a dividend payment in November 2018, 85.75p in the £ has been distributed to Creditors.
In calculating the impairment the council has therefore made the assumption that future recoveries will be received
in May 2019 at 0.20p in the £, November 2019 and May 2020 at 0.25p in the £, and November 2020 at 0.30p in
the £.
Recoveries are expressed as a percentage of the council’s claim in the administration, which includes interest
accrued up to 7 October 2008. Details of the council’s deposits with Kaupthing, Singer & Friedlander Ltd. and the
associated impairment are shown below:

Date
Invested

Maturity
Date

Amount
Invested

Interest
Rate

04/01/2007
14/08/2007

04/01/2011
16/08/2010

£2m
£2m

5.46%
6.35%

Recovered
by 31/3/18
£000s
1,780
1,727

Carrying
Amount
£000s
26.0
25.2

Impairment
£000s
452
465

LBI hf (formerly Landsbanki hf)
Following the sale in February 2014 of the Landsbanki claim, the council has no outstanding assets or liabilities in
relation to Landsbanki. 92% of the amounts originally deposited were recovered.
Glitnir Bank hf
The council now has no outstanding assets or liabilities in relation to this deposit. The total return achieved in
relation to this investment was 101% of the amounts originally deposited.

Note 45: Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Treasury Management
The council complies with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management and Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities, both revised in December 2017.
In line with the Treasury Management Code, the council approves a Treasury Management Strategy before the
commencement of each financial year. The Strategy sets out the parameters for the management of risks
associated with financial instruments. The council also produces Treasury Management Practices specifying the
practical arrangements to be followed to manage these risks.
The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Investment Strategy in compliance with the Ministry for Housing,
Communities and Local Government Guidance on Local Government Investments. This Guidance emphasises
that priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather than yield. The council’s Treasury Management Strategy
and its Treasury Management Practices seek to achieve a suitable balance between risk and return or cost.
The main risks covered are:
 Credit Risk: The possibility that the counterparty to a financial asset will fail to meet its contractual
obligations, causing a loss to the council.
 Liquidity Risk: The possibility that the council might not have the cash available to make contracted
payments on time.
 Market Risk: The possibility that an unplanned financial loss will materialise because of changes in market
variables such as interest rates or equity prices.

Agenda Pack Page 199

Page | 118

Notes to the Accounts
Credit Risk: Treasury Investments
The council manages credit risk by ensuring that treasury investments are only placed with organisations of high
credit quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy. These include commercial entities with a minimum
long-term credit rating of A-, the UK government, other local authorities, and organisations without credit ratings
upon which the council has received independent investment advice. Recognising that credit ratings are imperfect
predictors of default, the council has regard to other measures including credit default swap and equity prices when
selecting commercial entities for investment.
A limit of £15m of the total portfolio is placed on the amount of money that can be invested with a single
counterparty (other than the UK government). For unsecured investments in banks, building societies and
companies, a smaller limit of £10m applies. The council also sets limits on investments in certain sectors. No more
than £50m in total can be invested for a period longer than one year.
The council continues to recognise balances in respect of impaired investments in Icelandic Banks, and will do so
until the administration of those banks is completed. The impaired balance for the investments is £60k.
The table below summarises the credit risk exposures of the council’s treasury investment portfolio by credit rating
and remaining time to maturity:
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Short-term

Long-term

£000s

£000s

Credit Rating

Short-term

Long-term

£000s

£000s

78,527

-

AAA

76,743

-

9,966

-

A

17,152

-

-

-

A-

23,000

-

Unrated local authorities

111,493

-

Total

-

30,000

111,493

30,000

Credit risk not applicable*

Total investments

5,000

-

45,000

-

143,895

-

-

30,000

143,895

30,000

* Credit risk is not applicable to shareholdings and pooled funds where the council has no contractual right to
receive any sum of money.
Loss allowances on treasury investments have been calculated by reference to historic default data published by
credit rating agencies, multiplied by 122% to adjust for current and forecast economic conditions. A two-year delay
in cash flows is assumed to arise in the event of default. Investments are determined to have suffered a significant
increase in credit risk where they have been downgraded by three or more credit rating notches or equivalent since
initial recognition, unless they retain an investment grade credit rating. They are determined to be credit-impaired
when awarded a “D” credit rating or equivalent. At 31 March 2019, £0.006m (2018: £0) of loss allowances related
to treasury investments.
Credit Risk: Trade and Lease Receivables
The council’s credit risk on lease receivables is mitigated by its legal ownership of the assets leased, which can be
repossessed if the debtor defaults on the lease contract.
The following analysis summarises the council’s trade and lease receivables, by due date. Only those receivables
meeting the definition of a financial asset are included.

Agenda Pack Page 200

Page | 119

Notes to the Accounts
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Trade
receivables

Lease
receivables

£000s

£000s

Age Category

26,187

129,590

2,884

-

6,256
6,427

Trade
receivables

Lease
receivables

£000s

£000s

Neither past due nor impaired

43,591

130,646

Past due < 1months

2,160

-

-

Past due< 3 months

2,806

-

-

Past due 3-9 Months

6,454

-

3,217

-

Past due 9-15 Months

6,306

-

2,019

-

Past due >15 Months

3,179

-

5,236

-

Past due >21 Months

5,573

-

52,226

129,590

70,069

130,646

Total receivables

Loss allowances on trade assets have been calculated by reference to the council’s historic experience of default.
Receivables are collectively assessed for credit risk based on the type of customer and the age of the debt at the
reporting date, and are shown below on the basis of the service department which raised the debt.

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Gross
receivable

Loss
allowance

£000s

£000s

Service Department

41,328

(4,029)

2,152

(247)

563

(7)

1,520
1,178

Gross
receivable

Loss allowance

£000s

£000s

Adult Care Services

63,419

(3,902)

Children's Services

2,965

(340)

Community Protection

312

(13)

(91)

Environment and Infrastructure

637

(101)

(10)

Herts Business Supplies

1,713

(167)

5,485

(914)

52,226

(5,298)

Resources

Total

1,023

(176)

70,069

(4,698)

Receivables are written off to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services as the final stage of the council’s
Debt management process. Only when all avenues to recover (which include legal proceedings) have been
exhausted is debt written off.
Credit Risk: Loans, Financial Guarantees and Loan Commitments
In furtherance of the council’s strategic objectives, it has lent money to its subsidiary Herts Living Ltd. It has also
committed to lend money to its subsidiary Herts at Home Ltd should it be requested to do so at market rates of
interest.
The amounts recognised on the balance sheet, and the council’s total exposure to credit risk from these
instruments are:
Borrower

Subsidiaries

Exposure Type

Loan commitment at market rates

Balance Sheet
31 March 2019

Balance Sheet 31 Balance Sheet Balance Sheet 31
March 2019
31 March 2018
March 2018

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

82

585

-

-

Agenda Pack Page 201

Page | 120

Notes to the Accounts
The council manages the credit risk inherent in its loans for service purposes, financial guarantees and loan
commitments in line with its published Investment Strategy.
Loss allowances on loans for service purposes, financial guarantees and loan commitments have been calculated
by reference to the premium of the interest rate in force over the councils weighted average borrowing rate. No
expected credit loss provision has been recognised for the undrawn loan commitment to Herts at Home Limited,
but a balance equal to the total risk exposure for this loan is held in reserve to fund any future impairment.
Liquidity Risk
The council has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the Public Works Loan Board and other local
authorities, and at higher rates from banks and building societies. There is no perceived risk that the council will be
unable to raise finance to meet its commitments. It is however exposed to the risk that it will need to refinance a
significant proportion of its borrowing at a time of unfavourably high interest rates. This risk is managed by
maintaining a spread of fixed rate loans and setting a limit on the % of the council’s borrowing which matures in any
one financial year.
The maturity analysis of financial instruments is as follows:
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Liabilities

Assets

Net

£000s

£000s

£000s

Time to maturity

Liabilities

Assets

Net

£000s

£000s

£000s

-

142,487

142,487

Not over 1

(2,678)

173,895

171,218

(249)

-

(249)

Over 1 but not over 2

(5,325)

-

(5,325)

Over 2 but not over 5

(12,786)

-

(12,786)

Over 5 but not over 10

(32,143)

-

(32,143)

(5,396)

-

(5,396)

(14,500)

-

(14,500)

-

-

-

Over 10 but not over 20

(38,019)

-

(38,019)

(98,134)

-

(98,134)

Over 20 but not over 40

(77,329)

-

(77,329)

(91,100)

-

(91,100)

Over 40

(91,100)

-

(91,100)

(49,400)

-

(49,400)

Uncertain date*

(19,400)

-

(19,400)

(258,779)

142,487

(116,292)

(278,779)

173,895

(104,884)

Total receivables

* The council has £19.4mm (2018: £49.4m) of “Lender’s option, borrower’s option” (LOBO) loans where the lender
has the option to propose an increase in the rate payable; the council will then have the option to accept the new
rate or repay the loan without penalty. Due to current low interest rates, in the unlikely event that the lender
exercises its option, the council is likely to repay these loans. The maturity date is therefore uncertain.
Market Risks: Interest Rate Risk
The council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and
investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the authority. For instance, a rise in interest
rates would have the following effects:





borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense will rise
borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities will fall
investments at variable rates – the interest income will rise
investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall.

Investments measured at amortised cost and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value, so changes in their fair
value will have no impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. However, changes in interest
payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments measured at fair value will be reflected
in Other Comprehensive Income or the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services as appropriate.

Agenda Pack Page 202

Page | 121

Notes to the Accounts
The Treasury Management Strategy aims to mitigate these risks by setting upper limits on its net exposures to
fixed and variable interest rates. At 31 March 2019, £276m (2018: £258m) of net principal borrowed (i.e. borrowing
net of investments) was exposed to fixed rates and £2.58m (2018: £0m) to variable rates.
If all interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would be:
31 March 2018

Interest Rate Sensitivity

£000s

31 March 2019
£000s

1,425
-

1,425
513

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrow ings
Increase in interest receiable on variable rate investments
Decrease in fair value of investments held at FVPL

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
Decrease in fair value of investments held at FVOCI

-

Impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

-

Decrease in fair value of loans and investments at amortised cost*

2
1,739
-

1,741
449

2,191

-

*No impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.
The council has £19.4m (2018: £49.4m) of “Lender’s option, borrower’s option” (LOBO) loans with maturity dates
between 2065 and 2066 where the lender has the option to propose an increase in the rate payable; the council will
then have the option to accept the new rate or repay the loan without penalty. In the current low interest rate
environment, the likelihood of the lender increasing the rate is low; however, the likelihood will increase in later
years should market interest rates rise.
Market Risks: Price Risk
The market prices of the council’s fixed rate bond investments and its units in pooled bond funds are governed by
prevailing interest rates and the price risk associated with these instruments is managed alongside interest rate
risk.
The council’s investment in a pooled property fund is subject to the risk of falling commercial property prices. This
risk is limited by the council’s maximum exposure to property investments of £10m. A 5% fall in commercial
property prices at 31st March 2019 would result in a £0.552m (2018: £0.516m) charge to Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure which is then transferred to the Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve.
The council’s investment in a pooled equity funds is subject to the risk of falling share prices. This risk is limited by
the council’s maximum exposure to equity investments of £10m. A 5% fall in share prices at 31st March 2019
would result in a £0.331m (2018: £0.354m) charge to Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure which is then
transferred to the Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve.
Market Risks: Foreign Exchange Risk
At 31 March 2019 the council had no investments denominated in foreign currency.

Agenda Pack Page 203

Page | 122

Notes to the Accounts
Note 46: Trust Funds
The council acts as Treasurer and Financial Adviser primarily to a number of educational prize funds, endowments,
scholarships and bequests that generally have specific trustees to manage them. Capital is invested in accordance
with the trustee’s instructions in a range of external investments or, if held as cash by the council, such balances
will earn interest at the market seven-day rate. These funds do not represent assets of the council and have not
st
been included in the balance sheet. As at 31 March 2019 the total value of educational endowments was £0.333m
st
(31 March 2018 - £0.330m).

Note 47: Related Parties
The council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have the
potential to control or influence the council or to be controlled or influenced by the council. Disclosure of these
transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the council might have been constrained in its ability to
operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the
council.
Central Government
The central UK government has effective control over the general operations of the council – it is responsible for
providing the statutory framework, within which the council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form
of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the council has with other parties (e.g. Council
Tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from government departments are set out in Note 29. Grant receipts
outstanding as at 31 March 2019 are shown in Note 38. These grants are in addition to the council’s share of the
revenue support grant and redistributed business rates income as calculated by central government.
Other Public Bodies
In addition to the relationship with Central Government, Hertfordshire County Council has relationships with various
NHS bodies. The significant transactions are disclosed in Notes 31 - Agency Services and Note 32 - Pooled
Budgets.
Hertfordshire County Council Pension Fund
The council administers the Pension Fund on behalf of its employees and those of District Councils within the
county and other admitted bodies. On 1 April 2010, pension fund cash was separated from Hertfordshire County
Council funds and from that date pensions cash was separately invested and all interest received applied directly to
the Pension Fund.
Locality Budgets
Each elected member of the County Council has £10,000 per year to spend on grants in their local community. The
approach is flexible and based on two fundamental principles.
The funding from the Locality Budgets scheme must be used for purposes which promote the social, economic or
environmental wellbeing of Hertfordshire having regard to the council's sustainable community strategy. Locality
Budgets cannot be used for purposes which would be contrary to the County Council’s prevailing policies or be
used for any purposes prohibited by law.
Members and Officers
In addition the following members and officers sit on the Boards of the following organisations. In some cases, the
council has nominated these members and officers to sit on these Boards to represent the council. The table
overleaf records the total value of transactions in the year with these organisations.

Agenda Pack Page 204

Page | 123

Notes to the Accounts
Total of Council’s
transactions with
the organisation
2017/18

Name

Organisation

£000s

Total of Council’s
transactions with
the organisation
2018/19
£000s

n/a

Roma Mills (18/19 only)

Carers in Hertfordshire

Ian Reay (17/18 & 18/19)

Chilterns Conservation Board

28

Asif Khan (17/18 & 18/19)

College of Haringey, Enfield and North
East London

48

Richard Roberts (17/18 & 18/19), Tina
How ard (18/19 only)

Community Action Dacorum

Fiona Guest (18/19 only)

Druglink

Ron Tindall (17/18 & 18/19)

Hertfordshire Domestic Abuse Helpline

117

David Andrew s (17/18 only), Derrick
Ashley (18/19 only), Susan Featherstone
(18/19 only)

Hertfordshire Groundw ork Trust

186

10,528

Steven Pilsw orth (17/18 only)

Hertfordshire Schools Building
Partnership

n/a

Steven Pilsw orth (18/19 only)

Herts at Home

Michael Collier (17/18 only)

Herts Catering Ltd (HCL)

n/a

Herts For Learning (HFL)

5,921

14
39
444
n/a
15
264

397
4,094
911
67

Michael Collier (17/18 only), Ben Jay (18/19
only)
Derrick Ashley (17/18 only), Iain MacBeath
(17/18 and 18/19) and Steven Pilsw orth
(17/18 and 18/19)

Herts Full Stop (formerly SureCare
Supplies Ltd)

1,663

276
76

n/a
698

973

Annie Brew ster (17/18 only)

Herts Sports Partnership

Alan Plancey (17/18 & 18/19)

Jew ish Care

Morris Bright (18/19 only), David Williams
(18/19 only)

Local Enterprise Partnership

79

Michael Collier (17/18 only)

Police & Crime Commissioner (PCC)

14

Jenny Coles (17/18 and 18/19)

Research in Practice

20

11

Fiona Hill (17/18 & 18/19)

Royston Day Centre

11

21

Sandy Walkington (17/18 only)

St Albans Bereavement Netw ork

22

Michael Hearn (17/18 & 18/19)

The Hearn Training Company Limited

Barbara Gibson (18/19 only)

The Living Room

241
n/a

n/a
1,442
74

18,677

Tim Hutchings (17/18 & 18/19), Steve Jarvis
(17/18 & 18/19), Paul Zukow skyj (17/18 &
18/19)
Frances Button (17/18 & 18/19), Tim
Williams (17/18 & 18/19)

University of Hertfordshire
Watford Sheltered Workshops Ltd

n/a
167
4,156
n/a

n/a
22
216
3,488
75

18,140

Total

The totals stated in the table above reflect the net transactions with each organisation respectively (i.e. expenditure
less income) and exclude transactions with HCC schools. All totals are net expenditure, with the exception of Herts
Full Stop (formerly Surecare Supplies Ltd), which is net income.
Where there is a new entry for 2018/19, either because there was no relationship in the prior year, or the
relationship was judged immaterial, the comparative level of total transactions with the organisation have not been
included in the 2017/18 details. The amounts disclosed in the 2017/18 accounts have been shown for comparative
purposes even if no ongoing relationship exists.

Agenda Pack Page 205

Page | 124

Notes to the Accounts
Note 48: Investments in Companies and Group Relationships
The council holds the following investments in companies. These investments have been considered for inclusion
within the council’s group boundary, as explained in the accounting policy for Group Accounts. However, group
accounts have not been prepared consolidating Hertfordshire Catering Limited and Herts Fullstop Ltd as the
adjustments required to consolidate into group accounts were not considered material. The council’s interests in
other companies are not regarded as material and have therefore also not been included.
Name

Nature of Business

Owned
%

Nominal
Value
£

Hertfordshire Catering Ltd

A w holly ow ned and controlled local
authority limited company that provides a
school meals service.

100%. Not consolidated into
Group Accounts due to immaterial
value of transactions*

£100,000

Herts for Learning Ltd

A schools advice company ow ned by the
Council, and schools (both maintained and
academies) w ithin Hertfordshire.

The Council ow ns 19% of
shares, w ith the remaining
shares (81%) ow ned by Schools

£

Wholly ow ned (have bought the
one and only share)

£ 10,000

9.00%

£

Wholly ow ned

£175,000

Wholly ow ned

£140,000

Herts Fullstop Ltd

East of England Trading
Standards Association
Herts Living Ltd

Herts at Home Ltd

A w holly ow ned and controlled local
authority limited company w hich provides a
w ide variety of equipment and supplies to
non-profit making groups and to private
businesses w ho predominately service the
care and education sectors.
A company created to draw dow n funding to
deliver certain regional projects, composed of
eleven local authorities.
A w holly ow ned and controlled local
authority limited company w hich buys, sells
and develops real estate properties.
A w holly ow ned and controlled local
authority limited company w hich provides
local care services to keep people
independent in their ow n homes.

3,150

1

* Although the generated turnover for HCL is material, once inter-company transactions are considered, the
resulting adjustment to produce Group Accounts is neither material in nature, nor enhances the overall value
and clarity of the accounts for Stakeholders. As a result, HCL has not been consolidated into the council’s
group accounts.
Copies of the accounts for these companies can be obtained from the Chief Legal Officer, Hertfordshire County
Council, County Hall, Hertford SG13 8DQ (Contact telephone: 01992 555527).
In addition to the consideration of these companies, maintained schools within Hertfordshire are deemed under
IFRS 10 to be entities under the council’s control, and so fall within the group boundary. The Code provides a
specific adaptation to IFRS 10 and IAS27, under which schools are consolidated within the single entity accounts.
The summary position of these schools at 31 March 2019, by category, is shown in the following table:

Agenda Pack Page 206

Page | 125

Notes to the Accounts
Num ber of
schools
Nursery

Expenditure £000s
10,552

10,551

1

14

10,552

10,551

1

Prim ary

345

437,775

433,894

3,881

Academy

4

2,077

2,077

0

216

303,456

299,688

3,768

Voluntary Aided

83

85,001

84,939

62

Voluntary Controlled

33

31,338

30,982

356

Foundation

9

15,903

16,208

(305)

Secondary

19

99,902

99,929

(27)

Academy

4

10,443

11,543

(1,100)

Community

1

8,663

8,640

23

Voluntary Aided

3

15,633

16,031

(398)

Voluntary Controlled

1

2,092

2,089

3

Foundation

10

63,071

61,628

1,444

Special *

20

45,718

44,982

736

Community

19

42,822

42,219

603

Foundation

1

2,896

2,763

133

Education Support Centres *

7

14,799

14,449

350

Community

7

14,799

14,449

350

608,746

603,805

4,941

Community

Community

Total

14

Surplus/Deficit at
31/03/19
£000s

Incom e
£000s

405

* includes Edwinstree Base Unit

Note 49: Acquired and Discontinued Operations
There have been no Acquired or Discontinued Operations during 2018/19.

Agenda Pack Page 207

Page | 126

Local Government
Pension Fund Accounts

Agenda Pack Page 208

Page | 127

Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
The Council is the Administering Authority for the Hertfordshire Pension Fund (“Pension Fund”) which is managed
and administered in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013. These accounts
give a stewardship report of the financial transactions of the Pension Fund during 2018/19, and of the disposition of
its assets at 31 March 2019.
The Local Government Pension Scheme (“Scheme”) is a funded scheme, financed by contributions from
employees and employers and by earnings from investments. The Pension Fund has published a Funding Strategy
Statement, which sets out the Pension Fund’s strategy for meeting employers’ pension liabilities. The aim of the
funding strategy is to ensure the long-term solvency of the Pension Fund and to ensure that sufficient funds are
available to meet all benefits as they fall due for payment.
The Pension Fund covers staff employed by the Council (including maintained schools), the ten District Councils in
Hertfordshire and 325 other bodies. The Pension Fund is available to all local authority employees within
Hertfordshire, except teachers, fire personnel and a number of Public Health staff for whom separate pension
arrangements apply. The Pension Fund provides pensions and other benefits for employees, their spouses, civil
partners, nominated co-habiting partners or dependants. The income of the Pension Fund arises from contributions
by the employees and by their employers and from dividends and interest on investments. The membership of the
Pension Fund at 31 March 2019 was as follows:
31 March
2018*

31 March
2019

34,425

Contributors

36,433

26,960

Pensioners

27,977

42,481

Deferred benefits (former contributors)

43,408

103,866

Total Members

107,818

*The 2017/18 membership figures have been updated from those published in the 2017/18 Annual Report following
late notifications of changes of membership. This is to ensure that the most accurate figures available are
reported.
The table below provides a summary of the Pension Fund accounts for the year 2018/19:
2017/18
£000s
4,243,371
27,532

2018/19
£000s
Value of the Pension Fund at 1 April

4,499,017

Net additions / (withdrawals) from dealing with
those directly involved in the scheme

30,474

(14,629)

Management expenses

(12,882)

242,744

Net returns on investments

318,394

255,646

Increase / (Decrease) in the Pension Fund
during the year

335,987

4,499,017

Value of the Pension Fund at 31 March

4,835,004

The most recent actuarial valuation carried out under Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013 was as at 31 March 2016. This valuation revealed that the Fund’s assets, which at 31 March
2016 were valued at £3,584 million, were sufficient to meet 91% of the liabilities (i.e. the present value of promised
retirement benefits) accrued up to that date. The resulting deficit at the 2016 valuation was £336 million.
Each employer had contribution requirements set at the valuation, with the aim of achieving full funding within a
time horizon and probability measure as per the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS). Individual employers’
contributions for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 were set in accordance with the Fund’s funding policy as
set out in its FSS.

Agenda Pack Page 209

Page | 128

Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
The Administering Authority publishes a separate Annual Report and Statement of Accounts for the Pension Fund
which provides detailed information and is accessible from the Pension Fund website at
https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Annual-reports.aspx.
NOTE: values throughout these accounts are presented rounded to the nearest thousand. Totals in supporting
tables and notes may not appear to cast, cross-cast, or exactly match to the core statements or other tables due to
rounding differences.

1.

Fund Account
2017/18
£000s

2018/19

£000s

Note

35,382
136,379
17,635

189,508

1

37,082

Contributions receivable from employers

1

142,856

Transfers in from other schemes

2

17,759
9

Additions from dealings with those directly
involved in the Scheme

197,706

Pensions

(122,729)

(130,031)

Commutation of pensions and lump sum retirement
benefits

(22,904)

(25,092)

Lump sum death benefits

(2,468)
(148,102)

(626)
(58)

Benefits payable to members

(13,874)
-

27,532

(1,491)
(1,166)

(14,629)

State scheme premiums

4
4

(8,964)

Refund to employers upon cessation

(50)

Net additions / (withdrawals) from dealings
with those directly involved in the Scheme

30,474

Administrative costs

(1,729)

Oversight and governance costs

(1,217)
5

Profits and losses on disposals of investments and
changes in value of investments

203,256

(9,936)

Management expenses

(12,882)

6

Taxes on income

(167)

(8,472)

Payments to and on account of leavers

Investment Income

39,655

(158,217)

3
(497)

Investment management expenses

(11,972)

(3,094)

Refunds of contributions

Transfers out to other schemes

(13,190)

£000s

Contributions receivable from members

Other income

112

£000s

28,106
(156)

7

290,445

242,744

Net return on investments

318,394

255,646

Net increase / (decrease) in the net assets
available for benefits during the year

335,987

Agenda Pack Page 210

Page | 129

Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
2.

Net Assets Statement

£000s

Note

31 March 2018
£000s

815,111

Equities

31 March 2019
£000s

£000s

472,469

Pooled investment vehicles
295,919

Pooled property investments

1,844,181

332,065

Unitised insurance policies

1,898,841

606,178

Unit trusts

1,298,690

116,026

Private Equity

-

143,294

Infrastructure Debt

685,216

59,798

Other managed funds

16

507,774

Derivative contracts

101,564

9

Cash deposits

13,501

83,796

Other investment balances

4,477,710

(676)
(5,854)

2,094

Total investment assets

8a

Derivative contracts

9

Other investment balances
(6,530)

4,471,181

1,478

1,478

355

4,799,177

(910)
-

Total investment liabilities

(910)

Total investment assets and liabilities

8a

Long term assets

10

4,798,267

739

Total non-current assets and liabilities

739

29,780

Current assets

11

39,961

(3,422)

Current liabilities

12

(3,963)

26,358

4,499,017

Total current assets and liabilities
Net assets of the Scheme available to fund
benefits as at 31 March

35,998

4,835,004

Scott Crudgington
Director of Resources

Agenda Pack Page 211

Page | 130

Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
3.

Statement of Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 which is based upon International Financial Reporting Standards, as
amended for the UK public sector.
The accounts summarise the transactions for the 2018/19 financial year and net assets of the Pension Fund as at
31 March 2019. The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after
the end of the financial year. The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits at the Net Assets
Statement date is detailed in Note 16.
Valuation of Assets
Financial assets are included in the Net Asset Statement on a fair value basis as at the reporting date. A financial
asset or liability is recognised in the Net Asset Statement on the date the Pension Fund becomes party to the
contractual acquisition of the asset or to the liability. From this date, any gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the asset or liability are recognised in the Fund Account. The values of investments as shown in
the Net Asset Statement have been determined at fair value in accordance with the regulation of the Code and
IFRS13. The values on investments as shown in the net assets statement have been determined as follows:











Market-quoted securities, for which there is a readily available market price, are valued at bid price at the close
of business on the net asset date.
Fixed interest securities are recorded at net market value based on their current yields.
Pooled investment vehicles are valued at the closing bid price if both bid and offer prices are quoted by the
respective Investment Managers. If only a single price is quoted, investments are valued at the closing single
price. In the case of pooled investment vehicles that are accumulation funds, the change in market value also
includes income which is reinvested in the fund, net of applicable withholding tax.
Unquoted investments for which market quotations are not readily available are valued having regard to the
latest dealings, professional valuations, asset values and other appropriate financial information.
Indirect private equity investments are interests in limited partnerships and are stated at the partnership’s
estimate of fair value. Investments are valued based on the Pension Fund’s share of the net assets of the
private equity fund. For private equity limited partnerships there is usually a time delay in receiving information
from the private equity Investment Managers. The valuations shown in the Net Assets Statement for these
investments are the latest valuations provided to the Pension Fund, adjusted for cash movements between the
valuation date and the net asset date.
Forward foreign exchange contracts are stated at fair value which is determined as the gain or loss that would
arise from closing out the contract at the balance sheet date by entering into an equal and opposite contract.
Investment assets and liabilities include cash balances held by the Investment Managers and debtor and
creditor balances in respect of investment activities as these form part of the net assets available for
investment.
Rights issues are processed on ex-date. If the value of the rights on ex-date is 15% or more of the value of the
underlying security, cost is allocated from the parent to the rights. If the value is less than 15%, the rights are
allocated at zero cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution, repayable without penalty and on notice of not
more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents comprise investments that are held to meet short-term liabilities rather than
for investment or other purposes. These are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and that are subject to minimal risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts, repayable on
demand and which form an integral part of the County Council’s treasury management function, are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
Foreign Currency Translation
All investments are shown in sterling. Dividends, interest, purchases and sales of investments in foreign currencies
have been accounted for at the spot market rate at the date of transaction. End of year spot market exchange
rates are used to value foreign currency cash balances, market values of overseas investments and purchases and
sales outstanding at the net asset date.

Agenda Pack Page 212

Page | 131

Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Gains and losses on exchange arising from foreign currency investment and cash balances are included within the
Fund Account for the year.
Management Expenses
The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016, allows the
Administering Authority to charge directly to the Pension Fund any costs or expenses incurred in administering it.
Management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and disclosed in accordance with the 2016 CIPFA
guidance ‘Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management expenses’ and analysed between
administrative costs, oversight and governance costs and investment management expenses.
Fees of the external Investment Managers are agreed in the respective mandates governing their appointment.
Fees are based on the market value of the portfolio under management. Where an Investment Manager’s fee note
has not been received for the final period, an estimate based on the market value of their mandate as at the end of
the year is used for inclusion in the Fund Account. In 2018/19, £57,024 was based on such estimates.
Investment management expenses include transaction costs relating to the purchase and sale of investments.
VAT
The Pension Fund is exempt from VAT and is therefore able to recover such deductions. Investment management
and administrative expenses are therefore recognised net of any recoverable VAT.
Benefits Payable
Pension and lump sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as 31 March 2019. Any amounts
due but unpaid are disclosed in the Net Assets Statement as current liabilities.
Contributions
Normal contributions, both from members and employers, are accounted for on an accruals basis, at the
percentage rate certified by the Pension Fund Actuary in the payroll period to which they relate. Employer deficit
funding contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the period to which they relate or
are due, or on a cash basis if the payment is an additional contribution in excess of the minimum required by the
Pension Fund Actuary and set out in the Rates and Adjustments Certificate.
Pension strain contributions and employers’ augmentation contributions are accounted for in the period in which
the liability arises. Any amount due in year but unpaid is classed as a current financial asset.
Transfers to and from other schemes
Transfer values represent the amounts received and paid during the year for members who have joined or left the
Pension Fund during the financial year and are calculated in accordance with Scheme regulations. Transfer values
are treated on a cash basis when they are paid or received, which is normally when the member liability is
accepted or discharged. Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional voluntary
contributions to purchase Scheme benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are included in transfers in.
Bulk transfers are accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the terms of the transfer agreement.
Investment Income
Investment income earned by the Pension Fund on its investments is recognised as follows:






Interest income is recognised in the Fund Account as it accrues, using the effective interest rate of the
financial instrument as at the date of acquisition or origination. Income includes the amortisation of any
discount or premium, transaction costs or other differences between the initial carrying amount of the
instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate basis.
Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Any amount not received
by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the Net Assets Statement under other investment
balances.
Investment income earned on pooled investment vehicles that are accumulation funds, where income is
retained and automatically reinvested, are shown as changes in the value of investments in the Fund
Account.
Income from private equity investments are reported on the quarterly valuations provided by the private
equity Investment Managers. Income is recognised in the period in which the valuation is received.

Agenda Pack Page 213

Page | 132

Local Government Pension Fund Accounts



Distributions from other pooled investment vehicles are recognised at the date of issue. Any amount not
received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the Net Asset Statement under other investment
balances.
Changes in the value of investment income are accounted for as income and comprise all realised and
unrealised profits and losses during the year.

Taxation
The Pension Fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance Act 2004
and as such, is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on the proceeds of
investments sold. Tax is deducted from dividends paid on UK equities, which is not recoverable. Income from
overseas investments suffers a withholding tax in the country of origin, unless exemption is permitted. Provision is
made for the estimated sums to be recovered and income grossed up accordingly. Irrecoverable tax is accounted
for as a Pension Fund expense as it arises.
Security Lending
The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (as amended)
permit the Pension Fund to lend up to 35% of its securities from its portfolio of stocks to third parties in return for
collateral. The Pension Fund has set a limit of 20% of the total Fund value. The securities on loan are included in
the Net Assets Statement to reflect the Pension Fund’s continuing economic interest of a proprietorial nature in
these securities.
Additional Voluntary Contribution Investments
The County Council has arrangements with the Standard Life Assurance Company and the Equitable Life
Assurance Society to enable employees to make Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) to enhance their
pension benefits. AVCs are invested separately from the Pension Fund’s main assets and the assets purchased
are specifically allocated to provide additional benefits for members making AVCs. As these contributions do not
form part of the Pension Fund’s investments, the value of AVC investments are excluded from the Pension Fund’s
Net Assets Statement in accordance with regulation 4(2)(c) of the Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (as amended).
Prior period adjustments
There were no material prior period adjustments in 2018/19 that require disclosure.
Events after the Net Asset Date
There were no material post balance sheet events after 2018/19 that require disclosure.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies and significant estimation techniques
In applying the accounting policies set out above, the Pension Fund has had to make certain judgements about
complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements made in the
accounts are:


Valuation of private equity investments:
Unquoted private equities are valued by the Investment
Managers using the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines. These are
inherently based on forward looking estimates and judgements involving many factors.



Pension fund liability: The Pension Fund liability is calculated every three years by the Pension Fund
Actuary, with annual updates in the intervening years. The methodology used is in line with accepted
guidelines and in accordance with IAS19. Assumptions underpinning the valuations are agreed with the
Actuary and are summarised in Note 16. This estimate is subject to significant variances based on
changes to the underlying assumptions.

Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty
Preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the net asset date and the amounts reported for
revenues and expenses during the year. Estimates and assumptions are made taking into account historical
experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, the nature of estimation means that actual

Agenda Pack Page 214

Page | 133

Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
outcomes could differ from those assumptions and estimates. The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that
have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are:


Valuation of private equity investments: The valuations for private equity investments shown in the Net
Assets Statement are based on the latest valuations provided to the Pension Fund, adjusted for cash
movements between the valuation date and the net asset date. This may result in a variance between the
valuation included in the Financial Statements and the actual value of the Pension Fund’s investments as
at 31 March 2019 issued by each of the private equity Investment Managers. At 31 March 2019 private
equity investments totalled £204.5 million (including private equity investments held within the Global
Alternatives Fund).



Contractual commitments: Commitments to the private equity, infrastructure debt and private rental
sector funds are made in local currency (sterling, euros and US dollars). The total remaining commitment
to each fund at 31 March 2019 has been converted to base currency, based on exchange rates applicable
at the net asset date. The exact timing and amounts of when the Pension Fund’s commitment will be
drawn down is uncertain and therefore the actual payments made by the Pension Fund may be different
from the estimates.



Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits: Estimation of the liability to pay retirement
benefits depends on a number of complex judgements relating to the discount rate used to value the
liabilities, the rate at which salaries increase, and changes in retirement ages and mortality rates. The
consulting actuary to the Pension Fund, Hymans Robertson, is engaged to provide the Pension Fund with
expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. Further information about the key assumptions used to
calculate the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits and the effect on the pensions liability
of changes in individual assumptions are shown in Note 16.

Agenda Pack Page 215

Page | 134

Notes to the Local Government Pension
Fund Accounts

Agenda Pack Page 216

Page | 135

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Note 1: Contributions Receivable
2017/18
£000s

2018/19

£000s

£000s

£000s

Members
35,088

Normal

294

Additional
35,382

36,805
277

Total members

37,082

Employers
119,709

Normal

14,932

Deficit funding
Augmentation and early retirement
strain costs

1,737

122,192
19,520
1,144

136,379

Total employers

142,856

171,761

Total contributions receivable

179,938

Members’ additional contributions represent contributions from members to purchase additional years of
membership or pension in the Scheme.
Employers’ normal contributions represent the ongoing contributions paid into the Pension Fund by employers in
accordance with the Rates and Adjustments Certificate, issued by the Pension Fund Actuary. These reflect the
cost of benefits accrued by current members over the year.
Employers’ deficit funding includes:


£17,225,360 (£13,399,237 in 2017/18) past service adjustment which represents the additional
contributions required from employers towards the deficit where an employer’s funding level is less than
100%, as per the Rates and Adjustments Certificate. The deficit recovery period varies depending on the
individual circumstances of each employer. For statutory bodies, the Pension Fund normally targets the
recovery of any deficit over a period not exceeding 20 years. For Transferee Admission Bodies the deficit
recovery period would be the shorter of the end of the employer’s service contract or the expected future
working lifetime of the remaining Scheme members. Further information can be found in the Pension
Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement accessible from https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fundinformation/Annual-reports.aspx.



£2,294,890 (£3,089,442 in 2017/18) paid by employers in excess of the minimum contribution levels
required by the Pension Fund Actuary in the Rates and Adjustments Certificate.



£nil (£nil in 2017/18) termination payments where an employer had ceased to be a participating employer
in the Pension Fund.

Contributions received are further analysed in the table below by type of employer.
2017/18

2018/19

Employee

Employer

Employee

Employer

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

15,292

56,111

Administering Authority

16,017

58,345

17,824

69,058

Other Scheduled Bodies

18,906

74,493

2,265

11,210

Admitted Bodies

2,158

10,017

35,382

136,379

37,082

142,856

Total contributions receivable

Agenda Pack Page 217

Page | 136

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Note 2: Transfers In from Other Schemes
The Pension Fund received £17,470,602 (£17,635,234 in 2017/18) in relation to individual members’ transfers of
benefits into the Pension Fund. No amounts were received during the year for group transfers from other schemes.
Transfers are shown on a cash basis, in accordance with the accounting policy.

Note 3: Benefits Payable
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

65,256

Administering Authority

70,031

68,694

Other Scheduled Bodies

72,578

14,152

Admitted Bodies

148,102

Total benefits payable

15,608

158,217

Note 4: Transfers Out to Other Schemes
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

13,190
-

13,190

Individual transfers

8,472

Bulk transfers

-

Total Transfers out to other schemes

8,472

Note 5: Management Expenses
Investment management expenses
The Pension Fund’s Investment Managers are remunerated on the basis of fees calculated as a percentage of
assets under management or as a fixed annual fee. Some Investment Managers also have a performance related
fee, payable where performance exceeds the performance target. Performance targets are detailed within the
Investment Strategy Statement, which is included in the main Pension Fund Annual Report 2018/19, available from
the pension fund’s website (https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Annual-reports.aspx).
Investment management expenses include transaction costs associated with the acquisition, issue or disposal of
Pension Fund assets and associated financial instruments. In addition to these costs, indirect costs are incurred
through the bid-offer spread on investments sales and purchases. These are reflected in the cost of investment
acquisitions and in the proceeds from the sales of investments set out in Note 7.
The Pension Fund’s assets are held in custody by an independent custodian. The custodian is responsible for the
safekeeping of the Pension Fund’s financial assets, the settlement of transactions, income collection, tax
reclamation and other administrative actions in relation to the Pension Fund’s investments.
The Pension Fund’s performance measurement service is provided by BNY Mellon. A detailed analysis of the
Pension Fund’s performance is shown in the Investment Performance Report contained within the main Pension
Fund Annual Report, available from the Pension Fund’s website listed above.
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

11,430

Management fees

9,407

397

Transaction costs

360

145

Custody fees

11,972

Total investment management expenses

Agenda Pack Page 218

168

9,936

Page | 137

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
An analysis of transaction costs by asset class is shown in the following table;
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s
395

Equities

253

-

Unitised Insurance Policies

-

Unit Trusts

83

-

Infrastructure Debt

11

2

Property

1

Alternatives

397

5

9

Total Transaction costs

360

Note 6: Investment Income
Analysis of investment income
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s
(2)

29,403
-

Income from fixed interest securities

-

Dividends from equities

19,206

Income from bonds

-

Income from pooled investment vehicles:
7,457

-

Pooled property investments

1,513

-

Other pooled investments

7,590
884

861

Interest on cash deposits

331

423

Other investment income

95

39,655

Total investment income

28,106

An analysis of investment income accrued during 2017/18 and 2018/19 is shown in the following table.
2017/18

2018/19

UK

Overseas

Global

Total

UK

Overseas

Global

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

22,710

6,694

-

29,403

-

(2)

-

(2)

7,358

1,513

99

8,970

209

652

-

861

Cash and cash equivalents

226

196

-

423

Other

30,503

9,053

99

39,655

Equities
Bonds
Alternatives

Total investment income

10,936

8,270

-

19,206

-

-

-

-

7,339

1,135

-

8,474

203

128

-

331

26

69

-

95

26,901

1,205

-

28,106

Securities lending
The Pension Fund has an arrangement with its Custodian to lend securities from within its portfolio of stocks to
third parties in return for collateral. Collateralised lending generated income of £57,241 for 2018/19 (£252,855 for
2017/18). This is included within investment income in the Fund Account.
The Pension Fund obtains collateral at 102% of the market value of securities loaned for collateral denominated in
the same currency as that of the loans, or 105% in the case of cross-currency collateral. The market value of

Agenda Pack Page 219

Page | 138

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
securities on loan and collateral held at 31 March 2019 and 2018 is shown in the following table, analysed by
collateral type.
2017/18
Market value of
securities on loan

2018/19
Market value of
securities on loan

Collateral held

£000s

£000s

£000s

22,407

23,590

-

-

25,926

27,339

48,333

Collateral held

50,929

£000s

Government debt and supranationals

19,429

20,125

-

-

3,413

3,597

22,842

23,722

UK Equity DBV
G10 debt

Total

Note 7: Profit and Losses on the Disposal of Investments and Changes in the Value of
Investments
An analysis of investment transactions in 2018/19 is shown in the following table.
Value at
31 March
2018

Purchases
at cost and
derivative
payments

Sale
proceeds
and
derivative
receipts

£000s

£000s

£000s

Profits and
losses on
disposals
and change
in value of
investments
£000s

Transfer to
Other
Categories ***

Value at
31 March
2019

£000s

£000s

Equities
427,445

UK

73,883

(120,581)

(103,868)

(238,051)

38,827

387,666

Overseas

42,571

(40,865)

44,269

-

433,642

17,837

(9,200)

27,509

-

332,065

384,024

(438,492)

109,127

-

1,898,841

Pooled investment vehicles
295,919
1,844,181

Pooled property investments
Unitised insurance policies

606,178

Unit trusts

18,329

(1,569)

249,805

425,947

1,298,690

116,026

Private equity

37,409

(38,043)

27,902

-

143,294

Infrastructure Debt

59,723

(227)

301

-

59,798

Other managed funds

75,000

(5,308)

(62,239)

(184,894)

507,774

Derivative contracts (net)*

14,584

(8,985)

(5,494)

-

(555)

-

(14,938)

171

(3,001)

83,796

723,361

(678,207)

287,484

-

4,796,172

-

(3,605)

-

-

2,094

723,361

(681,812)

287,484

-

4,798,267

685,216
(660)

101,564

4,463,534
7,647
4,471,181

Cash deposits

Subtotal
Net other investment balances**
Total investments assets / (liabilities)

* Net forward foreign exchange assets/liabilities (see note 8a).
** Net other investment balances assets/liabilities (see note 8a). Accrued income shown within closing balance.
*** The values within ‘Transfer to Other Balances’ relate to the transition to ACCESS, Hertfordshire Pension Fund’s asset pool. Mandates held
with Baillie Gifford transitioned during 2018-19. These mandates will be held as Unit Trusts going forward.

Agenda Pack Page 220

Page | 139

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts

An analysis of investment transactions in 2017/18 is shown in the following table.
Value at
31 March
2017

Purchases
at cost and
derivative
payments

Sale
proceeds
and
derivative
receipts

£000s

£000s

£000s

Profits and
losses on
disposals
and change
in value of
investments
£000s

Value at
31 March
2018
£000s

Equities
729,797

UK

418,921

Overseas

434,170

(754,799)

18,277

427,445

60,786

(131,474)

39,433

387,666

17,110

(16,348)

8,783

295,919

2,177,391

(1,751,123)

52,265

1,844,181

182,742

(190,898)

16,277

606,178

Pooled investment vehicles
286,375
1,365,648

Pooled property investments
Unitised insurance policies

598,057

Unit trusts

131,052

Private equity

27,942

(51,527)

8,560

116,026

605,223

Other managed funds

30,001

(2,756)

52,749

685,216

4,505

(15,122)

8,255

(660)

-

35,423

(1,356)

101,564

2,934,647

(2,878,625)

203,241

4,463,534

-

3,716

-

7,647

2,934,647

(2,874,909)

203,241

4,471,181

1,702

67,496

4,204,271
3,881
4,208,151

Derivative contracts (net)*

Cash deposits

Subtotal
Net other investment balances**
Total investments assets / (liabilities)

* Net forward foreign exchange assets/liabilities (see note 8a)
** Net other investment balances assets/liabilities (see note 8a). Accrued income shown within closing balance.

The change in market value of investments during the year comprises all increases and decreases in the market
value of investments held at year end and profits and losses realised on the sale of investments during the year.
Derivative receipts and payments correspond to the sterling equivalent amount of forward foreign exchange settled
during the year. The sale proceeds for cash deposits represent the net movement in cash held by the Investment
Managers during the year. The change in market value of cash results from gains and losses on foreign currency
cash transactions.

Agenda Pack Page 221

Page | 140

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Note 8: Investment Analysis
a) Analysis of investment assets at market value
2017/18
£000s

2018/19
£000s

£000s

£000s

Investment assets
Equities
427,445

UK quoted

387,666

Overseas quoted
815,111

149,040

Overseas property

146,835

Global property
295,919

433,642

Total equities
UK property

44

38,827
472,469
160,794
1
171,270

Pooled property investments

332,065

139,027

UK equity funds

147,888

778,607

Overseas equity funds

827,943

926,546

UK Index Linked Gilts Fund

923,010

1,844,181

Total unitised insurance policies

1,898,841

-

UK equity unit trusts

367,387

-

Overseas Equity Unit trusts

283,651

-

UK Index Linked Gilts Fund

-

606,178

Global Core Plus Bond Fund

-

Global Absolute Return Bond Fund
606,178

116,026

-

242,207

Overseas equity

425,776

Global Alternatives Fund

16

101,564

13,501

Investment income due
13,501

4,477,710

18
507,756
507,774
355
355
83,796

Total Cash
Amounts receivable from the sale of
investments

-

59,798
-

Total derivatives
Cash deposits

101,564

59,798

Other managed funds
Forward foreign exchange

16

143,294

Total infrastructure debt
UK equity

685,216

1,298,690
143,294

Total private equity
UK Infrastructure debt

17,233

-

Total unit trusts
UK private equity

116,026

647,653

Total other investment balances

Total investment assets

83,796
2,094
2,094

4,799,177

Table continues overleaf

Agenda Pack Page 222

Page | 141

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
2017/18
£000s

2018/19
£000s

£000s

£000s

Investment liabilities
(676)

Forward foreign exchange contracts
(676)

(5,854)
-

(910)

Amounts payable for the purchase of investments

-

Non recoverable tax payable

-

(5,854)

Total other investment balances

(6,530)

Total investment liabilities

4,471,181

(910)

Total derivatives contracts

(910)

Total investment assets and liabilities at market
value

4,798,267

Six pooled holdings exceeded 5% of the total investment assets and liabilities available to fund benefits at 31
March 2019. ACCESS Baillie Gifford LTGG, ACCESS Baillie Gifford UK Equity, The Royal London Core Plus
Bond Fund, UBS North America Equity Index Fund, Crown HCC Segregated Portfolio (LGT Capital Alternatives),
UBS Over 5Y Index-Linked Gilts exceed 5% of the Pension Fund's total holdings.
There are six Pooled Funds which exceed 5% of their asset class at 31 March 2019. The Royal London Core Plus
Bond Fund, UBS North America Equity Index Fund, Crown HCC Segregated Portfolio (LGT Capital Alternatives),
UBS Over 5Y Index-Linked Gilts, ACCESS Baillie Gifford UK Equity and ACCESS Baillie Gifford LTGG.
Cash deposits (including cash and cash instruments) and other investment balances (including accrued dividend
entitlements) are accounted for as investment assets as these form part of the net assets available for investment
within the investment portfolio.
Investment assets and liabilities at the Net Asset date are further analysed by asset class in the following table.

2017/18

2018/19

UK

Overseas

Global

Total

UK

Overseas

Global

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

583,705
1,532,724
149,040

1,408,480

-

-

-

116,070

572,612

1,992,185

Equities

1,532,724

Bonds

837,722

Alternatives
Cash and cash
equivalents

89,311

12,260

(7)

101,564

730

6,917

(660)

6,987

2,355,509

1,543,727

571,944

4,471,181

Other
Total assets and
liabilities

554,102

1,261,603

283,651

2,099,356

1,570,662

-

-

1,570,662

220,592

143,295

679,026

1,042,913

74,455

9,341

-

83,796

299

1,796

(555)

1,540

2,420,110

1,416,035

962,122

4,798,267

Agenda Pack Page 223

Page | 142

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
b) Analysis by Investment Manager
The value of investments held by each Investment Manager on 31 March were:

31 March 2018
£000s

31 March 2019
%

£000s

440,145

9.8

666,792

14.9

330,382

7.4

89,447

2.0

HarbourVest Partners, LLC.

375

0.0

369,123

8.3

425,776

9.5

Jupiter Asset Management Ltd.
Legal & General Assurance (Pensions
Management) Limited
LGT Capital Partners (Ireland) Ltd.

17,537

0.4

Pantheon Ventures
Permira Advisers LLP

523,366

10.9

Baillie Gifford & Co.

652,154

13.6

CBRE Global Collective Investors (UK) Ltd.

358,916

7.5

95,881

2.0

-

0.0

-

0.0

507,756

10.6

39,625

0.8

690

0.0

606,361

13.6

44,284

1.0

1,479,949

33.1

-

0.0

Macquarie Group Limited

319

0.0

Residual funds from previous portfolios

4,471,181

100.0

27,836
4,499,017

%

Allianz Global Investors Europe GmbH

Royal London Asset Management Ltd.
Standard Life Investments Ltd.
UBS Group AG

Funds externally managed
Funds held at Hertfordshire County
Council and non-investment
balances
Net Assets of the Scheme

684

0.0

647,836

13.5

46,872

1.0

1,898,841

39.6

26,052

0.5

284

0.0

4,798,267

100

36,737
4,835,004

The market values in table Note 8(b) include the value of investments, cash and net current assets held by each
Investment Manager at 31 March. The funds held by Hertfordshire County Council include net current assets, long
term assets and cash required to manage the cash flow associated with the payment of benefits and collection of
contributions.
Residual funds from previous portfolios represent residual cash and investment income still due to the portfolios
previously run by outgoing Investment Managers following the review of the Pension Fund’s Investment Strategy.
c) Encumbrance of Assets
The Custodian has a lien over the Pension Fund’s assets in order to recover any outstanding debts. This is held
for the protection of the Custodian and has never been invoked.

Agenda Pack Page 224

Page | 143

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Note 9: Derivatives
The Pension Fund uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to specific risks arising from its
investment activities. The Pension Fund does not hold derivatives for speculative purposes.
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Forward foreign exchange contracts are over the counter contracts with non-exchange counterparties and are used
to hedge against foreign currency movements. Forward foreign exchange contracts are disclosed in the accounts
at fair value, which is the gain or loss that would arise from closing out the contract at the balance sheet date by
entering into an equal and opposite contract at that date.
The counterparties at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 were UK and overseas investment banks and the
contracts held with these investment banks are analysed in the following table by duration.
2017/18
Currency
Payable

Currency
Receivable

£000s

£000s

2018/19

Duration
Fair Value
Asset
Liability
£000s

Currency
Payable

Currency
Receivable

£’000

£000s

£000s

(1,299)

1,297

-

-

-

-

(135,320)

134,662

(136,619)

135,959

(2) Within 1 month

Fair Value
Asset
Liability
£000s

£000s

-

-

-

-

- 0-3 months

-

-

-

-

16

(673) 3-6 months

(161,581)

161,026

355

(910)

16

(676) Total

(161,581)

161,026

355

(910)

Note 10: Long Term Assets
Long term assets of £739,000 in the Net Assets Statement (£1,478,000 for 2017/18) relates to the bulk transfer of
Magistrates Court staff to the civil service pension scheme in 2005 in accordance with the terms of transfer
agreement.

Note 11: Current Assets
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

13,831

Contributions due from employers

15,712

15,087

Cash and cash equivalents

23,161

379

VAT due from HMRC

317

577

Other debtors and prepayments

772

(95)

Provision for doubtful debt

29,780

Total current assets

-

39,961

Cash and cash equivalents represent investments in money market funds and call accounts where funds are
repayable without penalty and on notice of not more than 24 hours.

Agenda Pack Page 225

Page | 144

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Current assets are further analysed by type of debtor organisation.

2017/18
£000s

2018/19
£000s

£000s

3,321

Central government bodies

9,358

Other local authorities

5

NHS bodies

2,103

Other entities and individuals

14,788
(95)

3,538
10,072
6
3,185

Total debtors
Provision for doubtful debt

15,087

£000s

Cash and cash equivalents

16,800
23,161

14,992

Total cash balances

23,161

29,780

Total current assets

39,961

Note 12: Current Liabilities
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

(1,301)

Tax payable to HMRC

(1,440)

(868)

Investment management fees

(404)

(396)

Other creditors

(354)

Unpaid benefits

(502)

Cash and cash equivalents

-

(3,422)

Total current liabilities

(3,963)

(1,186)
(932)

Cash balances in the table above include cash balances less cash in transit in the form of unpresented cheques
and payments committed by BACs at the net asset date.
Current liabilities are further analysed by type of creditor organisation.
2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

1,301
1,619

Central government bodies
Other local authorities
Other entities and individuals

(1,440)
(2,522)

502

Cash and cash equivalents

-

3,422

Total Current Liabilities

(3,963)

Agenda Pack Page 226

Page | 145

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Note 13: Fair Value – Basis of Valuation
The basis of the valuation of each classes of investment asset is set out below. There has been no change in the
valuation techniques used during the year. All assets have been valued using fair value techniques which represent
the highest and best price available at the reporting date.
Description of asset
Equities quoted

Valuation
Hierarchy
Level 1

Basis of valuation

Observable and
unobservable inputs

Published bid market
price ruling on the final
day of accounting period

N/A

Key sensitivities affecting
the valuations provided
N/A

Other managed funds –
equities

Level 2

Closing single price

NAV based pricing set on a
forward pricing basis

N/A

Pooled property
investments

Level 2

Closing bid price where
bid and offer prices are
published.
Closing single price
where single price is
published.

NAV based pricing set on a
forward pricing basis

N/A

Unitised insurance
contracts – equities

Level 2

Price of a recent
transaction for an
identical asset

Inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable,
either directly or indirectly

N/A

Unitised insurance
contracts – bonds

Level 2

Price of a recent
transaction for an
identical asset

Inputs other than quoted
prices that are observable,
either directly or indirectly

N/A

Unit trusts – equities

Level 2

Average of broker prices

Evaluated price feeds

N/A

Unit trusts – bonds

Level 2

Closing bid, mid and
offer prices are
published

NAV based pricing set on a
forward pricing basis

N/A

Global Alternatives fund

Level 3

Closing single price

NAV based pricing set on a
forward pricing basis

Valuations could be
affected by material events
occurring between the date
of the financial statements
provided and the pension
fund’s own reporting date,
by changes to expected
cashflows, and by any
differences between audited
and unaudited accounts

Private equity

Level 3

At fair value as
determined by the
General Partner in
accordance with the
terms of the Partnership
Agreement and GAAP

Manager’s cash flow
projections, estimates of
growth expectations and
profitability, profit margin
expectations, adjustments to
current prices for similar
properties, valuation
techniques

Infrastructure Debt

Level 3

At fair value as
determined by the
General Partner in
accordance with the
terms of the Partnership
Agreement and GAAP

Manager’s cash flow
projections, estimates of
growth expectations and
profitability, profit margin
expectations, adjustments to
current prices for similar
properties, valuation
techniques

Valuations could be
affected by material events
occurring between the date
of the financial statements
provided and the pension
fund’s own reporting date
by changes to expected
cash flows, earning
multiples and discount rates
used in the discounted cash
flow analysis
Valuations could be
affected by material events
occurring between the date
of the financial statements
provided and the pension
fund’s own reporting date
by changes to expected
cash flows, earning
multiples and discount rates
used in the discounted cash
flow analysis

Agenda Pack Page 227

Page | 146

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Note 14: Financial Instruments
a) Classification of financial instruments
Accounting policies describe how different asset classes of financial instruments are measured and how income
and expenses, including fair value gains and losses are recognised. The following table analyses the carrying
amounts of financial assets and liabilities by category and Net Assets Statement heading.
All financial instruments are carried in the balance sheet at their fair value. The Pension Fund has not entered into
any financial guarantees that are required to be accounted for as financial instruments.
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

Fair value
through
profit and
loss

Loans and
receivables

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

Fair value
through
profit and
loss

Financial
Assets at
amortised
cost

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

815,111

-

-

Equities

472,469

-

-

295,919

-

-

Pooled property investments

332,065

-

-

1,844,181

-

-

Unitised insurance policies

1,898,841

-

-

606,178

-

-

Unit trusts

1,298,690

-

-

116,026

-

-

Private equity

143,294

-

-

685,216

-

-

Other managed funds

507,774

-

-

16

-

-

Derivative contracts

355

-

-

-

101,564

-

Cash deposits

-

83,796

-

13,501

-

-

Other investment balances

2,094

-

-

-

1,478

-

Long term assets

-

739

-

-

29,780

-

Current assets

-

39,961

-

4,376,147

132,821

4,655,583

124,496

-

(676)

-

- Derivative contracts

(910)

-

-

(5,854)

-

- Other investment balances

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(3,963)

(6,530)

-

(3,422)

(910)

-

(3,963)

4,369,617

132,821

(3,422)

4,714,471

124,496

(3,963)

- Total financial assets

(3,422)

Current liabilities
Total financial liabilities

Total

b) Net gains and losses on financial instruments

2017/18

2018/19

£000s

£000s

204,612
(1,356)

203,256

Fair value through profit and loss
Financial Assets at amortised cost

Total gains and losses

Agenda Pack Page 228

290,275
171

290,446

Page | 147

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
c) Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value
The valuation of financial instruments has been classified into three levels, according to the quality and reliability of
information used to determine fair values.
Level 1: Financial instruments where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed interest
securities, quoted index linked securities and unit trusts. Listed securities are shown at bid prices. The bid value of
the investment is based on the bid market quotation of the relevant stock exchange.
Level 2: Financial instruments where quoted market prices are not available; for example, where an instrument is
traded in a market that is not considered to be active or where valuation techniques are used to determine fair
value and where these techniques use inputs that are based significantly on observable market data.
Level 3: Financial instruments where at least one input that could have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation is not based on observable market data.
The following tables provide an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund analysed across
levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which the fair value is observable, along with comparative figures for 2018.
31 March 2019
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Financial assets
Fair value through profit and loss

474,564

3,530,042

710,775

4,715,381

Financial Assets at amortised cost

124,496

-

-

124,496

-

(910)

-

(910)

(3,963)

-

-

(3,963)

595,097

3,529,132

710,775

4,835,004

Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit and loss
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Net financial assets

31 March 2018
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Financial assets
Fair value through profit and loss

828,611

3,005,733

541,802

4,376,147

Loans and receivables

132,821

-

-

132,821

Fair value through profit and loss

(5,854)

(676)

-

(6,530)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

(3,422)

-

-

(3,422)

952,157

3,005,057

541,802

4,499,017

Financial liabilities

Net financial assets

Agenda Pack Page 229

Page | 148

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
d) Transfers between Levels 1 and 2
Assets valued £241,052,846 transferred from Level 1 to Level 2 in January 2019. This relates to the transition of
the UK equity mandate with Baillie Gifford to Hertfordshire Pension Fund’s asset pool, ACCESS.
e) Reconciliation of fair value measurements within level 3
Value at
Transfers
into
Level 3

31-Mar18

Transfers
out of
Level 3

Purchases
at cost
and
derivative
payments

Sale
proceeds
and
derivative
receipts

£000s

£000s

£000s
116,026
425,776

Private Equity
Infrastructure
Debt
Global
Alternatives
Fund - LGT

541,802

f)

-

-

-

-

-

-

37,409

(38,043)

Unrealised
gains/(losses)

Realised
gains/(losses)

£000s

£000s

7,932

59,734

(192)

255

75,000

-

6,980

172,143

(38,234)

15,166

Value at
31-Mar19
£000s

19,970
19,970

143,294
59,798
507,756
710,847

Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3

Having analysed historical data and current market trends, and consulted with independent investment advisors,
the fund has determined that the valuation method described above is likely to be accurate to within the following
ranges, and has set out below the consequent potential impact on the closing value of investments held at 31
March 2019.

31-Mar-19

Assessed
valuation range
(+/-)

Value on
Increase

Value on
Decrease

£000s

%

£000s

£000s

Value as at
Asset Class

Private Equity
Infrastructure Debt
Global Alternatives Fund (LGT)

143,294

15%

164,788

121,800

59,798

15%

68,767

50,828

507,756

15%

583,919

431,593

817,475

604,220

710,847

Agenda Pack Page 230

Page | 149

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Note 15: Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
The Pension Fund maintains positions in a variety of financial instruments including bank deposits, equity
instruments, fixed interest securities and derivatives. This exposes it to a variety of financial risks including credit
and counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market risk and exchange rate risk.
a)

Overall procedures for managing risk

The principal powers to invest are contained in the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (as amended) and require an administering authority to invest any pension
fund money that is not needed immediately to make payments from the pension fund. These regulations require
the Pension Fund to formulate a policy for the investment of its Fund money.
The Administering Authority’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets
and implementing restrictions to minimise these risks.
The Pension Fund has prepared an Investment Strategy Statement which sets out the Fund’s policy on matters
such as the type of investments to be held, balance between types of investments, investment restrictions and the
way risk is managed. This statement is included in the main Pension Fund Annual Report 2018/19, which is
available from the Pension Fund’s website: https://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Annualreports.aspx.
Pension Fund cash held by the Administering Authority is invested in accordance with the Pension Fund’s treasury
management strategy and lending policy (“Treasury Management Strategy”), prepared in accordance with the
CIPFA Prudential Code, CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and the legal
framework and investment guidance set out and issued through the Local Government Act 2003. The Treasury
Management Strategy sets out the criteria for investing and selecting investment counterparties and details the
approach to managing risk for the Pension Fund’s financial instrument exposure.
Investment performance by external Investment Managers and the Administering Authority is reported to the
Pensions Committee and Board quarterly. Performance of Pension Fund investments managed by external
Investment Managers is compared to benchmark returns. For Pension Fund cash held by the Administering
Authority, performance of the treasury function is assessed against treasury management performance measures
modelled on the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice which has been adopted by the County Council.
b)

Credit risk and counterparty risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or commitment
that it has entered into with the Pension Fund. The market value of investments generally reflects an assessment
of credit in their pricing and consequently the risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the
Pension Fund’s financial assets and liabilities. Therefore credit risk on investments is reflected in the market risk, in
the other price risk figures given in section d) Market Risk.
In addition, the Pension Fund reviews its exposure to credit and counterparty risk on its investments through its
external Investment Managers by the review of the Investment Managers’ annual internal control reports. This is to
ensure that Investment Managers exercise reasonable care and due diligence in their activities for the Pension
Fund, such as in the selection and use of brokers. The Investment Management Agreements for the Pension
Fund’s bond managers prescribes the investment restrictions on the securities they can invest in, including the
minimum acceptance criteria for investments.
Credit risk also arises through the Pension Fund’s deposits with banks and financial instruments. For cash
managed by the Administering Authority, the Pension Fund’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 sets out
the type and minimum acceptable criteria for investments by reference to credit ratings from Fitch, Moody’s and
Standard & Poor’s and outlines the process to be followed for credit rating downgrades.
The credit ratings and amounts held in money market funds, call accounts and cash/current accounts at 31 March
2018 and 2019 are shown in the table overleaf.

Agenda Pack Page 231

Page | 150

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
2017/18
£000s

2018/19
Credit
rating

£000s

Credit
rating

Cash managed by Administering Authority
(501)1

A-

1,497

A

13,589

AAA

3781

A

1,742

A

21,040

AAA

Bank current account (Custodian)

76,815

AA-

Bank current account (Alternatives Manager)

17,253

A+

6,981

AAA

Bank current account
Call accounts
Money market funds
Cash managed by Custodian and Investment
Managers

13,783

A to AA-

7,427

A

97,998

AAA

126,366

Money Market Funds

Total cash and cash equivalents

124,209

1

Cash balances include cash balances less cash in transit in the form of unpresented cheques and payments committed by BACs at the Net
Asset date.

c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Pension Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations when they fall due.
The main risk for the Pension Fund is not having the funds available to meet its commitments to make pension
payments to its members. To manage this, the Pension Fund has a cashflow management system that seeks to
ensure that cash is available when needed. The Pension Fund also manages its liquidity risk by having access to
money market funds and call accounts where funds are repayable without penalty and on notice of not more than
24 hours. At 31 March 2019, £23,160,621 (100%) of the cash and cash equivalents held by the Administering
Authority was held in money market funds, call accounts and bank current accounts.
The Pension Fund has set a cap of £45 million on the amount of cash held by the Administering Authority to
balance the need for the Pension Fund to be as fully invested as possible whilst maintaining liquidity to avoid the
need to sell assets at inopportune times. Where there are surplus funds in excess of the cap, these funds are
distributed to Investment Managers, after taking advice from the Pension Fund’s Investment Consultant.
External Investment Managers have substantial discretionary powers over their individual portfolios and the
management of their cash positions. The Pension Fund’s investments are largely made up of listed securities on
major stock exchanges and are therefore considered readily realisable. The Pension Fund defines liquid assets as
assets which can be converted into sterling cash within three months. At 31 March 2019 the value of illiquid assets
was £535,156,774 (11.2% of total fund assets).
d)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and foreign exchange rates
and credit spreads. The Pension Fund is exposed to the risk of financial loss from a change in the value of its
investments and the risk that the Pension Fund’s assets fail to deliver returns in line with the anticipated returns
underpinning the valuation of its liabilities over the long term. The change in the market value of its investments
during the year was £290,445,188.
In order to manage market value risk, the Pension Fund has set restrictions on the type of investments it can hold,
subject to investment limits, in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (as amended). Details of these can be found in the Pension Fund’s
Statement of Investment Principles included in the main Pension Fund Annual Report 2018/19.
The Pension Fund has adopted a specific benchmark and the weightings of the various asset classes within the
benchmark form the basis for asset allocation within the Pension Fund. This allocation is designed to diversify the
risk and minimise the impact of poor performance in a particular asset class. It seeks to achieve a spread of

Agenda Pack Page 232

Page | 151

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
investments across both the main asset classes (quoted equities, bonds, private equity and property) and
geographic regions within each class.
Market risk is also managed by constructing a diversified portfolio across multiple Investment Managers and
regularly reviewing the Investment Strategy and performance of the Pension Fund. On a daily basis, Investment
Managers will manage risk in line with policies and procedures put in place in the Investment Manager Agreement
and ensure that the agreed limit on maximum exposure to any one issuer or class of asset is not breached.
For cash managed by the Administering Authority, the Pension Fund has set institution and group limits to diversify
the Pension Fund’s investment across a range of individual holdings, sectors and countries.
e)

Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk), whether these changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or issuer or factors affecting all such instruments in the
market.
The Pension Fund is exposed to changes in equity and bond prices, as the future price is uncertain. All securities
investments present a risk of loss of capital. This risk is mitigated using diversification and policies on selecting
investments as discussed above.
The one year expected volatility in market prices are shown in the following table, along with the changes in the
value of the Pension Fund’s investment assets and liabilities if the market price of investments increase or
decrease in line with these movements. The total fund volatility takes into account the expected interactions
between the different asset classes, based on the underlying volatilities and correlations of the assets in line with
mean variance portfolio theory.
Value as at
31 March
2019

Asset Class

£000s
UK Equities, Unit Trusts and Pooled Funds

Change
%

Value on
Increase

Value on
Decrease

£000s

£000s

554,102

16.60

646,083

462,121

1,588,887

16.90

1,857,409

1,320,365

Property

332,065

14.30

379,551

284,580

Corporate Bonds (medium term)

726,007

10.50

802,238

649,776

Index-Linked Gilts (medium term)

923,010

7.20

989,466

856,553

Private Equity

204,634

28.30

262,545

146,722

69,147

20.10

83,045

55,248

107,569

7.30

115,421

99,716

2,031

7.70

2,187

1,874

37,631

12.30

42,259

33,002

235,989

12.50

265,487

206,490

17,197

0.50

17,282

17,111

5,462,974

4,133,559

Global equities, Unit Trusts and Pooled Funds (ex
UK)

Infrastructure equity
High Yield Debt, Convertible Bonds, Insurance
linked securities
Private Debt
Emerging market debt
Absolute Return/Diversified Growth
Cash, other investment balances and forward
foreign exchange contracts
Total Fund

4,798,267

Agenda Pack Page 233

Page | 152

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Value as at
31 March
2018

Asset Class

Change

£000s
UK Equities, Unit Trusts and Pooled Funds

Value on
Decrease

£000s

£000s

583,705

16.80

681,767

485,642

1,431,376

17.90

1,687,592

1,175,159

Property

295,919

14.30

338,236

253,603

Corporate Bonds (medium term)

606,178

10.20

668,008

544,348

Index-Linked gilts (medium term)

926,546

7.20

993,258

859,835

Private Equity

181,302

28.30

232,610

129,993

High yield debt/convertible bonds/insurance linked
securities

112,428

6.70

119,961

104,895

1,835

7.00

1,964

1,707

Emerging Market Debt

34,996

12.20

39,265

30,726

Infrastructure equity

10,724

20.10

12,879

8,568

Absolute return/Diversified Growth

167,429

12.60

188,525

146,333

Cash, other investment balances and forward
foreign exchange contracts

118,744

0.50

119,337

118,150

5,083,402

3,858,960

Global equities, Unit Trusts and Pooled Funds (ex
UK)

Private Debt

Total Fund

f)

%

Value on
Increase

4,471,181

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.
The Pension Fund recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the Pension Fund and the
value of the net assets available to pay benefits. A 100 basis points (BPS) movement in interest rates has been
advised by the Pension Fund Actuary, as a sensible level to indicate interest rate sensitivity.
The analysis in the following table assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates, remain constant,
and shows the effect in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits, of a +/- 100 BPS change in interest
rates. Movement in bond values have been calculated to include the impact of modified duration. Modified duration
expresses the measurable change in the value of a security in response to a change in interest rates.

Value at
31 March
2018
£000s

Potential
change
+/100 BPS
£000s

Value on
Increase

Value on
Decrease

£000s

£000s

111,781

-

111,781

111,781

14,585

-

14,585

14,585

1,618,033

287,458

1,330,575

1,905,490

1,744,399

287,458

1,456,941

2,031,857

Asset class
exposed to
interest rate risk

Cash at Custodian
and Investment
Managers
Cash held by
Administering
Authority
Bond (pooled
funds)
Total

Value at
31 March
2019

Potential
change +/100 BPS

Value on
Increase

Value on
Decrease

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

101,049

N/A

101,049

101,049

23,161

N/A

23,161

23,161

1,721,002

298,339

1,422,663

2,019,341

1,845,211

298,339

1,546,872

2,143,551

Agenda Pack Page 234

Page | 153

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Value at
31 March
2018
£000s

Potential
change
+/100 BPS
£000s

Value on
Increase
£000s

Value on
Decrease

Income source
exposed to interest
rate risk

£000s

808

8

816

800

53

5

58

48

861

13

874

848

Value at
31 March
2019
£000s

Cash at Custodian
and Investment
Managers
Cash held by
Administering
Authority
Total

Potential
change
+/100 BPS
£000s

Value on
Increase

Value on
Decrease

£000s

£000s

192

2

194

190

138

1

141

137

331

3

335

237

This analysis demonstrates that a 1% increase in interest rates will not affect the interest received on fixed interest
assets but will reduce their fair value and vice versa. Changes in interest rates do not impact on the value of cash
but they will affect the interest income received on those balances. Changes to both the fair value of assets and
the income received from investments impact on the net assets available to pay benefits.
The Pension Fund’s bond holdings are held in accumulation funds where income is retained and automatically
reinvested rather than being distributed to the Pension Fund. Income earned from these funds is therefore
excluded from the analysis above.
g)

Currency risk

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Pension Fund holds a number of financial assets and liabilities in overseas financial markets and is therefore
exposed to the risk of loss arising from exchange rate movements of foreign currencies. At 31 March 2019, the
Pension Fund had overseas investments (excluding forward foreign exchange contracts) of £2,353,805,010 and
£9,341,067 cash denominated in currencies other than sterling.
The Pension Fund Actuary has advised that the one year expected standard deviation for an individual currency at
the 31 March 2019 is 10% (10% at 31 March 2018). This assumes no diversification, and in particular, that interest
rates remain constant. An analysis of the impact this would have on the Pension Fund is given in the following table
together with the prior year comparator.

Asset Class

Value as at
31 March 2019
£000s

Potential
market
movement
+/-10%
£000s

Value on
Increase

Value on
Decrease

£000s

£000s

Overseas Equity

433,642

43,364

477,006

390,278

Overseas Property

167,675

16,767

184,442

150,907

Overseas Unitised Insurance Policies

827,943

82,794

910,737

745,149

Overseas Unit Trusts

283,651

28,365

312,016

255,286

Overseas Private Equity

143,294

14,329

157,623

128,964

Overseas Managed Funds

497,601

49,760

547,361

447,841

9,341

934

10,275

8,407

2,363,146

236,315

2,599,461

2,126,831

Foreign currencies

Total

Agenda Pack Page 235

Page | 154

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Value as at
31 March 2018

Asset Class

£000s

Potential
market
movement
+/-10%
£000s

Value on
Increase

Value of
Decrease

£000s

£000s

Overseas Equity

387,666

38,767

426,433

348,900

Overseas property

142,738

14,274

157,012

128,464

Overseas unit trusts

917,058

91,706

1,008,764

825,353

Overseas managed funds

784,026

78,403

862,429

705,623

12,260

1,226

13,486

11,034

2,243,749

224,375

2,468,123

2,019,374

Foreign currencies

Total

External Investment Managers manage this risk through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts and futures,
to hedge currency exposures back to the base currency. See Note 9 for further information.
The Treasury Management Strategy does not permit the Administering Authority to invest in foreign currency
denominated deposits.

Note 16: Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits of the Pension Fund at 31 March 2019 and 31 March
2018 are set out in the following table. This is the underlying commitment of the Pension Fund in the long term to
pay retirement benefits to its active (employee members), deferred and pensioner members.
31 March 2018

31 March 2019

£m

£m
5,576

Present value of promised retirement benefits

6,237

Liabilities have been projected using a roll forward approximation from the latest formal valuation as at 31 March
2016 and therefore do not take account of any changes in membership since the valuation date. The liability at 31
March 2019 is estimated to comprise of £2,876 million with respect to employee members, £1,445 million with
respect to deferred members and £1,916 million with respect to pensioners. The principal assumptions used by the
Pension Fund Actuary were:
31 March 2018

31 March 2019
Financial assumptions

2.4% per annum

Inflation/pension increase rate

2.5% per annum

2.5% per annum
2.7% per annum

Salary increase rate
Discount rate

2.6% per annum
2.4% per annum

Mortality assumptions
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
22.5
24.9


Men

Women
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

22.5
24.9

24.1



Men

24.1

26.7



Women

26.7

Allowance has been made for future pensioners to elect to exchange 50% of the maximum additional tax free cash
up to HMRC limits for pre-April 2008 service and 75% of the maximum tax-free cash for post April 2008 service.

Agenda Pack Page 236

Page | 155

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is sensitive to changes in actuarial assumptions. The
significant changes and their impact on the value of the Pension Fund’s liabilities between 31 March 2018 and
31 March 2019 were:
Change in assumptions for the year ended 31 March 2019

£m

0.5% decrease in discount rate
0.5% increase in salary increase rate
0.5% increase in pensions increase rate

Total increase in liabilities due to changes in
assumptions

%

622

10%

76

1%

510

8%

1,208

19%

The assumptions used by the Pension Fund Actuary to calculate the present value of promised retirement benefits
are those required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2018/19. The liability set out in the table
above is used for statutory accounting purposes and should not be compared against the value of liabilities
calculated on a funding basis, which is used to determine contribution rates payable by employers in the Pension
Fund. Further information on the Pension Fund’s policy for funding its liabilities is set out in Note 17.

Note 17: Funding Policy
The Pension Fund’s approach to funding its liabilities is set out in its Funding Strategy Statement. The statement
sets out how the Administering Authority has balanced the conflicting aims of affordability of contributions,
transparency of processes, stability of employers’ contributions and prudence in the funding basis.
The Pension Fund Actuary is required to report on the “solvency” of the Pension Fund at least every three years.
The last actuarial valuation of the Pension Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2016 to determine contribution
rates for the financial years 2017/18 to 2019/20, with the new rates effective from 1 April 2017. A copy of the 2016
Valuation Report is accessible from the Pension Fund website: www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fundinformation/Policy-statements.aspx.
The market value of the Pension Fund’s assets at the valuation date was £3,584 million and represented 91% of
the Pension Fund’s accrued liabilities, allowing for future pay increases.
In accordance with the Scheme regulations, employer contribution rates were set to meet 100% of the Pension
Fund’s existing and prospective liabilities.
The main actuarial assumptions were as follows:
Discount rate
Salary increases
Price inflation/pension increases

4.0%
2.2%
2.1%

Further information can be found in the Funding Strategy Statement and the 2016 Valuation Report available on
the Pension Fund’s website: http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Policy-statements.aspx.

Agenda Pack Page 237

Page | 156

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Note 18: Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs)
Scheme members have the option to make AVCs to enhance their pension benefits. These contributions are
invested separately from the Pension Fund’s assets, with either the Standard Life Assurance Company or the
Equitable Life Assurance Society.
2017/18
Standard Life
£000s

£000s

2018/19

Equitable Life
£000s

4,811

£000s

Total AVCs
£000s

1,337

Standard Life

£000s
6,147

£000s
Value at 1 April

£000s

Equitable Life
£000s

£000s

4,493

Total AVCs
£000s

1,264

£000s
5,757

Income
315

5

6

321

-

Contributions received

6

322

5

431

5

437

9

-

9

Transfer values
received
327

Total Income

441

5

446

Expenditure
(745)

(85)

(830)

Retirement benefits

(530)

(69)

(600)

(2)

(20)

(22)

Transfer values paid

(68)

(86)

(154)

(5)

(5)

(10)

(4)

(750)

Lump sum death
benefit

(4)
(106)

(856)

Total Expenditure

(603)

(161)

(764)

Change in market
value

151

54

206

4,482

1,162

5,645

111

28

139

4,493

1,264

5,757

Value at 31 March

Note 19: Related Parties
a)

Hertfordshire County Council

The County Council incurred costs of £379,600 in relation to the management of the Pension Fund and was
subsequently reimbursed by the Pension Fund for these expenses. The County Council also contributed
£53,683,719 to the Pension Fund in 2018/19.
b)

Pensions Committee

No members of the County Council Pensions Committee were councillor members of the Hertfordshire Local
Government Pension Scheme during 2018/19. Each member of the Pensions Committee is required to declare
their interests at each meeting.
c)

Key Management Personnel

The Administering Authority disclosure of senior officer remuneration includes the S151 Officer who has
responsibility for the proper financial administration of the Pension Fund under the Local Government Act 1972.
This Officer was employed by the Administering Authority and spent a proportion of time on the financial
management of the Pension Fund. These costs comprise an element of the remuneration from the Pension Fund to
the County Council in 2018/19 of £379,600.
The remuneration paid by Hertfordshire County Council to key management personnel of the Pension Fund,
apportioned for the proportion of time on the financial management of the Pension Fund, were:

Position

Year

Apportioned
salary
£

Apportioned
pension
contributions
£

Total apportioned
remuneration
£

2018/19

10,287

1,876

12,163

2017/18

9,684

1,765

11,449

Director of Resources

Agenda Pack Page 238

Page | 157

Notes to the Local Government Pension Fund Accounts
Note 20: Contingent Liabilities and Contractual Commitments
Contingent Liabilities
A ruling has been made regarding age discrimination arising from public sector pension scheme transition
arrangements. Court of Appeal judgements were made in cases affecting judges pensions (McCloud case) and
firefighter pensions (Sergeant case) which had previously been considered by employment tribunals. The rulings
have implications for the LGPS, Police and Fire Schemes since similar reforms were implemented.
The indication from Government is that they are currently seeking permission to appeal this decision, with an
unknown timeframe for this permission to be granted or denied. Whether the appeal progresses or not is expected
to impact upon the valuation of liabilities associated with the pension scheme.
The Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) is preparing an assessment of the potential impact on a LGPS
England & Wales scheme wide basis, which will set out the potential impact on scheme liabilities and service cost.
Contractual Commitments
At 31 March 2019, the Pension Fund had a contractual commitment of a further £504.8 million (£271 million at 31
March 2018) to private equity limited partnerships, private equity funds within the Global Alternatives Fund,
infrastructure debt funds and private rental sector funds, based on exchange rates applicable at the balance sheet
date.

Note 21: Contingent Assets
a)

Withholding tax reclaims

The Pension Fund has entered into a process to reclaim withholding tax made by other European Union (EU)
countries, based on precedent cases in some EU countries that tax has been withheld unfairly under EU law.
Claims have been submitted in France and Germany.
The Pension Fund’s claims are set out in the following table in both euros and sterling (calculated using exchange
rates as at 31 March 2019). The claims are subject to legal processes but based on precedent and legal advice,
the Pension Fund expects to be successful in these claims. Therefore the amounts below are contingent assets for
the Pension Fund.
Euro Value
at 31 March 2019

Sterling Value
at 31 March
2019

€ 000s

£ 000s

Germany

148

128

France

191

164

Total

339

292

Country

b)

Bonds

26 admitted bodies in the Pension Fund held bonds as surety to guard against the possibility of being unable to
meet their pension obligations. These bonds are drawn in favour of the Pension Fund and payment will only be
triggered in the event of employer default.

Note 22: Investment Strategy Statement
Regulation 7 of the Local Government Pension Fund Regulations 2016 (Management and Investment of Funds)
set out a requirement for funds to formulate and publish a new Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) no later than
st
st
1 April 2018. The Hertfordshire Pension Fund published its ISS on 31 March 2018, and it can be found on the
Fund’s website: http://www.yourpension.org.uk/Hertfordshire/Fund-information/Policy-statements.aspx.

Agenda Pack Page 239

Page | 158

Firefighters’ Pension Fund Accounts

Agenda Pack Page 240

Page | 159

Firefighter’s Pension Fund
Fund account for year ended 31 March 2019
2017/18
£000s

2018/19
£000s

Note

(2,733)
(41)
(2,168)
(4,942)
(49)
(49)
10,304
2,610
12,914
7,923
(7,923)
-

Contributions receivable
From employer:
- contributions in relation to pensionable pay
- ill health early retirements
From members:
- Firefighters’ contributions
Total - Contributions receivable
Transfers in
- from other authorities
Total - Transfers in

(2,696)
(41)
(2,208)
3
4

Deficit for the year before top-up grant receivable
from central Government
Top-up grant payable by central Government

(20)
(20)

Benefits payable
- pensions
- commutations and lump sum retirement
benefits
- lump sum death benefits
- other (GAD vs Milne)
Total - Benefits payable
Payments to and on account of leavers
- refunds of contributions
- transfers out to other authorities
Total - Payments to and on account of leavers

(4,945)

11,072
3,964
15,036
-

4

10,071
5

(10,071)
-

Net assets statement as at 31 March 2019
2017/18
£000s

2018/19
£000s
Current assets
Top-up grant receivable from central
Government

1,536

3,398

1,536

3,398
Current liabilities
Amount owing to the General Fund

(1,536)
(1,536)
-

(3,398)
(3,398)
-

Net Assets

Scott Crudgington
Director of Resources
Date 31 May 2019

Agenda Pack Page 241

Page | 160

Firefighter’s Pension Fund
Summary of the Firefighters’ Pension Fund Operations
The Firefighters’ Pension Fund was established under the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (Amendment)
Order 2006.
Until the end of March 2006 the council was responsible for paying the pensions of its former firefighting
employees on a ‘pay-as-you-go’ basis. This meant that employees’ contributions were paid into the
council’s accounts from which pensions awards were made and the council received funding from central
government as part of general Formula Grant to support payments of pensions.
From 1 April 2011, the council has continued, through its scheme administrator, London Pensions
Partnership (LPP) (previously London Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA)), to administer and discharge its
responsibility for paying the pensions of retired officers, their survivors and others who are eligible for
benefits under the new and existing pension schemes.
Regular firefighters employed before 6 April 2006 were eligible for membership of the 1992 Firefighters'
Pension Scheme. When this scheme closed a new 2006 Firefighters’ Pension Scheme was introduced for
regular and retained firefighters employed since 6 April 2006. On 1st April 2015, a new 2015 Firefighters’
Pension Scheme came into effect. The two previous Schemes (Firefighters' Pension Scheme 1992 and
Firefighters' Pension Scheme 2006) continue in force for firefighters who were serving before that date and
who are eligible to remain members of their earlier Scheme.
In 2015, the Modified Retained Pension Scheme was also introduced which gave retained firefighters
employed between 1 July 2000 and 5 April 2006 inclusive the opportunity to pay historic contributions and
buy back their service for this period.
The Modified Retained scheme does not constitute a scheme on its
own but rather a modified section of the 2006 scheme with different benefits.
The new financial arrangements are for the 1992, 2006 and 2015 Firefighters’ Pension Schemes and have no
impact on the terms and conditions of either scheme.
The Firefighters’ Pension Fund is an unfunded defined benefits scheme meaning that there are no
investment assets available to meet pension liabilities. Employee contributions and a new employer's
contribution are paid into the pension fund from which pension payments are made. The fund is topped up
by central Government grant if the contributions are insufficient to meet the cost of pension payments and
any surplus in the fund is recouped by central Government. The underlying principle is that employer and
employee contributions together will meet the full cost of pension liabilities being accrued in respect of
currently serving employees, while central Government will meet the costs of retirement pensions in
payment, net of employee and the new employer contributions.
The financing of pension payments was taken out of the Formula Grant from April 2006 which instead now
takes into account the funding needed to support the cost of the employer contributions and lump sum
payments in respect of ill-health early retirements.

Accounting Policies
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the 2012 Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom based on IFRS and summarise the transactions and net assets of the
Firefighters’ Pension Fund and do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after 31
March 2019.

Contributions Receivable
Employer and Employee Contributions
Employees’ and employer’s contribution levels are set nationally by central government and are subject to
triennial revaluation by the central Government Actuary’s Department.
The purpose of the employee and employer contribution rates under the new arrangements is to meet the
accruing pension liabilities of currently serving firefighters. This means the council must meet the full cost of
employing firefighters, including the cost of future pension liabilities, at the time of employing them.

Agenda Pack Page 242

Page | 161

Firefighter’s Pension Fund
Separate contribution rates, as a percentage of pensionable pay, apply to the 1992 Firefighters’ Pension
Scheme, the 2006 Firefighters’ Pension Scheme and the 2015 Firefighters’ Pension Scheme, as shown
below.

1992 Firefighters’ Pension Scheme
Pensionable Pay Band
Up to and including £15,609
More than £15,609 and up to and including £21,852
More than £21,852 and up to and including £31,218
More than £31,218 and up to and including £41,624
More than £41,624 and up to and including £52,030
More than £52,030 and up to and including £62,436
More than £62,436 and up to and including £104,060
More than £104,060 and up to and including £124,872
More than £124,872
2006 Firefighters’ Pension Scheme
Pensionable Pay Band
Up to and including £15,609
More than £15,454 and up to and including £21,852
More than £21,852 and up to and including £31,218
More than £31,218 and up to and including £41,624
More than £41,624 and up to and including £52,030
More than £52,030 and up to and including £62,436
More than £62,436 and up to and including £104,060
More than £104,060 and up to and including £124,872
More than £124,872
2015 Firefighters’ Pension Scheme
Pensionable Pay Band
Up to and including £27,818
More than £27,818 and up to and including £51,515
More than £51,515 and up to and including £142,500
More than £142,501

Employer
%

Employee
%

21.7
21.7
21.7
21.7
21.7
21.7
21.7
21.7
21.7

11.0
12.2
14.2
14.7
15.2
15.5
16.0
16.5
17.0

11.9
11.9
11.9
11.9
11.9
11.9
11.9
11.9
11.9

8.5
9.4
10.4
10.9
11.2
11.3
11.7
12.1
12.5

14.3
14.3
14.3
14.3

11.0
12.9
13.5
14.5

Contributions received by the Fund are analysed below.

1992 Firefighters’ Pension Scheme
2006 Firefighters’ Pension Scheme
2015 Firefighters’ Pension Scheme
Modified Retained – Service Buy Back

Employer
2017/18
2018/19
£000s
£000s
1,115
762
33
15
1,585
1,919
2,733
2,696

Employee
2017/18
2018/19
£000s
£000s
735
516
28
12
1,396
1,680
9
2,168
2,208

Agenda Pack Page 243

Page | 162

Firefighter’s Pension Fund
Ill-Health Early Retirements
Early retirements due to ill-health could, with effect from 1 April 2006, have required the council to make a lump
sum payment into the pension fund of 4× average pensionable pay in respect of all higher tier ill-health retirements
and 2× average pensionable pay in respect of all lower tier ill-health retirements, reintroducing some in-year
financial volatility, as the number of firefighters who retire on grounds of ill-health will vary from year to year.
However, to deal with this volatility, authorities are required to spread the charges credited to the pension fund
equally over a period of three years. The initial payment tranche being made at the time of retirement and
subsequent tranches made, without the addition of interest, on 1 April each financial year.
Other approved early retirements have a real cost, which must be covered by employers. These costs will be
actuarially calculated for each individual, using a table of factors, and the council will be required to make a
payment into the pension fund.
Contributions received by the Fund are analysed below.
Employer
2017/18
2018/19
£000s
£000s
1992 Firefighters’ Pension Scheme

41
41

41
41

Ill health charges in 2018-19 and 2017-18 consist of £41k in higher tier.

Transfers to or from other schemes
Where a firefighter transfers to or from another Fire and Rescue Authority within England there is no need for a
cash transfer. A firefighter who transfers out of the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme to another pension scheme, or to
the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme in Scotland, Wales or Northern Ireland, is entitled to ask for a Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value to be paid across, equivalent to the value of their pension rights on leaving the Firefighters’ Pension
Scheme.
This would be paid from the Firefighters’ Pension Fund and similarly an inward Transfer Value should be paid into
the fund.

Top-up Grant
Since 1 April 2006, where employer and employee contributions paid into the Firefighters’ Pension Fund are not
sufficient to meet pension payments for the year, the deficit has been met by a Central Government top-up grant
paid by the Home Office from 1st April 2016 (previously Department for Communities and Local Government). Any
surplus in the fund must be paid back to central Government as the party that brings the account back to a nil
balance at the end of each year.

Liabilities after year end
The Fund’s financial statements do not take account of the liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after 31
March 2019, which are disclosed separately in Note 37 of the main HCC accounts.

Agenda Pack Page 244

Page | 163

Glossary

Agenda Pack Page 245

Page | 164

Glossary
This glossary is intended to provide the reader with a clear and concise explanation of the technical terms used in
this report.
Accounting Policies
Those principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by an entity that specify how the effects of
transactions and other events are to be reflected in its financial statements.
Accrual Accounting
The inclusion of income and expenditure within the accounts for the financial year in which they are earned or
incurred, not when the money is received or paid.
Actuarial Gains and Losses
For defined benefit pension schemes, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because:

events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience gains
and losses); or

the actuarial assumptions have changed.
Agency Services
Services that are performed by or for another Authority or Public Body, where the principal, the authority
responsible for the service, reimburses the agent, the authority carrying out the work, for the cost of the work
carried out.
Amortised Cost Using the Effective Interest Rate Method
The amortised cost using the effective interest rate method applies to both financial assets and liabilities carried at
amortised cost. It is a method of determining, from the expected cash flows, the balance sheet carrying amount of
such assets and liabilities and the periodic charges or credits to the Income and Expenditure Account of a financial
instrument.
Asset
An item that has value owned by the council. Examples would be land, buildings and stocks.
Balance Sheet
This provides a summary of all the assets and liabilities of the council, bringing together all the accounts of the
council except the Pension Fund and various Trust Funds whose assets are not at the disposal of the council.
Billing Authority
The local authority responsible for collecting the Council Tax from residential properties in their area. In
Hertfordshire this is the responsibility of the Borough and District Councils.
Budget
A statement of the council’s policy expressed in financial terms. This includes both revenue and capital
expenditure.
Capital Adjustment Account
The opening balance on this account represents the combined total of the Fixed Asset Restatement Account and
the Capital Financing Account which were replaced at 1 April 2007. From 2007/08 the movements on the Capital
Adjustment Account reflects financing of capital expenditure from revenue and capital resources, together with the
reversal of amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required by statute to be excluded when
determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year.
Capital Expenditure
Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds to and not merely maintains the value of
an existing fixed asset.
Capital Financing Requirement
The amount of money the council would need to borrow to finance its capital expenditure. The Minimum Revenue
Provision in relation to this debt is calculated with reference to estimated life of the asset for which borrowing is
undertaken at the end of the preceding financial year.

Agenda Pack Page 246

Page | 165

Glossary
Capital Receipts
The proceeds from the sale of fixed assets such as land and buildings. Capital receipts can be used to repay
outstanding debt on fixed assets or finance capital expenditure within rules set down by government. Capital
receipts however cannot be used to finance revenue expenditure.
Capital Receipts Reserve
Contains the proceeds from the sale of fixed assets that are available to either finance capital expenditure or repay
debt.
Carry Forwards
These are underspends at the year-end which Members and officers, under delegated powers, have agreed to
carry forward to the next year to support that year’s expenditure plans.
CIPFA
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. The principal accounting body dealing with local
government finance.
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
The Code is based on approved accounting standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, except where these are
inconsistent with specific statutory requirements. The Code also draws on approved accounting standards issued
by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board and the UK Accounting Standards Board where
these provide additional guidance.
Collection Fund
A fund administered by each billing authority. Council Tax monies are paid into the fund whilst part of the net
revenue expenditure of the council is met from the Collection Fund.
Component Accounting
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the
item shall be depreciated separately. Where there is more than one significant part of the same asset which has
the same useful life and depreciation method, such parts may be grouped in determining the depreciation charge.
In practice this can be achieved by only separately accounting for significant components that have different useful
lives and/or depreciation methods.
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Consistency
The principle that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period and from one period to the
next is the same.
Constructive Obligation
An obligation that derives from a council’s actions, where by an established pattern of past practice, published
policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the council has indicated to other parties that it will accept
certain responsibilities, and as a result, the council has created a valid expectation on the part of those other
parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.
Contingent Liability
A potential liability at the balance sheet date, the outcome of which is uncertain, as it is dependent on a future
event.
Corporate and Democratic Core
Comprises all activities which local authorities engage in specifically because they are elected, multi-purpose
authorities. The costs of these activities are thus over and above those that would be incurred by a series of
independent, single purpose, nominated bodies managing the same services. There is therefore no logical basis
for apportioning these costs to services.

Agenda Pack Page 247

Page | 166

Glossary
Council Tax
A property based tax that is administered by District, Borough and Unitary Councils.
Creditors
Amounts owed by the council at the balance sheet date for goods and services supplied. This will include receipts
in advance that have not been applied at the balance sheet date.
Current Asset
An asset that is realisable or disposable within one year.
Current Liability
Amounts that are due to be settled within one year.
Current Service Cost (Pensions)
The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s liability expected to arise from employee service in
the current period.
Curtailment
For a defined benefit scheme, an event that reduces the expected years of future service of present employees or
reduces for a number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for some or all of their future service.
Curtailments include:
 termination of employee’s services earlier than expected; and
 termination of, or amendment to the terms of, a defined benefit scheme so that some or all future service
by current employees will no longer qualify for benefits or will qualify only for reduced benefits.
Debtors
Amounts due to the council at the balance sheet date.
Deferred Credits
Capital income potentially due to be received in future periods.
Defined Benefit Scheme
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme. Usually, the scheme rules
define the benefits independently of the contributions payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the
investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded or un-funded (including notionally funded).
Defined Contribution Scheme
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an employer pays regular contributions fixed as an amount
or as a percentage of pay and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme
does not have sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current or prior
periods.
Depreciated Replacement Cost
The method employed in valuing land and buildings where a market value basis is not readily available.
Depreciation
The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the fixed asset that have been consumed during the
period. Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset whether
arising from use, passage of time or obsolescence through either changes in technology or demand for the goods
and services produced by the asset.
Discretionary Benefits
Retirement benefits which the employer has no legal, contractual or constructive obligation to award and are
awarded under the council’s discretionary powers such as The Local Government (Discretionary Payments)
Regulations 2006.
Doubtful Debts
A provision made by the council based on age and particular circumstances relating to amounts owed to the
council.

Agenda Pack Page 248

Page | 167

Glossary
Earmarked Reserves
Sums set aside to meet revenue or capital expenditure needs in the future. Reserves offer the scope for greater
flexibility in financing future expenditure.
Emoluments
Amounts paid to employees, including expenses or non-monetary benefits that are taxable.
Estimation Techniques
The methods adopted to arrive at estimated monetary amounts, corresponding to the measurement bases
selected, for assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves.
Exceptional Items
Material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary activities of the council, and
which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence in order to give fair presentation of the
accounts.
Exit Packages
All relevant redundancy costs including compulsory and voluntary redundancy costs, pension contributions in
respect of added years, ex-gratia payments and other departure costs.
Extraordinary Items
Material abnormal items which derive from events or transactions that fall outside the ordinary activities of the
council and which are not expected to recur.
Fair Value
The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction less, where
applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of the asset.
Fees and Charges
Income raised by charging users of services for the facilities. For example, the supply of school meals and home
help.
Financial Asset
A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the council that is represented by cash or other
instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.
Financial Instrument
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such as those relating to taxes and government grants,
do not give rise to financial instruments.
Finance Lease
Arrangements whereby the lessee is treated as owner of the leased asset and is required to include such assets
within fixed assets on the balance sheet.
Financial Liability
A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the council, either by a contractual
obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another
entity that are potentially unfavourable to the council.
Formula Grant
Central Government provides funding to local authorities through a general grant known as Formula Grant, made
up of Revenue Support Grant and Re-distributed Business Rates, in support of its general revenue expenditure.
Foundation School
A school that receives funding from the council but owns its land and buildings.
General Fund Balance
The excess to date of income over expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account.

Agenda Pack Page 249

Page | 168

Glossary
Going Concern
The concept that the council will remain in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Income and
expenditure accounts and the balance sheet are produced on the basis that there is no intention to curtail
significantly the scale of operations.
Government Grants
Assistance by government and inter-government agencies and similar bodies. When applied, revenue grants are
credited to the appropriate service revenue account.
Heritage Assets
An asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental qualities, that is held and
maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture.
Historical Cost
The value of capital expenditure originally incurred.
International Financial Reporting Standards
The Code of Practice is the first to be based on International Financial Reporting Standards and has been
developed by the CIPFA/LASAAC Code Board under the oversight of the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.
Impairment
A reduction in the value of a fixed asset below its carrying amount on the balance sheet. Examples would include
loss in value due to physical damage or decline in market value due to a general fall in prices.
Infrastructure Assets
Assets such as highways, footpaths and railways, whose value is through continued use i.e. there is no prospect of
sale or alternative use.
Intangible Assets
Non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance and which provide future economic benefits or service
potential.
Investments (Non-Pensions Fund)
A long-term investment is an investment that is intended to be held for use on a continuing basis in the activities of
the council. Investments, other than those in relation to the Pension Fund, that do not meet this criterion are
classified as current assets.
Investments (Pensions Fund)
The investments of the Pension Fund will be accounted for in the statements of that Fund. FRS17 Retirement
Benefits requires authorities to disclose their attributed share of pension scheme assets.
LASAAC
Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee
Liquid Resources
Current asset investments that are readily disposable by the council without disrupting its business and are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash.
Long Term Borrowing
Loans repayable more than one year after the balance sheet date.
Long Term Contracts
A contract entered into for the provision of a service where the time taken to complete the contract is such that the
contract falls into different accounting periods.
Long Term Debtors
Amounts due to the council more than one year after the balance sheet date.
Minimum Revenue Provision
An amount that the council is required to charge to the general fund, to provide for the repayment of debt related to
capital expenditure.

Agenda Pack Page 250

Page | 169

Glossary
Movement in Reserves Statement
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the council, analysed into ‘usable
reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The
Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the council’s
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
National Non-Domestic Rates
A rate in the pound, set by Central Government at a standard countrywide rate, applied to the rateable value of
each premise not being used for domestic purposes.
Net Book Value
The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet. This would be either the asset’s historic cost
or current value less the cumulative amount provided for depreciation.
Net Current Replacement Cost
The cost of replacing an asset in its existing condition and its existing use.
Net Debt
For cash flow statement presentation purposes, net debt comprises the council’s borrowings plus bank overdrawn
positions less positive bank and cash balances, short and long term investments.
Non Distributed Costs
Costs that cannot be directly attributed to services.
Net Interest on the Net Defined Liability
The change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time. The net
interest on the net defined liability (asset) comprises the interest income on plan assets, interest cost on the defined
benefit obligation and interest on the effect of the asset ceiling
Operating Lease
An arrangement whereby the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset remain with the lessor.
Overhanging Discounts and Premiums
Discounts or premiums occurring as a result of debt restructuring that cannot be linked with the replacement loan.
Past Service Cost
For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value of the scheme liabilities related to employee
service in prior periods arising in the current period as a result of the introduction of, or improvement to, retirement
benefits.
Pension Fund
An employees’ pension fund maintained by a council, or a group of authorities, in order primarily to make pension
payments on retirement of participants. It is financed from contributions from the employing authority, the employee
and investment income.
Post Balance Sheet Events
Events both favourable and unfavourable that occur between the balance sheet date and the date on which the
responsible financial officer signs the Statement of Accounts.
Precept
The levy made by precepting authorities on billing authorities, requiring the latter to collect income from Council Tax
and Business Rates payers on their behalf.
Precepting Authorities
Those authorities which are not billing authorities (i.e. do not collect Council Tax and Business Rates). County
Councils, Police Authorities and Joint Authorities are ‘major precepting authorities’ and Parish, Community and
Town Councils are ‘local precepting authorities’.
Prior Period Adjustments
Those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting policies or from the
correction of fundamental errors.

Agenda Pack Page 251

Page | 170

Glossary
Private Finance Initiative
The private finance initiative provides a way of funding major capital investments, without immediate recourse to
the public purse. Private consortia, usually involving large construction firms, are contracted to design, build, and in
some cases manage new projects. In return the private sector receives payment linked to performance in meeting
agreed standards of provision.
Projected Unit Method
An accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme liabilities make allowance for projected earnings. An
accrued benefits valuation method is a valuation method in which the scheme liabilities at the valuation date relate
to:



the benefits for pensioners and deferred pensioners (i.e. individuals who have ceased to be active
members but are entitled to benefits payable at a later date) and their dependants, allowing where
appropriate for future increases; and
the accrued benefits for members in service on the valuation date.

The accrued benefits are the benefits for service up to a given point in time, whether vested rights or not. Guidance
on the projected unit method is given in the Guidance Note GN26 issued by the Faculty and Institute of Actuaries.
Provisions
Sums set aside to meet future expenditure where a specific liability is known to exist but that cannot be measured
accurately.
Prudence
The concept that revenue is not anticipated but is recognised only when realised in the form of either cash or of
other assets, the ultimate realisation of which can be assessed with reasonable certainty.
Public Works Loan Board
A government agency established to provide long-term loans to local authorities to finance part of their capital
expenditure.
Rateable Value
Rateable value of a property is based on an assessment of the annual rental value for non-domestic property.
Rateable value multiplied by the rate in the £ levied equals the rate payments for the year.
Related Parties
For a relationship to be treated as a related party relationship there has to be some element of control or influence
by one party over another, or by a third party over the two parties.
Related Party Transaction
A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, to or for a related
party irrespective of whether a charge is made.
Resources and Performance
A directorate of the council which contains the services organised on a corporate basis that support the delivery of
services to the public.
Retirement Benefits
All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services rendered by employees that are payable
after the completion of employment. Retirement benefits do not include termination benefits payable as a result of
either an employer’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date or an
employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits, because these are not given in
exchange for services rendered by employees.
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined liability
This is defined as interest, dividends and other income derived from the plan assets, together with realised and
unrealised gains and losses on the plan assets, less:


any costs of managing plan assets, and

Agenda Pack Page 252

Page | 171

Glossary


any tax payable by the plan itself, other than tax included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

Revaluation Reserve
Gains and losses on an individual asset basis arising from revaluations are reflected within the Revaluation
Reserve.
Revenue Contingency
A sum set-aside for future pay and price increases.
Revenue Contributions to Capital Outlay
Contributions from revenue to finance capital expenditure.
Revenue Expenditure and Income
This is expenditure on day-to-day running costs and consists primarily of salaries and wages, premises related
costs and supplies and services. Revenue income will include fees and charges and service specific grants.
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Expenditure which does not result in, or remain matched with, assets controlled by the council.
Revenue Support Grant
A grant paid by central government in aid of local authority services in general, as opposed to specific grants, which
may only be used for a specified purpose.
Scheme Liabilities
The liabilities of a defined benefit scheme for outgoings due after the valuation date. Scheme liabilities measured
using the projected unit method, reflect the benefits that the employer is committed to provide for service up to the
valuation date.
Settlement
An irrevocable action that relieves the employer (or the defined benefit scheme) of the primary responsibility for a
pension obligation and eliminates significant risks relating to the obligation and the assets used to effect the
settlement. Settlements include:




a lump-sum cash payment to scheme members in exchange for their rights to receive specified pension
benefits;
the purchase of an irrevocable annuity contract sufficient to cover vested benefits; and
the transfer of scheme assets and liabilities relating to a group of employees leaving the scheme.

Service Reporting Code of Practice
The Code that establishes ‘proper practices’ with regard to consistent financial reporting for services.
Short Term Borrowing
Loans repayable within one year of the balance sheet date.
Short Term Investments
Deposits with approved financial institutions which, when placed, had a maturity date of less than one year.
Soft Loans
Loans made for policy reasons that are interest free or at rates below prevailing market rates.
Specific Grants
Government grants to local authorities in aid of particular projects or services.
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice
A statement of accounting practice issued by the Accounting Standards Board.
Total Cost
The total cost of providing a service, including an appropriate share of all support services and overheads.

Agenda Pack Page 253

Page | 172

Glossary
Transfer Value
The value of an employee’s pension rights when transferring from one pension scheme to another.
Useful Life
The period over which the council will derive benefits from the use of a fixed asset.
Vested Rights
In relation to a defined benefit scheme, these are:




for active members, benefits to which they would unconditionally be entitled on leaving the scheme;
for deferred pensioners, their preserved benefits;
for pensioners, pensions to which they are entitled.

Vested rights include where appropriate the related benefits for spouses, civil partners or other dependants.

Agenda Pack Page 254

Page | 173

Annual Governance Statement

Agenda Pack Page 255

Annual Governance Statement
1.

Background
The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) require that Hertfordshire County Council prepare an
annual governance statement to accompany its Annual Financial Report.
The term ‘governance’ generally refers to the arrangements put in place to ensure that intended
outcomes are defined and achieved.

2.

The Code of Corporate Governance
Hertfordshire County Council’s Code of Corporate Governance is available on the council’s website
(www.Hertfordshire.gov.uk) and can be found under the “‘Who we are and what we do’” section.
The code sets out how the council complies with the governance principles set out in ‘Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government (2016)’ a document compiled as part of a joint initiative between the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief
Executives (SOLACE).
The principles and the way they integrate are set out in the international framework infographic below:

Agenda Pack Page 256

Page | 175

Annual Governance Statement
3.

The Governance Framework
Hertfordshire County Council has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements
to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In doing this, the council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of
its affairs as well as ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper
standards and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically,
efficiently and effectively.
The Hertfordshire County Council Governance Framework comprises both the systems and processes
and the culture and values through which it directs and controls its operations, as well as the
mechanisms through which it engages with and leads the community.
This framework is designed to enable the council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives
and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

4.

Key Elements of The Governance Framework
The Governance Framework summarised in this Statement has been in place at the council for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts. Some of the key
elements of the council’s governance framework are described below.
The Council’s Constitution sets out the rules under which the organisation conducts its business. The
Constitution aims to enable the council to provide clear leadership to the community, in partnership with
the public, businesses and other organisations; support the active involvement of members of the public
in decision-making; help Councillors represent their constituents; enable decisions to be taken efficiently
and effectively; enable decision-makers to be held to account; and ensure that decision-makers are
identifiable and that reasons are given for decisions. All the annexes to the Constitution were reviewed
and where necessary updated during the year.
The council’s most recent Corporate Plan covers the period 2017-2021 and sets out a vision for
Hertfordshire to remain a county where people have the opportunity to live healthy, fulfilling lives in
thriving, prosperous communities. It outlines four cross-cutting themes that include key priorities for the
County.
The four themes are:





Opportunity to Thrive
Opportunity to Prosper
Opportunity to be Healthy and Safe
Opportunity to Take Part.

The Integrated Plan provides the associated financial and human resource plans together with
information on how the council achieves value for money in the provision of services, and the treasury
management strategy. The Integrated Plan is developed through a robust review and challenge process
involving both Cabinet Panels and Scrutiny.
The council utilises a system of all-party Cabinet Panels to consider policy development for each
service area.
The council publishes an Annual Report which summarises significant developments and
achievements for the period. The report sets out how the council’s finances have been applied to meet
its priorities and also outlines some of the potential challenges and opportunities it will face in the
coming year. The document also reinforces Hertfordshire County Council’s commitment to working with

Agenda Pack Page 257

Page | 176

Annual Governance Statement
communities and providing services through methods of delivery that demonstrate its values and
behaviours.
The council has well-established Scrutiny Arrangements which act to hold the Executive to account by
scrutinising decisions made by, or on behalf of the council or Cabinet and any operational or policy
aspect of the council’s business. Additionally, the council’s Health Scrutiny Committee considers
strategic countywide health matters. Councillors are also able to scrutinise any issue which affects the
County and its residents which may be outside the council’s control. Full details of the topics under
scrutiny can be accessed on the council’s website. Progress on the implementation of agreed scrutiny
recommendations is monitored regularly.
Hertfordshire Forward is the local strategic partnership which brings together all the key agencies in the
county to improve the quality of life and wellbeing of Hertfordshire residents. Originally there were three
elements to Hertfordshire Forward: the Assembly, the Strategy Group and the annual conference. In
2018, the decision was taken to cease the Assembly and the Strategy Group, as partnership working
across Hertfordshire has developed considerably since the Assembly was established in 2013. We have
much stronger and more active partnership working across all sectors and there is a risk of duplication
of effort in organising events. Hertfordshire County Council remains strongly committed to partnership
engagement. We recognise the importance of bringing all partners from across the county together to
collectively discuss the key issues facing us all and the strategic partnerships approach to tackling these
and will continue to hold an annual conference.
The 2018 conference Building Hertfordshire: fit for the future was held on Wednesday 19
September 2018 at Rothamsted Conference centre, Harpenden with attendance nearing 90
partners from across the county. The theme was Growth and the Local Industrial Strategy and
delegates considered the significant growth in housing and jobs planned for the county over the next
fifteen years. As part of this, work is underway by the Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership to
develop a Local Industrial Strategy for the county. The growth presents an opportunity to shape the
future of Hertfordshire – not least through the Local Industrial Strategy for the county and this annual
conference provided an excellent opportunity for partners from all sectors to input into building a
Hertfordshire fit for the future.
The council has Integrated Strategic and Service Level Performance Reporting processes, which
facilitate continuous improvement and identify and support early identification and rectification of any
service delivery issues.
These arrangements are supported by the council’s Performance Management and Development
Scheme through which objectives for individual employees are set and monitored, and plans for
individual development are agreed. This is underpinned by the Staff Development Charter which
provides a framework for assessing and meeting the learning and development needs of officers. The
council has adopted a set of Values and Behaviours to reinforce what is expected of employees and
managers.
There is an on-going Councillor Development Programme to support them in all their roles, with
dedicated learning and development support and a system of deputy Cabinet members that facilitates
succession planning. Work to support Councillors in their local work is part of the council’s approach to
localism; this has included development of an IT portal to provide Councillors with ready access to a
wide range of information about their local communities and Hertfordshire more widely.
The council’s systems of Internal Control are a significant part of the Governance Framework and are
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level however they cannot eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives. The system of internal control is based around an on-going
process designed to:
 Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the council’s policies, aims and objectives;
 Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised; and
 Manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

Agenda Pack Page 258

Page | 177

Annual Governance Statement
The council has a well-developed Risk Management Strategy and Embedded Risk Monitoring
Processes, which operate at the highest levels of the organisation and are overseen by the council’s
Audit Committee. The risks associated with meeting budget targets are also considered as part of the
integrated planning process and then monitored in quarterly reports to Cabinet.
The council has designated the Director of Resources as Senior Information Risk Owner and the
Information Governance Unit and the IT Security Team provide advice and guidance on this area.
The council has an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy setting out its commitment to prevent and
detect fraud and corruption.
The council has a Whistleblowing Policy which clearly sets out arrangements in place for reporting
and investigating any concern relating to a deficiency or breach in the provision of services; the
guidance reassures that this may be done without fear of recrimination.
The council has continued to maintain Equality and Diversity at the forefront of its service delivery and
employment practices. The council annually publishes evidence of its progress against the objectives
contained in its Equality Strategy to demonstrate to the public of Hertfordshire, how it intends to
continue to meet the needs of all of Hertfordshire's communities. Equality impact assessments assess
the impact of policies and proposals upon council employees and service users and a cumulative
impact assessment is carried out as part of the integrated planning process.
The council’s Website includes: facilities that allow members of the public to submit complaints relating
to the various directorates; mechanisms for reporting suspected fraud and corruption (anonymously if
required); and access to information on current consultations, petitions etc.

5.

Review of Effectiveness
Hertfordshire County Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the
effectiveness of local governance arrangements, including the system of internal control. The review of
effectiveness is informed by: the work of the senior managers within the council who have responsibility
for the development and maintenance of the governance environment; the Head of Assurance’s Annual
Report; and also by comments made by External Audit and other review agencies and inspectorates.
The preparation and publication of the Annual Governance Statement in accordance with ‘Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government Framework (2016)’ fulfils the statutory requirement for the
annual review of the effectiveness of systems of internal control and also meets the requirement for
‘preparation in accordance with proper practice’.
The Cabinet, on behalf of the council, charges the Audit Committee with keeping the effectiveness of
the council’s systems for internal control under review. At its quarterly meetings the Audit Committee
receives and considers reports on the council’s overall risk management arrangements and also
receives reports on specific risk issues that are considered worthy of individual reporting by Internal
Audit or the officers of the council. The Audit Committee approves the Internal Audit Plan of Work
and receives regular updates on progress against the plan as well as copies of the final reports for
individual reviews. The Audit Committee considers the overall annual opinion on internal control
provided by the Shared Internal Audit Service along with the opinions on the council’s accounts
provided by External Audit.
The Head of Assurance’s Annual Report on the internal control environment, prepared in accordance
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, provides an independent opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the council’s system of internal control in respect of its financial and non-financial
systems.
The overall assurance opinions for both areas of internal control are set out in the tables below which
also detail the opinions for the two elements of the control systems these being: the design of the
control (that it is fit for purpose) and the operation of the control (that it is being complied with).

Agenda Pack Page 259

Page | 178

Annual Governance Statement

A. Financial Systems
Overall Assurance
Opinion

Element
Design
of
Control

Opinion

Satisfactory
Assurance

The internal control framework is
largely working well in managing
the key risks in scope, with some
audit findings related to the
current arrangements

Satisfactory
Assurance

The internal control framework is
largely working well in managing
the key risks in scope, with some
audit findings related to the
current arrangements

Satisfactory
Assurance
Operation
of
Control

Definition of Opinion

B. Non-Financial Systems
Overall Assurance
Opinion

Element
Design
of
Control

Opinion

Satisfactory
Assurance

The internal control framework is
largely working well in managing
the key risks in scope, with some
audit findings related to the
current arrangements

Limited
Assurance

The system of internal control is
only partially effective, with
important audit findings in key
areas. Improvement in the design
and/or operation of the control
environment is necessary to gain
assurance risks are being
managed to an acceptable level,
and core objectives will be
achieved.

Limited
Assurance
Operation
of
Control

Definition of Opinion

When considering these opinions it should be noted that in 2018/19 the Shared Internal Service moved
from a five tier assurance opinion matrix (Full, Substantial, Moderate, Limited and No Assurance) to one
that contains four tiers (Good, Satisfactory, Limited and None).
The council ensures corporate ownership of the Annual Governance Statement through requiring
members of its Joint Leadership Team to complete a Service Assurance Statement covering the
controls in place in their service areas. The statement provides assurance that they have reviewed
arrangements for meeting their responsibilities in relation to having:

Agenda Pack Page 260

Page | 179

Annual Governance Statement











Plans that set out how corporate objectives and other legal and regulatory; requirements are to be
achieved;
Adequate arrangements for monitoring performance;
Adequate resource in both number and skills to deliver service objectives;
Appropriate risk management arrangements in place;
Arrangements for ensuring that agreed recommendations resulting from internal audit, external
audit or other inspectorate work are implemented;
Procedures that ensure timely responses to all types of query and complaint;
Processes that ensure compliance with relevant legislation
Partnership arrangements that are well founded, clearly defined and adequately;
Mechanisms for ensuring staff are aware of the HCC’s Values and Behaviours; its Code of Conduct
and related policies e.g. whistleblowing, equalities etc.; and
Business continuity plans that are communicated to staff as necessary.

A draft version of the Annual Governance Statement is considered at Strategic Management Board and
scrutinised by the Audit Committee at its meeting in May, prior to signing by the Chief Executive and
Leader of the Council.

6.

Activities Involving Group Governance
The council has varying stakes in a variety of trading entities which are listed below:


Herts Living Limited - this company is wholly owned by the council. The County Council has
appointed a private sector partner to enter a joint venture partnership with Herts Living Limited under
the name Chalkdene Developments LLP; the partnership aims to build new homes as well as
community and ancillary buildings in the County over the next 15 years.



Herts for Learning Limited - is a schools company of which the council has a 20% stake; it operates
to provide support services to education providers.



Hertfordshire Catering Limited - this company is wholly owned by the council and provides catering
services to Colleges, Academies and Schools.



Herts FullStop (formerly Surecare Supplies Limited) - this company is wholly owned by the council.
It provides a wide variety of equipment and supplies to non-profit making groups and to private
businesses who predominately service the care and education sectors.



Libraries for Life - In October 2018 the County Council agreed to establish a Public Service Mutual
(PSM) a company that will be limited by guarantee and a registered charity. Once fully established
the PSM will tender for the contract to deliver Hertfordshire Library Services in 2019/20.

Oversight of governance arrangements for the above entities is provided by either: a dedicated Audit
Committee e.g. for Hertfordshire Catering Limited or through the inclusion of council Officers on the
relevant Board of Directors. The council will be provided with further assurance in respect of these
governance activities when an internal audit review of the arrangements currently in place is carried out
as part of the 2019/20 HCC Internal Audit Plan.
The Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) brings together representatives from local
government, education and the business community. In Hertfordshire, the LEP operates as a voluntary
partnership. For 2018/19 the council has maintained a dual role, as the ‘Accountable Body’ in regards to
oversight of public money and also as a key partner involved in decision-making.

Agenda Pack Page 261

Page | 180

Annual Governance Statement
7. Update on Significant Governance Issues identified in the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement
The following table provides an update on the significant governance issues reported in the 2017/18 Statement; as some of the issues remain current this
table should be considered alongside the items set out in Section 8 (below)

Agenda Pack Page 262

Item

Directorate

2017/18 Issue

2018/19 Update

7.1

Environment
&
Infrastructure

The Highways service needs to contribute to the council’s new
approach to growth

The Highways Implementation and Strategy Unit has been
moved to the same Assistant Director team as the Growth Unit.
This will enable more cohesive and joined up working (across
Growth & Highways) in the governance and development of the
council’s major development sites.
The Service is also developing close partnership working with
District Councils, including working from their sites on a weekly
basis, so as to establish a new approach with regard to
developing and implementing their Local Plans.

7.2

Community
Protection

The council is awaiting a decision on the Police and Crime
Commissioner’s (PCC) bid to take over from HCC as the Fire
Authority.
As a result, replacement of the current Integrated Risk Management
Plan (IRMP) for the Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service (HFRS)
has been delayed.

The PCC has suspended his business case in favour of a
collaborative partnership with the County Council. This has
been supported by the formation of a number of agreements
and arrangements including a strategic board jointly chaired by
the PCC and the Leader of the Council

In addition, in the event of HFRS moving to the Hertfordshire Police
and Crime Commissioner, there is uncertainty around governance
arrangements for the parts of the Community Protection Directorate
remaining within HCC.
7.3

Adult
Care
Services

Workforce and associated cost pressures, including the
unavailability of care workers in some high employment areas of the
County remains an area of significant challenge, impacting activities
such as delayed transfers of care etc.

A comprehensive adult social care workforce strategy was
agreed by Cabinet in 2018 and is now being implemented. HCC
also sit on the NHS Strategic Workforce Board and have
convened a partnership board to enable partners to assist in the
recruitment and retention challenge. Good Care Week and other
recruitment campaigns have taken place and Herts Rewards
has been extended to all Hertfordshire care workers regardless
of employer to aid staff retention. The national recruitment
campaign took place in February 2019 and we received
heightened interest resulting in additional job offers. The
Page | 181

Annual Governance Statement
Item

Directorate

2017/18 Issue

2018/19 Update
workforce shortage remains a huge challenge and the risk of
no-deal Brexit heightens this risk.

7.4

Resources Libraries

Uncertainty around the future delivery model for Library Services
with potential for it to be developed into a Mutual.

There is ongoing uncertainty around the future delivery model
for Hertfordshire Library Services. The County Council decided
in October 2018 to commence a public procurement process for
an independent provider to deliver the Library Service. This
procurement process commenced in February 2019 and the
result will not be known until the summer 2019.
In October 2018 the county council also decided to establish a
Public Service Mutual, a company limited by guarantee and
registered charity, so that it can tender for the contract to deliver
Hertfordshire Library Service

Agenda Pack Page 263

7.5

Resources Finance

Ongoing financial risks in relation to:





Demand for services, particularly in the area of adult social care;
Significant uncertainty on funding beyond 2019/20, with the end
of the current four year settlement;
Proposed changes to business rates retention; and
The impact of the Fair Funding review on the distribution of
resources.

Ongoing uncertainty in the timetable of key government
initiatives continues to delay further progress on the spending
review and in turn, the details of local government funding after
April 2020.
Savings continue to be delivered in line with plans and
monitoring to SMB and Cabinet through the finance monitor
reports is ongoing and was effective in 2018/19.
Planning for further savings beyond 2019/20 has begun early in
recognition of the savings required from April 2020 and the
complex timetable of decisions from both a member and an
officer perspective.
The County Council continues to monitor the development of
discussion and proposals relating to future funding and to make
representation where appropriate.

7.6

Resources Legal

Requirement to ensure transparency of decision making processes
relating to the development of Herts Living Limited (HLL) and the
associated joint property development arrangements.

The Strategic Assets Board has been established and it is
important that as it commences to operate that the roles
particularly of the Managing Director of HLL and that of any
other officer who is also a director of HLL are understood. A
Consultancy Agreement with HLL is nearing completion and this
Page | 182

Annual Governance Statement
Item

Directorate

2017/18 Issue

2018/19 Update
should help clarify the position.
Conflicts of interest advice has been produced but there is a
need to work through this with officers so that they understand
what it means in practice.

Agenda Pack Page 264

The arrangements with Herts Living Limited and the joint
venture arrangements are still being developed and it is
essential that more legal and finance resource and senior
property resource (not being a director of HLL) is dedicated to
ensure that there is good governance in the arrangements and
that the practical issues arising from the arrangements are
worked through and properly documented. As mentioned above
a consultancy agreement with HLL has been drafted and
service level agreements between the County Council and HLL
are being developed. A senior Herts Property officer needs
clearly to take ownership of HLL and the JV arrangements- and
as mentioned previously this cannot be any officer who is a
director of HLL.

8. Significant Governance Issues 2018/19
In addition to the updates on the matters referred to in Section 7 (above) the following issues have been raised as part of the 2018/19 review.
Item
8.1

Directorate
Council Wide

Issue

Action

The uncertainty around the United Kingdom’s approach to
its withdrawal from the European Union and the potential
related impacts for the council and the services that it
delivers.

The council’s Resilience Team has been co-ordinating a process to
consider and document the potential risks across the council based on
a range of Brexit scenarios and consider the mitigating actions.
This process has involved liaisons with designated representatives
within departments to establish their needs in areas of activity likely to
be impacted by the withdrawal. In addition, departments have
themselves been considering actions needed to address those
nationally highlighted areas.

Page | 183

Annual Governance Statement
Item

Directorate

Issue

Action

8.2

Adult Care
Services

Ensuring that the council contributes to the development
of integrated care systems and alliances.

The County Council is pro-actively engaging in activities that will allow
it to contribute effectively to the development of integrated care
provision.
This includes:

Agenda Pack Page 265

8.3

Environment &
Infrastructure

Ensuring that Hertfordshire contributes to the Growth
Agenda



Participation in the strategic partnership boards that govern joint
working with Clinical Commissioning Groups,



Championing the contribution of social care and wider local
authority services as part of the implementation of the
Sustainability and Transformation Partnerships (STP) Health and
Care Strategy, and



Working closely with the community NHS provider to ensure
delivery of the national Learning Disabilities Mortality Review
Programme.

The County Council has the lead role in supporting this evolving
approach. The Growth Board is a new and developing strategic
partnership across Hertfordshire that will lead the development of a
dialogue with government and investment partners to provide funding
for growth in the county.
Work continues to develop effective approaches to governance,
delivery and assurance across the partners in respect of bids made to
the Housing Infrastructure Fund as they move from submission toward
confirmation and subsequent mobilisation. This includes consideration
of the risks to the council as the Accountable Body and ensuring
delivery against the timescales agreed with Homes England.
In addition, internal processes are being reviewed to ensure that they
facilitate optimisation of securing support for new strategic
infrastructure through the planning process.

8.4

Resources

The Incorporation of the Hertfordshire Local Enterprise
Partnership

With the Local Enterprise Partnership establishing a separate
incorporated body from 1 April 2019, in line with Government policy,
the council will be reviewing its duties under the accountable body role
to ensure that they are being effectively discharged.

Page | 184

Annual Governance Statement
Item

Directorate

Issue

Action

8.5

Council Wide

Governance of County Council Owned Trading
Companies

With the council continuing to develop alternative delivery models it will
continue to review the associated governance arrangements to ensure
that the structures, including the responsibilities of nominated directors,
can be scaled up, or revised as necessary and are subject to
appropriate oversight.

Agenda Pack Page 266

Further training will be provided to ensure that the Directors of County
Council owned companies understand their responsibilities and
understand how to identify and deal with potential conflicts of interests

9. Specific Areas for Improvement and Development 2018/19
The review of effectiveness has identified a number of governance and internal control improvement and development activities planned for the year ahead.
These are in addition to the on-going commitment that the council makes to ensuring actions agreed in response to recommendations made by external and
internal assurance providers are implemented. Actions will be progressed by managers as necessary. The more significant of the proposed activities are:
Item

Directorate

Area for Improvement & Development

Proposed Action

9.1

Council Wide

During the year there have been a number of audit reviews,
including some that cover council wide activities e.g. lone working,
safe recruitment, that have resulted in limited assurance opinions
allied to high priority recommendations.

We will continue to strengthen the arrangements in place for
ensuring that key audit outcomes are communicated to, and
supported by, the County Council’s Strategic Management
Board and Cabinet Members. This, along with the
continuation of quarterly reporting of control matters to
Directorate Boards and the Audit Committee’s right to call
officers to the Committee to account for around the
implementation of recommendations, will further enhance the
council’s control environment.

9.2

Community
Protection

Development of the Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP)
was delayed due to the potential for a change in governance
based around the PCC’s bid to take over from the County Council
as a Fire Authority.

A new IRMP has been produced and has recently completed
its public consultation phase. Shortly, this will have any
appropriate amendments made based upon the feedback
received and pass through the final phases of the political
process for publication, which is expected early July 2019.

9.3

Adult Care

Forecast and Analysis of Social Care Payments

With the accurate forecasting and analysis of care spend an
essential element of the Services Department’s budgetary
Page | 185

Annual Governance Statement

Agenda Pack Page 267

Item

Directorate
Services

Area for Improvement & Development

Proposed Action
control regime; it will amend the mechanism for processing
care payments so that they are made via the ContrOCC
System thereby enhancing its ability to more effectively carry
out these key monitoring tasks.

9.4

Community
Protection

Outcomes from the Inspection by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of
Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services

The outcome from the summer 2018 inspection found those
aspects of the Service most likely to be of interest to the
public; emergency response, support to national resilience
and fire protection, were all graded good. For the areas where
some improvement is required, an action plan has been
developed and will be monitored via the Community Safety
and Waste Management Cabinet Panel.

9.5

Community
Protection

On-call Firefighter Recruitment

The ability to fill a number of on-call firefighter posts remains
an area of concern. The changing nature of the county and
the obvious cost of living in many areas of Hertfordshire
means that the opportunity to attract staff to work as on call
firefighters is constantly diminishing. The long-term
sustainability of the on-call service in Hertfordshire is
therefore a key focus for the Directorate plan and is an
integral part of the IRMP.

9.6

Community
Protection

Forensic Fire Investigation Accreditation

From October 2020, any organisation that produces evidence
for use in the criminal justice system will require accreditation
to the ISO 17020 standard. As the Hertfordshire Fire and
Rescue Service currently provide expert scene examination
and evidence, the Service is considering how the services will
accommodate the need for this accreditation.

9.7

Children’s
Services

Amendments to the Children and Families Act (2014)

Change to the Children and Families Act have extended the
duties of local authorities in a number of areas and the
department will be reviewing practices and developing
processes to ensure that these new obligations are met.

9.8

Children’s

Outcomes from Ofsted Inspection of Local Authority Children’s

Following the Ofsted inspection which garnered an overall
rating of ‘Good’, the department will be monitoring the
Page | 186

Annual Governance Statement

Agenda Pack Page 268

Item

Directorate
Services

Area for Improvement & Development
Services (ILACS)

Proposed Action
implementation of the recommendations arising from the
inspection report.

9.9

Resources

Support from council wide project work

All departments within the Resources Directorate will continue
to develop their approach to the provision of support for major
projects within the council. This will ensure that there is
appropriate focus on key corporate priorities whilst also
ensuring they discharge their statutory and operational
obligations.

9.10

Resources

SAP System Access Controls

Work is ongoing to minimise the risk of unauthorised changes
to the council’s core SAP system, through ensuring
appropriate separation of development and implementation
roles as well as the recording and monitoring system
changes.

Page | 187

Annual Governance Statement
10. Statement of the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive
We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance
framework by senior management and the Audit Committee. The arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for
purpose in accordance with the governance framework. The areas already addressed and those to be specifically
addressed with new actions planned are outlined above.
We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in our review of
effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.
Signed on behalf of Hertfordshire County Council:

David Williams – Leader of the Council
-------------------------------May 2019

Owen Mapley – Chief Executive
-------------------------------May 2019

Agenda Pack Page 269

Page | 188

Independent Auditor’s Report

Agenda Pack Page 270

Page | 189

Independent Auditors Report
TO BE PROVIDED FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

Agenda Pack Page 271

Page | 190

Independent Auditors Report
TO BE PROVIDED FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

Agenda Pack Page 272

Page | 191

Independent Auditors Report
TO BE PROVIDED FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

Agenda Pack Page 273

Page | 192

Independent Auditors Report
TO BE PROVIDED FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

Agenda Pack Page 274

Page | 193

Independent Auditors Report
TO BE PROVIDED FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

Agenda Pack Page 275

Page | 194

This page is intentionally left blank

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No:

AUDIT COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 AT 2:00PM

PENSION FUND AUDIT RESULTS REPORT
Author of the report:

1.

Suresh Patel, Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Purpose of the Report

1.1 To present the results of the 2018/19 audit.
2.

Recommendation

2.1 That the committee notes the Audit Results report.

Agenda Pack Page 277

4

This page is intentionally left blank

AGENDA ITEM NO:
4

Hertfordshire Pension Fund
Audit results report
Year ended 31 March 2019

Agenda Pack Page 279

01 July 2019

01 July 2019

Dear Audit Committee Members

Agenda Pack Page 280

We are pleased to attach our audit results report for the forthcoming meeting of the Audit Committee. This report summarises our
preliminary audit conclusion in relation to the audit of Hertfordshire Pension Fund for 2018/19.
We have substantially completed our audit of Hertfordshire Pension Fund for the year ended 31 March 2019.
Subject to concluding the outstanding matters listed in our report (page 5), we confirm that we expect to issue an unqualified audit
opinion on the financial statements before the end of July.
This report is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee, other members of the Authority, and senior management. It
should not be used for any other purpose or given to any other party without obtaining our written consent.
We would like to thank your staff for their help during the engagement.
We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Audit Committee meeting on 19 July 2019.
Yours faithfully

Suresh Patel

Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Encl

2

Contents
01 Executive
02
Summary

Area of Audit
Focus

03 Audit Report 04

Agenda Pack Page 281

of
Data
06 Assessment
07
Control
Analytics

Audit
Differences

05

Other
reporting
issues

08 Independence 09 Appendices

Environment
Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA
website (www.psaa.co.uk). This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities
of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional
requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which
are of a recurring nature.
This report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as appointed auditor, take no
responsibility to any third party.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up
with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any
complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our professional
institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute.

3

Agenda Pack Page 282

01 Executive Summary
4

Executive Summary
Scope update

In our Audit Plan tabled at the 29 March 2019 Audit Committee meeting, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope and approach for the
audit of the pension fund financial statements. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan.
• Changes in materiality: In our Audit Plan, we communicated that our audit procedures would be performed using a materiality of £45m. We have
increased this to £48m based on the increase in Net Assets from the prior year. As a result we have increased the threshold for reporting
misstatements that have an effect on the primary statements (fund account and net asset statement) to £2.4m.
• Changes in risks: We have identified no new audit risks to those included in the Audit Plan.

Agenda Pack Page 283

Status of the audit

We have substantially completed our audit of Hertfordshire Pension Fund’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 and have performed
the procedures outlined in our Audit Plan. Subject to satisfactory completion of the following outstanding items we expect to issue an unqualified opinion
on the Pension Fund’s financial statements in the form which appears at Section 3. However until work is complete, further amendments may arise:

• Valuations testing of level 3 investments – investment managers have been slower than the previous year in providing relevant information.
• Review of the final version of the Annual Report – final version of the Fund’s Annual Report provided on 27/06/19.
• Review of the final version of the financial statements – subject to completing of audit testing.
• Completion of subsequent events review – we will complete these procedures close to the date that the Council approves its final statements of
account.
• Receipt of the signed management representation letter – officers will provide this after the July Audit Committee meeting.
In addition to the above, there is an ongoing national issue which may require a late change to the pension fund accounts and IAS26 fund liability
disclosure. It relates to legal rulings regarding age discrimination arising from public sector pension scheme transitional arrangements, commonly
described as the McCloud ruling. The draft pension fund accounts have recognised this matter as a contingent liability (note 20, page 158). However,
since the year-end there have been increasing indications that this may not be the correct treatment, and may need to be incorporated into the
assessment of the scheme liabilities depending on the materiality of the issue. We will continue to liaise with officers on the outcome of this matter.

5

Executive Summary
Audit differences

To date there are no unadjusted differences arising from our audit.
We have identified a small number of audit differences in relation to disclosures which have been adjusted by management. We have not felt it necessary
to provide the details of these amendments.

Agenda Pack Page 284

There are no matters, apart from those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the
Audit Committee.

Control observations

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your
financial statements and which is unknown to you.
We have adopted a fully substantive approach, so have not tested the operation of controls.

Independence
We include in Section 8 an update on our independence where we have no matters to report.

6

Agenda Pack Page 285

02 Areas of Audit Focus
7

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk

Agenda Pack Page 286

Risk of Management
Override: Misstatements
due to fraud or error

What is the risk?
As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because
of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify and
respond to this fraud risk on every audit engagement.

What judgements are we focused on?

What are our conclusions?

We focussed our testing on key areas of the accounts that are susceptible to
management bias.

We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls
or evidence of material management override.

What did we do?

 Inquired of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address
those risks.
 Gained an understanding of the oversight given by those charged with governance of
management’s processes over fraud.
 Considered the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk
of fraud.
Performed mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified fraud risks,
including:
 Tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements
 Assessed accounting estimates for evidence of management bias, and
 Evaluated the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

Our journal entry testing did not identify any issues.
We have not identified any instances of management bias
being applied to accounting estimates.
We did not identify any other transactions during our audit
which appeared unusual or outside the Fund‘s normal
course of business.

8

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
Risk of Management
Override: Year end
investment journals

What is the risk?
The Pension Fund posts year end manual journals in relation to the valuation of it’s investments and the
recognition of investment income. There is a risk that management will override controls to fraudulently
misreport the position and performance of the fund.

Agenda Pack Page 287

What judgements are we focused on?

What are our conclusions?

We focused on year end manual investment journals.

We found that year end investment journals were raised
appropriately based on information that the Pension Fund
receives from its Custodian and Investment Managers.

What did we do?

 Confirmed investment valuations as of 31/03/19 to Custodian and Investment
Manager reports.

We have not identified any instances of management
override of controls in relation to year end investment
journals.

 Confirmed investment income recognised during 2018/19 to Custodian and
Investment Manager reports.
 Reviewed investment valuation and investment income balances for unusual items.

9

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
Valuation of Complex
Investments

What is the risk?

Agenda Pack Page 288

Valuation of Complex Investments
The Fund’s investments include unquoted pooled investment vehicles such as private equity, global
alternative funds and infrastructure debt (Level 3 Investments under IFRS 13).
Judgements are taken by the Investment Managers to value those investments whose prices are not
publicly available. The material nature of Investments means that any error in judgement could result in a
material valuation error.

What judgements are we focused on?

What are our conclusions?

The valuation of level 3 investments as determined by Investment Managers as there is
no publicly available information to corroborate valuations for these investments.

We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls
of the Investment Managers which would impact
Hertfordshire Pension Fund.

What did we do?
 Reviewed control reports for all Investment Managers to identify material weaknesses
of controls which would impact on the Pension Fund’s financial reporting.
 Reviewed the basis of valuation of investments through consideration of their
classification under IFRS 13 as either level 1, 2 or level 3 investments.

We determined that the valuation basis of investments were
appropriate based on their classification under IFRS 13.
We received evidence to finalise our testing on level 3
investments on 28/06/19. Once we have complete our
testing we will be able to conclude on this significant risk.

 For a sample of level 3 investments funds (private equity, global alternative fund and
infrastructure debt) reviewed the latest audited financial statements to:
 Confirm the valuation of the investment are based on the underlying net assets
of the investment funds.
 Identify matters arising from the audit opinion of the investment funds.

10

Areas of Audit Focus

Other Areas of audit focus
Access Pooling
Arrangements

What is the area of focus?
The Fund is member of the ACCESS pool with ten other shire counties.
ACCESS enables the pooling of investments through a Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) that is
administered and maintained by a third party operator. This should result in reduced management fees.
As of 31/03/19 the fund had £651m of its investments in the Access pool. These assets transferred into
the Access pool during 2018/19.

Agenda Pack Page 289

What did we do?

What are our conclusion?

 Enquired with officers to understand the governance arrangements
put in place to ensure that the pooled investments are appropriately
managed.

The Fund has put in place appropriate governance arrangements to enable
it manage the Access pooled investments.

 Reviewed supporting documentation from Investment Managers to
confirm the nature of the transition of the investments into the
Access pool.

Overall we conclude that the Access pooled investments are appropriately
classified and have been accounted for correctly.
We did not identify any misstatements relating to this area of focus.

 Obtained confirmation of the valuation of investments as of
31/03/19 within the Access pool, and corroborated the value of
these investments to publicly available market information.
 Considered whether the Pension Fund applied the appropriate
accounting treatment and disclosure requirements for investments
in the Access pool.

11

Agenda Pack Page 290

03 Audit Report

12

Audit Report

Draft audit report
Our opinion on the financial statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
Opinion

Agenda Pack Page 291

We have audited the pension fund financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014. The pension fund financial statements comprise the Fund
Account, the Net Assets Statement and the related notes 1 to 22. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.
In our opinion the pension fund financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and the amount and disposition of
the fund’s assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2019; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are
independent of the pension fund in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the Comptroller and
Auditor General’s (C&AG) AGN01, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to
which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
the Director of Resources use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
the Director of Resources has not disclosed in the financial statements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the
pension fund’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

13

Audit Report

Our opinion on the financial statements

Agenda Pack Page 292

Other information

Matters on which we report by exception

The other information comprises the information included in the
statement of accounts, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Director of Resources is responsible for
the other information.

We report to you if:
 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
 we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of
account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014;
 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014; or
 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in these respects

We have nothing to report in this regard.

14

Audit Report

Our opinion on the financial statements

Agenda Pack Page 293

Responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Finance
Officer’s Responsibilities set out on page 14 , the Chief Finance
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s
Statement of Accounts, which includes the pension fund financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2018/19, and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Finance Officer is
responsible for assessing the Pension Fund’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Pension Fund either intends to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.

15

Audit Report

Our opinion on the financial statements
Use of our report

Agenda Pack Page 294

This report is made solely to the members of Hertfordshire County Council,
as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 of the
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by
Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Council and the Council’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Suresh Patel (Key Audit Partner)
Ernst & Young LLP (Local Auditor)
Luton
Date

The maintenance and integrity of the Hertfordshire County Council web site
is the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors
does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the
auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to
the financial statements since they were initially presented on the web site.
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

16

Agenda Pack Page 295

04 Audit Differences
17

Audit Differences
In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the
disclosures and amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known” or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be
accurately quantified and relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or
circumstances that are uncertain or open to interpretation.

Summary of adjusted differences

Agenda Pack Page 296

We have not identified any audit differences above our reporting threshold of £2.4m.
We identified some minor disclosure amendments which management have accepted. We not consider them to merit reporting to the Committee.
There were no uncorrected misstatements.

18

Agenda Pack Page 297

05 Other reporting issues

01
19

Other reporting issues
Consistency of other information published with the financial statements
We must give an opinion on the consistency of the pension fund financial and non-financial information in the Hertfordshire County Council accounts.
We have yet to complete this review.

Agenda Pack Page 298

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the
course of the audit, either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not
identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.
We also have a duty to make written recommendations to the Authority, copied to the Secretary of State, and take action in accordance with our
responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We did not identify any issues.

Other matters

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other
matters if they are significant to your oversight of the pension fund’s financial reporting process. They include the following:
• Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
• Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;
• Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management;
• Written representations we have requested;
• Expected modifications to the audit report;
• Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;
• Findings and issues around the opening balance on initial audits (if applicable);
• Related parties;
• External confirmations;
• Going concern; and
• Consideration of laws and regulations;
We have no matters to report.
20

Agenda Pack Page 299

Assessment of Control
06 Environment
21

Assessment of Control Environment
Financial controls

Agenda Pack Page 300

It is the responsibility of the Hertfordshire Pension Fund to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper
arrangements to monitor their adequacy and effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Hertfordshire
Pension Fund has put adequate arrangements in place to satisfy itself that the systems of internal financial control are both adequate and effective in
practice.
As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature,
timing and extent of testing performed. As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have therefore not tested the operation of controls.

Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control we are required to communicate to you significant
deficiencies in internal control.
We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your
financial statements of which you are not aware.

22

Agenda Pack Page 301

07 Data Analytics

23

Use of Data Analytics in the Audit

Analytics Driven Audit

Data analytics
We used our data analysers to enable us to capture entire populations of your financial data. These
analysers:

Agenda Pack Page 302

• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be the focus of our substantive
audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than traditional, random sampling techniques.
In 2018/19, our use of these analysers in the authority’s audit included testing journal entries and
employee expenses, to identify and focus our testing on those entries we deem to have the highest
inherent risk to the audit.
We capture the data through our formal data requests and the data transfer takes place on a
secured EY website. These are in line with our EY data protection policies which are designed to
protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of business and personal information.
Journal Entry Analysis
We obtain downloads of all financial ledger transactions posted in the year. We perform
completeness analysis over the data, reconciling the sum of transactions to the movement in the
trial balances and financial statements to ensure we have captured all data. Our analysers then
review and sort transactions, allowing us to more effectively identify and test journals that we
consider to be higher risk, as identified in our audit planning report.

Page 24

Data Analytics
Journal Entry Data Insights
The graphic outlined below summarises the journal population for 2018/19. We review journals by certain risk based criteria to focus on
higher risk transactions, such as journals posted manually by management, those posted around the year-end, those with unusual debit and
credit relationships, and those posted by individuals we would not expect to be entering transactions.
The purpose of this approach is to provide a more effective, risk focused approach to auditing journal entries, minimising the burden of
compliance on management by minimising randomly selected samples.

Agenda Pack Page 303
Page 25

Agenda Pack Page 304

08 Independence

26

Independence

Confirmation
We confirm that there are no changes in our assessment of independence since our confirmation in our Audit Plan dated 29 March 2019.
We complied with the FRC Ethical Standards and the requirements of the PSAA’s Terms of Appointment. In our professional judgement the
firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning of
regulatory and professional requirements.

Agenda Pack Page 305

We consider that our independence in this context is a matter which you should review, as well as us. It is important that the Audit Committee
considers the facts known to you and come to a view. If you would like to discuss any matters concerning our independence, we will be
pleased to do this at the meeting of the Audit Committee on 19 July 2019.

Fee analysis

As part of our reporting on our independence, we set out below a summary of the fees paid for the year ended 31 March 2019.
We confirm that we have not undertaken non-audit work outside the NAO Code requirements.

Total Audit Fee – Code work

Final Fee
2018/19

Planned Fee
2018/19

Scale Fee
2018/19

Final Fee
2017/18

£

£

£

£

27,053

27,053

21,553

33,491

Consistent with previous years we will be seeking an additional fee of £5,500 in 2018/19 to take into account the additional work required to respond to
IAS19 assurance requests from scheduled bodies. The scale fee variation is subject to approved from PSAA.
The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:
► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables; Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;
► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Pension Fund; and The Pension Fund has an effective control environment.
As we have substantially completed the audit, we expect the final fee to be £27,053.
27

Agenda Pack Page 306

09 Appendices

28

Appendix A

Audit approach update
We summarise below our approach to the audit of the balance sheet and any changes to this approach from the prior year audit.
Our audit procedures are designed to be responsive to our assessed risk of material misstatement at the relevant assertion level. Assertions relevant to
the balance sheet include:
Existence: An asset, liability and equity interest exists at a given date

•

Rights and Obligations: An asset, liability and equity interest pertains to the entity at a given date

•

Completeness: There are no unrecorded assets, liabilities, and equity interests, transactions or events, or undisclosed items

•

Valuation: An asset, liability and equity interest is recorded at an appropriate amount and any resulting valuation or allocation adjustments are
appropriately recorded

Agenda Pack Page 307

•

•

Presentation and Disclosure: Assets, liabilities and equity interests are appropriately aggregated or disaggregated, and classified, described and
disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. Disclosures are relevant and understandable in the context of the
applicable financial reporting framework

Net Assets Statement
category

Audit Approach in current year

Audit Approach in prior year

Investment Assets and
Liabilities

Substantively tested all relevant
assertions

Substantively tested all relevant
assertions

N/A

Long term assets

Immaterial - Substantively tested
assertion for presentation and
disclosure

Immaterial - Substantively tested
assertion for presentation and
disclosure

N/A

Current Assets (excluding
cash)

Substantively tested all relevant
assertions

Immaterial - Substantively tested
assertion for presentation and
disclosure

N/A

Cash

Substantively tested all relevant
assertions

Substantively tested all relevant
assertions

N/A

Current Liabilities

Immaterial - Substantively tested
assertion for presentation and
disclosure

Immaterial - Substantively tested
assertion for presentation and
disclosure

N/A

Explanation for change

29

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee
There are certain communications that we must provide to the Audit Committees of UK clients. We have detailed these here together with a reference of
when and where they were covered:

Terms of engagement

Agenda Pack Page 308

Confirmation by the audit committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as
written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as
the formal terms of engagement between
the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited
bodies.

Our responsibilities

Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter.

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and
the significant risks identified.

The statement of responsibilities serves as
the formal terms of engagement between
the PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited
bodies.
Audit planning report
March 2019

Significant findings
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices
including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement
disclosures
• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with
management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting
process

Required
communications

Our Reporting to you
What is reported?

When and where

Audit results report
July 2019

30

Appendix B (Continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required
communications
Public Interest Entities

What is reported?

Agenda Pack Page 309

For the audits of financial statements of public interest entities our written
communications to the audit committee include:
• A declaration of independence
• The identity of each key audit partner
• The use of non-member firms or external specialists and confirmation of their
independence
• The nature and frequency of communications
• A description of the scope and timing of the audit
• Which categories of the balance sheet have been tested substantively or
controls based and explanations for significant changes to the prior year,
including first year audits
• Materiality
• Any going concern issues identified
• Any significant deficiencies in internal control identified and whether they have
been resolved by management
• Subject to compliance with regulations, any actual or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations identified relevant to the audit committee
• Subject to compliance with regulations, any suspicions that irregularities,
including fraud with regard to the financial statements, may occur or have
occurred, and the implications thereof
• The valuation methods used and any changes to these including first year audits
• The scope of consolidation and exclusion criteria if any and whether in
accordance with the reporting framework
• The identification of any non-EY component teams used in the group audit
• The completeness of documentation and explanations received
• Any significant difficulties encountered in the course of the audit
• Any significant matters discussed with management
• Any other matters considered significant

When and where
Audit planning report, March 2019
and
Audit results report, July 2019

31

Appendix B (Continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required
communications

Going concern

What is reported?

When and where

Agenda Pack Page 310

Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability Audit results report, July 2019
to continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Misstatements

•
•
•
•

Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion
The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report, July 2019

Subsequent events

• Enquiry of the audit committee where appropriate regarding whether any
subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

Fraud

• Enquiries of the Audit Committee to determine whether they have knowledge of Audit results report, July 2019
any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Authority
• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates
that a fraud may exist
• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the
Authority, any identified or suspected fraud involving:
a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial
statements.
• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the
audit when fraud involving management is suspected
• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit Committee responsibility.

Audit results report, July 2019

32

Appendix B (Continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required
communications

What is reported?

When and where

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s
related parties including, when applicable:
• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures, Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the Authority

Independence

Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all
Audit planning report, March 2019
individuals involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.
and
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of Audit results report, July 2019
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain
objectivity and independence
Communications whenever significant judgments are made about threats to
objectivity and independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

External confirmations

• Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Consideration of laws
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or Audit results report, July 2019
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are
clearly inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected noncompliance may also include those that are brought to our attention that are
expected to occur imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they
may occur
• Enquiry of the audit committee into possible instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements
and that the audit committee may be aware of

Agenda Pack Page 311

Related parties

Audit results report, July 2019

Audit results report, July 2019

33

Appendix B (Continued)
Our Reporting to you
Required
communications

Agenda Pack Page 312

Significant deficiencies
in internal controls
identified during the
audit

What is reported?
• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit.

When and where
Audit results report, July 2019

Written representations • Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those
charged with governance

Audit results report, July 2019

Material inconsistencies • Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information
or misstatements
which management has refused to revise

Audit results report, July 2019

Auditors report

• Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s
report

Audit results report, July 2019

Fee Reporting

• Breakdown of fee information when the audit planning report is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit planning report, March 2019
and
Audit results report, July 2019

34

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory
About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.
© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.
ED None

Agenda Pack Page 313

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

This page is intentionally left blank

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No:

AUDIT COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 AT 2:00PM

5

RESPONSE TO THE AUDIT RESULTS REPORT 2018/19 – PENSION FUND
Report of the Director of Resources
Author of the report:

Matthew Nendick, Finance Manager (Tel: 01992 555683)

Executive Member:

Ralph Sangster, Executive Member for Resources &
Performance

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

To provide the Committee with a response to Ernst & Young’s draft Audit
Results Report for the Pension Fund presented as a separate agenda item to
this meeting.

2.

Response to the Annual Governance Report

2.1

Ernst & Young LLP have issued a draft Audit Results Report for the Pension
Fund following the audit of the 2018/19 annual report and accounts. Officers
are pleased to report that there are no recommendations and the auditors are
expected to confirm an unqualified opinion on the accounts. The report is in a
draft form at present as we await final sign off.

2.2

The audit identified a small number of minor disclosure errors which were
agreed with management for amendment. The Auditor did not consider any of
these significant and therefore did not provide further detail of these
amendments in their report.
McCloud judgement

2.3

The audit results report references the ongoing national issue relating to an
age discrimination ruling arising from public sector pension scheme transition
arrangements. Following advice from CIPFA, the Fund treated this matter as
a contingent liability due to the uncertainty of the potential outcomes, however
there is recent indication that this may not be the correct accounting
treatment. Both the lack of clarity nationally, and the lateness of any
information over the correct treatment of this has been frustrating. At the time
of writing this report, Fund officers are working with EY and the actuary to
assess any adjustments to the financial statements that may be required.

Agenda Pack Page 315

1

3.

Letter of Representation

3.1

It is an annual requirement (set out on Page 5 of the Auditor’s draft report) for
a letter of representation from management to be prepared in order to gain
management’s confirmation in relation to a number of matters, for which the
auditor does not currently have sufficient audit evidence. A draft is attached at
Appendix A to this report for members to review. This letter is to be signed by
the Director of Resources and the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

4.

Recommendation

4.1

That the response to the Audit Results Report 2018/19 for the Pension Fund
is approved, and that the Letter of Representation is signed by the Director of
Resources and Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Agenda Pack Page 316

2

APPENDIX A

Corporate Services
Director of Resources
Suresh Patel
Associate Partner
Ernst & Young
400 Capability Green
Luton, LU1 3LU

Herts Finance
Hertfordshire County Council
County Hall
Pegs Lane
Hertford, Herts SG13 8DF
www.hertfordshire.gov.uk
Tel:
01992 555601
Email: scott.crudgington@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Contact:
Scott Crudgington
Date:
19th July 2019

Dear Mr Patel
Management Letter of Representation – Hertfordshire Pension Fund Audit 2018/19
This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial
statements of Hertfordshire Pension Fund (“the Fund”) for the year ended 31 March 2019.
We recognise that obtaining representations from us concerning the information contained in
this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the
ﬁnancial statements give a true and fair view of the ﬁnancial transactions of the Fund during
the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 and of the amount and disposition of the
Fund’s assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2019, other than liabilities to pay pensions and
beneﬁts after the end of the period, have been properly prepared in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19.
We understand that the purpose of your audit of the Fund’s financial statements is to
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK), which involves an examination of the accounting
system, internal control and related data to the extent you considered necessary in the
circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose – all
fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any exist.
Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the
purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:
A. Financial Statements and Financial Records
1.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with [the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2018/19.

Agenda Pack Page 317

2.

We confirm that the Fund is a Registered Pension Scheme. We are not aware of any
reason why the tax status of the scheme should change.

3.

We acknowledge, as members of management of the Fund, our responsibility for the fair
presentation of the financial statements. We believe the financial statements referred to
above give a true and fair view of the financial position and the financial performance of
the Fund in accordance with [the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, and are free of material misstatements,
including omissions. We have approved the financial statements.

4.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements
are appropriately described in the financial statements.

5.

As members of management of the Fund, we believe that the Fund has a system of
internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in
accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2018/19 that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

6.

There are no unadjusted audit differences identified during the current audit and
pertaining to the latest period presented.

B. Non-compliance with laws and regulations including fraud
1.

We acknowledge that we are responsible for determining that the Fund’s activities are
conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that we are responsible for
identifying and addressing any non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
including fraud.

2.

We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.

3.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

4.

We have not made any reports to The Pensions Regulator, nor are we aware of any
such reports having been made by any of our advisors.

5.

There have been no other communications with The Pensions Regulator or other
regulatory bodies during the Fund year or subsequently concerning matters of
noncompliance with any legal duty. We have drawn to your attention all correspondence
and notes of meetings with regulators.

6.

We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with laws or
regulations, including fraud that may have affected the Fund (regardless of the source or
form and including without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”), including noncompliance matters:
 Involving financial improprieties


Related to laws or regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of
material amounts and disclosures in the Fund’s financial statements



Related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with which may be

Agenda Pack Page 318

fundamental to the operations of the Fund, its ability to continue, or to avoid
material penalties


Involving management, or employees who have significant roles in internal
control, or others



In relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-compliance
with laws and regulations communicated by employees, former employees,
analysts, regulators or others.

C.

Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

1.

We have provided you with:


Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters.



Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.



Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

2.

You have been informed of all changes to the Fund rules.

3.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected
in the financial statements.

4.

We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of members of the
management of the Fund and committees of members of the management of the Fund
(or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been
prepared) held through the period to the most recent meeting on the following date: 19
July 2019.

5.

We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of
related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Fund’s related parties and
all related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including sales,
purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements,
guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration for the
period ended, as well as related balances due to or from such parties at the period end.
These transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial
statements.

6.

We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding annuities held in the
name of the members of the management of the Fund.

7.

We have disclosed to you, and the Fund has complied with, all aspects of contractual
agreements that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of
non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all
outstanding debt.

8.

No transactions have been made which are not in the interests of the Fund members or
the Fund during the fund year or subsequently.

9.

We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates,
including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

Agenda Pack Page 319

D.

Liabilities and Contingencies

1.

All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether
written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the
financial statements.

2.

We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or
not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3.

We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities relating to litigation and
claims, both actual and contingent, and confirm there are no guarantees that we have
given to third parties.

Subsequent Events
1.

There have been no events subsequent to the period end which require adjustment of or
disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto.

F.

Other information

1.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the Annual Report.

2.

We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent with the
financial statements.

G.

Independence

1. We confirm that, under section 27 of the Pensions Act 1995, no members of the
management of the Fund of the Scheme is connected with, or is an associate of, Ernst &
Young LLP which would render Ernst & Young LLP ineligible to act as auditor to the
Scheme.
H. Derivative Financial Instruments
1. We confirm that all investments in derivative financial instruments have been made after
due consideration by the members of the management of the Fund of the limitations in
their use imposed by The LGPS Management and Investment of Funds Regulations
2016. The Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement has been duly reviewed to ensure that
such investments comply with any limitations imposed by its provisions. The financial
statements disclose all transactions in derivative financial instruments that have been
entered into during the period, those still held by the members of the management of the
Fund at the Fund’s year end and the terms and conditions relating thereto.
2. Management has duly considered and deemed as appropriate the assumptions and
methodologies used in the valuation of ‘over the counter’ derivative financial instruments
which the Fund is holding, and these have been communicated to you.
I. Pooling investments, including the use of collective investment vehicles and
shared services
1. We confirm that all investments in pooling arrangements, including the use of
collective investment vehicles and shared services, meet the criteria set out in the
November 2015 investment reform and criteria guidance and that the requirements of

Agenda Pack Page 320

the LGPS Management and Investment of Funds Regulations 2016 in respect of
these investments has been followed.
J. Actuarial valuation
1. The latest report of the actuary Hymans Robertson LLP as at 31 March 2016 and dated
31 March 17 has been provided to you. To the best of our knowledge and belief we
confirm that the information supplied by us to the actuary was true and that no significant
information was omitted which may have a bearing on his report.
K. Use of the Work of a Specialist
1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we have engaged to value the Fund
and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the
amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements and the underlying
accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the
specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work,
and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on the
independence or objectivity of the specialists.

Yours sincerely,
_______________________
Director of Resources
_______________________
Chair of the Audit Committee

Agenda Pack Page 321

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item
No:

6

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 AT 2:00PM

REPORT ON DELIVERY OF THE HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL ANTIFRAUD PLAN 2018/19
Report of the Director of Resources
Author:

Nick Jennings, Head of Shared Anti-Fraud Service
Tel: 01438 844705

1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

To present a report that provides details of the work of the Shared Anti-Fraud
Service in implementing the Council’s Anti-Fraud Action plan for 2018/19.

2.

Background

2.1

According to reports from CIPFA, the National Audit Office (NAO), the Cabinet
Office, and the Private Sector; fraud risk across local government in England
exceeds £2.billion each year with some more recent reports indicating levels
considerably above this.

2.2

The Council is a founding member, and host authority for the Hertfordshire
Shared Anti-Fraud Service (SAFS) and it is essential that to support this service
the Council has in place a robust framework to prevent and deter fraud,
including effective strategies and policies, as well as plans to deal with the
investigation and prosecution of identified fraud.

2.3

In early 2018 the Audit Committee approved the 2018/2019 Anti-Fraud Plan for
the Council and KPIs for SAFS to achieve in respect of delivery of the plan.

2.4

This report sets out SAFS’ performance against the Action Plan and also
includes the Annual Report for the Service.

3.

Recommendation

3.1

That the Committee:
 Notes the work of the Council and the Shared Anti-Fraud Service in
delivering the Anti-Fraud Plan 2018/19.


Notes the Shared Anti-Fraud Service Annual Report 2018/19

.

1

Agenda Pack Page 323

Hertfordshire County Council
Report on Delivery of
the
Hertfordshire County Council Anti-Fraud Plan
2018/19
July 2019
Recommendation

Members are recommended to:
1. Note the work of the Council and the Shared Anti-Fraud Service
in delivering the Anti-Fraud Plan 2018/19.
2. Note the Shared Anti-Fraud Service Annual Report 2018/19

2

Agenda Pack Page 324

Contents
Introduction
1.

Background

2.

Summary of the Shared Anti-Fraud Service’s Activity at HCC 2018/19

3.

Reporting & Transparency Code Data

4.

Shared Anti-Fraud Service Annual (Service) Report 2018/19

Appendix
A.

HCC Anti-Fraud Plan 2018/19

B.

Key Performance Indicators - 2018/19

C.

Reported Fraud - outcomes and values 2018/19

D.

SAFS Partnership Annual Report 2018/19
Introduction

This report provides details of the work associated with implementing the Council’s Anti-Fraud
Action plan for 2018/2019.
A number of reports are used by the Shared Anti-Fraud Service (SAFS) to help ensure that
the Council is both: aware of its own fraud risks; and is finding ways to mitigate or manage
these effectively wherever possible.
These reports include:


Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally 2016–2019 Strategy produced by CIPFA in
March 2016 and supported by CLG. The new strategy estimates annual fraud losses in
local government at around £2.1bn (this report is based on 2013 data).



UK Annual Fraud Indicator 2017 published in partnership by Crowe Clark Whitehill,
Portsmouth University and Experian which estimates the risk of fraud losses for local
government in excess of £8bn per annum.



CIPFAs Fraud and Corruption Tracker 2018 indicates that identified fraud had
increased since 2016 but that counter fraud capacity within councils had reduced, and
would continue to do so, placing local government at even greater risk of fraud.



The Governments United Kingdom Anti-Corruption Strategy 2017-2022 includes the
vision and priorities for dealing with and reducing the risk of corruption within the UK

3

Agenda Pack Page 325

private, public & charity sectors and when working with organisations
/companies/government agencies abroad.
1.

Background

1.1

According to reports from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountants
(CIPFA), the National Audit Office, the Cabinet Office, and the Private Sector, fraud
risk across local government in England exceeds £2.billion each year, with some more
recent reports indicating levels considerably above this.

1.2

The Cabinet Office, the Ministry for Housing Communities and Local Government, the
National Audit Office, and CIPFA have also issued advice and best practice guidance
to support local councils in the fight to reduce the risk of fraud and prevent loss to the
public purse. This advice includes the need for Councils to be vigilant in recognising
their fraud risks and to invest sufficient resources in counter fraud activities that deliver
tangible savings.

1.3

It is essential that HCC has in place a robust framework to prevent and deter fraud,
including effective strategies and policies, and response plans to deal with the
investigation and prosecution of identified fraud.

1.4

The Council is the host authority for the Hertfordshire Shared Anti-Fraud Service
(SAFS). This Committee has previously received detailed reports about the creation of
the Service and how it works closely with the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS).
SAFS works across the whole Council dealing with all aspects of fraud from deterrence
and prevention to investigation and prosecution.

2.

Summary of SAFS Activity at HCC 2018/19
Staffing

2.1

In early 2018 this Committee reviewed and commented on the 2018/19 Anti-Fraud
Plan for the Council and the key performance indicators for SAFS agreed by the SAFS
Board which includes representation from HCC. See Appendix A for details of the
2018/19 Plan.

2.2

For 2018/19 the SAFS Team was comprised of eighteen accredited and/or trained
counter fraud staff based at Hertfordshire County Council’s offices in Stevenage. Each
SAFS Partner receives dedicated support and response from this team. SAFS allocate
officers to work in each partner organisation. These officers act as the first point of
contact for that partner’s services, developing relationships at a service level,
delivering training, and working on local/pilot projects.

2.3

In 2018/19 SAFS deployed 2.5 FTE Counter Fraud Officers to work at the County
Council. These officers were supported by the SAFS Management and Intelligence
Teams and the latter now includes 3 Intelligence Officers, a Data-Analyst and an
Accredited Financial Investigator. In all HCC had 3.5 FTE working on HCC matters
during in year.

4

Agenda Pack Page 326

2.4

Reviews of the Council’s counter fraud policies, including the Anti-Money Laundering
Policy (AML) and the Anti-Bribery & Corruption Policy (AB&C) were completed in 2018,
and are now available to staff. A review of the Council’s Risk Register was undertaken
in 2018, to include further controls to reduce the likelihood and impact of significant
fraud. The Councils Anti-Fraud & Corruption Strategy dates from 2015 and, although
still compliant with CIPFA guidance, will be reviewed in 2019 to reflect the new AML &
AB&C policies.
Fraud Awareness and Reported Fraud

2.5

One of the key aims for the Council is to ensure it has an anti-fraud culture that will
deter fraud and encourage senior managers and Members to consider the risk of fraud
when developing policies or processes. It must also encourage both staff and the
public at large to understand the impact of fraud on the Council; and to report fraud
where it is suspected or identified.

2.6

The SAFS webpage – www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/reportfraud includes an online
reporting tool. A confidential fraud hotline (0300 123 4033) and a secure email account
are also available for reporting fraud – fraud.team@hertfordshire.gov.uk . These
contact details can be accessed via the Council’s own website and council staff can
use the same mechanisms to report fraud or use the Council’s intranet pages to report
suspicions of fraud directly to SAFS.

2.7

SAFS delivered training to a number of front line services in 2018/19 and the Service
has delivered and maintains an E-Learning package on fraud awareness which is a
mandatory module for all staff and can be accessed through the Council’s training
system ‘I-Learn’.
Counter Fraud Activity

2.8

During 2018/19 SAFS received 172 allegations (referrals) of fraud affecting County
Council services (an increase from 112 in the previous year).
Table 1. Types of fraud being reported- (172 Referrals)

5

Agenda Pack Page 327

Table 2. Who is reporting Fraud- (172 Referrals)

2.9

At the time of this report many cases raised for investigation are still in the early stages.
However, of 20 cases investigated and closed in the year fraud losses of £239,000 and
fraud savings of £2.5m were identified.
(See Appendix C for a breakdown by service area where fraud has been identified.)
As well as those cases selected for investigation SAFS issued warning letters or
provided advice to services on matters where a full investigation was not warranted on
44 occasions, and 73 Live cases were carried into 2019/20.

2.10

As well as the financial values identified, SAFS assisted in several matters relating to
employees of the Council and/or school staff. In these cases SAFS acts for the line
manager, assisted by HCC HR, to conduct criminal and disciplinary investigations. Six
staff were disciplined or dismissed and a number were also reported to the police
following SAFS investigations.
Case 1: A former teacher of a Stevenage maintained school was sentenced to 12 weeks in
prison (suspended) in February 2019 having pleaded guilty to 6 counts of fraud.
In the summer of 2017, the school reported concerns to Hertfordshire County Council’s Shared
Anti-Fraud Service that a member of teaching staff had been providing false invoices to their
finance office, in order to receive payments for goods that they had not purchased.
An investigation found that between 2014 and 2016 the teacher had received £3,142 through
submitting false or inflated invoices to the school for reimbursement.
A further three invoices totaling £1,260 were stopped during the investigation.
In September 2017 the teacher was dismissed from their position at the school for gross
misconduct relating to the investigation and an evidence file was presented to Herts police by the
Shared Anti-Fraud Service.

2.11

SAFS investigated a number of fraudulent claims for damages received by the Council
from third parties for damage caused to vehicles on council maintained roads or
personal injury occurring on Council land/property. Several of these were found to be

6

Agenda Pack Page 328

questionable and a number fraudulent, which were subsequently prosecuted by the
Councils litigation team, part of HCC Legal Services.
Case 1: In 2018 a man from Walmer in Kent, claimed his car had been damaged by a pothole at
Colney Heath, Hertfordshire.
The council’s insurance team became suspicious of the claim, and the case was referred to the
Shared Anti-Fraud Service to investigate.
An investigation revealed the man had taken his car to a garage in Hatfield to be repaired and
had used documents provided by the garage to create a false invoice with the cost increased.
When interviewed he admitted he had made a false claim and falsified the documents. He
increased the value of repairs required to his car in order to claim £4,214.24 from HCC.
His claim against HCC was withdrawn, and the case was referred for prosecution.
He appeared in St Albans Magistrates Court to face charges of fraud by false representation.
The court heard that he had falsified an invoice for work to support his damages claim against the
council.
He was fined £1,600 and ordered to pay £2,000 towards the Councils costs.

2.12

SAFS manages a framework contract for all district and borough councils in
Hertfordshire to conduct reviews of council tax discounts and exemptions to improve
revenue collection and prevent fraud. These services are provided with a split in costs
between Hertfordshire County Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner and the
district and borough councils. In 2018/19 five district councils made use of the
framework raising an additional £891,000 in council tax for collection.
A large part of the SAFS team’s reactive work with district partners involves the
investigation of false claims for council tax discounts and exemptions. In 2018/19 these
investigations revealed more than £318,000 of fraudulently claimed discounts across
Hertfordshire. As the County Council is the major preceptor for council tax this work will
create an estimated £254k in new revenue to the Council. These figures are in addition
to the Framework Contract mentioned above.

2.13

SAFS continue to work closely with parking enforcement officers across the district and
borough councils to bring prosecutions for persistent misuse of Blue Badges. This
relationship is further enhanced by the excellent working relationship SAFS maintains
with the various Councils’ Legal Services. This partnership approach resulted in a
number of prosecutions for Blue Badge abuse in 2018/2019.
Case 2: A Luton man used the badge belonging to his nephew to park in Stevenage town centre.

The man’s misuse of the badge was spotted by Herts County Council anti-fraud officers and
Stevenage Borough Council’s parking enforcement team, and he was subsequently prosecuted
by Hertfordshire County Council.
The man pleaded guilty to a charge under the Road Traffic Act. He was fined £280 and ordered
to pay the Councils costs, of £1,155.57.

2.14

SAFS ensured the County Council’s compliance with the National Fraud Initiative (NFI)
2018/19. The NFI is a national anti-fraud data-sharing exercise, conducted by the
Cabinet Office every two years, across local and central government to identify

7

Agenda Pack Page 329

potential fraud. The output from this exercise in still under review and investigations will
be concluded in 2019/20.
2.15

The County Council was the pilot site for the Cabinet Office NFI Fraudhub from April
2018 and relevant council data was lawfully shared, via the Cabinet Office on a monthly
basis, in the same manner as the national two year exercise. At present the findings
from this work are still been compiled but it is estimated that savings in excess of £2.5m
have been identified through prevention and early detection of error.
One example of this work was the ‘data cleanse’ conducted of a system hosted by Adult
Care Services (ACS) which had over 150,000 customers recorded. Using simple dataanalytics more than 54,000 personal records were identified as being out of date and
the service is now reviewing this information to update its database.
In a second exercise involving a review of Blue Badge (BB) holders’ data against
national databases held by the Government it was identified that around 4,000 BBs
were recorded as belonging to deceased persons. Theft and misuse of Blue Badges
has been reported by MHCLG and the LGA as being at all-time high. Having accurate
customer records is a requirement of the Data Protection Act 2018 and helps prevent
the misuse of stolen or expired BB by fraudsters to avoid, parking, toll and congestion
charges and to direct campaigns about the safety and use of BB’s to the correct
customers.

2.16

A CIPFA report in late 2017 identified that fraud in adult care had seen a significant
increase since 2015. SAFS provided a report to the Director of Adult Care Services
(ACS) highlighting this report and the potential risk of fraud across ACS. Reported
fraud within ACS at the County Council had appeared to be in decline from 2015 but the
Director offered to provide additional funding for SAFS initially from April 2018.
SAFS recruited a member of staff to raise awareness of the risk of fraud within ACS,
and provide training on prevention/reporting once risks were identified. More than 30
training/awareness sessions were delivered to staff, managers and the ACS Boards
and this resulted in nearly 40 cases of suspected fraud being reported by staff in year, a
number of other cases were reported following proactive campaigns and data-matching.
In total the level of alleged fraud had risen by 500% compared to the previous year.
Many of the cases reported to SAFS are sensitive investigations and often involve
individuals with complex care needs. In all cases SAFS works closely with staff from
ACS to ensure that vulnerable service users continue to receive the appropriate level of
care and that this is funded correctly.
Case 4: In July 2019 a resident of Hemel Hempstead pleaded guilty to 3 counts of Fraud by
False Representation. The case was investigated by The Shared Anti-Fraud Service following
the matter being reported by staff in ACS in 2018.
The resident’s wife was in receipt of direct payments to assist with her genuine care needs, but
the resident had failed to disclose to ACS, in 2013 and 2017, that he and his wife jointly owned
three properties in UK in addition to their family home in Hemel Hempstead.
The County Council paid out more than £75k in direct payments between 2013 and 2018.

8

Agenda Pack Page 330

The resident received a 2 year prison sentence, suspended for 2 years.
The case was further adjourned to November 2019 for a Proceeds of Crime Hearing to take
place when costs as well as recovery of the £75k will be sought from the resident’s assets.

2.17

A recent exercise conducted by county councils in the South East of England to
benchmark their counter fraud work and the associated outcomes shows that the
County Council would appear to be performing well with the resources it commits. The
outcome of the exercise needs to be treated with some caution, however, as the
councils submitting data are as diverse in their size, geography and demographics as
they are in their location and budgets.

3.

Transparency Code- Fraud Data

3.1

The (then) Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) published a
revised Transparency Code in February 2015, which specifies what open data local
authorities must publish.

3.2

The Code also recommends that local authorities follow guidance provided in the
following reports/documents:
CIPFA: Fighting Fraud Locally Strategy
(https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/118508/
strategy-document.pdf).
The National Fraud Strategy: Fighting Fraud Together
(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/nfa-fighting-fraud-together)
CIPFA Red Book 2 – Managing the Risk of Fraud – Actions to Counter Fraud and
Corruption
(http://www.cipfa.org/-/media/files/topics/fraud/cipfa_corporate_antifraud_briefing.pdf)

3.3

The Code requires that Local Authorities publish the following data in relation to Fraud.
The response for Hertfordshire County Council for 2017/18 is in Bold:
1

Number of occasions they use powers under the Prevention of Social Housing
Fraud (Power to Require Information) (England) Regulations 2014, or similar
powers.
Nil. (The Council is a Partner to the Hertfordshire Shared Anti-Fraud Service
and makes use of the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) to conduct such
enquiries on the Council’s behalf)

2

Total number (absolute and full time equivalent) of employees undertaking
investigations and prosecutions of fraud - 2.5 FTE

3

Total number (absolute and full time equivalent) of professionally accredited
counter fraud specialists - 2.5 FTE

4

Total amount spent by the authority on the investigation and prosecution of fraud £167,000

9

Agenda Pack Page 331

5

3.4

Total number of fraud cases investigated - 20 Cases investigated and closed in
year

In addition, the Code recommends that local authorities publish the following


Total number of cases of irregularity investigatedSee 5 above



Total number of occasions on which a) fraud and b) irregularity was identified.
17



Total monetary value of a) the fraud and b) the irregularity that was detected.
£240k of fraud losses & £2.5m of fraud savings/prevention.



Total monetary value of a) the fraud and b) the irregularity that was recovered.
Not recorded.

SAFS Annual Report 2018/19
4.1

The Shared Anti-Fraud Service Annual (Service) Report for 2018/19 is still in a draft
format and still needs to be approved by the SAFS Board prior to publication. The
latest draft of this report is made available for Members to review at Appendix D.

10

Agenda Pack Page 332

ITEM 6 - APPENDIX A

Hertfordshire County Council
Anti-Fraud Plan 2018/2019
in partnership with
The Shared Anti-Fraud Service

1 Pack Page 333
Agenda

Contents

Introduction

2

The National Context

3

SAFS Resources for 2018/2019

4

SAFS Standards of Service

5

Hertfordshire County Council Anti-Fraud Action Plan 2018/2019

6

SAFS KPIs for Hertfordshire County Council 2018/2019

7

Introduction
This plan supports the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy by ensuring that the Council, working in
partnership with the Hertfordshire Shared Anti-Fraud Service, has in place appropriate resources and controls
to prevent and deter fraud as well as investigate those matters that do arise.
The Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy states:
The Primary aim of this Strategy is to make it absolutely clear to the Citizens and stakeholders
of Hertfordshire County Council that, as an organisation and individuals, we are committed to
honesty, openness, and propriety, in all of our dealings. Simply put, fraud and corruption will
not be tolerated.
We will do our utmost to foster a culture in which fraud and corruption can find no foothold,
and any attempt to conduct illegal activity, either internal or external, against the Council will
be met with a united and resolute front.

This plan includes objectives and key performance indicators that support the Councils Strategy and meet the
best practice guidance/directives from central government department such as Department for Communities
and Local Government and other bodies such as National Audit Office and the Chartered Institute for Public
Finance and Accountancy.

2 334
Agenda Pack Page

National Context.
In 2013 the National Fraud Authority stated that the scale of fraud against local government is large, but
difficult to quantify with precision.
In its 2015 publication Code of practice on managing the risk of fraud and corruption CIPFA highlighted the
five principles for public bodies to embed effective standards for countering fraud and corruption in their
organisations. These principles support good governance and demonstrate effective financial stewardship and
strong public financial management
The five key principles of the code are to:






Acknowledge the responsibility of the governing body for countering fraud and corruption
Identify the fraud and corruption risks
Develop an appropriate counter fraud and corruption strategy
Provide resources to implement the strategy
Take action in response to fraud and corruption.

The CIPFA Local Government Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy (2016-2019) included a summary of
reported fraud losses across councils in England totalling £307m per annum but that hidden and unreported
fraud risks could exceed £2bn each year. The strategic response for local government to respond to the threat
of fraud threats provides three key principles ‘Acknowledge/Prevent/Pursue’. The strategy was supported by
Department for Communities and Local Government, the Local Government Association and Fighting Fraud
Locally Board.
In addition, local authorities can ensure that their counter fraud response is comprehensive and effective by
considering their performance against each of the six themes (6C’s) identified in the CIPFA Strategy:







Culture - creating a culture in which beating fraud and corruption is part of daily business,
Capability - ensuring that the range of counter fraud measures deployed is appropriate to the range
of fraud risks,
Capacity - deploying the right level of resources to deal with the level of fraud risk,
Competence - having the right skills and standards,
Communication - raising awareness, deterring fraudsters, sharing information, celebrating successes
Collaboration - working together across internal and external boundaries: with colleagues, with other
local authorities, and with other agencies; sharing resources, skills and learning, good practice and
innovation, and information

The Annual Fraud Indicator (AFI) 2017 (published in partnership by Crowe Clark Whitehill, Portsmouth
University and Experian) attempts to identify the cost of fraud to the UK economy. The AFI estimated fraud
losses for local government as follows.






Total loss across local government - £7.8bn
Tenancy Fraud- £1.8bn
Procurement Fraud - £4.4bn
Payroll Fraud - £1bn
Other - £0.6bn

The AFI does not include housing benefit fraud or council tax fraud as a loss to local government but estimates
the loss of these combined at around £1.1bn.
What is clear is that every pound lost to fraud from the public purse is a pound lost from essential front line
services. The Councils Anti-Fraud Plan 2017/2018 is founded on the principles of ‘Acknowledge/ Prevent/
Pursue’ and the 6 C’s to ensure the Council is adequately protected from fraud risk or that where fraud does
occur there are plans to manage and mitigate any losses.

3 Pack Page 335
Agenda

SAFS Resources 2018/2019
Budget
In December 2016 the SAFS Board agreed that the annual fee for the County Council would remain fixed at
£110,000. The Board also received assurance from financial modelling that the service would be sustainable,
in its current form, for 5 years with an increase in fees each year at 1% from 2019 onwards.
In February 2018 the Adult Care Services Board commissioned a report from the Shared Anti-Fraud Service to
review the risks of fraud in care services across the County and to cost additional resources to assist in the
early detection of fraud committed by service users & their representatives, third party care providers and HCC
& agency staff. Following this report the ACS Board agreed to provide an additional £59,000 to fund further
anti-fraud activity to protect ACS finances.
Fees for Hertfordshire County Council in 2018/2019 will be £169,000 + VAT.
Staffing
The full complement of SAFS now stands at 15.5 FTE’s; 1 Manager, 2 Assistant Managers, 9 Investigators and 2
Intelligence Officers. The Team is also supported by 1 FTE Data-Analyst and 0.5 FTE Intern who are funded
from SAFS Budgets.
For staffing – Hertfordshire County Council will have exclusive access to 3 FTE staff, access to intelligence
functions of the service, all data-matching services being offered through the local data-warehouse and can
call on SAFS management for liaison/ management meetings and two Audit Committees reports per annum.
SAFS also have access to an Accredited Financial Investigator (AFI), specialist IT and financial and forensic
expertise through third party providers and criminal litigation services.

4 336
Agenda Pack Page

SAFS - Standards of Service.
SAFS will provide the Council with the following fraud prevention and investigation services as part of the
contracted anti-fraud function.
1.
2.
3.

Access to a managed fraud hotline and webpage for public reporting.
Process and document for SAFS Partner staff to report suspected fraud to SAFS.
Training in: Fraud Awareness (management/staff/members), Fraud Prevention, Identity Fraud and
Prevention.
4. Assistance in the design of Council policies, processes and documents to deter/prevent fraud.
5. SAFS will design shared/common anti-fraud strategies and policies or templates to be adopted by the
Council.
6. SAFS will provide a proactive data-matching solution (data-warehouse) to assist in the early
identification of fraud and fraud prevention
 The data-warehouse will be funded by SAFS
 The data-warehouse will be secure and accessible only by nominated SAFS Staff.
Data will be collected and loaded in a secure manner.
 SAFS will design and maintain a data-sharing protocol for SAFS Partners to review
and agree annually. The protocol will clearly outline security provisions and include
a Privacy Impact Assessment.
 SAFS will work with nominated officers in the SAFS Partners to access data-sets to
load into the data-warehouse and determine the frequency of these.
 SAFS will work with Partners to determine the most appropriate data-matching for
each of them and the frequency of such data-matching.
7. All SAFS Staff will be qualified, trained and/or accredited to undertake their duties lawfully.
8. All SAFS investigations will comply with legislation including DPA, GDPR, PACE, CPIA, HRA, RIPA* and
all relevant policies of the Council.
9. Reactive fraud investigations.
 All reported fraud will be actioned by SAFS within 5 days, on average.
 The Council will be informed of all reported fraud affecting its services.
 SAFS will allocate an officer to each investigation.
 SAFS officers will liaise with nominated officers at the Council to access
data/systems/accommodation required to undertake their investigations.
 SAFS officers will provide updates on cases and a report with summary of facts and
supporting evidence on conclusion of the investigation for the Council to review and
make any decisions.
 Where a decision indicates an offence SAFS Officers will draft a report for the
nominated officers of the Council to make a decision on any further
sanctions/prosecutions.
10. Where sanctions, penalties or prosecutions are sought SAFS will work with the Council to determine
the appropriate disposal based on the Code for Crown Prosecutors and the Council’s published
policies. SAFS will provide reports through the SAFS Board on progress and to the Council’s Audit
Committee.
11. SAFS will provide Alerts to the Council, of suspected fraud trends or reports/guidance from
government and public organisations that are relevant to fraud.
*Data Protection Act, General Data Protection Regulation, Police and Criminal Evidence Act, Criminal Procedures and Investigations
Act, Human Rights Act, Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act.

5 Pack Page 337
Agenda

HCC / SAFS Action Plan 2018/2019
CIPFA Principles

SAFS Objectives

Agenda Pack Page 338

Ensure ongoing effectiveness
and resilience of anti-fraud
arrangements

Goals & 6Cs

Fraud is acknow ledged as
a Risk for the Council
CULTURE

ACKNOWLEDGE

Improve
the reachWORKING
into areas
MULTI AGENCY
long termfraud
relationships
of Build
‘corporate’
across all
betw een investigative
Partners agencies,
forging closer w orking practices

Create a data hub for
Hertfordshire

The Council has a robust
communication policy
Build a robust multi
demonstrating
its
agency
anti fraud culture
commitment to prevent
w ithin the borough
fraud
COMMUNICATION

Co-ordination of effort,
sharing of best practice,
data, fraud alerts and new
threats.
COLLABORATION

Activities

Responsible Officer

The Council has in place Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy

Head of Legal

The Council has a Fraud Response Plan and this Action Plan

s.151 Officer

Audit Committee and Senior Managers ensure compliance w ith CIPFA best practice in
their counter fraud arrangements

Director of Resources

The Council conducts Fraud Risk Assessments

Head of Counter Fraud/ Risk Manager

The Council has in place Policies to deal w ith Money Laundering/ Bribery/
Whistleblow ing/ Cyber-Crime

Head of Legal

The Councils Communication Team w ill publicise prosecutions and anti-fraud campaigns
conducted by it and SAFS

Head of Comms

SAFS w ill provide access to fraud reporting tools (w eb/phone/email)

SAFS

The Council and SAFS w ill make availble fraud aw areness or specific anti-fraud
training across all Council services

SAFS & Head of HR

Provide fraud alerts to appropriate officers/staff/services.

SAFS & Head of HR

SAFS w ill provide an E-Learning Packages for staff/members

SAFS & Head of HR

Develop existing SAFS Data Hub to improve the use of Data to prevent/identify fraud

Head of Counter Fraud

Review data sharing agreements/protocol betw een internal and external partners

Head of Legal / Head of Counter Fraud

Work to develop 'Flexible NFI' & 18/19 NFI Matches

SAFS

Work w ith ACS to deloiver JW w ith DWP as part of the 2018 National Roll-Out

Head of Counter Fraud

Work w ith other organisations, including private sector, to improve data-sharing

SAFS

All SAFS staff w ill be fully trained and accredited

Head of Counter Fraud

PREVENT
Develop services which can be
marketed to external bodies

Have the highest levels of
professional standards
COM PETENCE

PAGE 6 OF 8

All investigations w ill be undertaken in compliance w ith relevant legisaltion and Council
Policies
SAFS w ill w ork w ith bodies such as CLG/LGC/CIPFA to develop local anti-fraud
strategies at a national level
SAFS w ill w ork w ith Council Services to make best use of 3rd party Providers such as
NAFN, PNLD etc

Head of Counter Fraud
Head of Counter Fraud
SAFS

SAFS
KPIs 2018/2019

Agenda Pack Page 339

KPI

Measure

2018/2019
Target

Achieved 2017/2018
To 31.1.2018

1

Provide an Investigation Service

3 FTE on call at HCC
(Supported by SAFS Intel/ Management).
Membership of NAFN
Membership of CIPFA Counter Fraud
Centre
Access to NAFN for relevant HCC Staff
Fraud training events for staff/Members

2

Identified Value of
Fraud prevented/detected.
Based on the Methodology
agreed by SAFS Board

£450k
(Additional £150k in ACS)
From fraud identified and
savings/prevention

1 FTE on call at HCC
(Supported by SAFS Intel/
Management).
Membership of NAFN
Membership of CIPFA Counter Fraud
Centre
Access to NAFN for relevant HCC Staff
Fraud training events for staff/Members
£1.8m
(+ £150k in Council Tax)

Allegations of fraud Received.
From all sources.

100
Fraud referrals from all sources to SAFS

3

5

Success rates for cases
investigated. This will ensure
that quality investigations are
undertaken.

50%

Conduct Data-Matching using
the local data-hub, NFI and
other data-matching/mining.

Data-Hub for local data matching.
Access to NFI output.
County wide Council Tax Review
Framework.

112

80%
(24 of 30 cases proved)

PAGE 7 OF 8

Ensure ongoing effectiveness and
resilience of anti-fraud
arrangements

Deliver financial benefits in terms
of cost savings or increased
revenue

(Target £300k)

(100Target)
4

SAFS Partnership Aims

(50% Target)
NFI complete, CTax FW in place.
Data-Warehouse operational

Improve the reach into new areas
of fraud risk across all Partner
services
Create a recognised centre of
excellence that is able to
disseminate alerts and share best
practice nationally
Maintain & develop the existing
fraud/data-hub for Hertfordshire.

PAGE 8 OF 8

Agenda Pack Page 340

ITEM 6 - APPENDIX B

SAFS
KPIs PERFORMANCE 2018/2019

Agenda Pack Page 341

KPI

Measure

2018/2019
Target

Achieved in year

1

Provide an Investigation Service

3 FTE on call at HCC
(Supported by SAFS Intel/ Management).
Membership of NAFN
Membership of CIPFA Counter Fraud
Centre
Access to NAFN for relevant HCC Staff
Fraud training events for staff/Members

2

Identified Value of
Fraud prevented/detected.
Based on the Methodology
agreed by SAFS Board

£450k
(Additional £150k in ACS)
From fraud identified and
savings/prevention

2.5 FTE on call at HCC
(Supported by SAFS Intel/
Management).
Membership of NAFN
Membership of CIPFA Counter Fraud
Centre
Access to NAFN for relevant HCC Staff
Fraud training events for staff
£2.5m
(£655k in ACS)

SAFS Partnership Aims
Ensure ongoing effectiveness and
resilience of anti-fraud
arrangements

Deliver financial benefits in terms
of cost savings or increased
revenue

+ Circa £1.1m in Council Tax
(Undetermined savings from FraudHub)

3

Allegations of fraud Received.
From all sources.

100
Fraud referrals from all sources to SAFS

4

Success rates for cases
investigated. This will ensure
that quality investigations are
undertaken.

50%

Conduct Data-Matching using
the local data-hub, NFI and
other data-matching/mining.

Data-Hub for local data matching.
Access to NFI output.
County wide Council Tax Review
Framework.

5

172

Improve the reach into new areas
of fraud risk across all Partner
services

85%

Create a recognised centre of
excellence that is able to
disseminate alerts and share best
practice nationally

(17 of 20 cases proved)

PAGE 1 OF 2

NFI complete.
FraudHub tested and operational.
CTax FW in place.

Maintain & develop the existing
fraud/data-hub for Hertfordshire.

Agenda Pack Page 342

PAGE 2 OF 2

ITEM 6 - APPENDIX C

HCC Reported Fraud Stats 2018/19
REFERRAL SOURCES
TOTAL
Partner
172
82

Public
77

Proactive
7

REFERRAL TYPES
TOTAL
BB
Payroll
ACS
172
82
12
44
* Other included Contract & Pensions maters in 18/19

Other Agency
6

ALL CASES CLOSED

Agenda Pack Page 343

TOTAL
151

Mandate
8

POSITIVE CASES CLOSED
Positive
17

Investigated
17

Employee
% Positive Prosecutions Disciplined
85%
3
6

Not Proved
3

Intervened
44

Rejected
87

Payroll
£5,000

ACS
£234,000

Mandate
£0

Schools
£0

Insurance
£0

Other
£0

FRAUD - FUTURE SAVINGS/REVENUE
TOTAL
BB
Payroll
£2,523,000 £1,900,000 £35,000

ACS
£431,000

Mandate
£119,000

Schools
£0

Insurance
£38,000

Other
£0

ALL FRAUD LOSSES
TOTAL
BB
£239,000
£0

Schools
18

0
Proved No
Sanction
8

#REF!

Insurance
6

Other*
2

This page is intentionally left blank

£

ITEM 6 - APPENDIX D
Shared Anti-Fraud Service

2018/19

Fighting Fraud in Partnership

The Hertfordshire Shared
Anti-Fraud Service (SAFS)

ANNUAL REPORT

Agenda Pack Page 345

Agenda Pack Page 346

Annual Report Contents

Introduction & Highlights

1

Levels of Delivery

2

Performance - Outcomes

3

Performance- Financials

5

Added Value & Shared Learning

7

Data Hub & Herts FraudHub

8

A Center of Excellence

8

Future Developments

9

Budget and Finances

10

Board Members

11

SAFS Team

12

Agenda Pack Page 347

Introduction and Highlights

Welcome to the 2018/19 Annual Report of the Shared Anti-Fraud
Service (SAFS). Created in 2015, SAFS is now established as
a provider of counter-fraud services to public bodies across
Hertfordshire and beyond the Countys borders.
The service is recognised by both central and local government as a centre of
excellence constantly developing and demonstrating best practice; since its
creation it has been nominated for a number of national awards in the field of
fraud prevention and investigation.
The continuing commitment of the staff within the SAFS Team combined with the
ongoing support of the Service’s Partner Board has allowed it to further develop
its approach to combating the growing risk of fraud in the public sector.
2018/19 saw new clients join the SAFS Partnership and, despite some resourcing
challenges, the Service achieved or exceeded all of its performance targets.
During the year additional funding from HCC’s Adult Care Services Directorate
and Luton Borough Council has seen the Service review its structure allowing it to
focus on specific areas of emerging fraud risk e.g. social care fraud.
The SAFS Board is very proud of the work of the Team and is delighted to be
able to share some of the highlights of its work in 2018/19 within this report.

Terry Barnett

Head of Assurance Services
June 2019

£

Shared Anti-Fraud Service
Fighting Fraud in Partnership

Agenda Pack Page 348
1

Levels of Delivery
Despite the service facing some resourcing challenges during the year arising from unplanned
staff absences and vacancies, and recruiting to several new posts, it achieved or exceeded all of
its KPIs in 2018/2019.

The Anti-Fraud Actions Plans for all SAFS partners were delivered, either having been achieved
in full or very close to completion, with a number of important local KPI targets being exceeded.
Reports for individual Audit Committees detail the local performance of SAFS in each partner.

Figure 1: SAFS KPI Performance 2018/19
KPI

1

2

Measure

4

5

6

2018/2019
Performance

Notes

All Partners have
Deliver each Partners
Deliver effective
received individual
Anti-Fraud Action
counter fraud services
reports to Board
Plan for 2018/2019
to each partner
Rep and ‘Audit
from SAFS Budget
Committees’

Ensure ongoing
effectiveness
and resilience of
Partner anti-fraud
arrangements

£3.4m Savings
Reported
£1.6m Fraud Loss
Recorded
£900k Council Tax
Revenue
31 Social Properties
Recovered

Deliver financial
benefits in terms
of cost savings or
increased revenue.

1,029

Improve the reach
into new areas of
fraud risk across all
Partner services.

Identified value of
fraud losses and
savings in year.
Added Value

3

2018/19
Target

Allegations of fraud
received

£2.5m +
(Fraud Loss/Savings
combined)
Not Financial
(reported to Board
and Partners)
1,000

Success rates on
outcomes

60%

Sanction Cases
(Prosecutions/ staff
disciplinary
/ fines/ cautions)

60

Create Data-Hub
and Conduct
Data-Matching

Identify new areas
of business

62%
(119 case proved from
209 closed)
Develop SAFS as a
recognised centre of
excellence.
105

SAFS Contract/ Data
‘Data Hub’ Review for Sharing and Data
GDPR
Access agreements
&
all reviewed for April
NFI Fraud Hub for
2019.
Herts
New Herts Fraud-Hub
Piloted successfully
Clarion Housing
Add one new client/
Group signed
Partner to SAFS
contract to work with
in year
SAFS from 2018

Agenda Pack Page 349
2

Develop the existing
fraud/data-hub for
Hertfordshire.
Develop services
which can be
marketed to external
bodies

Performance - Outcomes
Across all SAFS partners more than 1,000 allegations of fraud (referrals) were received in 2018/19.
A number of referrals that did not relate to SAFS partners, were shared with other agencies
such as Action Fraud, the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP), the Police or Her Majesty’s
Revenues and Customs (HMRC).
Referrals received ranged from high volume/low value matters such as blue badge abuse reported
Performance
by members -ofOutcomes
the public and housing benefit/council tax fraud identified by revenues teams, to
Across
all
SAFS Partners
1,029risk
allegations
of fraud
(Referrals) were
received
in 2018/19payments,
(the Service
high
value
or
high
cases
involving
staff,
pension
schools or contracts.
also received 81 referrals that did not relate to Partners and these were shared with other agencies
such as Action Fraud, DWP, Police or HMRC).

Referral statistics do not include cases identified through proactive activity such as data-analytics,
bulk data reviews or targeted anti-fraud campaigns.

These referrals varied from numerous low value matters such as blue badge abuse reported by
members of the public and housing benefit/council tax fraud identified by revenues teams, to high value
or high risk cases involving staff, pension payments, Adult Care Service, or fraud affecting Schools or
contracts. High value cases are, in the main, reported by staff.
Referral statistics do not include cases identified through proactive activity such as data-analytics, bulk
data reviews or targeted anti-fraud campaigns.

2a: Fraud Referrals by type (High Volume)

Figure 2c: Fraud Referrals by source

Figure 2c: Fraud Referrals by source

Figure 2a: Fraud Referrals by type (High Volume)

Performance - Outcomes
Across all SAFS Partners 1,029 allegations of fraud (Referrals) were received in 2018/19 (the Service
also received 81 referrals that did not relate to Partners and these were shared with other agencies
such as Action Fraud, DWP, Police or HMRC).
These referrals varied from numerous low value matters such as blue badge abuse reported by
members of the public and housing benefit/council tax fraud identified by revenues teams, to high value
or high risk cases involving staff, pension payments, Adult Care Service, or fraud affecting Schools or
contracts. High value cases are, in the main, reported by staff.
Referral statistics do not include cases identified through proactive activity such as data-analytics, bulk
data reviews or targeted anti-fraud campaigns.

Figure 2c: Fraud Referrals by source

Figure 2a: Fraud Referrals by type (High Volume)

NOTE:
Note: We now include CARE (Adult Social Care) in this category due to the increased focus on counter**
fraud
on

OTHER - includes police and other councils.

** NOTE: OTHER - includes police and other
Public referrals were made via phone (92), email (23), SAFS Webpage (240), SAFS Partner
councils.
person (1). PARTNER referrals are those cases reported directly to SAFS by staff.

this serviceWe
area form
April 2018.
Note:
now
include CARE (Adult Social Care)
in this category due to the increased focus on
Figure 2b: Fraud Referrals by type (High Value/Risk)
counter fraud in this service area from 2018.

Figure 2d. Cases Closed in Year

Public referrals were made via phone (92),
email (23), SAFS Webpage (240), SAFS Partner
£2,000,000
(114), or in person (1). PARTNER referrals are
£1,800,000
those
cases reported directly to SAFS by the
£1,600,000
organisations.
£1,400,000

** NOTE: OTHER - includes police and other councils.
£1,200,000

Figure 2b: Fraud Referrals by type
(High Value/Risk)

Note: We now include CARE (Adult Social Care) in this category due to the increased focus on counter fraud on
£1,000,000
this service area form April 2018.
Public
referrals

made viaClosed
phone (92),in
email
(23), SAFS Webpage (240), SAFS Partner (
Figure 2d.were
Cases
Year

person
(1). PARTNER referrals are those cases reported directly to SAFS by the organisatio
£800,000

Figure 2b: Fraud Referrals by type (High Value/Risk)

£600,000

Figure 2d. Cases Closed in Year
£400,000
£200,000
£-

5

Consessionary Passes

Rejected (310- down from 411 in 2018/19) - Where no action was taken with the allegation. This
to the quality of the report, that it did not fall into SAFS remit or the value of the alleged fraud can
with administratively without need for further investigation.

•

Interventions (323- up from 262 in 2018/19) - Where the allegation suggests the fraud risk is low.
cases we may issue: a warning letter to the subject to remind them of their responsibility; or a revi
asking the subject to confirm their current circumstances.

•

Allegation Proved (119 – down from 141 in 2018/19) - Where the allegation has been substantia
and resulted in a fraud being prevented, an ongoing loss stopped or a historic loss identified. It co
include a sanction such as a civil penalty or prosecution being applied.

•

3

Blue Badge

•

Agenda Pack Page 350
5

Pensions

6

Rejected (310 - down from 411 in 2017/18) - Where no action was taken with the allegation. This
due to the quality of the report: that it did not fall into SAFS remit; or the value of the alleged fraud
dealt with administratively without need for further investigation.

• Rejected (310 - down from 411 in 2017/18)
- Where no action was taken with the
allegation. This may be due to the quality of
the report: that it did not fall into SAFS remit;
or the value of the alleged fraud can be dealt
with administratively without need for further
investigation.

As well as closing 209 investigations in the
year (119 with a positive outcomes, and 90
where fraud could not be proved), SAFS also
conducted 106 council tax interventions and 129
right to buy reviews.
The Service assisted with the following
criminal/civil outcomes:

• Interventions (323 - up from 262 in 2017/18)
- Where the allegation suggests the fraud
risk is low. A warning letter or review
asking the subject to confirm their current
circumstances may be completed.

• 31 social properties recovered (19 in
2017/18)
• 18 successful prosecutions (19 in 2017/18)
• 3 formal cautions issued (3 in 2017/18)

• Allegation Proved (119 – down from 141 in
2017/18) - Where the allegation has been
substantially proved and resulted in a fraud
being prevented or loss identified. It could
also include a sanction such as a civil penalty
or prosecution being applied.

• 10 staff disciplinary outcomes (3 in 2017/18)
• 55 financial penalties applied (34 in
2017/18)
The Service carried forward into 2019/20 560
live cases. The cases carried forward included
19 pending prosecution, 14 pending disposal
by way of financial penalty, and a further 60
cases pending decisions from Partners or DWP
following investigation.

• Allegation Not Proved (90 – down from 101 in
2017/18) - Where an investigation has been
conducted but no fraud could be identified.

Agenda Pack Page 351
4

savings/revenue identified from the work it undertook.
In 2018/19 the Service recorded Fraud Prevention of £3.4m and Fraud Loss of £1.6m.

Performance – Financials

‘Fraud Loss’ is where a fraud has occurred resulting in a debt that can be recovered through
civil/statutory routes. ‘Fraud Savings’ reflect attempted frauds that have been prevented or an
‘Loss’ that has been stopped.

Figure 3a: Fraud Losses identified in year

The SAFS Board received a paper in 2017 defining how the Service would record the value of
savings/revenue identified from the work it undertook.
In 2018/19 the Service recorded Fraud Prevention of £3.4m and Fraud Loss of £1.6m. The KPI
Target for the year was £2.5m in total.

‘Fraud Loss’ is–defined
as an identified fraud resulting in a debt that can be recovered through civil/
Performance
Financials
statutory
routes.
‘Fraud
Savings’ reflects fraud that has been prevented or an ongoing ‘Fraud Loss’
One of the key objectives for SAFS is to be self-funding through the identification of savings and new
revenue
for
its
partners
through
the
investigation
of alleged fraud and recovery of fraud losses. The
that has been stopped.
SAFS Board received a paper in 2017 defining how the Service would record the value of
savings/revenue identified from the work it undertook.

This chart represents the service areas where substantial losses have occurred. Some of
be more easily recoverable than others. Housing Benefit fraud is a notoriously difficult debt
‘Fraud Loss’ is where a fraud has occurred resulting in a debt that can be recovered through
but to the £673k HB fraud losses identified can be added a further £269k in subsidy that will b
civil/statutory routes. ‘Fraud Savings’ reflect attempted frauds that have been prevented or by
an those
ongoing
councils administering the HB scheme.
‘Loss’ that has been stopped.
In 2018/19 the Service recorded Fraud Prevention of £3.4m and Fraud Loss of £1.6m.

Figure 3a: Fraud Losses identified in year

Figure 3b: Fraud Savings in future years

Figure 3a: Fraud Losses identified in year

Figure 3b: Fraud Savings in future years

This chart represents the service areas where substantial losses have occurred. Some of
these
mayabove represent the service areas where savings have been identified but these
The
figures

be moretable
easily recoverable
than others.
Benefitareas
fraud is awhere
notoriously difficult debt
to recover,
nominal
(using national
estimates)
or may not be realised
by Partners areas
directly.
This
represents
theHousing
service
The
figures
above
represent
the service
but to the £673k HB fraud losses identified can be added a further £269k in subsidy that will be claimed
8
substantial
losses have
occurred. Some of these
where savings have been identified
but these
by those councils administering
the HB scheme.
may
be more easily recoverable than others.
are either nominal (using national estimates)
Figure 3b: Fraud Savings in future years
Housing Benefit fraud is a notoriously difficult
or may not always be realised by SAFS
debt to recover, but to the £673k HB fraud
partners directly.
losses identified can be added a further £269k
in subsidy paid to those councils administering
the HB scheme.

The figures above represent the service areas where savings have been identified but these are either
nominal (using national estimates) or may not be realised by Partners directly.

8

Agenda Pack Page 352
5

Figure 3C: Fraud Savings/ New Revenue identified

Figure 3c: Fraud Savings/ New Revenue
identified

Figure
3d: Savings
identified
HertsorFraudHub
The figures above
reflect future savings
through prevention,
in the case of Council Tax ne
generated. In addition through its management of the County Wide Council Tax Review Fra
Pilot
(HCC)
the Service has assisted with the identification of more than £900k of new council tax liability

Figure 3C: Fraud Savings/ New Revenue identified

Figure 3D: Savings identified Herts FraudHub Pilot (HCC)

These
figures include the savings identified through SAFS Pilot of the NFI Herts FraudHub
The figures above reflect future savings through prevention, or in the case of Council Tax new
revenue

data for 2018/19. The pilot resulted in the removal of nearly 4k blue badges and mo
generated.
In addition
through its
management
of the County
Wide Council Tax Review Framework
The
figures
above
reflect
future
savings
These
figures include savings identified by the
concessional travel passes from the Councils databases. An exercise with ‘Herts Equipmen
the Service has assisted with the identification of more than £900k of new council tax liability (in year).
saw
the
removal
more Herts-FraudHub
than 50k personal records from
a single
data-base using data-a
through prevention, or in the case of council tax
pilot
of theofNFI
using
HCC
number of results from the work in 2018/19 are still outstanding including reviews of 8
Figure 3D: Savings identified Herts FraudHub Pilot (HCC)
pensions, As
23 staff
record/payroll
39 residential
care placements
new
revenue generated. In addition, through
data.
well
as thereviews,
financial
benefits
this and more than 200
personal budgets.
its management of the county wide council tax
exercise resulted in the removal of nearly 4k
review framework, the Service has assisted
blue badges and more than 4k concessional
with the identification of an additional £900k
travel passes from the Councils’ databases.
of new council tax liability (in year) not
An exercise with ‘Herts Equipment Services’ saw
included above.
the removal of more than 50k personal records

9
from a single data-base. A number
of results
from the work in 2018/19 are still outstanding
including reviews of 84 deferred pensions, 23
staff record/payroll reviews, 39 residential care
placements and more than 200 matches to
personal budgets.
These figures include the savings identified through SAFS Pilot of the NFI Herts FraudHub using HCC
data for 2018/19. The pilot resulted in the removal of nearly 4k blue badges and more than 4k
concessional travel passes from the Councils databases. An exercise with ‘Herts Equipment Services’
saw the removal of more than 50k personal records from a single data-base using data-analytics. A
number of results from the work in 2018/19 are still outstanding including reviews of 84 deferred
pensions, 23 staff record/payroll reviews, 39 residential care placements and more than 200 matches to
personal budgets.

£

Shared Anti-Fraud Service
Fighting Fraud in Partnership

9

Agenda Pack Page 353
6

Added Value & Shared Learning
In addition to the reactive and proactive investigation work, SAFS is tasked with
delivering activity to raise awareness of the risk of fraud, prevention and deterrence.

• 	The Service provided training to front line staff in many partners
last year including general fraud awareness and service specific
training. SAFS delivered its E-Learning training product across
all Partners in 2018/19. This training includes modules on bribery
and corruption, money laundering and fraud prevention.
• 	Through SAFS, each partner has access to the services provided
by the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) and training in the
use of this on-line service has been delivered to a number of
debt recovery, benefits and housing teams.
• 	The Service continues to provide guidance and advice where
specific, new or emerging fraud matters come to light, or where
changes in legislation require a review of existing policies.
• 	In 2018/19 the Service communicated 23 fraud-alerts to SAFS
partners from organisations including NAFN, National Fraud
Intelligence Bureau, Hertfordshire Constabulary, CIPFA and the
London Fraud Forum.
• 	The Service assisted all partners with the National Fraud
Initiative 2018 data-uploads and, for several, undertook the
whole exercise including data upload and results, acting as the
NFI SPOC for those Councils.
• 	In early 2018 the DWP, Ministry of Housing Communities and
Local Government and the Local Government Association
approved the national roll-out of joint working between
councils administering housing benefit and the DWP, this roll out
reflected the success of six pilot sites across the UK, including
three in Hertfordshire. Staff from SAFS partners, SAFS Team
and DWP worked together to identify more than £350k in social
security fraud over an 18 month period in Hertfordshire.

£

“I’ve been the Project
Implementation Manager
working with SAFS and the
DWP Investigation Team to
make sure that Joint Working
operated smoothly and that
both teams had the tools they
needed to work effectively and
efficiently within the law. It’s
been a pleasure as both teams
were open to the new way of
working and enthusiastically
embraced the opportunity to
test the processes and help
us evaluate what we’d put in
place. It hasn’t all been smooth
as you would expect with a test
but thanks to a ‘can do’ attitude
Joint Working is now effectively
business as usual.”
Susan Baker
Joint Working Support Team |
Fraud, Error & Debt Programme
| Department for Work and
Pensions
2018

Shared Anti-Fraud Service
Fighting Fraud in Partnership

Agenda Pack Page 354
7

Data Hub
The Service has reviewed all data-sharing agreements, contracts, memorandums
of understanding and security protocols following GDPR and the new DPA 2018
and continues to collect and utilise a wide a variety of data from each partner on a
monthly cycle.
“In my role at CIFAS I see a lot of
This has enabled the Service to match data from SAFS partners
to third party data including: Charity Commission, Cabinet
Office, Google-Maps and credit reference agencies. This has
allowed tailored data-matching for Broxbourne Borough Council
on Business Rates; Hertsmere Borough Council for Housing
Applications; and the County Council for employees and pensions
as well as bulk data-matching to identify tenancy fraud for
Stevenage Borough Council and Luton Borough Council.
The Service was able to fully test the Cabinet Office FraudHub
from April 2018 and, following the success of this work, all SAFS
Partners and other councils in Hertfordshire will be joining the
Herts FraudHub during 2019/20.
The Service works with a number of private companies to
develop tools to improve the use and access to data assisting
both in reactive investigations and systems of ‘continual
monitoring’ in areas such as procurement to prevent/identify
fraud.

good practice in both the public
and the private sector, and I am
fortunate enough to manage the
day to day work on the national
strategy for councils called
Fighting Fraud and Corruption
Locally. As part of that work I see
what Councils about are doing
to deter, prevent and detect
fraud. The SAFS team is, in my
opinion, at the top end of good
practice, with real outcomes in
numbers and in reducing the
harm that fraud can do to local
communities. Having followed
them from the launch I have
seen them go from strength to
strength and I am sure there is
more to come“

Rachael Tiffen
Director, Local Government
CIFAS

A Centre of Excellence
Two medium term objectives for the
Service were the creation of a ‘centre of
excellence’ and delivery of services that
could be marketed to other bodies.

In 2019 SAFS established the County Councils
Anti- Fraud Network on the ‘Knowledge
Hub’ and has also been approached by the
National Tenancy Fraud Forum to set-up a
Home Counties Tenancy Fraud Forum for social
housing providers across the region.

The SAFS Partnership was a finalist in the
Counter Fraud Awards in 2016 and 2017
as a result of its collaborative approach to
countering the threat of fraud. The Service
received a special commendation from the
Institute of Revenues Rating and Valuation
in its ‘Excellence in Counter Fraud’ category
in 2018 and won the award for ‘Significant
Contribution’ at the Fighting Fraud Locally
Awards in March 2019.

Having joined the SAFS Partnership in 2017
Luton Borough Council doubled its investment
in the Service in 2018/19. A number of social
housing providers have arrangements in place
with the Service for it to provide support with
tenancy fraud.

SAFS provided support to other Councils setting
up their own counter fraud teams or improving
their use of data to prevent fraud. In 2018/19
SAFS worked with councils in Worcestershire,
Agenda
Essex, Oxford and Norfolk.
8

SAFS works with a number of organisations
who provide specialist support including IT
forensics, surveillance, and data-analytic skills
enabling it to improve the quality and depth of
its investigations.

Pack Page 355

Future Developments
The SAFS Service Plan 2019/20
includes four core pieces of work as
revised Key Performance Indicators to
reflect the needs of the SAFS partners:

The Service has created a best practice forum,
using the ‘Knowledge Hub’ platform, for
working in county councils and will work with
others to develop a County Council Anti-Fraud
Forum.

1

. Developing the Fraud/Data-Hub. The
trial of the NFI Herts FraudHub has been
very successful using HCC data, this will
now be rolled out across all partners by
October 2019 replacing the previous
Data-Hub hosted offsite by a
third party.

2

Officers from the Service are involved in
a number of national projects including
development of the Governments ‘Counter
Fraud Profession’ a Counter Fraud
Apprenticeship and Access to police
accreditation, allowing staff to access police
databases and intelligence systems, and
improved wider data sharing arrangements
with the police is being developed.

3

Work with organisations such as the Credit
Industry Fraud Avoidance Service (CIFAS) to
access the National Fraud Database and the
‘Internal Fraud Database’, are in development
supported by Data Protection, IT Security and
Legal Service teams at Hertfordshire County
Council to ensure compliance with the Data
Protection Act 2018.

. Fraud in adult care was identified by
CIPFA in 2017 as one of the largest
growth areas of fraud risk. The County
Council’s Director for Adult Care Services
invested additional finances in SAFS for
2018/19 to see how this emerging threat
can be countered and has agreed to
continue this funding for 2019/20.
. Roll out of Joint Working with DWP. The
trial of joint working with DWP from 2016
was a great success and SAFS will work
with all District Partners to ensure the
roll-out of the national programme in
Hertfordshire from 2019 onwards.

The Service will continue to deliver an
excellent service to its partners whilst seeking
ways to continually improve and build on
its history of success. SAFS will work in
partnership, across all sectors, sharing best
practice, knowledge and experience, striving
to keep ahead of new and emerging
fraud threats.

4

. Case Management System (CMS). SAFS
replaced its CMS in March 2019 and has
been working with the new provider to
implement and further develop
this system.

Agenda Pack Page 356
9

SAFS Budgets and Finances 2018/19
Budget
Salaries

Actual Spend

Variance

£662,000

£740,241

£78,241

£12,000

£7,014

-£4,986

£86,200

£83,927

-£2,273

Third Party Payments

-£94,000

-£147,879

-£53,879

Total Expenditure

£666,200

£683,303

£17,103

Partner & Client Charges

£654,000

£657,083

£3,083

£12,200

£26,220

£14,020

Transport
Expenditure Supplies

Income
Contribution/Draw on Reserve (-)

Note: Additional income from Partners was agreed by the Board from April 2018 after the Budget
had been agreed to include funding for additional staff. As a result both staff salaries and ‘third
party payments’ were increased in year.

“At a time when local government finances are hard pressed ensuring that we protect the public funds
we administer from fraud, and from those who would divert public money into their own pockets through
bribery and corruption, is essential.
The Shared Anti-Fraud Service (SAFS) is a true partnership, where everyone involved contributes and
supports the Service, not only to detect and investigate fraud but, also to prevent fraud occurring through
improved data sharing and proactive work. Often dealing with matters such as council tax and council
tax benefit frauds which have a significant financial impact on our local residents through to financially
low impact blue badge abuse which causes major inconvenience to genuine disabled residents.
Working in partnership to provide an anti-fraud function across Hertfordshire ensures that we are able to
access anti-fraud resources and expertise through the SAFS Team, share best practice and knowledge to
prevent fraud and keep up todate with new and emerging fraud threats.”
Sajida Bilje - SAFS Board Member
Corporate Director
Hertsmere Borough Council

Agenda Pack Page 357
10

SAFS Board Members
The SAFS Board provides strategic direction and oversight for the partnership,
bringing a wealth of local government experience and insight to our operation.
Steven Pilsworth

Hertfordshire County Council

Assistant Director - Finance

Terry Barnett

Hertfordshire County Council

Head of Assurance

Sajida Bijle

Hertsmere Borough Council

Corporate Director

Ian Couper

North Hertfordshire District
Council

Director Finance, Policy &
Governance

Sarah Marsh

Borough of Broxbourne Council

Head of Internal Audit

Isabel Brittain

East Herts Council

Head of Strategic
Finance & Property

Clare Fletcher

Stevenage Borough Council

Assistant Director
(Finance and Estates)

Dev Gopal

Luton Borough Council

Service Director, Finance & Audit

“It is imperative that Local Authorities are aware of the risks of fraud,
and have an effective response to those risks. Whilst some fraud has a direct cost,
there is substantial amount that has less direct consequences, but still has a real impact
on Council services and residents. We must also consider the reputational impact that a
Council can face in relation to fraud.
The SAFS support starts with developing a tailored Anti-Fraud action plan for the year that draws on national
themes, guidance and best practice. The core work of the team is then about preventing and investigating
fraud. Whilst the service has effective routes for the public to report fraud (and undertakes campaigns to
encourage this and raise awareness), it is still vital that Council staff report concerns as well.
The effectiveness of an anti-fraud service is difficult to measure. The deterrent effect is as important as
directly catching those carrying out fraud. However, in addition to the SAFS service consistently exceeding
their targets, the SAFS managers do a great job in presenting regular reports to our Audit Committee
members. They paint a picture of the work that they are doing and the impact that it has, which helps our
Councillors understand the value of the service.
Being a SAFS Board Member, means that we are not just a SAFS customer. The Board Member role allows
me to contribute towards how the service develops over time. Over the past year this has included how the
service measures its performance and how to make best use of national fraud indicator databases.
Ian Couper- SAFS Board Member
Service Director- Resources
North Hertfordshire District Council

Agenda Pack Page 358
11

SAFS Team
All SAFS staff are fully accredited or working towards to professional accreditation
relevant to their role within the service. The SAFS Team in 2018/19 was made up
as follows:
Nick Jennings

Head of Service

Paula Hornsby

Manager South Team

Darren Bowler

Manager North Team

Stephen Everett

Data- Analyst

Halina Nawrocka

Senior Counter Fraud Officer

Hilary Williams

Counter Fraud Officer

Faith Taggart

Counter Fraud Officer

Natalie Nelson

Counter Fraud Officer

Phil Juhasz

Senior Counter Fraud Officer

Hayley Frazer

Counter Fraud Officer

Gill Nicoll

Counter Fraud Officer

Rob Fleming

Counter Fraud Officer

Bhavna Tailor

Counter Fraud Officer

Toni Gubby

Tenancy Fraud Officer (SBC)

Raul Avram

Counter Fraud Intern

Paula Staniford

Counter Fraud Intelligence Officer

Marina King

Counter Fraud Intelligence Officer

Sam Deards

Counter Fraud Intelligence Officer

Georgia Read

Counter Fraud Intelligence Officer

Agenda Pack Page 359
12

£

Shared Anti-Fraud Service
Fighting Fraud in Partnership

Agenda Pack Page 360

01438 845557

fraud.team@hertfordshire.gov.uk
1

Design ref: 085577

Contact Us

Agenda Item
No:
HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 AT 2:00PM
SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
Report of the Director of Resources
Author:

Chris Wood, Head of the Shared Internal Audit Service
Tel: 01438 845513

1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

To provide Audit Committee members with the Shared Internal Audit
Service (SIAS) Annual Report for 2018/19, as attached at Appendix 1
to this report.

2.

Background

2.1

While not a requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards,
SIAS’s Annual Report is an opportunity for the Service to reflect on its
activities throughout the preceding year. It is intended to give
stakeholders and other interested parties information about SIAS's
activities, financial and operational performance and future plans.

2.2

The SIAS Annual Report 2018/19 covers the work of the entire service
as distinct from the Hertfordshire County Council 2018/19 Annual
Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report that was
presented to the Audit Committee at its meeting on 8 May 2019.

2.3

The Head of the Shared Internal Audit Service is responsible for
preparing the Annual Report, which was approved by the SIAS Board
at its June 2019 meeting before being presented to our respective
partner Audit Committees.

3.

Summary

3.1

The SIAS Annual Report 2018/19 covers the following key areas,
amongst others:
a) Levels of delivery, performance outcomes and indicators –
summarises overall performance across the partnership as a
whole,
b) Shared learning - reviews some of the highlights of one of the
founding principles,

1

Agenda Pack Page 361

7

c) Development of people and processes – identifies some teamfocused, technological and logistical changes to improve skills, as
well as management and performance information,
d) Customer service – picks up some of the positive customer
feedback from the year,
e) Financial performance of SIAS, and
f)

Future developments - focuses on service plan priorities leading up
to our next peer review,

4.

Recommendation

4.1

That the Audit Committee notes the information contained in the
Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19.

2

Agenda Pack Page 362

APPENDIX 1

Shared Internal
Audit Service

Annual Report 2018/19
Agenda Pack Page 363

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

2

Annual Report Contents
Introduction & Highlights

1

Levels of Delivery

2

Shared learning – The Power of Partnership

3

Developing Our People and Processes

4

First Class Customer Service

5

Performance - Outcomes

6

Performance Indicators and Financial Performance of SIAS

7

Future Developments

8

Our Board Members

9

Appendix A: SIAS Trading Account

10

Appendix B: Definitions

11

Agenda Pack Page 364

Introduction
Welcome to the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) Annual
Report for 2018/19.
I am writing this year’s introduction with a smile on my face, and a quiet
sense of professional satisfaction. We have reason to celebrate success
this year in that we achieved our overall performance targets again despite
several ongoing challenges. This follows a two-year period where our
targets were narrowly missed.
This has only been possible with the commitment and dedication of both the
in-house team and our external service provider, as well as the co-operation
of our partners and stakeholders. I am very proud of the work of the SIAS
Team and delighted to be able to look to the future with a sense of cautious
optimism.
Following the completion of the SIAS restructure in 2017/18, the year
had a strong focus on delivery of our partners audit plans, as well as
consolidation, stability and revisiting the ‘nuts and bolts’ of the service to
ensure that we had solid foundations for the future.
We are pleased to have BDO back with us as our external delivery partner
after a competitive tender process. They have been a vital component of
service resilience and access to specialist skills, and we look forward to the
continuation of our successful relationship.
I received some sage advice recently from one of our Audit Committee
Chairs, who reminded me that internal audit is not just about performance
indicators but also about positive outcomes for good governance. To this
end, we expanded and developed hugely beneficial relationships with our
Audit Committees and achieved notable success in areas such as follow-up
and implementation of internal audit recommendations.
For further highlights, I invite you to delve into the Annual Report itself and,
as ever, I enjoy the engagement, dialogue and feedback the report fosters.
Chris Wood
Head of the Shared Internal Audit Service
June 2019

1

Agenda Pack Page 365

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

Levels of Delivery
Whilst the Service faced some challenges during the year
arising from staff sickness absences and vacancies,
it nonetheless surpassed its overall target of delivering 95% of
days commissioned by clients with a final outturn of 96%.
This is a testament to the hard work and resilience of the
SIAS Team.
Despite the challenges referred to above, the Service achieved its overall
target of delivering 95% of its audit reviews to draft report stage by the close
of the year.

Achieved
its overall
targets despite
resilience
challenges…

Figure 1: Percentage of audits days delivered

Figure 2: Percentage of audits to draft stage

Agenda Pack Page 366

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

2

Shared learning - The Power of Partnership
Shared learning happens through the dialogue we have with others. It has long
been part of the vision of our Board that the service acts to facilitate the sharing
of learning across its partners. A shared learning culture, both formal and
informal, is embedded through our team, our sister services within Assurance
and across our partners and opportunities abound to publicise and promote
issues big and small.

Our quarterly
shared learning
papers are now a
regular feature
at management
boards, governance
groups and team
meetings across
our partners

Over the course of 2018/19, our quarterly shared learning papers
continued to be a regular feature at management boards, governance
groups and team meetings across our partners. General learning points
arising from our work (e.g. high priority recommendations from across
our partners) and the wider local government environment have been
disseminated through our regular papers with contributions from across
our Assurance Services. A recurring theme arising from our internal audit
work was partnership or shared service governance.
In addition to our shared learning papers and newsletters, we hosted
a very well received follow-up workshop for our partners and other
stakeholders building on the Local Authority Trading and Commercial
Governance themes from last year, utilising the commercial expertise of
our audit delivery partners BDO.
We have used our governance expertise to develop internal audit
recommendation databases, update Audit Committee Terms of Reference
and facilitate the Annual Governance Statement process for our partners,
with the learning from one partner informing similar exercises at others.
During the year, an audit on Financial Monitoring and Business Continuity
Arrangements– 3rd Party Contractors fed directly into a Member-led
Scrutiny on supply, market and contractor volatility post Carillion at one
of our partners. This topic has now informed several audit plans of other
SIAS partners and had also featured in the ‘Audit Together’ newsletter
to which we contribute, along with other topical issues such as Brexit
Preparedness.
Our involvement with ‘Audit Together’, a strategic alliance of similar
internal audit partnerships, our audit delivery partners (BDO) and an array
of contacts through bodies such as the Local Authority Chief Auditors
Network (LACAN) and Home Counties Chief Internal Auditors Group
(HCCIAG) have been invaluable in sharing experiences, points of practice
and ideas that help us to develop as a service in response to client
need and the ever-evolving field of internal audit. Our staff, partners and
Audit Committee members continue to provide helpful challenge, which
causes us to pause and think about matters big and small, whether about
assurance levels, recommendation priorities, professional judgement and
intellectual curiosity or about our skills, performance, systems and culture.

3

Agenda Pack Page 367

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

Developing our People and Processes
SIAS is committed to providing its services to clients in the
most cost effective and resilient way possible, while giving the
service the management and performance information it needs
to support decision making and work allocation processes.
The development of our in-house time recording, and audit
plan management system is an excellent example of a service
development that has delivered on both counts.
The technology for the new systems is based around established Microsoft
products (Excel and Access) and the costs associated with system
maintenance are absorbed within existing corporate overheads. This has
allowed the Service to not only secure a financial saving of circa £3,000 per
annum but, more importantly, to future proof its existing business processes.

Service
developments
delivering cost
effectiveness
and resilience,
while informing
decision-making

Building on these recent developments, SIAS has introduced an online,
real-time performance dashboard that allows our team to track their
individual performance against targets, review their work allocation and
monitor progress of audit delivery. This has been integrated into the monthly
one-to-one meetings the team has with their line managers, as well as the
formal appraisal (PMDS) process.
We also commenced the process of reviewing and updating our Internal
Audit Manual. This is a comprehensive set of working documents designed
to inform, direct, guide and train internal auditors within the team, and
includes things such as our vision, structure charts, policies, audit
methodology, quality control arrangements and working paper and
report templates.
New assurance levels and internal audit recommendation priorities were
introduced across our partners and became ‘business as usual’ as the
year progressed.

Skilled team
members to meet
the ever-changing
demands on a
modern internal
audit service

Processes of course mean nothing without skilled team members to meet
the ever-changing demands on a modern internal audit service.
We rolled out a Training and Skills Matrix based on the Chartered Institute
of Internal Auditors (CIIA) Core Competency Framework, the Internal Audit
Apprenticeship and the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards to identify opportunities for collective and individual improvement
and development. The results will inform a training, development, skills and
succession planning project in 2019/20 (see Future Developments below).
We also successfully recruited two Trainee Auditors, one of whom is the
first in our team to embark on the new Internal Audit Apprenticeship. One
of our Client Audit Managers was the public sector representative on the
CIIA / Barclays Learning and Development Forum that developed the
Apprenticeship Standard in the first instance.

Agenda Pack Page 368

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

4

First Class Customer Service
“A professional
and friendly
service which
will provide
value…”

In order to monitor our effectiveness and improve our service,
at the end of each assignment we request the completion of a
short satisfaction survey. We have been given and have acted
upon invaluable improvement ideas, and we are proud of the
fact that in 2018/19 we have received 100% satisfactory or
higher feedback rating from our customers; an improvement on
the previous year.
Some of the comments that accompany the formal scoring document
are shown below:

“Auditor astute and approachable. A number of insightful
queries regarding process and record keeping were made to
inform the assessment.”
“Excellent service conducted by experienced Auditor with
a wealth of experience who understood our processes
and systems.”
“A professional and friendly service which will provide value
to the strategic direction of ICT at Hertsmere”
“Auditor was really good during the process, asking us
questions and probing us when necessary. It was good to
complete this to make sure we are following the correct
processes and to have formal confirmation that we
are doing everything that we should be doing to a high
standard.”
“The service received was professional and took the time to
investigate the issues surrounding this project. At the same
time officers were easy to communicate with putting me at
ease with the process. At all times I felt that there was a
genuine desire to identify any issues and concerns without
being onerous or overbearing to reach a predetermined
outcome. There was no prejudgement of the situation
and I had plenty of opportunities to ask for clarifications
throughout the process.”
“Outstanding service. Thank you for the advice and help.
Very happy with the service provided. ‘The auditor’ gave
excellent advice which was very helpful. Thank you”
5

Agenda Pack Page 369

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

Performance - Outcomes
SIAS completed 263 assurance and other projects to
final report stage, giving the assurance opinions and
recommendations detailed in the charts below.
For those pieces which resulted in a formal assurance opinion,
the distribution of opinions is set out in figure 3 below:
Figure 3: Distribution of Audit Opinions 2018/19

263 assurance
and other
projects
identifying 670
recommendations

Not Assessed
41
Satisfactory
102

Limited
32

Good
88

For those audits where recommendations were required, the priority ratings
are set out in figure 4 below:
Figure 4: Prioritisation of Recommendations 2018/19
Critical
1
High
67
Low
251

Medium
351

Agenda Pack Page 370

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

6

Performance Indicators
The overall business performance of SIAS is monitored by the
SIAS Board by means of a balanced scorecard which provides
a range of measures by which progress can be evaluated.
The overall performance of SIAS against our key performance indicators is
reported below.
Table 1: SIAS Business Performance

Actual as at
Actual as at
Commentary
31 March 2018 31 March 2019

Indicator

Target

Progress against
plan: actual days
delivered as a
percentage of
planned days.

95%

94%

96%

Progress against
plan: audits
issued in draft by
31 March

95%

93%

95%

97%

100%

100% client
satisfaction
questionnaires
Client satisfaction returned at
‘satisfactory
overall’ level
or above

Despite
continued
resilience
challenges in
year, the service
achieved both of
its targets.

Continued good
performance in
this area

Financial Performance of SIAS
SIAS began operating on a fully traded basis in 2012/13.
Appendix A sets out the summary financial position at 31 March 2019.
The partners determined that the service should aim to build a reasonable
surplus and to consider the financial position of the service on a three-year
rolling basis.
The intention of this is to smooth the impact of any unforeseen events
impacting on trading performance in future years.

7

Agenda Pack Page 371

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

Future Developments

The SIAS Service Plan for 2019/20 is divided into four themes
focusing on People, Performance, Position and Process.
This facilitates undertaking service development in a
structured and methodical way to achieve our vision of being
an exemplar shared service at the leading edge of audit
service delivery.
The SIAS Management Team held an away afternoon in April to develop
the main ideas in our 2019/20 Service Plan. A number of ‘quick wins’ were
identified, as well as three projects that we would like to complete ahead of
our next peer review required by the end of 2020. The projects centre on the
following:
a)	Training, skills, development and succession planning (People theme),
b) Work allocation (Performance theme), and
c)	Updating and improving the SIAS profile and content on partner intranet
and websites, as well as Schools Grid (Position theme)
The changing face of service delivery within Local Government also
presents the Service with new opportunities, challenges and demands and
a need to provide higher levels of consultancy advice, evolve our knowledge
and skills, and apply new approaches and techniques to the work at hand.
The increased use of, or access to, data analytics tools is likely to become a
key feature in the work of the Service going forward. The use of these tools
will allow the Service to facilitate delivery of the widest coverage of process
driven areas.

Agenda Pack Page 372

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

8

Our Board Members
The SIAS Board provides strategic direction and oversight for
the partnership, bringing a wealth of local government experience and insight to our operation.
In 2018/19, our Board members were as follows:

Name

Title

Clare Fletcher

Assistant Director (Finance and Estates) Stevenage Borough Council

Sajida Bijle

Corporate Director

Hertsmere Borough Council

Steven Pilsworth

Interim Director of Resources

Hertfordshire County Council

Ian Couper

Service Director (Resources)

North Hertfordshire District
Council

Ka Ng

Executive Director – Resources,
Environment and Cultural Services

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council

Isabel Brittain

Head of Strategic Finance and Property

East Herts Council

Jo Wagstaffe

Shared Director of Finance

Watford Borough Council and
Three Rivers District Council

Terry Barnett

Head of Assurance

SIAS

9

Partner

Agenda Pack Page 373

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

Appendix A - SIAS cost centre: revised
budget against outturn 2018/19
Budget

Outturn

£

£

1,054,410

980,670

Partner / Consultancy Costs

95,875

137,313

Transport

8,500

7,313

Supplies

18,483

9,890

Office Accommodation Cost

17,005

17,005

Total expenditure

1,194,273

1,152,191

Income

1,209,339

1,220,711

(15,066)

(68,520)

Salaries & Salary Related

Net (surplus) / deficit

Agenda Pack Page 374

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

10

Appendix B - Definitions of Assurance
Levels and Priority of Recommendations
Assurance
Level

Definition

Good

The design and operation of the internal control framework is effective,
thereby ensuring that the key risks in scope are being well managed and core
objectives will likely be achieved. There are minor reportable audit findings.

Satisfactory

The internal control framework is largely working well in managing the key
risks in scope, with some audit findings related to the current arrangements.

Limited

The system of internal control is only partially effective, with important audit
findings in key areas. Improvement in the design and/or operation of the
control environment is necessary to gain assurance risks are being managed
to an acceptable level, and core objectives will be achieved.

No

The system of internal control has serious gaps, and controls are not effective
in managing the key risks in scope. It is highly unlikely that core objectives will
be met without urgent management intervention.

Service

Corporate

Priority Level

Definition

Critical

Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to
the organisation as a whole, i.e. reputation, financial resources and /
or compliance with regulations. Management action to implement the
appropriate controls is required immediately.

High

Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control
environment, which, if untreated by management intervention, is highly
likely to put achievement of core service objectives at risk. Remedial
action is required urgently.

Medium

Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action,
are likely to put achievement of some of the core service objectives at
risk. Remedial action is required in a timely manner.

Low /
Advisory

Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice,
which, if adopted, will enhance the control environment. The appropriate
solution should be implemented as soon as is practically possible.

11

Agenda Pack Page 375

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

1

Agenda Pack Page 376

Shared Internal Audit Service Annual Report 2018/19

Agenda Item
No:
HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 AT 2:00PM

8

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL – SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE
INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
Report of the Director of Resources
Authors:

Chris Wood, Head of Shared Internal Audit Service
(Tel: 01438 845513)
Darren Williams, Client Audit Manager (Tel: 01438 844341)

1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

To provide Members of the Audit Committee with information on the delivery
of the County Council’s Internal Audit Plan as at 28 June 2019, covering:
a) Progress made by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) in delivering
the Hertfordshire County Council Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20
b) Proposed amendments to the approved 2019/20 Audit Plan
c) ‘Limited Assurance’ audits issued since the last meeting of this Committee.
d) Implementation status of previously agreed:
 Critical and high priority audit recommendations and agreement to
remove completed actions, and
 medium priority recommendations
e) An update on performance management information.

2.

Background

2.1

Local government is statutorily required to have an internal audit function. The
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that ‘a relevant authority must
undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public
sector internal auditing standards or guidance’.

2.2

In addition, a council’s Chief Finance Officer has a statutory duty under
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to establish a clear framework
for the proper administration of the authority’s financial affairs. To fulfil this
requirement, the S151 officer relies, amongst other sources, upon the work of
internal audit.

Agenda Pack Page 377

1

2.3

The work of Internal Audit is required to be reported to a Member Body so that
the Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an essential component
of corporate governance and gain assurance that its internal audit provision is
fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is considered good practice that progress
reports also include proposed amendments to the agreed annual audit plan.

2.4

The 2019/20 Hertfordshire County Council Audit Plan was approved by the
Audit Committee on 29 March 2019. The Audit Committee receives periodic
progress updates against the Internal Audit Plan. This is the first update report
for the 2019/20 financial year, as attached at Appendix 1 to this report.

3.

Summary

3.1

As at 28 June 2019, 16% of the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan days have been
delivered and 7% of the total planned projects have been completed to draft
report stage (both with annual targets of 95% delivery).

3.2

The progress report includes the outcomes of 16 assurance, follow-up, shared
learning and grant certification / accounts projects completed since the
previous update to the Audit Committee.

3.3

Three in-year amendments have been proposed to the approved Internal
Audit plan, these relating to the Corporate, Resources and Schools elements
of the approved audit plan. The current balance of remaining contingency time
totals 10 days for the County Council plan and 35 days for the Schools plan.

3.4

Two new limited assurance opinions have been provided. These relate to the
areas of Residential Accommodation and the Hertfordshire Home Safety
Service. The former focused on ensuring that appropriate policies, procedures
and guidance were in place to control the allocation of County Council
property to staff under residential occupancy arrangements or assured
shorthold tenancies. The latter focused on ensuring that an appropriate
internal control framework was in place to support the delivery of the Home
Safety Service, in particular looking at the systems relating to managing
referrals, allocation of visits and performance monitoring.

3.5

No critical priority recommendations are included within this progress report.
There is one new high priority recommendation noted within the report, this
relating to the audit of Residential Accommodation and focusing on the area
of eligibility assessments and policies.

3.6

In respect of the implementation status of management actions, updates are
provided on the five outstanding high priority recommendations, with four
reported as being partially implemented (with two including revised
implementation dates) and one not yet being due for implementation.

3.7

For the 38 outstanding medium priority recommendations followed up within
this period, 14 (37%) are confirmed as implemented and 24 (63%) have
revised implementation dates. A detailed summary of the progress in
implementing recommendations outstanding for more than 12 months has

Agenda Pack Page 378

2

been provided in Appendix C of the progress report. A summary of those
previously reported as outstanding for more than 12 months, but now
implemented, has been provided at Appendix D.
4.

Recommendations

4.1

That the Audit Committee:
a) Notes the Internal Audit Progress Report.
b) Approves the proposed in year changes to the County Council’s 2019/20
Internal Audit Plan.
c) Notes the progress update on the implementation status of outstanding
high priority recommendations and medium priority recommendations
outstanding for over 12 months.

Agenda Pack Page 379

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Progress Report

Hertfordshire County Council
Internal Audit Progress Report
19 July 2019

Agenda Pack Page 381

4

Contents
1

Introduction and Background
1.1
Purpose
1.2
Background

2

Audit Plan Update
2.1
Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Findings
2.5
Schools’ Activity
2.11
Proposed Audit Plan Amendments
2.15
Limited Assurance Audits
2.21
Critical and High Priority Recommendations
2.28
Medium Priority Recommendations
2.32
Performance Management

Appendices
A

Progress against the 2019/20 Audit Plan

B

Implementation Status of Critical and High Priority
Recommendations

C

Implementation Status of Medium Priority Recommendations
in excess of 12 months over target date

D

Summary of Medium Priority Recommendations in excess of
12 months over target date now implemented

E

Definitions of Assurance and Recommendation Priorities

Agenda Pack Page 382

5

1. Introduction and Background
Purpose of Report
1.1

To provide Members of the Audit Committee with information on the
position as at 28 June 2019, relating to:
a) Progress made by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) in
delivering the Hertfordshire County Council Internal Audit Plan for
2019/20
b) Proposed amendments to the approved 2019/20 Audit Plan
c) ‘Limited Assurance’ audits issued since the last meeting of this
Committee, of which there is two in this reporting period.
d) Implementation status of previously agreed:
 high priority audit recommendations and agreement to remove
completed actions, and
 medium priority recommendations
e) An update on performance management information.
Background

1.2

The 2019/20 Hertfordshire County Council Audit Plan was approved by
the Audit Committee on 29 March 2019.

1.3

The Audit Committee receives periodic progress updates against the
Internal Audit Plan and this is the first update report for the 2019/20
financial year.

1.4

The work of Internal Audit is required to be reported to a Member Body so
that the Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an essential
component of corporate governance and gain assurance that its internal
audit provision is fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is considered good
practice that progress reports also include proposed amendments to the
agreed annual audit plan.

2. Audit Plan Update
Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Audit Findings
2.1

As at 28 June 2019, 16% of the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan days had
been delivered (calculation excludes unused contingency days).
Appendix A to the report provides a status update on each individual
deliverable within the audit plan.

Agenda Pack Page 383

6

2.2

The following final reports have been issued and assignments
undertaken in the period since 8 March 2019 which was the cut off period
for the previous report that was brought to the Committee in March 2019:
Audit Title

Assurance
Level

Number of
Recommendations

Satisfactory

2 Medium

Children’s Services
Secondary Expansion
Programme
Resources
4 Medium

Debtors

Satisfactory

Creditors

Satisfactory

General Ledger

Good

None

Treasury Management

Satisfactory

None

Payroll

Satisfactory

None

Satisfactory

4 Medium

2 Low
1 Medium
1 Low

Adult Care Services
Care and Support Plans
Review Process (Direct
Payments)
Community Protection
Hertfordshire Home Safety
Service

Limited

10 Medium
4 Low

Environment and Infrastructure
Fly Tipping

Satisfactory

1 Medium

Good

1 Low

0-25 Integrated Service
(Data Quality)

Satisfactory

3 Medium

Section 106

Satisfactory

6 Medium

Public Health
Public Health Peer Review
Challenge
Cross Service

Agenda Pack Page 384

7

Audit Title

Assurance
Level

Residential
Accommodation

Limited

Tree Management (follow
up audit)

Satisfactory

Number of
Recommendations
1 High
5 Medium
4 Medium

Grant Certification / Accounts / Statutory Submissions

2.3

LEP Local Growth Hub

Unqualified

N/a

Hertfordshire Charity for
Deprived Children

Unqualified

N/a

In addition to completed projects summarised in 2.2, the following draft
reports and final draft reports have been issued to management for
comment, response or approval to issue the final report (where a
satisfactory management action plan has been received):
Service

Audit Title

Month of Issue

Final Draft Reports
Resources

Property and Estate
Management

June 2019

CS

School Admissions Appeals
Process

June 2019

Council Wide

Partnership Funding
(Governance)

June 2019

Council Wide

Sickness Management and
Occupational Health

June 2019

Council Wide

Financial Solvency Monitoring
and Business Continuity
Arrangements

June 2019

Draft Reports (awaiting management action plans)
Resources

Benchmarking (Fees and
Charges)

March 2019

ACS

Provider Overpayments

March 2019

ACS

Home Improvement Agency

May 2019

Agenda Pack Page 385

8

Service

2.4

Audit Title
(revised draft report)

Month of Issue

ACS

Budget Savings and Efficiency
Plans

May 2019

ACS

Specialist Care at Home

June 2019

CS

GDPR - Electronic Transfer of
Sensitive Data (follow up audit)

March 2019

CS

School Meals - HCL Client
Account and Debt Management

March 2019

Council Wide

Debt Management

March 2019

A total of eight audits from the 2018/19 plan were carried over into
2019/20 for the completion of fieldwork, with four now at draft report
stage, two at quality review stage and the final two have fieldwork start
dates agreed with management. Details of this outstanding project can be
found within Appendix A of this report.
Schools’ Audit Activity

2.5

The schools’ audit plan for 2019/20 identified three streams of activity:
a) Theme 1 - Assessment of the effectiveness of internal control in
relation to the requirements of the Schools Financial Value
Standard (SFVS) (sample of 25 schools)
b) Theme 2 – Medium Term Financial Planning (MTFP) – to provide
assurance over the effectiveness of the medium-term financial
planning process within schools. The audit theme will also assess the
robustness of governance arrangements to review, challenge and
approve the MTFP and in-year monitoring of delivery. (sample of 15
schools)
c) Theme 3 – Pay Policies and Payroll – to provide assurance over the
robustness of governance arrangements to set pay policies and
approve pay awards. The audit theme will also review the robustness
of the internal control environment for payroll processing, including
processes for managing starters, leavers, amendments to pay and
review and approval of pay runs. (sample of 15 schools)

2.6

In respect of Theme 1, visits have now been booked with all 25 schools
sampled, with a total of 10 visits now completed and submitted for quality
review, prior to a draft report being issued.

2.7

In respect of theme 2 (MTFP), planning has commenced with visits to
sampled schools to be undertaken in the Autumn Term 2019/20. For

Agenda Pack Page 386

9

theme 3 (Pay Policies and Payroll), planning will commence in quarter
three, with the intention of commencing fieldwork in the Spring Term
2019/20 (quarter four).
2.8

During April and May 2019, SIAS facilitated the co-ordination, completion
and submission of the Council’s annual SFVS return to the Education
Skills and Funding Agency. We are pleased to report to the Audit
Committee that the Council’s return indicated that all Maintained Schools,
Nurseries, and Special Schools had submitted a completed SFVS return
to the Council in line with the required deadline.

2.9

We continue to receive enquiries from schools regarding a range of
financial matters and update the Frequently Asked Questions within the
Internal Audit page on the Grid accordingly.

2.10

Finally, in May 2019 SIAS attended a School Business Management
briefing arranged by Herts for Learning to present the outcomes and
learning points from the three 2018/19 Schools Audit themes. This was
attended by finance managers from over 100 schools and provided an
opportunity for SIAS to share good practice with the wider Schools
community.
Proposed Audit Plan Amendments

2.11

Proposed amendments to the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan and the
associated reasons for these are set out below:
Corporate
 The allocation for investigating whistleblowing allegations has been
increased from five to 15 days, following significant work undertaken
on a recent referral received by the Council. This work is now
complete.
Resources
 At the request of the Director of Resources, it is proposed that an audit
of the robustness governance arrangements at the LEP will be added
to the 2019/20 audit plan. This is a follow on from similar audits
undertaken during the previous two years and is a valuable source of
assurance for the annual conversation that is held with the Cities and
Local Growth Unit (CLoG) Area Lead, the Council’s Section 151 Officer
and LEP representatives. A total of 15 days will be allocated from the
Council’s audit contingency budget to support this review.

2.12

Subject to the approval of the above plan changes the Council’s
contingency allocation will be 10 days, with potential further minor
changes due prior to the conclusion of the financial year.

Agenda Pack Page 387

10

2.13

Schools
 At the request of the Operations Director (Education), an additional
school visit has been added to the 2019/20 schools plan, with this
focusing on procurement and financial control arrangements at this
specific school. A total of 10 days will be allocated from the School’s
Contingency allocation to support this review.

2.14

Following the above change, the schools audit plan contingency
allocation stands at 35 days.
Limited Assurance Audits

2.15

Since the previous Progress report to the Audit Committee, two Limited
Assurance opinions have been provided by SIAS, these relating to the
areas of the Hertfordshire Home Safety Service and Residential
Accommodation.
Hertfordshire Home Safety Service

2.16

In arriving at a Limited Assurance opinion, the Shared Internal Audit
Service (SIAS) acknowledged the significant positive contribution that the
service has made but concluded that there several elements of the
existing processes that could either be improved or streamlined to assist
the service in meeting key objectives.

2.17

Specific areas for improvement highlighted within the report included a
review of the current trading standards (APP) business application to
determine whether this can be developed to better meet the needs of the
service, creation of more formalised written policies and service
standards, a review of current business processes to avoid current
instances of complexity / duplication and a review of the effectiveness of
existing key performance indicators and quality assurance processes.

2.18

In response to the above report, Community Protection management
accepted and agreed to implement all audit recommendations, providing
a full management action plan. Implementation dates for the agreed
actions range from March 2019 to December 2019.
Residential Accommodation

2.19

In arriving at a Limited Assurance opinion, the SIAS identified that the
absence of policies, eligibility criteria and clarity around roles and
responsibilities had increased the risk that an inconsistent approach is
operated in relation to residential occupancy agreements. Whilst no
instances were identified during the audit where occupancy agreements
entered into were inappropriate, the devolved nature of the current
process and lack of systems to maintain corporate oversight reduced the
SIAS’s ability to confirm that this is case for all properties within the
portfolio.

Agenda Pack Page 388

11

2.20

A joint response to the report was provided by the Assistant Directors for
Property and HR, within which all recommendations were accepted. A
key element of the management action plan was the establishment of a
project group to take forward the audit recommendations, given the
number of services involved in this area. Management actions have been
scheduled for completion by the end of October 2019 (or earlier), this
acknowledging the significant work required to review the existing
dispersed arrangements.
Critical and High Priority Recommendations

2.21

Audit Committee Members will be aware that a final audit report is issued
when it has been agreed by management. This includes an agreement to
implement the recommendations made. It is Internal Audit’s responsibility
to advise members of the Committee on progress of the implementation
of high priority recommendations; it is the responsibility of Officers to
implement the recommendations by the agreed date.

2.22

A summary of management’s progress in implementing critical and high
priority recommendations is summarised in the table below, with a
detailed update on individual actions provided within Appendix B of this
report:
HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS
Total number of
outstanding
recommendations
at the start of this
follow up period
5
%

Implemented

Not yet due

No longer
applicable

Not implemented by
due date
Partially implemented
– revised date agreed

0

1

0

4

0%

40%

0%

60%

2.23

High priority recommendations relating to schools are excluded from this
listing given both the volume of schools within the County and the relative
risk of any single recommendation to the Authority as a whole.

2.24

No critical priority recommendations have been made within the financial
year 2019/20 to date.

2.25

One new high priority recommendation has been made since our
previous Progress Update report to the Audit Committee. The progress in
implementation of the agreed management actions will be provided to the
Committee within future progress reports, in line with the implementation
dates provided by management.

Agenda Pack Page 389

12

2.26

The above recommendation, from the Residential Accommodation audit
report, relates to the creation of a formal eligibility criterion and policy for
the allocation of residential occupancy or assured shorthold tenancies for
staff. This recommendation has been classified as a high priority
recommendation both to ensure that best use is made of this limited form
of property stock, but also to ensure that the offering of residential
occupancy is only where it is deemed appropriate for the “better
performance of duties”, thereby satisfying the HMRC guidelines on nontaxable benefits.

2.27

In response to the above recommendation, management agreed to
review existing approaches in place with the intention of arriving at a
formal eligibility criterion, assessment and authorisation process that will
cover Council services, HFRS and Schools. The target date for
completion of this action has been set at October 2019. Further details on
the specific recommendations made can be found in Appendix B of this
report.
Medium Priority Recommendations

2.28

The Committee’s role in respect of medium priority recommendations is
to be satisfied that there is a monitoring process in place and that agreed
recommendations are being implemented.

2.29

The table below details the implementation status of medium priority
recommendations that were due for implementation in the period since
the last progress report.
MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS
Total number of
recommendations
Implemented
followed up in this
period
38 (out of 51
outstanding
14
recommendations
%

2.30

Not implemented by due date
Partially implemented –
revised date agreed

No update provided by
action owner

24

0

63%

0%

37%

We provide a summary of the individual audits below where management
have indicated a revised implementation date for medium priority
recommendations and we also detail the current elapsed time from the
original target date. The latter is calculated from the original target date to
the date of completing this progress report (June 2019). It does not
include the future period from the date of this Progress report to the
revised target date. A detailed update of the current position for
outstanding recommendations over 12 months old (based on the original
target date) is provided in Appendix C.

Agenda Pack Page 390

13

App
C–
Ref

1

2

3

4

5

6

Service

Cross
Service
(Resources
and E&I)

Cross
Service
(Resources
and E&I)

Audit

Section 106
Payments

Tree
Management

Final Report
Issued

February
2015

March 2016

Environment
and
Infrastructure

Highways
Programme
Management

Environment
and
Infrastructure

Highways
PMNet Software
Development
Project

March 2018

Resources

LEP Local
Assurance
Framework

March 2018

Resources

Deputyships
and
Appointeeships

May 2017

January
2018

Total
Number
of Recs

Total
Number of
Recs O/s

Original
Target
Date
of
O/s recs

Revised
Target Date

8

1

01/10/2015

30/04/2019

30/09/2016

31/12/2019
&
31/03/2020
for new
recommenda
tions from
the Tree
Management
Follow-up
Audit
proposed to
supersede
these
original
recommenda
tions

30/09/2016

See above.

33
months

01/08/2017

Until the
present
delivery
issues are
resolved with
IT developer,
it is not
possible to
provide a
completion
date for this
activity.

22
months

31/03/2018

See above

15
months

30/04/2018

See above

14
months

30/04/2018

30/04/2019

14
months

01/04/2018

31/08/2019

15
months

01/04/2018

31/12/2019

15
months

01/04/2018

31/08/2019

15
months

30/04/2018

31/07/2019

14
months

30/04/2019

31/10/2019

7

1

2

22

9

2

1

2

1

3

7

CP

GDPR
Preparedness

April 2018

2

1

8

Cross
Service (E&I

Home to School
Transport

November
2018

11

3

Agenda Pack Page 391

14

Period
Overdue

44
months
33
months

2 months

App
C–
Ref

Service

Audit

Final Report
Issued

Total
Number
of Recs

Total
Number of
Recs O/s

and CS)

9

10

Cross
Service (CS
and ACS)

0-25 Integrated

ACS

ACS Care and
Support Plan
(Direct
Payments)

2.31

April 2018

3

3

Original
Target
Date
of
O/s recs

Revised
Target Date

30/04/2019

31/10/2019

30/04/2019

31/10/2019

31/03/2019

31/08/2019

31/03/2019

31/08/2019

31/03/2019

31/08/2019

4

4

01/03/2019

01/10/2019

4 months

01/03/2019

31/07/2019

4 months
N/A

30/09/2019

The table at Appendix D shows the medium priority recommendations that
were over 12 months old (based on March progress report) that have now
been implemented.
Performance Management

2.32

Annual performance indicators and associated targets are approved by
the SIAS Board on an annual basis.

2.33

The actual performance for Hertfordshire County Council against the
targets that can be monitored in year is set out in the table below.
Performance Indicator

Performance
Target for 31
March 2020

Profiled
performance at
28 June 2019

Actual
performance to
28 June 2019

1. Planned Days –
percentage of actual
billable days against
planned chargeable days
completed (excludes
unused contingency)

95%

17%

16%

95%

9%

7%

3. Client Satisfaction ** –
percentage of client
satisfaction questionnaires
returned at ‘satisfactory’
level

100%

100%

100%

4. Number of High and

95%

95%

100%

2. Planned Projects * –
percentage of actual
completed projects to draft
report stage against
planned completed
projects

Agenda Pack Page 392

3 months
N/A

31/07/2019

April 2019

Period
Overdue

15

Performance Indicator

Performance
Target for 31
March 2020

Profiled
performance at
28 June 2019

Actual
performance to
28 June 2019

Critical Priority Audit
Recommendations
agreed as %
* Based on Audit Plan ‘deliverables’ at draft, final and audit closed stage
including schools’ audits and items carried forward from 2018/19 that were not at
draft report stage by 31 March 2019 or included within the SIAS 2018/19 Annual
Assurance Statement and Internal Audit Annual Report.
** 2 completed customer satisfaction surveys have been received during 2019/20
to date from the 9 surveys issued.

2.34

In addition, the performance targets listed below are annual in nature;
Members will be updated on the performance against these targets within
the separate Head of Assurance’s Annual Report:


5. External Auditors’ Satisfaction – external audit has been able to
draw assurance from the work of internal audit on relevant matters.



6. Annual Plan – prepared in time to present to the March meeting of
each Audit Committee. If there is no March meeting, then the plan
should be prepared for the first meeting of the financial year.



7. Head of Assurance’s Annual Report – presented at the June
meeting of the Audit Committee.

Agenda Pack Page 393

16

APPENDIX A

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2019-20 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 28 JUNE 2019

Hertfordshire County Council Audit Plan 2019/20
Plan
Days

Auditor

Annual Governance Statement 2018-19

8

SIAS

Annual Governance Statement 2019-20

5

SIAS

5

SIAS

5

SIAS

4

Resources Queries < 3hrs Activities

5

SIAS

1

HBS Strategic and Financial Planning

25

SIAS

Systems Access (SAP)

15

BDO

Key Financial Systems

50

SIAS

Carbon Reduction Commitment

15

SIAS

Property Customer Journey

15

SIAS

ICT Maintenance (Hardware and
Applications)

15

BDO

ICT Asset Register

15

BDO

Shared Anti-Fraud Service

5

BDO

Use of Consultants

20

SIAS

Shared Managed Services Contract

20

BDO

Audit

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Billable
Days

Corporate

Agenda Pack Page 394

Head of Assurance Annual Opinion and
Annual Report
Whistleblowing - named contact and
quarterly review

Complete

8
0

Complete

5

Resources
In Planning

1
Allocated
Allocated

0
0

In Fieldwork

2.5
In Planning

0.5
Allocated

In Planning

1
1

Allocated
In Fieldwork

0
4.5

In Planning

0
0

Council Wide Reviews
Local Authority Trading Companies

25

SIAS

Allocated

0

Savings & Efficiency Programmes - Budget
Monitoring

25

SIAS

Allocated

0

17

APPENDIX A

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2019-20 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 28 JUNE 2019
Plan
Days

Auditor

Lone Working - Follow Up

15

SIAS

Information Sharing with External Partners

25

SIAS

Safe Recruitment - Follow Up

20

SIAS

PREVENT

20

SIAS

Contract Monitoring

20

SIAS

ACS Charging Policy

15

SIAS

Workforce Planning

20

SIAS

Home Improvement Agency - Follow Up

20

SIAS

Allocated

0

Safeguarding

15

SIAS

Allocated

0

Supported Living

15

SIAS

Allocated

0

Debt Recovery Process

20

SIAS

Allocated

0

ACS Queries < 3hrs Activities

5

SIAS

Communication / Public Interfaces
(Highways)

15

SIAS

Highway Resilience

15

SIAS

Highway Service Term Maintenance
Contract – Financial Management,
Monitoring and Budgetary Control

15

SIAS

Allocated

0

Development Management Performance

15

SIAS

Allocated

0

Management of external contracts

15

SIAS

Allocated

0

Joint Working with Legal

10

SIAS

Allocated

0

Alternative Financial Model (Waste
Management)

15

SIAS

Audit

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb
Allocated

In Planning

Mar

Billable
Days
0
0

Allocated

0
Allocated

0

Adult Care Services
TOR Issued

1.5

In Fieldwork

6
Allocated

0

Agenda Pack Page 395

0.5

Environment & Infrastructure
In Planning

0.5

In Planning

0.5

Allocated

0

18

APPENDIX A

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2019-20 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 28 JUNE 2019
Plan
Days

Auditor

Dynamic Purchasing

20

SIAS

E&I Queries <3hrs activities

5

SIAS

5

SIAS

External Commissioned Services

15

SIAS

Child Protection Schools Liaison

10

SIAS

SEND Budgets

20

SIAS

Allocated

0

Early Years Payment Run System

15

SIAS

In Planning

2

Section 17 - Families Requiring
Accommodation

15

SIAS

Extended Statutory Duties

20

SIAS

Joint Commissioning

15

SIAS

Allocated

0

Children Looked After Placements

20

SIAS

Allocated

0

CS Queries <3hrs Activities

5

SIAS

Trading Standards - Illegal Animal Imports

15

SIAS

Command and Control – Business
Continuity

20

SIAS

HMIC Action plan

10

SIAS

Trading Standards – Process for Penalty
Charge Notices

15

SIAS

Emergency Service collaboration

15

SIAS

Audit

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Allocated

Mar

Billable
Days
0
0.5

Children's Services
Quality Assurance (Consultancy)

Allocated

0

Agenda Pack Page 396

Allocated

0

In Fieldwork

6

Allocated

0

Allocated

0

0

Community Protection
In Fieldwork

3

In Planning

0.5
Allocated
Allocated

0
0

Allocated

0

Public Health

19

APPENDIX A

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2019-20 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 28 JUNE 2019

Audit
Contract Management - School Nursing
and Health Visiting Contracts

Plan
Days

Auditor

15

SIAS

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb
Allocated

Mar

Billable
Days
0
0

Shared Learning
Shared Learning Newsletters and Summary
Themed Reports

5

SIAS

1.5
0

Grant Claims
2

SIAS

0

Hertfordshire Education Foundation

2

SIAS

0

Herts Charity for Deprived Children Grant

2

SIAS

LEP Capital Grant

3

SIAS

LEP – Local Growth Fund

3

SIAS

Integrated Structural Maintenance Grant

2

SIAS

0

Disabled Facilities / Home Improvement
Agency

5

SIAS

0.5

MPC Broadband

5

SIAS

0

Bus Subsidy

2

SIAS

Grants Contingency

10

SIAS

0

Monitoring 2019/20 Plan

20

SIAS

3

Recommendations Follow-Up - Q1

5

SIAS

Recommendations Follow-Up - Q2

5

SIAS

Recommendations Follow-Up - Q3

5

SIAS

Agenda Pack Page 397

Herts Chief Finance Officers Society

Final Report Issued Unqualified

1
2

Final Report Issued Unqualified

3

Other Chargeable
Complete

1.5
Allocated

0
Allocated

0

20

APPENDIX A

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2019-20 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 28 JUNE 2019
Plan
Days

Auditor

Recommendations Follow-Up - Q4

5

SIAS

Client Liaison

20

SIAS

6

Audit Committee Matters & Attendance

25

SIAS

3.5

Audit Planning – 2020/21

20

SIAS

Performance Data

5

SIAS

1

External Audit Liaison

2

SIAS

0.5

Service Plan Activity

25

SIAS

2

SIAS Board Meetings and Preparation

12

SIAS

1

20

SIAS

2

5

SIAS

5

Audit

Agenda Pack Page 398

Assurance Services – Management
Activities
Public Sector Internal Audit - Self
Assessment 2019/20

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb
Allocated

Mar

Billable
Days
0

HCC Contingency
Contingency

25

0
0

2018/19 Projects Requiring
Completion
2018/19 Projects Requiring Completion

50

35

Resources - Systems Access

BDO

In Planning

0

Council Wide - General Data Protection
Regulations

SIAS

Draft Report Issued

0

Council Wide - Sickness Management

SIAS

Draft Report Issued

0

Community Protection - Sickness
Management

SIAS

Quality Review

0

Council Wide - Complaints Management

SIAS

ACS - Budget Savings and Efficiency Plans

SIAS

Draft Report Issued

0

ACS - Specialist Care at Home

SIAS

Draft Report Issued

0

In Planning

0

21

APPENDIX A

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2019-20 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 28 JUNE 2019

Audit

Plan
Days

E&I - Enforcement

Auditor
SIAS

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Quality Review

Mar

Billable
Days
0

Schools
20

SIAS

4

Liaison, awareness raising and training

15

SIAS

1.5

Theme 1 – Schools Financial Value
Standard (SFVS) (25)

95

SIAS

Theme 2 – Medium Term Financial
Planning (15)

70

SIAS

Agenda Pack Page 399

Advice, queries and guidance for schools

65

5
In Planning

Theme 3 – Pay Policies and Payroll (15)

70

SIAS

Schools - Audits Requested by CS

5

SIAS

SFVS returns process

20

SIAS

Follow up of high priority recommendations
and schools with moderate assurance

10

SIAS

Finalisation of 2018-19 Draft Reports

5

SIAS

Contingency – Schools Causing Concern
Referrals

20

Schools’ contingency

15

Total Plan and Billable Days

In Fieldwork

1473

Allocated
Draft Report Issued
Complete

5
20

In Fieldwork

1.5
5

225

22

APPENDIX A

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2019-20 AUDIT PLAN AS AT 28 JUNE 2019

Total Recommendations***
HCC (Excluding Schools)

Critical
0

High
0

Medium
0

Low
0

HCC
Schools

Total Projects ***
67
58

Final Report
2
1

Draft Report
5
1

Quality Review
2
10

Fieldwork
6
12

TOR
1
0

Planning or Allocated
51
34

Total

125

3

6

12

18

1

85

Agenda Pack Page 400

Notes:
*** - Total Recommendations and Projects include 2018/19 projects requiring completion but exclude 2018/19 projects requiring finalisation (where
a draft report had been issued prior to 31 March 2019).
Key
C = Critical Priority
H = High Priority
M = Medium Priority
L = Low Priority
RECS = Recommendation
BDO = SIAS Audit Partner
N/a = not applicable

23

APPENDIX B

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF CRITICAL AND HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS

The following appendix provides Audit Committee Members with a summary of the most recent update provided by management in respect of outstanding high
priority recommendations.

No.

1.

Report Title / Date
of Issue

Recommendation /
Original Management Response

Adult Care
Services - Data
Security and
Information
Sharing

Recommendations

(Final Report
Issued July 2018)

Responsible Officer
/ Original Due Date

Management update as at June 2019
(or previous commentary where
appropriate)

June 2019 Update:

Agenda Pack Page 401

In order to ensure that staff have undertaken all
expected data protection training we recommended that:
 ACS confirm that there is clarity around what is
defined as “mandatory” or “desirable” training for the
service in relation to data protection and refresher
timescales.
 The above is communicated (or reaffirmed) to
managers and staff
 ACS Senior Management should seek assurance
from team managers that all staff have completed
the required training.
Agreed Management Actions
The i-learn module is mandatory and is covered in the
induction for everybody joining ACS. The face to face
sessions delivered by the IG team are also defined as
mandatory. Both were confirmed by ACSMB on 7 June
2018. The intention is to complete these by the end of
the calendar year.

Responsible Officer:
Helen Maneuf –
Assistant Director,
Planning and
Resources, Adult
Care Services
(Caldicott Guardian)
Actions to be
completed by the end
of December 2018

There has been a concerted effort to
make sure that the whole department
has undertaken the i-learn module on
Data Protection.

Status of
Progress

Partially
implementedrevised target
date of
31/12/2019
unchanged

As of 13 June, 79% of ACS has been
trained. The main gap areas where staff
have more limited opportunity to access
IT - e.g. drivers and people working in
day services / in house supported living,
where an extended deadline for
completion has been met.
A report for ACSMB will come forward
by the end of July assessing future
strategy for training as there is
insufficient capacity to meet the original
board preference for all those dealing
with special category data to have an
opportunity for face to face training.

Further, completion of the i-learn module is required
before set up on ACSIS. DP / Security training to be
covered / reinforced at systems training sessions.
Following roll out of the face to face sessions there will
be refreshers. The policy on refreshers was agreed by
ACSMB on 7 June: a requirement to undertake the ilearn module one year and attending face to face
training the next year. This is dependent on capacity in
the IG team or ACS to support training delivery.

24

APPENDIX B

No.

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF CRITICAL AND HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS

Report Title / Date
of Issue

Recommendation /
Original Management Response

Responsible Officer
/ Original Due Date

Management update as at June 2019
(or previous commentary where
appropriate)

Status of
Progress

The Adult Practice Development Team will be tasked
with developing reporting arrangements to Board.

Agenda Pack Page 402

2.

Environment and
Infrastructure –
Home to School
Transport
(Final Report
Issued November
2018)

Recommendations
We recommend that management should develop a
suite of core exception reports, either directly from
HAPS or using the other available report writing tools,
designed around the inherent high risks to home to
school travel data quality.
The exception reports should be used prior to or during
the production of each CS monitor, as a way to detect
errors and mistakes and ensure the financial information
reported to the client is accurate, complete and reliable.
Agreed Management Actions
A method for checking the data before the report is run
has already been set up with Finance. A “look up” is run
on the 3rd week of the month to identify any errors or
large financial changes that need rectifying or
explaining.
In addition to this, a suite of reports will be put together
with involvement from CS and Finance. HAPS will be
developed to produce quality checks that can be run
monthly or quarterly to identify any errors and give clarity
and confidence to CS regarding the quality of the
monitor.

March 2019 update (left in for
context):
Responsible Officer:
Jayne Abery
Strategy and Policy
Manager
Target Date for
Completion – April
2019

 A new system of forecasting the
HTST budget has been developed
with input from colleagues in Finance
and will be piloted for the 2019/20
financial year. Additional clearer
explanations will be provided by
TEWM for significant changes in
costs (e.g. new/reduced numbers of
contracts, changes to the numbers of
pupils travelling) each month. The
new system should mean that there
are fewer “peaks and troughs” in the
budget forecast going forward.
 Full finance reports will be run a
week early (the final week of the
monitoring month as opposed to at
the start of the following month) to
allow more time for checking and
clarification before formal forecasting
is required. Responsible officers
from TEWM and A & T meet to
discuss and analyse the reports
before the monitor is completed.
 Additional reports to track and
identify changes to high cost
transport will be run at regular points
during the year:
 Lone travellers report - the education
setting and the reason for lone travel

Partially
Implemented –
revised target
date October
2019

25

APPENDIX B

No.

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF CRITICAL AND HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS

Report Title / Date
of Issue

Recommendation /
Original Management Response

Responsible Officer
/ Original Due Date

Management update as at June 2019
(or previous commentary where
appropriate)

Status of
Progress

(home location/behaviour/medical) produced at the end of every term
(end of December, March and June)

Agenda Pack Page 403

 Average notional cost of transport by
school – twice a year, in November
and June
 Discretionary costs - end of every
term (end of December, March and
June). A & T and TEWM data
compared and analysed.
 Out of County costs by individual
pupil – produced at the end of every
term (end of December, March and
June)
 A new “all encompassing” report
from HAPs is being prepared that will
allow filtering and more detailed
analysis than is currently possible.
However, due to the complexity of
gathering all the data from different
parts of the system this is taking
longer than initially anticipated to
produce. A test version will be
available in April, but the “live”
version is unlikely to be available
until October 2019 after the next
HAPS update.
June 2019 update:
Nothing to add at this stage as we are
so early in the new FY.

3.

Lone Working
(Final report

Recommendations

March 2019 Update (included for
context):

Initial actions
implemented but
classed as

26

APPENDIX B

No.

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF CRITICAL AND HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS

Report Title / Date
of Issue

Recommendation /
Original Management Response

Responsible Officer
/ Original Due Date

Issued on
February 2019)

All management should be reminded of their delegated
responsibilities in respect of lone working, these
including:

Responsible Officer:
James Ottery - Health
and Safety Manager

Agenda Pack Page 404

 Assessing the level of risk to their staff in relation to
lone working.
 Documenting such assessments through the
completion of risk assessments.
 Documenting and implementing what mitigating
actions will be taken to manage risks identified.
 Undertaking annual reviews (or more frequent where
circumstances change) of risk assessments.

Management update as at June 2019
(or previous commentary where
appropriate)

Status of
Progress

As noted there is already considerable
guidance and advice for managers on
the intranet on the completion of risk
assessments. This will be reviewed
again to make explicit the type of role
where formal assessment must be
documented.

partially
implemented as
further
communications
and ongoing
visits to boards
planned in 19/20.

Cycle of communications on risks of
lone working to be undertaken (this has
been done before via team talk / service
newsletters, via H&S co-ordinator
meetings, yammer etc).
Link to national personal safety day in
future years. (8th November)

In addition, service directors should consider how they
currently obtain assurance that compliance with these
H&S requirements takes place (this has been managed
in some services by appointing H&S manager / officer or
delegating H&S oversight and advice duties to a specific
officer).

Include reference to this in managers
induction content (see above comment
in policy and procedures)

Agreed Management Actions
See management update column opposite, as the latest
available update is that from the final audit report.

The clear expectation is that line
managers ensure a system is in place
that is appropriate for their teams.

March 2020

To be highlighted at H&S committee
and through future H&S audits as is the
case currently.

Whilst 50% of teams contacted had not
completed a RA it must be remembered
that lone working risks do vary greatly
across the Authority and thus some
inconsistency of approach is therefore
not surprising.
It is also possible for managers to
demonstrate an effective approach to

27

APPENDIX B

No.

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF CRITICAL AND HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS

Report Title / Date
of Issue

Recommendation /
Original Management Response

Responsible Officer
/ Original Due Date

Management update as at June 2019
(or previous commentary where
appropriate)

Status of
Progress

managing risk without a documented
risk assessment and it’s noted all the
teams sampled could describe their
procedures for how lone workers are
monitored within their teams.

Agenda Pack Page 405

However where significant risks do exist
a clearly documented process must be
in place and this should include a risk
assessment. Senior management
support is required in identifying high
risk groups and a commitment for
documented risk assessments to be
undertaken in all such cases.
Draft report and responses ratified by
SMB (17/12/18) – H&S Manager to
attend Directorate Boards; Intention
being to look for a co-ordinator in each
department to ensure a focus at a
directorate level.
The H&S team have worked with CS to
develop revised risk assessments for
home visits and client meetings at main
HCC sites.
Awaiting risk assessments to go to
safeguarding management group for
ratification.
Cyclical H&S audits would already
include reference to personal safety /
lone working risks if these were
significant.
Undertake some specific focussed
assurance on personal safety / lone
working in the 2019/20 H&S audit plan
(in-particular within ACS & CS social

28

APPENDIX B

No.

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF CRITICAL AND HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS

Report Title / Date
of Issue

Recommendation /
Original Management Response

Responsible Officer
/ Original Due Date

Management update as at June 2019
(or previous commentary where
appropriate)

Status of
Progress

work/ safeguarding and EDT).

Agenda Pack Page 406

June 2019 Update:
The audit report has been presented to
SMB, as well as CS, HFRS, ACS and
Env boards; Boards have cascaded the
need for managers to risk assess and
identify higher risk groups and ensure a
focus at a directorate level.
Separate discussion and review of PH
documents via H&S manager has taken
place.
Existing guidance on the intranet has
been reviewed to include H&S
expectations as to which roles would
require a formal assessment to be
documented.
The H&S team have worked with CS to
develop revised risk assessments for
home visits and client meetings at main
HCC sites. Cyclical H&S audits already
include reference to personal safety /
lone working risks where significant.
Specific focussed assurance on
personal safety / lone working is in the
2019/20 H&S audit plan. Further
comms around lone working planned
(articles in CS and ACS news June
2019).

29

APPENDIX B

No.

4.

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF CRITICAL AND HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS

Report Title / Date
of Issue

Recommendation /
Original Management Response

Lone Working
(Final report
Issued on
February 2019)

Recommendations
Responsible Officer:
James Ottery - Health
and Safety Manager

One option could be to introduce a test similar to that
used for ‘business continuity’ where a corporate text is
cascaded. This could take the form of a ‘certain day and
time’, with all Managers being required to locate and
verify the location of their staff. If the results highlight the
tracing system in place is not working, then process
weaknesses should be identified and rectified.

Agenda Pack Page 407
5

We strongly recommend that all managers introduce a
test* to ensure the robustness of the lone worker
‘tracing’ systems they have in place for their team.

Responsible Officer
/ Original Due Date

March 2019 Update:
Potential to link this testing to national
personal safety day in future years (8th
Nov) this requires senior management
commitment / support.

Partially
implementedrevised target
date 30/11/2019

Cycle of communications on risks of
lone working to be undertaken (this has
been done before via team talk / service
newsletters, via H&S co-ordinator
meetings, yammer etc.).

https://hertscc365.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/Services
/Resources/Assurance/Pages/H%26S%20PersonalSafety-and-Loneworking-Guidance.aspx

June 2019 Update:
Reminders on protocols communicated
via boards but further communications
around this required still and link to
national personal safety day.

Agreed Management Actions
See management update column opposite, as the latest
available update is that from the final audit report.

(Final Report
Issued June 2019)

Status of
Progress

Draft report and responses ratified by
SMB (17/12/18) – H&S Manager to
attend Directorate Boards; Intention
being to look for a co-ordinator in each
department to ensure a focus at a
directorate level.

*Further guidance on tracing systems is provided in the
Personal Safety and Lone working Guidance.

Residential
Accommodation

Management update as at June 2019
(or previous commentary where
appropriate)

Recommendations
A formal eligibility criterion and policy should be created
for assessing whether a job role within the Council
requires the offering of residential occupancy to allow
better performance of duties.

Responsible Officer:
Sally Hopper Assistant Director
(HR)

In order to demonstrate the completion of the above
assessment, and document that all other relevant

Target Date for
Completion – October

N/a – as this final report was not issued
until 19 June 2019 this audit did not fall
into the quarter one follow up process.

Not Yet Due

30

APPENDIX B

No.

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF CRITICAL AND HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS

Report Title / Date
of Issue

Recommendation /
Original Management Response

Responsible Officer
/ Original Due Date

checks and processes have been performed (e.g.
consultation with Legal, Property etc), consideration
should be given to creating a checklist for completion as
part of the application process.

2019

Management update as at June 2019
(or previous commentary where
appropriate)

Status of
Progress

Agenda Pack Page 408

The Council should also ensure that consideration of
policies and eligibility criterion is also given to properties
let under Assured Shorthold tenancies, given that
demand for such properties is in excess of availability.
Agreed Management Actions
It is agreed that existing processes do not provide a
clear criteria or audit trail to evidence decisions on the
eligibility and allocation of properties for either Service
Occupancy Agreements or Assured Shorthold
Tenancies.
A review of existing approaches will be undertaken with
the intention of arriving at formal eligibility criteria,
assessment and authorisation process that covers
Council Services, HFRS and Schools.
In order to ensure and evidence that all relevant checks,
consultations and approvals have been obtained, prior to
formally agreeing a Service Occupancy Agreement or
and Assured Shorthold Tenancy, a formal checklist will
be implemented to support the allocation and approval
process.

31

APPENDIX C

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

The following appendix provides Audit Committee Members with a summary of the most recent update provided by management in respect of
outstanding medium priority recommendations that are 12 months (or more) overdue from the original target date.
Para
2.32
x-ref

1.

Service

Cross
Service
(Resources
and E&I)

Audit Title

Section 106
Payments

Responsible
Officer

Sarah
McLaughlin Head of
Growth ＆
Infrastructure

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

Agenda Pack Page 409

Recommendations

March 2019 Update (left in for context):

As part of the implementation of
any new system to record /
monitor S106 or CIL
contributions we recommend
that:
- The new system should be
capable of interfacing with other
HCC systems, such as SAP.
The use of existing manual
systems should be eliminated

The Spatial Planning Unit are now
operational and using the full DEF system,
having moved their data from the
decommissioned Atrium system to DEF.

Appropriate discussions should
be held with all user groups to
ensure that the revised product
has sufficient functionality to
meet both Corporate and
Service needs.
Agreed Management Action
We understand and agree that
the issues encountered in both
the data capture and
subsequent MI must be
overcome in the development /
procurement of any new system
such that subsidiary systems are
no longer necessary. There is
now a Project Board in place

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

The project manager for the transition of
PROMS to DEF has encountered a number
of unforeseen technical delivery issues.
This has included:
- detailed work on the ability of the DEF
system to link with SAP (which will facilitate
'live' reporting within DEF - something we
do not currently have with PROMS); and
- data migration and the manual matching
of datasets from PROMS to DEF.

01/10/2015

Partially
implemented
- revised
31/08/2019

To facilitate this a sub-project has been
raised (and charged separately to HCC) to
provide Serco with appropriate technical
resource to coordinate with DEF
programme managers and resolve these
issues. The resource for PROMS
workshops with Serco will continue into the
first weeks of March. The intention is then
to share this further mapping with DEF and
subsequently data migration protocols.
Updated team training has been discussed

32

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer

which is overseeing the
development of the project
identification documents (PID)
which will seek to encompass
the recommendations of this
report. The project will complete
within 2015/16.

Agenda Pack Page 410
2.

Original Management
Response

Agreed – the project scope will
be revised to include the needs
of all groups involved in the
acquisition and expenditure of
all such funds in order that all
needs can be met.
Agree that management
information needs to improve
and reduce the need for manual
process. Highways will work with
property to develop and
implement a new system as
above.

Cross
Service
(Resources
and E&I)

Tree
Management

Chrissy
Jacques –
Head of
Highways
Operations
and Sass

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

with DEF and is scheduled for March and
April, dependent upon data migration
success.
June 2019 Update:
The data from PROMS has now been sent
to the DEF project team; Serco are
undertaking a period of QA. DEF have
assured HCC this is not a lengthy process
from their viewpoint providing that they can
identify the data and subsequently match
functionality.
The GIS team are, in parallel, progressing
integration into DEF.
The focus of the next tranche of activity is
using biztalk to enable communication of
data through DEF to SAP and vice versa.
HCC is awaiting a further update from the
project management team on data
migration success. Once concluded, testing
of the database and staff training sessions
can begin.

Recommendations

March 2019 Update (left in for context):

Departments should document
their inspection and works plans
for tree management (in terms
of planned actions, review points

Highways response:
(a) Responsible Team - All Complete for
Highways and CMS
(b) Responsible Team - All Complete for

30/09/2016

Dates of
31/12/2019
and 31/03/20
for new
actions

33

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer
Pledger,
Assistant
Director
Property (coordination of
cross service
responses)

Original Management
Response
and the timetable) to allow the
delivery of these tree
management plans to be
monitored (as recommended
above).

Agenda Pack Page 411

Departments should also
document their ongoing tree
management strategy /
approach so as to demonstrate
that this is risk based (which in
several departments / sections it
is) and to fulfil the
recommendation agreed by the
Resources & Performance
Panel in July 2015.
Agreed Management Action
Through our representatives on
the HCC Tree Health Network
we will request that an agenda
item be included for the next
meeting to consider the merits of
developing both: a county-wide
tree strategy supported, where
necessary, by departmental
programmes that address the
related local responsibilities

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

Highways and CMS; action remaining
for Property
(a) An HCC Tree Management meeting
was held in 2016 to discuss the need for an
overarching Tree Management Strategy.
Highways, Property, Rights of Way and
CMS were present at the meeting. It was
agreed that to secure the short to medium
term goals and the outcomes set out in the
Audit Response a Corporate Tree
Management Strategy would not be a
requirement.
It was considered at the time that Highways
already have a Tree Management Strategy
(TMS) that accord with national guidance
and is fit for purpose and that this would be
reviewed in 2018/19.
CMS already have a Tree Management
Strategy for the sites which fall within their
remit. This accords with the national
guidance set out in the Common-Sense
Risk Management of Trees compiled by the
National Tree Safety Group (NTSG).
Property highlighted that they did not have
a TMS for the non-schools’ portfolio and
that addressing this was a priority if they
are to meet their local responsibilities.
It was agreed at the meeting that, to
achieve the Audit Action, that Property
should put in place a TMS and, in the
absence of a Corporate tree management

34

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

Agenda Pack Page 412

strategy, that this be developed in line with
the NTSG guidance. It was agreed that the
Tree Health Officer would provide advice to
this end in the context of tree health issues.
The Assistant Director (Property) at the
time took the action. Subsequently, this
work was taken forwards by Facilities
Management with Project Management
support. Rural Estates have a basic TMS in
place which is in line with guidance from the
NTSG. A property policy was being
developed; however, this has stalled
following the departure of several key
personnel. Discussions have been had with
a view to establishing how to resource this
piece of work.
In response to the Corporate Risk on Tree
Health it is reported that the Non Schools
operational estate (Fire & Rescue,
Libraries, Adult care Day Services,
Registrars, Youth service buildings and
Central and Shared sites) are managed via
Grounds maintenance contracts with Herts
Full Stop. Herts Full Stop provides
specialist works as required to maintain
trees. The FM team undertake annual site
checks which include the Grounds. FM
have a full list of sites which have been risk
assessed. Service teams occupying sites
raise tree concerns through the HCC FM
Helpdesk.
Rural Estates have continued to develop a
Tree Management Strategy for the estate in

35

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

line with National Tree Safety Group
guidance. This covers tree safety
inspections; however, a section is still to be
drafted regarding particular known tree
pests and diseases and the approach taken
to these.

Agenda Pack Page 413

Carter Jonas, managing the sites for the
Property department have identified all sites
within the CMP portfolio that they believe
require tree surveys and have been liaising
with HBS at HCC in order that all tree
surveys can be carried out and any
required works carried out. Carter Jonas
have also made changes to their annual
site inspection forms and handover forms,
whereby they have included a section to
identify if there are any trees on the site that
should be considered for a tree survey or if
any immediate remedial works are required.
Carter Jonas also manage the Grounds
maintenance contract for the Herts Property
sites and carry out more regular inspections
during the year to review the Grounds
maintenance work and again there is a
specific form for these inspections that will
identify if any tree works might be required.
This is then picked up with HBS.
June 2019 Update:
A Tree Management Follow-up was
completed as part of the 2018/19 Internal
Audit Plan. The circulation for this included
the members of the Audit Committee. The

36

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

purpose of this audit report was to:

Agenda Pack Page 414

a) Provide an evidence-based assessment
of the status of implementation of the
original audit recommendations,
b) Facilitate the removal of implemented
audit recommendations from the regular
progress updates to the Audit
Committee,
c) Highlight remaining actions to be
completed from the original
recommendations, and
d) Make new recommendations arising
from the follow-up audit work that will be
monitored and subject to subsequent
follow-up processes.
Based on the work performed, SIAS
provided a satisfactory level of assurance
and were able to conclude that the Council
has taken positive actions to address the
majority of the findings identified within the
original 2015/16 audit. However, we found
several residual actions that still need to be
taken to further strengthen the control
environment.
Four new recommendations, three
overlapping with this existing
recommendation, were made as follows:
a) Operational Property Tree Risk
Assessments and Strategy – due for
implementation by 31 December 2019
b) Overarching Council Tree Management

37

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

Policy – due for implementation by 31
March 2020
c) Departmental Tree Management
Strategies - due for implementation by
31 December 2019
d) Identification of Un-managed land Implemented

Agenda Pack Page 415

2.

It is proposed that these three
recommendations will replace the existing
two from the Progress Update report and
be subject to follow-up according to
established protocols.

Cross
Service
(Resources
and E&I)

Tree
Management

Chrissy
Jacques –
Head of
Highways
Operations
and Sass
Pledger,
Assistant
Director
Property (coordination of
cross service
responses)

Recommendations

March 2019:

Departments should consider
whether the necessary
coordination and cooperation
needed for the most (cost)
effective tree management
across the organisation actually
requires an overarching tree
management strategy. This
might involve one department
(e.g. Highways) actually carrying
out the tree management on
land, which is technically the
responsibility of another (e.g.
Property) where this represents
a more efficient option than two
departments separately
managing adjoining areas. Any
overarching strategy should take

Highways response:
(a) Responsible Team - All Complete for
Highways and CMS
(b) Responsible Team - All Complete for
Highways and CMS; action remaining
for Property
(a) The original management response
around the merits of developing a common
tree recording system received general
support at the HCC Tree Health meeting in
June 2018; a county-wide tree
management strategy (including a review of
Tree Management systems across HCC)
received general support at the HCC Tree
Health meeting. However, whilst there are
recognised benefits to a common system it
is not necessarily the answer at this time.

30/09/2016

Dates of
31/12/2019
and 31/03/20
for new
actions

38

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer

Original Management
Response

Agenda Pack Page 416

into account the relative risk
posed (primarily) by the location
of trees (i.e. their proximity to
areas frequently trafficked by the
public or to property) in the
prioritisation of available
resources.
Agreed Management Action
Through our representatives on
the newly formed HCC Tree
Health Network we will request
that an agenda item be included
for the next meeting to consider
the possibility of utilising a
common tree recording systems
etc. with a view to maximising
efficiencies and effectiveness.

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

Highways and CMS have a TM Strategy
that manages risk to people and property,
therefore common in terms of intent and
process (as they reflect the National
Guidance) if not system.
Databases or asset management systems
can be manually updated with ‘tree transfer’
between HCC Departments meaning the
risk is low when one land package transfers
between Departments. The knowledge in
the systems of previous ownership means
insurance and risk questions can be
addressed adequately and in a timely
fashion with responses drawn from current
and past owners of land and data.
(b) An HCC Tree Management meeting
was held in 2016 to discuss the need for an
overarching Tree Management Strategy.
Highways, Property, Rights of Way and
CMS were present at the meeting It was
agreed at the meeting that, to achieve the
Audit Action, that Property should put in
place a TMS and, in the absence of a
Corporate tree management strategy, that
this be developed in line with the NTSG
guidance.
Rural Estates have developed a basic TMS
which follows the key principles of the
Highways TMS. In line with the
recommendations contained within the
audit Rural Estates have adopted the use of
the Ezytreev database and are using the

39

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

same contractor as Highways through the
framework agreement.

Agenda Pack Page 417

3.

Carter Jonas on behalf of Herts Property
have attended meetings and conference
calls to understand what all departments
within HCC will be doing and to confirm that
they have put together a spreadsheet of all
sites that require a tree survey and actions
coming from those surveys. The
meetings/calls have enabled all
departments to agree what best practice
will be depending on the area/department
of HCC that they are responsible for. The
tree surveys for Herts Property are all being
carried out by HBS.
June 2019 Update:
See update in recommendation 2 above
from the Tree Management Follow-up
completed as part of the 2018/19 Internal
Audit Plan. The circulation for this included
the members of the Audit Committee.

Environme
nt and
Infrastruct
ure

Highways
Programme
Management

Steve Johnson
- Head of
Highways
Contracts and
Network
Management

Recommendation

June 2019 Update:

TBC

Reconciliation between SAP and
PMNet should be a main feature
of the new version of PMNet. In
the meantime, there should be
either monthly meetings
between the Highways teams
and the finance teams, or
regular reconciliation reports, to

No further development since November
2018. The ongoing issues with the IT
developer for PMNet are still to be resolved
between Serco & HCC IT. A meeting was
held in June 2019 to progress these
matters. Future planning for more IT
integration between Confirm and PMNet is
currently on hold as result.

Until the
present
delivery
issues are
resolved with
IT developer,
it is not
possible to

01/08/2017

40

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer

provide actual figures for budget
monitoring.
The Council should define and
provide guidance on how
budgets should be monitored to
the project managers, in
particular the use of budget v
actual’ spreadsheets in a
consistent format.

Agenda Pack Page 418
4.

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

provide a
completion
date for this
activity.

In the mean-time the programme team
continue to use information out of Confirm
where possible and manually cross
reference to information within PMNet. This
is time consuming but usable.

Agreed Management Action
Budget holders use SAP as a
mechanism for managing and
reporting budgets as part of a
monthly reporting cycle. To
better integrate information
between SAP and PMNet, a
review will be undertaken to
identify the key information in
SAP and CONFIRM and how
this can be used to help
populate PMNet, before
engaging with the developer on
how links can be built into
PMNet and then to introduce
changes to system.

Environme
nt and
Infrastruct
ure (with
Resources)

Highways
PMNet Software
Development
Project

Steve Johnson
- Head of
Highways
Contracts and
Network
Management

Recommendations

June 2019 Update:

For future data migration
exercises we recommend that
batch control checks are used
for all data transfers between

Note update for Highways Programme
Management above.

April 2018

Tbc

Resources: Delivery of the updated

41

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer
and Anna
Morrison
Assistant
Director Technology

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

systems (e.g. record counts and
values). This will provide
improved assurance that the
new system contains all
expected records.

version of PMNet is in progress, with an
initial delivery complete and further worked
planned for later in 2019. In the interim
Highways have a useable workaround
which mitigates the risk. We will be
recommending closure of this outstanding
recommendation next month when the
workaround has been evidenced.

When implementing Phase 2 of
the project, we recommend that
a more formal sign off process is
implemented to demonstrate
authority to proceed to the “go
live” stage of this phase.

Agenda Pack Page 419

4.

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

Agreed Management Actions
Prior to future delivery markers
or outcomes going live the
project lead will:
1. Demonstrate the outcomes
with the sponsor.
2. Gain sign off that queries from
the sponsor are resolved

Environme
nt and
Infrastruct
ure (with
Resources)

Highways
PMNet Software
Development
Project

Steve Johnson
- Head of
Highways
Contracts and
Network
Management
and Anna
Morrison
Assistant

Recommendation

June 2019 Update:

We recommend that the service
should complete a postimplementation review after
completion of Phase 2 of the
project. This will assist in
providing assurance that original
project objectives have been

Note update for Highways Programme
Management above.

April 2018

Tbc

Resources: Delivery of the updated
version of PMNet is in progress, with initial
delivery complete and further worked
planned for later in 2019. In the interim

42

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer
Director Technology

Original Management
Response
achieved and facilitate the
identification of learning points
for future projects.
Agreed Management Actions

Agenda Pack Page 420

5.

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

Highways have a useable workaround
which mitigates the risk. We will be
recommending closure of this outstanding
recommendation next month when the
workaround has been evidenced.

Retrospectively complete review
of Phase 1 outcomes against
the planned outcomes and
report to sponsor
On completion of Phase 2,
review to be undertaken, which
is currently expected in
November 2018

Resources

LEP Local
Assurance
Framework

Gemma Fulton
– Project
Development
Manager
(LEP)

Recommendation

June 2019 Update:

We recommend that the conflict
of interest policy provides
guidance to HCC elected
members on disclosure of
interests related to official roles
(i.e. cabinet member and
representatives of commercial
companies established by the
Council).

BEIS have not provided any further
clarification on the wording. The LEP have
agreed with its PMC that wording will be
agreed and updated in the Assurance
Framework. Ensuring agreement with
MHCLG.
30/04/2018

31/07/2019

Agreed Management Action
This has not specifically been
covered under the Best Practice
Guidance provided by BEIS.
This will be covered as part of

43

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

the changes to the National
Assurance Framework (NAF),
as per point 6.3 in the Mary Ney
Review. Once the NAF has
been updated, the LEP will
amend the Conflict of Interest
Policy this to ensure compliance
with the NAF.

6.

ACS and
Resources

Agenda Pack Page 421

Deputyships
and
Appointeeships

Assistant
Director,
Planning &
Resources:
Helen Maneuf
&
Deputy Head
of Income &
Payments:
Lynn Quick

Recommendation

June 2019 Update:

We recommend that further
work is undertaken to review the
current workflow and resource
availability in relation to the
progression of Appointeeship
and Deputyship referrals and
ongoing management of
approved orders.

The wider review of roles and
responsibilities is now underway and all
processes including Appointeeship and
Deputyship referrals have now been
mapped. The review will bring forward
proposals about the future organisation of
workflow and resources, including this area.

Agreed Management Actions
We agree with the proposal to
conduct a review of roles and
responsibilities as part of a wider
review of the relationships
between Income and Care
Payments and the Care
Management Teams. We will
consider where best to allocate
roles and responsibilities
The Client Finance Team
maintains a workflow tracker for
their tasks and uses this as a

01/04/2018

Partially
implemented
- Revised
31/08/2019

44

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

prompt to chase CMT staff when
required.

Agenda Pack Page 422

6.

The roles and responsibilities
are set out in the Deputy and
Appointee Guidance which is
periodically updated by the
Client Finance Team.

ACS and
Resources

Deputyships
and
Appointeeships

Assistant
Director,
Planning &
Resources:
Helen Maneuf
Deputy Head
of Income &
Payments:
Lynn Quick

Recommendations

June 2019 Update:

The HCS913 document should
be reviewed for accuracy and
updated where necessary.

Once the review has been conducted and
implemented, any changes to procedural
guidance can be made

The Care Management Teams
procedure ‘Deputyship &
Appointeeship Guidance for
Care Management Staff’ is
updated to provide clearer
guidance on the systems that
should be implemented and
followed to record and recover
Service User expenditure during
the period of Deputyship
applications.

01/04/2018

Not
implemented
with revised
target date
of 31/12/2019

Agreed Management Action
We would suggest guidance is
added to the Care Management
procedure document.

45

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

6.

Agenda Pack Page 423

7.

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Service

Audit Title

ACS and
Resources

Deputyships
and
Appointeeships

Responsible
Officer

Assistant
Director,
Planning &
Resources:
Helen Maneuf
Deputy Head
of Income &
Payments:
Lynn Quick

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

Recommendations

June 2019 Update:

A review is undertaken to
establish balances where
appointeeship arrangements are
no longer appropriate and
deputyship arrangements should
be progressed.

The wider review of roles and
responsibilities is now underway and all
processes including Appointeeship and
Deputyship referrals have now been
mapped. The review will bring forward
proposals about the future organisation of
workflow and resources.

The existing system and
responsibility for monitoring
client balances close to benefits
thresholds is reviewed to ensure
that timely action is taken to
avoid the over claiming of
benefits.

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

01/04/2018

Partially
implemented
- revised
target date
31/08/2019

30/04/2018

Partially
implemented
- revised
target date
31/12/2019

Agreed Management Action
The responsibility for reviewing
balances will be reviewed as
part of the review referred to in
Recommendation 1.

Resources
and CP

GDPR
Preparedness

Elaine
Dunnicliffe Information
Governance
Unit Manager

Recommendations

June 2019 Update:

Information asset owners should
be required to submit completed
privacy notices to the
Information Governance Unit so
that they can be reviewed ahead
of the implementation of the
GDPR. A central record of the

Work has been delayed by Serco provision
of new forms list followed by freeze for
upgrade to Ebase the system which holds
these forms. We currently have no date for
when work will recommence

46

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

Council's privacy notices should
be maintained and reviewed as
necessary.

Agenda Pack Page 424

There should be procedures in
place to record where explicit
consent has been obtained
where there is not a legal,
statutory or public interest
reason for processing personal
identifiable information.
Agreed Management Actions
Agreed – in progress
• A task and finish group, drawn
from Data Protection team
members, has been established
to review privacy notices using
information flowing from the
dataflow mapping exercise, as
per the GDPR action plan.
• This group is reviewing privacy
notices across organisation and
advising information asset
owners / service managers on
appropriate wording.
• The Information Asset Register
(IAR) serves as the central
record of the Council’s privacy
notices and contains, including
wording for revised/new privacy
notices.

47

APPENDIX C
Para
2.32
x-ref

Service

IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS OVER 12 MONTHS

Audit Title

Responsible
Officer

Original Management
Response

Latest Management Update on Progress

Original
Target
Date

Revised
Target Date

• The dataflow mapping exercise
identified where explicit consent
is the only lawful basis for
processing (circa 5% of HCC’s
data processing). This is
captured and stored in the
Information Asset Register in
accordance with GDPR
requirements.

Agenda Pack Page 425
48

APPENDIX D

Service

SUMMARY OF OVERDUE MEDIUM PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS NOW IMPLEMENTED

Audit Title

Final Report
Issued

Original
Target Date

Data Retention

June 2017

Resources

LEP Local Assurance
Framework

March 2018

February 2018

Agenda Pack Page 426

Resources

December
2017

Current Responsible
Officer
Information
Governance Unit
Manager-Elaine
Dunnicliffe
Project Development
Manager (LEP) Gemma Fulton

Title of Original Recommendation
Development of local procedures on data
retention arrangements
Project Assessment and Approval –
‘Project Pathway’

49

APPENDIX E – DEFINITIONS OF ASSURANCE AND RECOMMENDATION PRIORITIES
Definitions of Assurance Levels and Recommendation Priorities

Definition

Good

The design and operation of the internal control framework is effective, thereby ensuring that the key risks in scope are being well managed and core objectives will likely be
achieved. There are minor reportable audit findings.

Satisfactory

The internal control framework is largely working well in managing the key risks in scope, with some audit findings related to the current arrangements.

Limited

The system of internal control is only partially effective, with important audit findings in key areas. Improvement in the design and/or operation of the control environment is necessary
to gain assurance risks are being managed to an acceptable level, and core objectives will be achieved.

No

The system of internal control has serious gaps, and controls are not effective in managing the key risks in scope. It is highly unlikely that core objectives will be met without urgent
management intervention.

Priority Level

Definition

Service

Agenda Pack Page 427

Corporate

Assurance Level

Critical

Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to the organisation as a whole, i.e. reputation, financial resources and / or compliance with regulations.
Management action to implement the appropriate controls is required immediately.

High

Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control environment, which, if untreated by management intervention, is highly likely to put achievement of core service
objectives at risk. Remedial action is required urgently.

Medium

Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, are likely to put achievement of some of the core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is required in a
timely manner.

Low / Advisory

Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, which, if adopted, will enhance the control environment. The appropriate solution should be implemented as
soon as is practically possible.

50

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda
item no:

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

9

AUDIT COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 AT 2:00PM

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE
Report of the Director of Resources
Author:

Fiona Timms, Risk and Insurance Manager (Tel: 01438 843565)

Purpose of Report
1.1.

This report is a regular item on Risk Management activity since the last meeting.
The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference state it is to “advise the Executive on
relevant audit matters, including: (a) the risk management system and risk related
issues”.
Summary

1.2.

The following items are included in this report:
• The current Corporate and Strategic Risk Register (CSRR) position
• Details of key risk movements since the last report to Audit Committee

1.3.

Relevant risk annexes and appendices accompany this report:
• The organisational risk matrix is included at Annex A to this paper
• The categorisation of Strategic and Corporate risks is at Annex B
• A risk and controls report at Appendix A details the risks with changes since
the last report to Audit Committee.
• A risk and controls report at Appendix B details the most up to date position of
those risks considered key at this time due to the proximity of likely events and
the associated media and public interest.
• A risk status report at Appendix C summarises the latest risk scores and the
risk scores at each of the last 3 Audit Committee meetings.
• A risk and controls report at Appendix D outlines the Draft risks on the CSRR
that are currently being developed and finalised

1.4.

Further detail on the CSRR can be accessed by viewing the embedded files
contained within the report body as described below:•
•

Section 7.1 contains an embedded file which details the movements of the
full CSRR since the previous meeting in March 2019.
Section 7.2 contains a separate embedded file displaying those risks where
the target score has not yet been reached. This file contains additional
progress updates on the controls/mitigations.

Agenda Pack Page 429

1

Recommendations
i.

That the changes in the Corporate and Strategic Risks since the last report to
the Committee be noted
That the Risk Management Update Report be noted.
That the Committee identifies a risk (or risks) to be reviewed at its meeting in
September 2019

ii.
iii.

Corporate & Strategic Risk Register (CSRR)
1.5.

The latest review of the Corporate and Strategic Risk Register took place during
May/June 2019. Please see Section 7 for an icon that links to a copy of the full
Corporate and Strategic Risk Register.

1.6.

The following table summarises the movement changes in risks since the
previous report that was presented to the Committee in March 2019. The table
below shows the risk movements broken down by risk classification

Red
Amber
Yellow
Green
Total
Difference +/-

As at March Audit
Committee
12
23
1

Latest position

36

36

(May/June 2019)

15 (+3)
20 (-3)
1

Heat maps (matrices) of corporate and strategic risks
1.7.

The Corporate and Strategic Risk Register is comprised of both Strategic and
Corporate risks. This categorisation is explained at Annex B to this report.
These heat maps provide an overview and summary of the risk landscape for the
organisation currently and an opportunity for the Audit Committee to consider
risks across services.
Key changes from the position reported to the March 2019 Audit Committee
meeting are shown.
Each corporate and strategic risk has been allocated a simple risk number
prefixed by appropriate letters to denote the Department owning the risk. In
addition a prefix starting with an S denotes a ‘Strategic’ risk.
AC
CS
CP

= Adult Care Services
= Children’s Services
= Community Protection

E
PH
R

= Environment
= Public Health
= Resources

Agenda Pack Page 430

2

1.7.1.

Heat map of Strategic Risks (9) – June 2019
SE02
Almost
Certain
(5)

SAC01
SR26 new
SE06
SAC08

Probability

Likely
(4)

SR24

SCP08
SCS02
SR21

Possible
(3)

SR22 de-esc
Unlikely
(2)

Rare
(1)

Negligible
(1)

Low
(2)

Medium
(4)

High
(8)

Very High
(16)

Impact
new
de-esc

= new risk raised to the risk register
= risk de-escalated to a Service level risk register

Brief risk descriptions
The following table shows brief descriptions for the risks in the matrix together
with dates when risk focus reports were considered, or are to be considered:
No. and
Score

Brief Risk Title /
Area of Risk

40

SE02

Risk Owner

Target
score

Risk Type
and Ref.

8

Strategic
ENV0104

Date of
Risk
Focus
Report

Simon Aries
Residual Waste
Treatment
Programme

Assistant Director Transport, Waste &
Environmental
Management

Agenda Pack Page 431

3

No. and
Score
32

SR26
new
32

SE06

32

SAC01

32

SAC08

24

SCP08

24

SCS02

24

SR21

16

SR22
Deescalated
12

SR24

Brief Risk Title /
Area of Risk
Increased uncertainty
of future funding
streams
Insufficient money to
support infrastructure
needs derived from
new housing
developments etc.
(CIL/S106)

Risk Owner
Scott
Crudgington
Director of
Resources

Assistant Director
Strategic Planning,
Infrastructure and
Economy

Kulbir Lalli

Insufficient budget for
adult care, Better
Care Fund

Helen Maneuf

Funding to deliver
School's expansion
programme and
housing demand
Barriers to HLL and
Chalkdene - JV
partner
arrangements to
maximise returns on
land and assets

Risk Type
and Ref.

24

Strategic
CS0019

12

Strategic
20/11/2014
01/03/2017
ENV0149

12

Strategic
23/09/2016
01/12/2017
HCS0010

24

Strategic
HCS0016

16

Strategic
CPRES010

Date of
Risk
Focus
Report

Patsy Dell

Homecare workforce
- Care Act 2014 noncompliance

Uncertainty regarding
arrangements for the
UK’s withdrawal from
the EU

Target
score

Head of Integrated
Accommodation
Commissioning

ACS Assistant
Director, Planning
& Resources

Guy Pratt
Deputy Director of
Community
Protection

Simon Newland
Operations
Director, Education

16

Strategic
CSF0070

25/11/2015

Mike Evans
Director – Herts
Living Ltd

Next Generation
2021 – Shared
Managed Services
(SMS) programme

Anna Morrison

Implementation of an
alternative library
service provider

Alex James

Assistant Director Improvement and
Technology

Head of Corporate
Policy

Agenda Pack Page 432

16

Strategic
PROP0023

16

Strategic
NGEN0001

8

Strategic
LIBS0007

4

1.7.1. Heat map of Corporate Risks (27) – June 2019

Almost
Certain
(5)

R08

AC04
R12
R27 new

R15
R18

CP02
CP03
CS03
CS04
E01
R05
E04
CP06

Probability

Likely
(4)

Possible
(3)

R07
R13
R01

R17

AC03 CP05
AC10 R25 new
CS01
CP01
R23 de-esc

Unlikely
(2)

PH01

CP04
R03

Rare
(1)

Negligible
(1)

Low
(2)

Medium
(4)

High
(8)

Very High
(16)

Impact
new
de-esc

=
=

New risk raised to the risk register
Risk de-escalated to a Service level risk register

Brief risk descriptions (Corporate risks)
The following are brief descriptions for the risks in the matrix together with dates
when risk focus reports were considered, or are to be considered:
No. and
Score
48

R17

Brief Risk Title /
Area of Risk
Failure to develop
sufficient timely
proposals for the
ongoing reductions in
funding / resources
and subsequent
impact on services /
reserves.

Risk Owner

Target
score

Risk Type
and Ref.

24

Corporate
CSHF0016

Date of
Risk
Focus
Report

Steven
Pilsworth
Assistant Director,
Finance

Agenda Pack Page 433

5

No. and
Score
32

CP05

32

R27
New
32

CS01

Brief Risk Title /
Area of Risk
HCC business
continuity plans BCP
Increased risk of not
achieving planned
savings
Inappropriate care
leading to the death
of a child or young
person

32

AC10

Safeguarding
Vulnerable Adults

32

AC03

32

R25
new
32

R23
Deescalated

Date of
Risk
Focus
Report

16

Corporate
CPRES0002

24/11/2011
23/09/2015

24

Corporate
CS0020

Gus Cuthbert
Assistant Chief Fire
Officer

Scott
Crudgington
Director of
Resources

Jenny Coles
Director of
Children's Services

Corporate
CSF0055

30/06/2011
27/03/2014

Corporate
HCS0018

29/09/2011

Corporate
HCSCP0001

29/09/2011

24

Corporate
HCSMH0002

16/09/2014

32

Corporate
HFRS0007

22/11/2012
23/03/2016

Corporate
PROP0030

19/07/2019

32
at target

Mark Harvey
Operations
Director, Learning
Disabilities and
Mental Health

32
at target

Deputy Director
ACS and
Operations
Director, Older
People

32
at target

Mark Harvey
DOLS - Deprivation
of Liberty Safeguards

32

CP01

Risk Type
and Ref.

Chris Badger
Failure of care
providers Inadequate care

32

AC04

Risk Owner

Target
score

Operations
Director, Learning
Disabilities and
Mental Health

Gus Cuthbert
Unplanned Incidents

Assistant Chief Fire
Officer

Failure to comply
with Property related
H&S requirements

Sass Pledger

Fire risk
assessments are not
undertaken / are
delayed and / or
remedial actions are
not undertaken in a
timely way

Sass Pledger

Assistant Director,
Property

Assistant Director Property

Agenda Pack Page 434

at target

16

16

Corporate
PROP0027

6

No. and
Score
32

R12
24

CP02

Brief Risk Title /
Area of Risk
Successful cyberattack on HCC’s ICT

Dave Mansfield

Radicalisation Prevent

Guy Pratt

24

CP03
24

CS03
24

CS04

24

R07
24

R01
24

R13

24

R05

Head of
Technology

Deputy Director of
Community
Protection

Gus Cuthbert
Extreme Weather

Assistant Chief Fire
Officer

Partnership funding
for Children’s
Services

Jenny Coles

Welfare, reform and
immigration
arrangements

Matt Ansell

24

E01

Risk Owner

Director of
Children's Services

Operations
Director, Children
and Families

Target
score

Risk Type
and Ref.

Date of
Risk
Focus
Report

16

Corporate
TEC0004

07/07/2017

16

Corporate
CP0004

11/09/2017

24
at target

Corporate
CPRES0009

12

Corporate
CSF0082

12

Corporate
CSF0083

03/12/2018

16

Corporate
ENV0142

30/11/2016

16

Corporate
HR0018

08/05/2019

16

Corporate
HR0021

21/11/2013
26/03/2018

16

Corporate
IMP0001

16

Corporate
SP0005

Simon Aries
Tree Health

Assistant Director Transport, Waste &
Environmental
Management

Failure to educate,
train employees

Sally Hopper

Failure to retain,
attract and recruit the
right people and right
skills
Loss/inappropriate
acquisition/disclosure
of sensitive personal
or commercial data
Insufficient skills in
commissioning /
contract
management and
competencies

Assistant Director,
Human Resources

Sally Hopper
Assistant Director,
Human Resources

Simon Banks
Assistant Chief
Legal Officer

Steven
Pilsworth
Assistant Director,
Finance

Agenda Pack Page 435

18/07/2018

7

No. and
Score
16

R08
16

CP04

16

R03

16

E04

16

CP06
12

R18
12

R15

Brief Risk Title /
Area of Risk
The Council
experiences
significant fraud
Failure of Local
Resilience Forum LRF - inadequate
inter agency plans
HCC’s pension fund
level may not
improve sufficiently
to cover accrued
pension costs

Terry Barnett
Head of Assurance

Gus Cuthbert
Assistant Chief Fire
Officer

Steven
Pilsworth
Assistant Director,
Finance

Road and cycle path
maintenance
investment

Steve Johnson

HFRS meeting
national training
requirements

Steve Tant

Risk of not offsetting
the Apprenticeship
Levy

Sally Hopper

Land owned by the
Council and no
longer required for
the purpose for which
it was bought may
not have an active
management regime
in place

8

PH01

Risk Owner

Health Protection
emergency

Business
Manager - Contract
s and Networks

Assistant Chief Fire
Officer

Assistant Director,
Human Resources

Target
score

Risk Type
and Ref.

Date of
Risk
Focus
Report

16

Corporate
AUDIT0001

20/06/2012

Corporate
CPRES0001

24/11/2011
23/09/2015

at target

16
at target

16
at target

Corporate
CSHF0002

8

Corporate
ENV0033

16

Corporate
HFRS0004

at target

8

Corporate
HR0023

8

Corporate
PROP0018

Mike Evans
Head of Estate and
Asset Management

Gill Goodlad
Assistant Director
Health Protection &
Resilience

8
at target

Corporate
PHD0014

21/06/2016

Update on Audit Committee actions from 29 March 2019 meeting
1.8.

Risk Focus – this meeting (July 2019)
As requested at the March meeting, the risk focus report to this meeting
considers a new risk of property compliance across the board i.e. the whole
health and safety regime for the council property portfolio, which encompasses

Agenda Pack Page 436

8

“Fire risk assessments are not undertaken/delayed or remedial actions are not
undertaken in a timely way”.
1.9.

The word ‘successful’ has been included in front of the headline risk area ‘cyberattack’ in the covering report table.

1.10.

In view of the constant attacks suffered by all ICT systems Members queried the
continued categorisation of SR12 ’Successful cyber-attack on HCC’s ICT’ and
requested that officer’s ensure this risk was also reconsidered. The risk owner
has changed the categorisation from ‘Strategic’ to ‘Corporate’. In addition, a
significant review of the risks to ICT systems has concluded that the current risk
score should be raised from amber (‘Significant’) to Red (Severe). The change
and an update on the current position are included in the recent risk progress
update in Appendix A.

1.11.

Members highlighted the risk ‘SR21 Herts Living Limited and Joint Venture
partner arrangements to maximise returns on land and assets’ and the inherent
risk from planning development issues. As a result the risk owner has reviewed
the risk again and changed the wording to more clearly reflect this aspect of the
risk. However, the review did not conclude any change to the current risk score
is appropriate at this time. An update of the current position is included in the
recent risk progress update in Appendix B.

Full Corporate & Strategic Risk Register – Movement report since March 2019
Audit Committee
1.12.

The full register is embedded here

Recent movement
report Corporate & Strategic Risk Register for July 2019 Audit Committeev4.pdf

1.13.

This section contains a separate embedded file displaying those risks where the
target scores have not yet been reached. This contains further details of actions
being undertaken (controls/mitigations).
Further details of those risks that have not yet reached their targets are shown in
the embedded file below: -

CSRR_RisksTargetno
tEqualtoCurrentScore_asat19Jun19v4.pdf

Corporate & Strategic Risk Register changes since the report to March 2019
Audit Committee
SR12, successful cyber-attack risk, formerly a ‘Strategic’ risk, has been recategorised as R12, a ‘Corporate’ risk. SE01, Tree Health risk, has similarly
been re-categorised to R12, a ‘Corporate’ risk.

Agenda Pack Page 437

9

1.14.

Key changes in the Corporate & Strategic Risk Register – see Appendix A

1.15.

New risks

1.15.1. SR26 (Ref: CS0019, APPENDIX A, Page 19)
“As a result of increased uncertainty (including the likelihood of short term
Government spending reviews in 2019/20 and 2020/21) regarding future funding
streams for the county council, there is a risk that a resource reduction is
announced too late for savings to be put in place, leading to emergency action
being required”.
1.15.2. R27 (Ref: CS0020, APPENDIX A, Page 20)
“As a result of successfully taking over £300m in savings since 2010, remaining
efficiencies and initiatives to bring savings are both more complex and riskier to
achieve. Therefore, there is an increased risk across the whole Integrated
Planning (IP) period that planned savings are delayed or not achieved, leading to
an increase in the funding gap, which may lead to unplanned reductions in
service delivery and an inability to meet future demands”.
1.15.3. R25 (Ref: PROP0030, APPENDIX A, Page 21)
“In the event of a failure to comply with property related Health & Safety
compliance requirements across the council’s property portfolio (e.g. completion
and acting upon fire risk assessments, fixed wiring tests, legionella testing,
retaining up to date asbestos registers) there is a risk of injury, illness and death
to both service users and employees. The consequences of this risk include
service disruption; loss of reputation; fines from the HSE and claims for
compensation”.
1.16.

Risks with changed current scores

1.16.1. R17 (Ref: CSHF0016, APPENDIX A, Page 15)
“In the event that the Authority does not develop sufficient and timely proposals to
deal with the ongoing or further reductions in funding/resources, there is a risk
that the need to close the funding gap may result in identifying measures for
unplanned reductions in service spend leading to deterioration or interruption of
front line service delivery”.
1.16.2. SAC01 (Ref: HCS0010, APPENDIX A, Page 20)
“If there is a continuing inability to attract the required number of Homecare work
force in line with the Adult Care Services Workforce Strategy, there is an
increasing risk of non-compliance and a reduction in the ability to provide safe
and appropriate care in users own homes which may lead to impacts on their
health and wellbeing”.
1.16.3. R12 (Ref: TEC0004, APPENDIX A, Page 23)
“In the event of failing to maintain and ensure the use of our security systems,
technical protocols and change management processes, there is a risk of a
successful cyber-attack (virus, penetration or malicious internal action) on HCC’s
ICT environments causing significant service disruption and possible data loss”.

Agenda Pack Page 438

10

Corporate & Strategic Risk Register key updates since the report to March 2019
Audit Committee
1.17.

The latest position on risks specifically identified due to the proximity of likely
events, member and public interest, is provided in full in Appendix B. The
following identifies these risks.

1.17.1. SE02 (Ref. ENV0104, Appendix B, Page 25) - “In the event of the Residual
Waste Treatment Programme being impacted by one of the following scenarios:
- The Energy Recovery Facility (ERF) at Rye House does not proceed or is
delayed
- Unable to secure suitable, cost effective, alternatives for waste disposal should
the contract with Veolia (VES) be terminated.
It may result in:
- Increased costs to HCC”
1.17.2. R21 (Ref. PROP0023, Appendix B, Page 26) - “Herts Living Limited is
collaborating with Chalkdene to maximise returns on our land and assets. In the
event of delays, planning development issues or changes to standards, there is a
risk that these arrangements do not perform as anticipated, which could result in
a reduction of projected financial returns, slow the pace of development and
returns and also reduce other benefits from the arrangements. This could also
lead to reputational impacts for HCC.”
Other Risk Changes and Developments
1.18.

De-escalated risks

1.18.1. SR22 (Ref: NGEN0001):
“The Shared Managed Services (SMS) partnership is set to continue until March
2021 at which point a new operating model must be considered and in place.
The Council's Enterprise and Resource Planning (ERP - SAP) system support
forms part of the SMS Contract, which will end in March 2021. SAP themselves
are not committing to support the current version of SAP beyond 2025. HCC must
consider how these services and systems that support back office functions and
front line services are delivered and undertake an appropriate procurement
process to ensure continuity of service delivery. However, in the event that there
is a lack of clarity or lack of information and intelligence in respect to models of
delivery, user needs, the market, timelines, buy in and resources required to
undertake this work, there is a risk that this once in a generation opportunity to
transform services for the 2020s is missed and services cannot be effectively
delivered and that the improvements and / or enhancements that services and
their users need for the future do not emerge. In addition, the contribution to the
organisational savings target may not be achieved”.
This risk will continue to be reported to Resources Management Board, but is
being replaced on the CSRR with an overarching risk in respect to the
programme of transformation, which incorporates the Next Generation risk. See
item 10.3.

Agenda Pack Page 439

11

1.18.2. R23 (Ref: PROP0027):
“In the event that Fire Risk Assessments are not undertaken/are delayed or that
remedial actions and findings on sites where HCC is the responsible body
(including those that are leased out and managed by Housing Associations) are
not implemented in a timely way, there is a risk to life for HCC service users, staff
and the public or damage to property and assets which may lead to service
disruption, financial losses, potential litigation and reputational impacts”.
As a result of the discussion at Audit Committee and in light of the internal audit
currently being finalised, a wider risk regarding property compliance with Health &
Safety requirements (PROP0030) has been developed. However, due to the
continuing high level of risk in respect to Fire Risk Assessments this risk has been
de-escalated rather than withdrawn and so will still be reported to Resources
Management Board regularly.
1.19.

Risks on the horizon/other key risk developments

1.20.

As anticipated and outlined to Committee in March, an overarching risk in respect
of the programme of transformation has been drafted and can be seen in
Appendix D. This enables the Next Generation risk to be replaced on the CSRR.
To meet the need to innovate, continue the journey to make Hertfordshire ‘fit for
the future’ and close the funding gap the programme of transformation is being
developed. Through oversight of all transformation activity in the council and by
ensuring limited resource is used as effectively as possible the programme aims
to both align activity and also ensure financial benefits are fully achieved.
Although the programme is still at an early stage and so significant strands of
work are still being identified and developed, the risk owner believes the risk
should be raised now to provide assurance that the risks associated are, and will
be, managed appropriately and transparently. Once the full programme is
agreed, relevant controls will be added and the risk owner will then be able to
take a measured view on the current risk and target scores.

1.20.1. Following the zero-based risk workshop undertaken by ACS Senior Management
Board and the Executive Member for Adult Care and Health, a revised and new
set of risks is being developed both for the CSRR and for the ACS Service level
risk register. The risks regarding the home care workforce are being considered
as part of this, and will be appropriately included. Although there is more work to
do to finalise all these risks and controls, the new set of Corporate risks at this
stage can be seen in draft at Appendix D. Once this work is completed, existing
risks will be removed from the CSRR and replaced.
Next Steps
1.21.

Challenges and recommendations from the Audit Committee will be considered
by the relevant risk owners/Services. Action taken as a result will update the
Corporate & Strategic Risk Register and be reported to the appropriate cycle of
risk review meetings.

Agenda Pack Page 440

12

ANNEX A
ANNEX A
Risk Matrix – The following chart shows where, and what category/colour the risk will fall in dependent on the scores. Red being the most severe and green being the least.
The scores within the chart are multiples of the likelihood and impact, e.g. (Likelihood of) 4 x (Impact of) 8 = (Risk Score of) 32

Assessing Impacts
Impact
Score

Impact
Title

1

Negligible

2

Low

Agenda Pack Page 441

4

Medium

8

High

16

Very High

Example description
Annoyance but does not disrupt service: Minor injury to an individual;
Financial loss under £50k: Isolated service user complaints contained within
unit/section; Litigation claim or fine less than £50k; Failure to achieve a core
team plan objective
Minor impact on service; Minor injuries to several people; Financial losses
between £50k-100k, Isolated service user complaints contained within
department; Litigation claim or fine between £50k -100k: Failure to achieve
several team plan objectives including a core objective
Service disruption; Major injury to an individual; Financial losses between
£100k-1 Million; Adverse local media coverage. Lots of service user
complaints; Litigation claims or fine between £100k - £1Million; Failure to
achieve one or more strategic plan objective
Significant service disruption; major/disabling injury to employee, service
user or other stakeholder; financial losses between £1Million-£5Million:
adverse national media coverage; litigation claim or fine between £1Million£5Million; Failure to achieve one or more strategic objective
Total service loss for a significant period; fatality to employee, service user or
other stakeholder; financial loss in excess of £5 Million; National publicity
more than 3 days. Possible resignation of leading member or chief officer;
Multiple civil or criminal suits. Litigation claim or fine above £5 Million; Failure
to achieve a major corporate objective in the Corporate Plan

Severe

Significant

Material

Manageable

The Board feels most concerned about carrying this risk.
The consequences will have a severe impact on the
delivery of a key priority and comprehensive
management action is required immediately.
The Board feels concerned about carrying this risk. The
consequences of the risk materialising would be
significant, but not severe. Some immediate action is
required plus the development of an appropriate action
plan.
The Board is uneasy about carrying this risk.
Consequences of the risk are not significant and can be
managed through contingency plans. Action plans can
be developed later to address the risk.
The Board is content to carry this risk. Consequences of
the risk are considered relatively unimportant. The
status of the risk should be reviewed periodically.

Assessing Likelihood

13

ANNEX B
The Corporate and Strategic Risk Register (CSRR): Corporate and Strategic Risks
The Corporate and Strategic Risk Register is comprised of both ‘Corporate’ and
‘Strategic’ risks.
Both classifications of risk will still be reported in the Corporate and Strategic Risk
Register and so they will be subject to the current criteria for corporate and strategic risk
register risks. These risks are threats to the overall success of council objectives, the
vitality and viability of the organisation and:
•
•
•
•
•

May significantly impact upon the key resources of the council (e.g. financial
resources, human resources and other key assets).
May result in significant disruption to a number of the critical services provided by
the council.
May be a significant threat of serious harm or death to service users,
officers/members and/or members of the public.
The resources needed to manage the risk and deal with the potential impacts could
be beyond the capability of the relevant service.
May result in significant attention from outside the council (e.g. general public/
Media/ Government agencies etc.) and so maintain the potential to cause
considerable damage to the council’s reputation

However, although there will be an element of judgement, the following may be used to
differentiate between Strategic and Corporate risks:
Strategic risks
• Represent, particularly, threats to current strategic drivers for the organisation, e.g.
Prevention, Housing, Growth/Infrastructure, the programme of transformation
• Relate to new / innovative approaches and / or changing environmental factors, e.g.
legislation, so that our responses and outcomes are less clear
• Are more time-impacted, relating to a shorter and potentially known timeframe
• Are likely to reflect more volatility in terms of increases and decreases in the risk in
a short to medium timeframe
• May therefore relate to key programmes / projects
Corporate risks
• Relate to long term, ongoing service delivery
• Are usually (but do not have to be) at their ‘target score’ and if so are being
accepted or tolerated at that level of risk
• Most controls will be ‘in place / embedded’
• Are usually (but do not have to be) related to enabling activities and services, i.e.
services or activities that enable front-line service activity, and/or the smooth
running of the organisation

Agenda Pack Page 442

14

Date of report: 19-Jun-19

APPENDIX A
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority
CSHF0016
Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

Current Risk
Score

Severe

48
Probability:
Possible
3
Impact:
Very High
16

Risk owner

Progress Update - Risks

Review Summary: Early work to identify
new savings for the period after March
2020 has begun earlier than usual. This is
Assistant
Director - Resources being progressed with both officers and
members. The earlier start is anticipated to
enable the necessary additional savings to
be identified and appropriate consultation
and implementation plans to be drawn up in
sufficient time. This will continue to be
reviewed by SMB over the coming months.
In reviewing this risk, and considering the
new risks raised, the current score has
been increased and will be reviewed over
the coming IP period.
Reviewed on 03/05/2019
Steven Pilsworth

Agenda Pack Page 443

In the event that the
Authority does not develop
sufficient and timely
proposals to deal with the
ongoing or further reductions
in funding/resources, there
is a risk that the need to
close the funding gap may
result in identifying
measures for unplanned
reductions in service spend
leading to deterioration or
interruption of front line
service delivery. [Formerly
CSHF0005 and CSHF0015]

Appendix A – CSRR Risk Changes (for July 2019 Audit Committee)

Created: 22/12/2016

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date
CSHF0016/001
Timely reporting to senior managers
highlighting risks relating to available
resources to enable mitigations to be made.
Steven Pilsworth - In Place / Embedded -

CSHF0016/002
Work with districts to monitor changes to
business rates related to loss of
businesses/impact revaluations/improve
collection.
Steven Pilsworth - In Progress / Taking Effect -

CSHF0016/003
Ongoing discussions with NHS CCGs on
funding with CCGs. Quarterly meetings with
CCGs Chief Financial Officers to discuss.
Helen Maneuf - In Progress / Taking Effect -

Progress Update - Controls
CSHF0016/001
Review Summary: The Authority has reviewed
pressures in setting the 18/19 Budget, and in
monitoring the delivery of savings. It continues to
actively review the monitor position, including an
early review of risks in the 18/19 budget; and is
providing greater analysis of key risks within the
monitor. The development of the integrated plan
for 2019/20 to 2022/23 provides an opportunity to
estimate spending and resources and ensure
appropriate mitigating actions are put in place in
good time. IP 2019 has been agreed and
includes relevant savings and pressures. The
outturn monitor for 2018-19 will help to identify
the overall position for the start of 2019-20. This
will continue to be actively monitored throughout
the year and inform planning for later years.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019

Target Risk
Score

Significant

24
Probability:
Possible
3
Impact:
High
8

Delivering our Vision
CSHF0016/004
Monitor the impact of proposed changes to
Education Funding to enable senior
officers/members to make timely/informed
decisions.
Phil Herd - In Progress / Taking Effect CSHF0016/006
Take account and anticipate changes through
analysis of Government
papers/announcement so managment can
make informed decisions
Steven Pilsworth - In Progress / Taking Effect -

CSHF0016/007
Continue to carry out Service-led budget
reviews
Steven Pilsworth - In Place / Embedded -

15
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

APPENDIX A
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority

Appendix A – CSRR Risk Changes (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Current Risk
Score

Risk owner

Progress Update - Risks

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date
CSHF0016/008
Horizon scanning/policy Network
Alex James - In Place / Embedded -

Agenda Pack Page 444

CSHF0016/009
Manage the Delivering Transformation
Programme to support the delivery of
innovation and efficiencies
Seema Aggarwal - In Progress / Taking
Effect -

Progress Update - Controls

Target Risk
Score

CSHF0016/002
Review Summary: Given the risks emerging as a
result of valuation changes, the Business Rates
pool was suspended for 2017/18. We have
worked with districts to monitor forecasts and
submitted applications for 2018/19 for a 100%
retention pilot, which was unsuccessful, and to re
establish the pool, which has been accepted by
DCLG. An application for a pilot/pool has been
submitted for 2019/20 which entailed a review of
the business rates base and has enabled an
update of our understanding of the current
position. The pilot has been accepted and we’re
working with districts to develop more detailed
monitoring of business rates receipts.
Continue to work with districts including dedicated
workshops and advice from independent
consultants.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019

CSHF0016/003
Review Summary: Herts Valleys CCG: Herts have
agreed Care Act funding. Discussion regarding
outstanding debt concluded and settlement has
been reached.
East Herts CCG: Protection of Social Care
funding continues to be received. STP Chief
Financial Officers are meeting monthly to
understand funding requirements across Health
and Social Care System for next decade. Regular
liaison with CCG Finance Officers continues.
Reviewed on 01/05/2019

16
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

APPENDIX A
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority

Appendix A – CSRR Risk Changes (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Current Risk
Score

Risk owner

Progress Update - Risks

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date

Progress Update - Controls

Target Risk
Score

CSHF0016/004

Agenda Pack Page 445

Review Summary: Soft National Funding
Formula (NFF) has started in 2018/19 and no
firm date has yet been set for, is there immediate
appetite to introduce, hard NFF. Although
regular review of schools funding formula
continues annually, there is no pressure at the
moment to introduce a completely new funding
formula to mirror the NFF. There has been
recent agitation from some primary schools who
would have gained from the hard NFF, on the
way they have been funded. This is being
handled and contained by the Education
Management Team.
Whilst financial problems in the Secondary
schools sector remain, schools within the
primary phase are presenting financial strain. All
Schools are continually monitored during the
financial year to support those, as early as
possible, that are showing financial concern.
The medium/long term plan is to move to a more
proactive/preventative method so that when
indicators are triggered, actions are taken
immediately to prevent schools from showing
financial strain from deficit. Members have
agreed to this strategy. Working closely with the
Education Leadership Team, regular updates
and actions are reported to Joint Executive
Member Briefing (EMB) meetings.
For schools already in deficit, efforts continue to
reduce/eliminate the deficit and where these
proves impossible, to meet the costs of these
deficits within the envelope of Dedicated Schools
Grant (DSG), and limit the liability to the Council
Reviewed on 30/04/2019

17
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

APPENDIX A
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority

Appendix A – CSRR Risk Changes (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Current Risk
Score

Risk owner

Progress Update - Risks

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date

Progress Update - Controls

Target Risk
Score

CSHF0016/006

Agenda Pack Page 446

Review Summary: The authority continues to
monitor developments in funding. Significant
change is likely from 2020/21, under the next
Spending Review and proposed changes to
Business Rate Retention and Fair Funding. HCC
subscribes to a number of sectoral advisors to
ensure we stay up to date with developments.
Consultation papers were issued in December
2018 by government and are being reviewed.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019
CSHF0016/007
Review Summary: The Authority has developed
and agreed proposals to deliver balanced
budgets for 2017/18 and 2018/19,. Further
savings are being developed to meet this gap,
which rises to £28m by 2021/22. Delivery of
agreed savings proposals will be monitored in
2018/19, as a number are likely to be challenging
to achieve. The Authority is developing budget
proposals for 2019/20 and later years.
Planning for IP 2020 has included a general
review of all service budgets without exception to
identify potential new efficiencies or policy
choices.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019

CSHF0016/008
Review Summary: Control reviewed and remains
valid. Key focus continues to be possible
implications of Brexit with the team monitoring
key events and attending meetings of the CCN
Policy & Strategy Group and South East Strategic
Leaders Policy Group where these issues were
discussed with govt representatives.
Reviewed on 04/04/2019

18
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

APPENDIX A
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority

CS0019
Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic

Agenda Pack Page 447

As a result of increased
uncertainty (including the
likelihood of short term
Government spending
reviews in 2019/20 and
2020/21) regarding future
funding streams for the
county council, there is a
risk that a resource
reduction is announced too
late for savings to be put in
place, leading to emergency
action being required.
Created: 04/04/2019
Delivering our Vision

Appendix A – CSRR Risk Changes (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Current Risk
Score

Severe

32
Probability:
Likely
4
Impact:
High
8

Risk owner

Scott Crudgington
Director of
Resources

Progress Update - Risks

Review Summary: The council took
advantage of the offer made by government
in 2016 to confirm funding for a 4 year
period. This comes to an end in March
2020, and the future arrangements are not
yet clear.
In that context, there is a risk that the
amount of funding received after April 2020
may be reduced with little notice being
given. Full exemplification of the funding to
be received is unlikely to be published
before mid-December 2019, which would
leave insufficient time to prepare significant
savings proposals to be agreed by Council
in mid-February.
Reductions in RSG, limitations on Council
Tax rises, Brexit uncertainty, possibility of
one year Spending Review, Business Rates
etc would be affected.
Reserves have been set aside to mitigate
this risk, but they may prove to be
insufficient.
Work is ongoing with service departments
to prepare robust savings plans which
prepare the council in the event that rapid
action is required.
Depending on the details of the new
funding arrangements, this risk may be
removed in the short term, or may persist
ino the medium term.
Reviewed on 04/04/2019

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date

Progress Update - Controls
CSHF0016/009
Review Summary: Programme team in place
covering SMART, FIT for the FUTURE, and Next
Generation. Scope of programme currently being
developed.
Reviewed on 03/05/2019

CS0019/001
Detailed review of debates on the nature of
future funding arrangements
Steven Pilsworth - In Place / Embedded -

CS0019/001

CS0019/002
Input to lobbying, e.g. through LGA, CCN,
SCT
Steven Pilsworth - In Progress / Taking Effect -

CS0019/002

CS0019/003
Participation in data gathering exercises (e.g.
by MHCLG)
Steven Pilsworth - In Progress / Taking Effect -

CS0019/004
Early consideration of savings options ahead
of ‘normal’ IP timetable beginning
Steven Pilsworth - In Progress / Taking Effect -

CS0019/005
Establish a reserve for use if a significant
reduction of funding is announced very late in
preparations for budget for 2020/21
Steven Pilsworth - In Progress / Taking Effect -

CS0019/006
Development of a clear set of measures with
cabinet to ensure that the council is prepared
for savings that may be required
Steven Pilsworth - In Progress / Taking Effect -

Review Summary: Corporate Finance continues
to track emerging debates on funding including
SCT discussions.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019

Review Summary: HCC continues to contribute to
wider discussion and debate including
submissions to LGA and MHCLG in April 2019.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019

Target Risk
Score

Significant

24
Probability:
Possible
3
Impact:
High
8

CS0019/003
Review Summary: HCC continues to contribute to
wider discussion and debate including
submissions to LGA and MHCLG in April 2019.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019
CS0019/004
Review Summary: Work with officers began in
January 2019 to identify high level options. Work
with members has developed through 2019 to
date.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019
CS0019/005
Review Summary: Transition reserve was
previously established and the adequacy of that
reserve continues to be evaluated in the context
of new information.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019
CS0019/006
Review Summary: Engagement with members
includes early discussion on the timeline for key
decisions needed to deliver IP 2020.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019

19
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

APPENDIX A
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority
CS0020
Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

Agenda Pack Page 448

As a result of successfully
taking over £300m in
savings since 2010,
remaining efficiencies and
initiatives to bring savings
are both more complex and
riskier to achieve.
Therefore, there is an
increased risk across the
whole Integrated Planning
(IP) period that planned
savings are delayed or not
achieved, leading to an
increase in the funding gap,
which may lead to
unplanned reductions in
service delivery and an
inability to meet future
demands

Appendix A – CSRR Risk Changes (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Current Risk
Score

Severe

32
Probability:
Likely
4

Risk owner
Scott Crudgington
Director of
Resources

Impact:
High
8

Progress Update - Risks
Review Summary: The risk of not delivering
planned savings will be managed through
the monthly finance monitor provided for
SMB. This already included (in 2018/19) a
monthly review of the delivery of savings,
which will be continued in 2019/20. A
quarterly update will be provided for
members.
Reviewed on 03/05/2019

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date
CS0020/001
Assess robustness of savings through the
corporate finance team as part of the budget
preparation
Steven Pilsworth - In Progress / Taking Effect -

CS0020/002
Ensure finance monitors to SMB and Cabinet
include assessment of likely delivery of
savings in year, impact across future years
Steven Pilsworth - In Place / Embedded -

CS0020/003
Ensure overall delivery of savings is also
reflected in the forecast outturn position
Steven Pilsworth - In Progress / Taking Effect -

Progress Update - Controls
CS0020/001
Review Summary: Include review of savings
delivery in 2018-19 outturn monitor.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019
CS0020/002
Review Summary: As above, include review of
savings delivery in 2018-19, also include review
of savings delivery in 2019-20.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019

Target Risk
Score

Significant

24
Probability:
Possible
3
Impact:
High
8

CS0020/003
Review Summary: As above, include review of
savings delivery in 2018-19, also include review
of savings delivery in 2019-20.
Reviewed on 30/04/2019

Created: 04/04/2019
Delivering our Vision

HCS0010
Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic
If there is a continuing
inability to attract the
required number of
Homecare work force in line
with the Adult Care Services
Workforce Strategy, there is
an

Severe

32
Probability:
Likely
4

Kulbir Lalli
Head of Integrated
Accommodation
Commissioning

Impact:
High
8

HCS0010/001
Workforce Strategy being reviewed for
2018/19, project group in place including
Hertfordshire Care Providers Association
(HCPA)
Kulbir Lalli - In Place /
Embedded - 30/04/2018

HCS0010/001
Review Summary: Control reviewed by risk owner
in May 2019, Paper went to panel in June
2018 - Now approved.
Reviewed on 15/05/2019
HCS0010/007
Review Summary: Control reviewed by Risk
Owner in May 2019, Contingency plan in place
and used as needed.
Reviewed on 15/05/2019

Significant

12
Probability:
Possible
3
Impact:
Medium
4

20
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

APPENDIX A
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority

Appendix A – CSRR Risk Changes (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Current Risk
Score

Risk owner

increasing risk of non
compliance and a reduction
in the ability to provide safe
and appropriate care in
users own homes which
may lead to impacts on their
health and wellbeing.

Progress Update - Risks
Review Summary: Risk reviewed by Risk
Owner in May 2019, Probability score
reduced to 4 (Likely) and Impact remains at
8 (High) overall score reduced to 32. Care
Sector Pay and Contractual Review report
taken to board in August 2018 and findings
taken into account for inflationary uplifts in
April 2019. Charging methodology for Lead
Providers has been reviewed in preparation
for new contract tender in July 2019.
Reviewed on 15/05/2019

Created: 26/05/2015
Opportunity to be Healthy
and Safe

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date
HCS0010/007
Contingency plan in place for closure of care
providers under Prevention of Providers
Failure policy [e.g. LATC]
Kulbir Lalli - In Place / Embedded HCS0010/008
All Lead Providers of Home Care are now
required to have a recruitment and retention
strategy
Kulbir Lalli - In Place / Embedded HCS0010/009
Ensure sustainable pay rates for care sector
providers are within budget parameters and
being reviewed on an annual basis
Kulbir Lalli - In Place / Embedded -

Agenda Pack Page 449

PROP0030
Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate
In the event of a failure to
comply with property related
Health & Safety compliance
requirements across the
council’s property portfolio
(e.g. completion and acting
upon fire risk assessments,
fixed wiring tests, legionella
testing,

Progress Update - Controls

Target Risk
Score

HCS0010/008
Review Summary: Control reviewed by risk owner
in May 2019, all providers' recruitment and
retention strategies in place. It is now a
contractual requirement for all Care Providers to
be part of the HCPA from April 2018.
Reviewed on 15/05/2019
HCS0010/009
Review Summary: Control reviewed by Risk
Owner in May 2019, Pay and Conditions review
completed July 2018 and to include inflation.
Report at Board in August 2018. Findings
informed inflationary strategy in April 2019.
Reviewed on 15/05/2019

HCS0010/010

Severe

32
Probability:
Unlikely
2
Impact:
Very High
16

Review Summary:
Risk and control measures have been
Assistant Director reviewed and updated. No changes to
current or target risk scores. Property
Property
Estates and FM teams have worked on
creating a matrix to show responsibilities for
compliance depending on the site. A
Compliancy Task Force has been created
along with a database tool (Compliancy
Master Sheet) which will be used to track
actions along with data from the property
managing agent where sites are part of the
Managed Portfolio. This will be accompanied
with a robust and systematic approach to not
only understand all positions in relation to
compliance but deliver a total management
system.
Reviewed on 27/06/2019
Sass Pledger

Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

HCS0010/010
Evaluating impact of 2018/19 increase in pay
to be completed by December 2018
Kulbir Lalli - In Place /
Embedded - 30/06/2019

Review Summary: Control reviewed by Risk
Owner in May 2019, findings of Pay and
Conditions Review noted by ACSMB in August
2018 and will be taken into account for
inflationary uplifts for April 2019
Reviewed on 15/05/2019

HCS0010/011
Pay and Conditions Review being undertaken
Kulbir Lalli - Complete - 01/01/2019

HCS0010/011

PROP0030/001
Asbestos register held at each site (where
applicable) and contractors instructed to
refer to these whilst wording with
asbestos
Sass Pledger - In Progress / Taking
Effect PROP0030/002
Check compliance as per relevant
management regimes; subject to nature of
occupation, staffing, contractual/property
records
Sass Pledger - In Progress / Taking Effect -

Review Summary: Control reviewed by Risk
Owner in May 2019, Pay and Conditions review
Completed.
Reviewed on 15/05/2019
PROP0030/001
Review Summary: Asbestos remains at 100%
compliant across all operational sites inclusive of
the main HCC sites. Records are on site in the
form of hard copies and electronic. In addition, a
Competent Person is available to give key
guidance and site Asbestos Management for
those who may have planned work that may
encounter any (ACMS)- Asbestos Containing
Material. The Asbestos Team have created a
priority list of sites that are recognising any
impending and required works that are needed to
mitigate risk.
Reviewed on 27/06/2019

Significant

16
Probability:
Rare
1
Impact:
Very High
16

21

APPENDIX A
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority

Appendix A – CSRR Risk Changes (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Current Risk
Score

Risk owner

Progress Update - Risks

Agenda Pack Page 450

retaining up to date
asbestos registers) there is
a risk of injury, illness and
death to both service users
and employees.
The consequences of this
risk include service
disruption; loss of reputation;
fines from the HSE and
claims for compensation.
Created: 02/05/2019

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date
PROP0030/003
Works and/or identified improvements are
carried out/implemented within a reasonable
time frame
Sass Pledger - In Progress / Taking Effect -

PROP0030/004
Operational measures are in place at each
location such as testing of fire alarms and fire
drills
Sass Pledger - In Progress / Taking Effect -

Opportunity to be Healthy
and Safe
PROP0030/005
Staff are trained on fire evacuation procedures
Sass Pledger - In Progress / Taking Effect -

PROP0030/006
Fixed wiring tests completed every 5 years
and any requirements are acted upon ASAP
(dependent on severity)
Sass Pledger - In Progress / Taking Effect -

PROP0030/007
Legionella risk assessments are up to date
and regular testing is undertaken
Sass Pledger - In Progress / Taking Effect -

PROP0030/008
Full review of ACS assets being undertaken
as part of the “supported accommodation”
review project
Sass Pledger - Proposed PROP0030/009
Use intelligence and information from HCC’s
Health & Safety Manager to ensure periodic
audits are carried out as required
Sass Pledger - Proposed -

Progress Update - Controls

Target Risk
Score

PROP0030/002
Review Summary: Compliance is being verified and checked
and updates are shown in the Councils Corporate Property
Database (Tech Forge) and the Compliance Master Tracking
Sheet. Each element of responsibility is being captured
alongside the responsible agent. Levels of responsibility
are being determined through understanding the Duty
Holder relationship, contractual arrangement and
lease/licence details.
Reviewed on 27/06/2019
PROP0030/003
Review Summary: The Risk Assessments programme is
currently on going with remedial works being assessed on a
priority basis. A request for additional financing is required to
support a full program of remedial works.
Reviewed on 27/06/2019
PROP0030/004
Review Summary: Fire alarm testing and fire drills being
conducted with results being recorded. This responsibility
presently falls on 3rd party contractors, In house hard FM team
and HCC H&S Department Corporate & FM/Property.
Reviewed on 27/06/2019
PROP0030/005
Review Summary: Review Summary: All staff are trained on fire
evacuation procedures with records held locally. A rolling
program exist managed by H&S Corporate Department as well
as H&S FM/Property.
Reviewed on 27/06/2019
PROP0030/006
Review Summary: Review Summary: 5 year fixed wire testing
program (EICR’s) are presently on a rolling program. Remedial
works are RAG rated and rectified accordingly to their significance
and risk. This is being managed by the Hard FM and the Energy
Initiative and delivered by the Measured Term Contracts.
Reviewed on 27/06/2019
PROP0030/007
Review Summary: Review Summary: Legionella water testing
program is current in place and is expected to be completed in Oct
2019. A request for budget is required to facilitate any remedial
works programmes.
Reviewed on 27/06/2019

22
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

APPENDIX A
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority

Appendix A – CSRR Risk Changes (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Current Risk
Score

Risk owner

Progress Update - Risks

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date

PROP0030/008
Review Summary: The Supported Living
Accommodation review project has been
initiated and is ongoing and is managed
through the Property Estates team.
Reviewed on 27/06/2019

Agenda Pack Page 451

TEC0004
Corporate & Strategic
Risk Register
Corporate
In the event of failing to
maintain and ensure the
use of our security systems,
technical protocols and
change management
processes, there is a risk of
a successful cyber-attack
(virus, penetration or
malicious internal action) on
HCC’s ICT environments
causing significant service
disruption and possible data
loss
Created: 21/01/2009
Delivering our Vision

Target Risk
Score

Progress Update - Controls

Significant

PROP0030/009
Review Summary: Intelligence tools and a
newly created strategy have been developed
to identify high risk properties that will be
placed on a rolling audit schedule. HCC’s
H&S Management Team along with The
Compliancy Task Force team are collectively
implementing an intelligence auditing program
that includes 3rd party audits in line with Duty
of Care responsibilities.
Reviewed on 27/06/2019

Severe

32
Probability:
Likely
4
Impact:
High
8

Review Summary: The risk owner, in
conjunction with the Assistant Director for
Head of Technology Improvement and Technology continues to
review this risk. A program of works has been
undertaken to improve physical security. Our re
audit review has taken place confirming
planned improvements and providing required
assurance. Having developed a better
understanding of the data and the nature of
attacks we have considered the risk going
forward to a cloud future in which we have a
much wider attack profile as we spread our
data. However this gives rise to potentially
more selective impact / damage done if an
attack is successful. A key area of potential
weakness is from user behaviour i.e. not
following security protocols. User awareness,
cyber security training and vigilance are
therefore important to maintain. In addition to
the continuing work to establish areas most
susceptible to a successful attack and so focus
our efforts, a formal industry standard approach
is being developed (ISO27001) to help our risk
management understanding in this area. In
considering all the factors at present, the risk
owner has raised the risk probability to likely.
In response to how the risk will evolve we are
working on a proposal for steps we’ll need to
take to mitigate this which may include
supplementing the Cyber Security team.
Reviewed on 13/06/2019
David Mansfield

Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

TEC0004/001
Industry approved security measures
(firewalls, desktop AV, email filtering software
etc) implemented, monitored and maintained
David Mansfield - In Progress / Taking Effect -

TEC0004/002
Before implementing new/updated
systems/apps they must conform to agreed
security requirements incl successful network
pen tests
David Mansfield - In Progress / Taking Effect -

16
Probability:
Unlikely
2
Impact:
High
8

TEC0004/001
Review Summary: The server for the dashboard
solution has been installed. Logs are now being
digested by the service to display on dashboards.
These initial dashboards have now been demonstrated
to the ICT Security Team who has provided feedback
for further fine tuning. External public facing
interfaces continue to operate with no critical or high
risk rated vulnerabilities. A number of medium rated
risks have also been eliminated. Work is continuing to
address medium and low risk rated vulnerabilities. Our
third party security specialist is working on a new
method of providing us with this information, allowing
us to view any issues discovered on dashboard views
of external vulnerability information for other areas of
the organisation. Work continues with suppliers to
provide further protection for our online applications
from a denial of service attack (DOS).
Reviewed on 13/06/2019
TEC0004/002
Review Summary: Pen tests continue to be carried
out for key services. This work covers tests on both
the hosted information and dashboards, and the
hardware gateway. Any critical and high level
vulnerabilities have been rectified, allowing to
progress to pilot stage. Further work is being
undertaken by the supplier, with a view to run a retest.
Reviewed on 13/06/2019

23

APPENDIX A
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority

Appendix A – CSRR Risk Changes (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Current Risk
Score

Risk owner

Progress Update - Risks

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date

TEC0004/004
Work to continuously develop & deliver ICT
policy/security educ/awareness training for
staff, managers and members
David Mansfield - In Place / Embedded -

Agenda Pack Page 452

TEC0004/006
Rolling program of testing existing network
infrastructure including penetration testing for
HCC and key 3rd party providers on
David Mansfield - In Place / Embedded -

TEC0004/007
Ensure ICT Service Providers adhere to
security & tech standards in
providing/implementing/updating systems; ICT
infrastructure
David Mansfield - In Place / Embedded -

Progress Update - Controls

Target Risk
Score

TEC0004/004
Review Summary: A new Cyber Security Intranet
page has been launched linking to essential
information to help staff protect themselves and
HCC from cyber threats. The Cyber Security and
Cyber Crime e-learning modules are now
available on ILearn+ to all County Council staff as
part of their required (mandatory) learning. To
support this we have promoted both the modules
and intranet page in Team Talk and Loo News.
Effective from 1st April 2019 HR introduced an
annual charge for the use of ILearn+ for external
users. This could result in some ICT Users, such
as contractors, being unable to complete their
Technology required learning (Cyber Crime,
Cyber Security and Information Security modules)
if their department cannot support the charges.
This may increase our risk and we continue to
monitor.
Reviewed on 13/06/2019

TEC0004/006
Review Summary: Following completion of the
scan for PSN compliance, we have scheduled
pen tests for relevant key services and are
engaging our security specialists in the coming
weeks.
Reviewed on 13/06/2019
TEC0004/007
Review Summary: Further evidence of the
effectiveness of the revamped security due
diligence questionnaire was demonstrated in a
number of new IT procurements. It is now
embedded in the procurement process to be
reviewed in Nov 2019.
Reviewed on 13/06/2019

24
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

Date of report: 20-Jun-19

APPENDIX B

Appendix B - Updates on risks considered key due to the proximity of likely events
and the associated media and public interest

Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority
ENV0104

Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic
In the event of the Residual
Waste Treatment
Programme being impacted
by one of the following
scenarios:

Agenda Pack Page 453

- The Energy Recovery
Facility (ERF) at Rye House
does not proceed or is
delayed
- Unable to secure suitable,
cost effective, alternatives
for waste disposal should
the contract with Veolia
(VES) be terminated.
It may result in:
- Increased costs to HCC
Created: 15/05/2012
Delivering our Vision

Current Risk
Score

Risk owner

Severe

Simon Aries

40
Probability:
Almost Certain
5
Impact:
High
8

Progress Update - Risks

Review Summary: Under the contract with
Veolia (VES) a planning application for an
Energy Recovery Facility (ERF) at Rye
Assistant
Director - Transport, House, Hoddesdon was submitted in
December 2016. Notification was received
Waste &
on 1st February 2018 that the Secretary of
Environmental
State had called in the planning application.
Management
Following a public inquiry, concluding in
August 2018, the planning inspector
submitted her report to the Secretary of
State for determination on the 4th February
2019. The Secretary of State shall issue
his decision on or before 7th May 2019. A
decision has yet to be issued by the
Secretary of State, Veolia have been
informed that the application is still under
consideration and the Secretary of State
will seek to reach his decision as soon as
possible. Due to the delays in the planning
process, planning resolution will not be
achieved by a key date in the contract
(Planning Permission Long Stop Date). In
order to allow time for a decision to be
received, and to consider the outcome, the
contract needs to be varied to extend the
key dates. The decision to vary the
contract was taken by Cabinet on 3rd June.
On the 14th February 2019 the
Environment Agency granted an operating
permit for Rye House ERF. Due to the lack
of transfer provision in the east of the
county and the finite availability of disposal
facilities capable of accepting direct
deliveries (Westmill landfill and Edmonton
EfW) the delay to the planning
determination for Rye House increases the
risk that East Herts Council and the
Borough of Broxbourne may have to be
directed to Waterdale transfer station, an
action that would lead to increased costs for
all three authorities and operational
pressure on Waterdale transfer station.
Reviewed on 04/06/2019

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date
ENV0104/001
Scenario planning
Simon Aries - In Place / Embedded -

ENV0104/002
Legal & financial advice
Simon Aries - In Place / Embedded -

ENV0104/003
Liaison with contractor
Simon Aries - In Place / Embedded -

Progress Update - Controls
ENV0104/001
Review Summary: Scenario planning covering
potential outcomes, and exploring options
available to the Council, is ongoing and remains a
relevant and appropriate as a control measure.
Reviewed on 03/04/2019

ENV0104/002
Review Summary: Support from legal and
financial advisors is available and is used as
required, this remains a relevant and appropriate
control measure.
Reviewed on 03/04/2019

Target Risk
Score

Material

8
Probability:
Rare
1
Impact:
High
8

ENV0104/003
ENV0104/004
Management of Political Processes
Simon Aries - In Place / Embedded -

Review Summary: Regular liaison with VES is
ongoing and remains an appropriate control
measure.
Reviewed on 03/04/2019
ENV0104/004
Review Summary: Liaison with Members is
ongoing and remains relevant and appropriate.
Reviewed on 03/04/2019

25
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

Appendix B - Updates on risks considered key due to the proximity of likely events and the
APPENDIX B
associated media and public interest
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority

PROP0023
Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic

Agenda Pack Page 454

Herts Living Limited is
collaborating with Chalkdene
to maximise returns on our
land and assets. In the
event of delays, planning
development issues or
changes to standards, there
is a risk that these
arrangements do not
perform as anticipated,
which could result in a
reduction of projected
financial returns, slow the
pace of development and
returns and also reduce
other benefits from the
arrangements. This could
also lead to reputational
impacts for HCC. (Replaces
PROP0020 and
PROP0021).

Current Risk
Score

Risk owner

Significant

Mike Evans (Herts
Living Limited)
Head of Estates &
Director of Herts
Living Limited

24
Probability:
Possible
3
Impact:
High
8

Progress Update - Risks

Review Summary: Risk and control
measures have been reviewed and
updated. No changes to current and target
risk scores. Controls to reduce and
manage the risk are in place and are being
undertaken. Chalkdene (the Joint Venture
Partner) has a site specific risk register for
the 12 sites being developed. Herts Living
Ltd will also be delivering developments
themselves without the Joint Venture
Partner. A disposal strategy is still being
developed and may be included within the
Property Management Services Contract
where assets are not in the pipeline for
Chalkdene or Herts Living Ltd. All sites that
are under formal Option to Purchase have
now been handed over to Chalkdene to
progress the planning work.
Reviewed on 11/06/2019

Created: 08/05/2017
Delivering our Vision

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date

PROP0023/001
Herts Living Ltd Board of Directors to ensure
governance through member advisory group
and shareholder representative group.
Mike Evans (Herts Living Limited) - In
Progress / Taking Effect -

PROP0023/002
Continue to determine the latest market value
before taking any asset to sale or allocate to
Herts Living Ltd
Mike Evans (Herts Living Limited) - In Place /
Embedded PROP0023/003
Take advantage of sale opportunties such as
unsolicited approaches where possible
subject to procurement rules being followed
Mike Evans (Herts Living Limited) - In Place /
Embedded -

PROP0023/004
Work with Finance & disposal teams to deliver
an acceptable capital receipt programme &
the receipts from the SJV
Mike Evans (Herts Living Limited) - In
Progress / Taking Effect PROP0023/007
Continue to identify pipeline surplus
sites/assets and develop these to maximise
the potential capital receipt.
Mike Evans (Herts Living Limited) - In
Progress / Taking Effect -

Progress Update - Controls

PROP0023/001
Review Summary: Member Advisory Group
meetings continue to take place quarterly.
Reviewed on 24/04/2019
PROP0023/002
Review Summary: Use of external consultants to
agree disposal direction and agreement of the
sale value of the land is made prior to any
recommendations being made to Cabinet.
Reviewed on 24/04/2019

Target Risk
Score

Significant

16
Probability:
Unlikely
2
Impact:
High
8

PROP0023/003
Review Summary: Continue to take advantage of
sale opportunities subject to procurement rules.
Reviewed on 24/04/2019
PROP0023/004
Review Summary: HCC Finance discuss capital
receipt targets with Property. Property are then
able to identify pipeline assets for disposal to the
open market or to Herts Living Ltd.
Reviewed on 24/04/2019

PROP0023/007
Review Summary: Current delays in drafting
Cabinet Papers to declare sites/assets as surplus
due to limited resources in the Estates & Asset
Management Team. New appointment of a
consultant to join the team who will specifically be
working on Disposals.
Reviewed on 11/06/2019

PROP0023/008
Review Summary: Social Value is included in the
Herts Living Business Plan
Reviewed on 24/04/2019

26
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

Appendix B - Updates on risks considered key due to the proximity of likely events and the
APPENDIX B
associated media and public interest
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority

Current Risk
Score

Risk owner

Progress Update - Risks

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date
PROP0023/008
Gain social value from arrangements. Provide
social benefits that will impact on economic &
social well-being of the community
Mike Evans (Herts Living Limited) - In
Progress / Taking Effect -

Progress Update - Controls

Target Risk
Score

PROP0023/009
Review Summary: Continue to use external
consultants to maintain an awareness of market
conditions.
Reviewed on 24/04/2019
PROP0023/010

PROP0023/009
Maintain awareness of market conditions &
potential for change
Mike Evans (Herts Living Limited) - In Place /
Embedded -

Review Summary: All sites that are under formal
Option to Purchase have now been handed over
to Chalkdene to progress the planning work.
Reviewed on 11/06/2019

Agenda Pack Page 455

PROP0023/010
Hand over sites to Chalkdene when at the
stage of being under formal Option to
Purchase to enable planning work to progress
Mike Evans (Herts Living Limited) - In
Progress / Taking Effect -

27
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

APPENDIX C

Hertfordshire County Council
19 June 2019

Appendix C – Corporate & Strategic Risk Register summary risk
Category
Type

Details

Current Risk Rating

Target

08/18 11/18 02/19 06/19

Score

Risk Ref

Business Unit

R17 /
CSHF0016

Resources
Finance

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

In the event that the Authority does not develop
sufficient and timely proposals to deal with the
ongoing or further reductions in
funding/resources, there is a risk that the need to
close the funding gap may result in identifying
measures for unplanned reductions in service
spend leading to deterioration or interruption of
front line service delivery. [Formerly CSHF0005
and CSHF0015]

24

24

24

48

24

SE02 /
ENV0104

Environment
and
Infrastructure

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic

In the event of the Residual Waste Treatment
Programme being impacted by one of the
following scenarios:

40

40

40

40

8

- The Energy Recovery Facility (ERF) at Rye
House does not proceed or is delayed
- Unable to secure suitable, cost effective,
alternatives for waste disposal should the contract
with Veolia (VES) be terminated.
It may result in:
- Increased costs to HCC

CP05/
CPRES0002

Community
Protection
Resilience

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

In the event of a failure to prepare adequate
Corporate and departmental generic BCP plans,
there is a risk that, should a major incident take
place (to building, technology & people), there
may be insufficient back up arrangements in
place, which could result in a higher level of
disruption than anticipated causing increased
disruption to key resources. (Formerly
SERMU0002)

32

32

32

32

16

SR26 /
CS0019

Resources

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic

As a result of increased uncertainty (including the
likelihood of short term Government spending
reviews in 2019/20 and 2020/21) regarding future
funding streams for the county council, there is a
risk that a resource reduction is announced too
late for savings to be put in place, leading to
emergency action being required.

n/a

n/a

n/a

32

24

R27 /
CS0020

Resources

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

As a result of successfully taking over £300m in
savings since 2010, remaining efficiencies and
initiatives to bring savings are both more complex
and riskier to achieve. Therefore, there is an
increased risk across the whole Integrated
Planning (IP) period that planned savings are
delayed or not achieved, leading to an increase in
the funding gap, which may lead to unplanned
reductions in service delivery and an inability to
meet future demands

n/a

n/a

n/a

32

24

CS01 /
CSF0055

Childrens
Services

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

In the event of inappropriate care or attention
there is a risk that a child or young person could
die or become seriously injured. In addition to the
death or serious injury of the child, this could lead
to formal intervention by Government and/or legal
action by families or carers.

32

32

32

32

32

Agenda Pack Page 456
Report produced by JCAD CORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development

28

APPENDIX C
Hertfordshire County Council

Appendix C – Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register summary risk

Category
Type

Details

Current Risk Rating

Target

08/18 11/18 02/19 06/19

Score

Risk Ref

Business Unit

SE06 /
ENV0149

Environment
and
Infrastructure

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic

As a result of the restrictions introduced in 2015
on the use of S106 for the pooling of developer
contributions towards new infrastructure together
with the introduction of the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL), there is a risk that the
uptake of CIL, which is the Government’s
preferred method for pooling contributions,
remains slow, and due to the limited influence
HCC can bring to bear over the districts on the
spending priorities of CIL revenue as a non CIL
charging Authority, this may result in there being
insufficient money to support infrastructure needs
derived from new housing. [Formerly PROP0022
& CSCE0023]

32

32

32

32

12

SAC01 /
HCS0010

Adult Care
Services

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic

If there is a continuing inability to attract the
required number of Homecare work force in line
with the Adult Care Services Workforce Strategy,
there is an increasing risk of non-compliance and
a reduction in the ability to provide safe and
appropriate care in users own homes which may
lead to impacts on their health and wellbeing.

40

40

40

32

12

SAC08 /
HCS0016

Adult Care
Services

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic

In light of significant demand on health & social
services there is a risk of insufficient resources
and budget provision.
[supersedes risks HCS0011 & HCS0012]

32

32

32

32

24

AC10 /
HCS0018

Adult Care
Services

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

In the event of inadequate safeguarding
arrangements, a vulnerable person at risk of harm
is not identified and protected appropriately.
[Formerly HCSLD0005]

32

32

32

32

32

AC03 /
HCSCP0001

Adult Care
Services
Commissioning
For People

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

In the event of a Hertfordshire Care Provider
becoming inadequate or failing, there is a risk that
this may result in poor care to clients or a
safeguarding issue.

48

48

32

32

32

AC04 /
HCSMH0002

Adult Care
Services Mental
Health

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

As a result of the 2014 Supreme Court ruling
around Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DOLS)
there is a risk that an inability to conduct best
interest assessments within legal timeframes
could lead to unlawful detention of people and
potential legal and compensation challenges to
HCC.

32

32

32

32

24

CP01 /
HFRS0007

Community
Protection
Hertfordshire
Fire & Rescue

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

During unplanned incidents, such as terrorist
activity, civil disturbance, large scale wide area
flooding, or periods of industrial action, there is a
risk that HFRS may be over reliant on existing
regional or national resources which may lead to
reduced fire cover.

48

32

32

32

32

R25 /
PROP0030

Resources
Property

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

In the event of a failure to comply with property
related Health & Safety compliance requirements
across the council’s property portfolio (e.g.
completion and acting upon fire risk assessments,
fixed wiring tests, legionella testing, retaining up
to date asbestos registers) there is a risk of injury,
illness and death to both service users and
employees.
The consequences of this risk include service
disruption; loss of reputation; fines from the HSE
and claims for compensation.

n/a

n/a

n/a

32

16

Agenda Pack Page 457
Report produced by JCAD CORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development

29

APPENDIX C

Appendix C – Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register summary risk

Hertfordshire County Council

Category
Type

Details

Current Risk Rating

Target

08/18 11/18 02/19 06/19

Score

Risk Ref

Business Unit

R12 /
TEC0004

Resources
Technology

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

In the event of failing to maintain and ensure the
use of our security systems, technical protocols
and change management processes, there is a
risk of a successful cyber-attack (virus,
penetration or malicious internal action) on HCC’s
ICT environments causing significant service
disruption and possible data loss

24

24

24

32

16

CP02 /
CP0004

Community
Protection

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

As a result of disruptive factors influencing the
lives of people in Hertfordshire, there is a risk that
residents or staff become radicalised or drawn
into terrorism, which could cause harm to
themselves or the wider public and reduce
community / social cohesion.

24

24

24

24

16

CP03 /
CPRES0009

Community
Protection
Resilience

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

If there is insufficient preparation for increased
frequency of extreme weather events resulting
from climate change, then there might be negative
impacts on service delivery, user access to
service provision and to the reputation of the
Council.

24

24

24

24

24

SCP08 /
CPRES0010

Community
Protection
Resilience

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic

There is continued and significant uncertainty in
respect to the nature of an agreement and
transitional arrangements for the U.K.’s
withdrawal from the European Union. There is a
risk that we cannot adequately plan and prepare
for the possible and potentially significant
consequences on public services under a number
of scenarios, including possible regulatory, legal,
workforce, supply chain and financial impacts, as
well as on the local communities and economy of
Hertfordshire.

n/a

24

24

24

16

SCS02 /
CSF0070

Childrens
Services

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic

In the event of inadequate capital being made
available from a number of funding streams, part
of the costs of delivering the secondary expansion
programme and/or schools required to meet
demand in new housing developments may need
to be met from the council's own resources having
exhausted all other eventualities.

24

24

24

24

16

CS03 /
CSF0082

Childrens
Services

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

As a result of national and local efficiencies, there
is a risk that partnership funding may be
withdrawn or withheld.

24

24

24

24

12

CS04 /
CSF0083

Childrens
Services

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

As a result of the new welfare, reform and
immigration arrangements, there is a risk of an
increase in families becoming homeless and/or
requiring support from Children’s Services (and
other services).

24

24

24

24

12

E01 /
ENV0142

Environment
and
Infrastructure

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

Hertfordshire is facing an increasing threat from
tree pests and diseases, including ash dieback
and Oak Processionary Moth. In this context,
there is a risk that current systems and resources
for tree management will not be fit for purpose.
Failure to manage tree risk may result in
significant unplanned costs (including liability
claims), danger to the public and or/service users,
and impact on landscape and ecosystem
services.

24

24

24

24

16

Agenda Pack Page 458
Report produced by JCAD CORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development

30

APPENDIX C

Appendix C – Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register summary risk

Hertfordshire County Council

Category
Type

Details

Current Risk Rating

Target

08/18 11/18 02/19 06/19

Score

Risk Ref

Business Unit

R07 /
HR0018

Resources
Human
Resources

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

If the Council fails to educate, train and provide
tools and processes for employees to effectively
fulfil their roles (Including compliance with data
protection, health and safety, safe staffing
legislation, and role specific training) there is a
risk that staff are not fully competent or
productive. This could lead to service failures
such as serious injury or harm, particularly to
vulnerable service users (and the public) fines
and/or prosecutions, and inefficiency in how work
is delivered.

24

24

24

24

16

R01 /
HR0021

Resources
Human
Resources

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

If we fail to retain, attract and recruit the right
people (managers, officers and volunteers) and
right skills and maintain engagement at all levels,
there may be a significant impact on service
delivery and major cost implications. [Formerly
CSCE0007]

24

24

24

24

16

R13 /
IMP0001

Resources
Adult &
Children Law
Group

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

Risk:
•
loss/inappropriate acquisition/disclosure of
sensitive personal or commercial data; and / or
breach of data subjects rights;
contrary to the requirements of the Data
Protection Act 2018 and the General Data
Protection Regulation
Potential consequences:
•
harm to clients,
•
impact on Council reputation,
•
regulatory enforcement and other legal
action
•
severe financial consequences.
[Formerly CSCE0013]

24

24

24

24

16

SR21 /
PROP0023

Resources
Property

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic

Herts Living Limited is collaborating with
Chalkdene to maximise returns on our land and
assets. In the event of delays, planning
development issues or changes to standards,
there is a risk that these arrangements do not
perform as anticipated, which could result in a
reduction of projected financial returns, slow the
pace of development and returns and also reduce
other benefits from the arrangements. This could
also lead to reputational impacts for HCC.
(Replaces PROP0020 and PROP0021).

24

24

24

24

16

R05 /
SP0005

Resources
Strategic
Procurement
Group

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

A significant proportion of the Council’s
expenditure is accounted for by externally
commissioned services. In the event of
insufficient skills in commissioning / contract
management and competencies along with a lack
of application of effective monitoring, governance
and contract management rigour, there is a risk of
poor value, inadequate service provision and data
security and/or failure of externally delivered
services, which could lead to disruption of service
delivery. [Formerly IMP0002/CSCE0019]

24

24

24

24

16

Agenda Pack Page 459
Report produced by JCAD CORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development

31

APPENDIX C

Appendix C – Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register summary risk

Hertfordshire County Council

Category
Type

Details

Current Risk Rating

Target

08/18 11/18 02/19 06/19

Score

Risk Ref

Business Unit

R08 /
AUDIT0001

Resources
Audit (SIAS)

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

As a result of the scale and scope of services
delivered by and through the county council, there
is a risk of fraud; which may be significant fraud
including money laundering, tax evasion or
bribery, which could lead to service disruption,
financial and reputational loss. The Anti-Money
Laundering (AML) Act 2017 seeks to prevent new
means of terrorist financing and enforce
sanctions, requiring HCC to adopt a more
risk-based approach towards AML.
This risk includes, but is not limited to, areas
specifically recognised by CIPFA:
- Overstatement of needs through false
declaration for personal budgets in adult care
services
- Misuse of Blue Badge/Concessionary bus
passes
- Staff falsifying time keeping / expenses and
overpayment of pensions
- Bribery and collusion in procurement
- Exaggerated/false insurance claims

16

16

16

16

16

CP04 /
CPRES0001

Community
Protection
Resilience

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

In the event of a failure of the Local Resilience
forum (LRF) to provide adequate inter-agency
plans which correctly identify the capabilities
required to deal with a major emergency in
Hertfordshire there is a risk that Hertfordshire's
multi- agency response may not be fully effective
(formerly SERMU0001)

16

16

16

16

16

R03 /
CSHF0002

Resources
Finance

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

There is a risk that HCC’s pension fund level may
not improve sufficiently to cover accrued pension
costs because of economic conditions, poor
investment or ineffective governance

16

16

16

16

16

E04 /
ENV0033

Environment
and
Infrastructure

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

In the event of under investment there is a risk
that road maintenance levels (including footways
and cycle-ways) cannot be maintained and
general deterioration occurs, which may lead to
increased number of accidents, loss of reputation
and customer dissatisfaction.

16

16

16

16

8

CP06 /
HFRS0004

Community
Protection
Hertfordshire
Fire & Rescue

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

In the event of a failure to meet national training
requirements, poor operational performance from
personnel who are not fully trained and competent
in their role could lead to the death or serious
injury of a firefighter.

16

16

16

16

16

R18 /
HR0023

Resources
Human
Resources

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

As a result of new legislation establishing an
Apprenticeship Levy, there is a risk that should
the County Council not take appropriate action to
offset the levy and provide apprenticeship
opportunities there may be financial and
reputational consequences.

12

12

12

12

8

Agenda Pack Page 460
Report produced by JCAD CORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development

32

APPENDIX C

Appendix C – Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register summary risk

Hertfordshire County Council

Category
Type

Details

Current Risk Rating

Target

08/18 11/18 02/19 06/19

Score

Risk Ref

Business Unit

SR24 /
LIBS0007

Resources
Libraries

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic

Cabinet has agreed to adopt an alternative
provider for the future delivery of the library
services through a procurement process in 2019.
It has also agreed to establish a public service
mutual in shell form in order to bid for the
contract. It is envisaged that the new contract will
be awarded in July 2019 and launched in
December 2019.
In the event that there is a delay in the
procurement or the implementation process, or a
challenge to the contract award, then there is a
risk that the new provider will not be in place by
the end of 2019, with the result that some or all of
the required savings will not be made in
2019/2020, and the County Council will suffer
reputational damage.

12

16

12

12

8

R15 /
PROP0018

Resources
Property

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

There is a risk that land owned by the Council and
no longer required for the purpose for which it was
bought may not have an active management
regime in place. As a result there is a risk of an
encroachment, H&S incident to persons or
property or some financial impact which could
give rise to H&SE action and/or a liability claim.

12

12

12

12

8

PH01 /
PHD0014

Public Health

Corporate &
Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

In the event of a Health Protection emergency
such as a communicable disease epidemic,
radiological, chemical or biological agent
exposure, or extreme weather conditions, there is
a risk that the authority may be unable to meet its
statutory duty to adequately assure multi-agency
health protection arrangements.

16

8

8

8

8

Total number of risks 36

Agenda Pack Page 461
Report produced by JCAD CORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development

33

Date of report: 21-Jun-19

Appendix D – Draft Risks (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority
ACSDMH0002
Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate

Agenda Pack Page 462

DRAFT Risk: In the event of
inadequate or inappropriate
safeguarding arrangements,
a vulnerable person at risk
of harm is not identified or
protected appropriately
which many result in harm.

Current Risk
Score

Severe

32
Probability:
Unlikely
2

Risk owner

Progress Update - Risks

Mark Harvey
Operations Director,
Adult Disability and
Mental Health

Impact:
Very High
16

Created: 21/06/2019
Opportunity to be Healthy
and Safe

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date
ACSDMH0002/001
HSAB governance arrangements and
oversight of safeguarding procedures
Mark Harvey - In Place / Embedded -

Progress Update - Controls
ACSDMH0002/001

Severe

32
Reviewed on
ACSDMH0002/002

ACSDMH0002/002
Competency based learning and development
activity associated with the HSAB
Mark Harvey - In Place / Embedded -

Target Risk
Score

Reviewed on
ACSDMH0002/003

Probability:
Unlikely
2
Impact:
Very High
16

Reviewed on
ACSDMH0002/003
Quarterly performance report to ACS
Management Board, Council Leader and
Chief Exec.
Mark Harvey - In Place / Embedded -

ACSDMH0002/004
Reviewed on
ACSDMH0002/005

ACSDMH0002/004
Practise Governance Board overseeing
outcome to ensure high standards of
safeguarding
Mark Harvey - In Place / Embedded ACSDMH0002/005
Implementation of new safeguarding service
Mark Harvey - In Place / Embedded -

Reviewed on
ACSDMH0002/006
Reviewed on
ACSDMH0002/007
Reviewed on

ACSDMH0002/006
New arrangements for PSW for safeguarding
Mark Harvey - In Place / Embedded -

ACSDMH0002/007
Peer challenge and review from partners
Mark Harvey - In Place / Embedded -

34
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

Appendix D – Draft Risks (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority
ACSOP0002
Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate
DRAFT Risk: In the event of
a (or more than one)
Hertfordshire Care Provider
failing or ceasing service,
there is a risk that this may
result in poor care to service
users or safeguarding issues
and reputational impacts

Current Risk
Score

Severe

32
Probability:
Unlikely
2

Risk owner

Progress Update - Risks

Chris Badger
Operations Director,
Older People

Impact:
Very High
16

Created: 21/06/2019
Opportunity to be Healthy
and Safe

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date
ACSOP0002/001
Use ACS Contract Monitoring Procedures
Chris Badger - In Place / Embedded -

Progress Update - Controls
ACSOP0002/001

Severe

32
Reviewed on
ACSOP0002/002

ACSOP0002/002
Learning and development of care providers
Mark Gwynne - In Place / Embedded -

Target Risk
Score

Reviewed on
ACSOP0002/003

Probability:
Unlikely
2
Impact:
Very High
16

Reviewed on
ACSOP0002/003
Market Quality and Resilience Programme
Board providing; overview of provider quality;
escalate any issues to relevant agency
Chris Badger - In Place / Embedded -

ACSOP0002/004
Reviewed on

Agenda Pack Page 463

ACSOP0002/005
ACSOP0002/004
Effective use of monitoring tools and
resources to identify problems early and
prevent failing quality
Chris Badger - In Place / Embedded -

Reviewed on

ACSOP0002/005
Multi Agency Service Quality Improvement
Group, analyse data and evaluate risk
monthly and take appropriate action with
partners
Chris Badger - In Place / Embedded -

ACSOP0002/007

ACSOP0002/006
Utilise Herts at Home, set up as provider of
last resort, to enable ACS to respond to
instances of provider failure
Chris Badger - In Progress / Taking Effect -

Reviewed on

ACSOP0002/006
Reviewed on

Reviewed on
ACSOP0002/008

ACSOP0002/007
Establish new arrangements of ACH panel to
review / scrutinise market intelligence
Chris Badger - In Progress / Taking Effect -

35
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

Appendix D – Draft Risks (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority

Current Risk
Score

Risk owner

Progress Update - Risks

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date

Progress Update - Controls

Target Risk
Score

ACSOP0002/008
Consider relevant SIAS audit
recommendations and undertake agreed
officer actions in respect to ACS practice and
monitoring
Chris Badger - In Progress / Taking Effect -

Agenda Pack Page 464

ACSPR0001
Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate
DRAFT Risk: As a result of
the increased uncertainty
regarding Adult Care Service
funding streams and the
anticipated increase in
demand for Adult Care
Services, there is a risk that
planned budgets may be
insufficient / and future
levels of funding may be
further reduced, which could
lead to a reduction in service
delivery, overspend or
emergency action.

Severe

32
Probability:
Likely
4

Helen Maneuf
Assistant Director,
Integrated Planning
& Resources

Impact:
High
8

Created: 21/06/2019
Opportunity to be Healthy
and Safe

ACSPR0001/001
Monthly process of budget monitoring
Helen Maneuf - In Place / Embedded -

ACSPR0001/001

24
Reviewed on
ACSPR0001/002

ACSPR0001/002
Senior management involvement and
reporting
Helen Maneuf - In Progress / Taking Effect -

Significant

Reviewed on
ACSPR0001/003

Probability:
Possible
3
Impact:
High
8

Reviewed on
ACSPR0001/003
Process of planning for future population
growth and inflationary impact
Helen Maneuf - Proposed -

ACSPR0001/004
Reviewed on
ACSPR0001/005

ACSPR0001/004
Work to identify strategies for achieving
financial balance for future years feeding into
integrated planning
Helen Maneuf - Proposed -

Reviewed on

ACSPR0001/005
Regular discussions with Director of
Resources, Members and Resources
Department
Helen Maneuf - In Progress / Taking Effect -

36
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

Appendix D – Draft Risks (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority
ACSD0001
Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register
Corporate
DRAFT Risk: In the event of
a failure to meet legal
obligations or to respond to
changes to new legislation
there is a risk that Adult
Care Services fail services
users and carers leading to
business failure and
reputational damage.

Current Risk
Score

Risk owner

Significant

Iain MacBeath

16
Probability:
Unlikely
2

Director, Adult Care
Services

Progress Update - Risks
Review Summary: Draft Risk created as a
result of the recent 2019 zero-based ACS
review.
Reviewed on 19/06/2019

Impact:
High
8

Created: 19/06/2019

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date
ACSD0001/001
SLA with Herts Legal to review quality
Iain MacBeath - Proposed -

Progress Update - Controls
ACSD0001/001

Material

8
Reviewed on
ACSD0001/002

ACSD0001/002
Legal Surgeries to take place quarterly
Iain MacBeath - Proposed -

Target Risk
Score

Reviewed on
ACSD0001/003

Probability:
Rare
1
Impact:
High
8

Reviewed on
ACSD0001/003
Operational Transformational Group - Bi
Monthly
Iain MacBeath - Proposed -

Delivering our Vision

Agenda Pack Page 465

ACSD0001/004
Principal Social Worker Appointment - attends
board and meetings with Director
Iain MacBeath - Proposed -

ACSD0001/005
Scheme of delegated authority
Iain MacBeath - Proposed -

ACSD0001/004
Reviewed on
ACSD0001/005
Reviewed on
ACSD0001/006
Reviewed on
ACSD0001/007
Reviewed on

ACSD0001/006
BIMT
Iain MacBeath - Proposed -

ACSD0001/008
Reviewed on

ACSD0001/007
ACS Board oversight quarterly
Iain MacBeath - Proposed -

ACSD0001/008
Info and Advice Cooperation Board - quarterly
Iain MacBeath - Proposed -

37
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

Appendix D – Draft Risks (for July 2019 Audit Committee)
Risk Ref
Risk Description
Corporate Priority

Transformation Programme
Current Risk
Score

TR0001
Corporate & Strategic Risk
Register
Strategic

Progress Update - Risks

Scott Crudgington

N/A
Probability:

Director of
Resources

Impact:

Control Measure
Owner - Status - Target Date
TR0001/001
Ensure programme office is resourced and
with external expertise can systematically
integrate projects into a single portfolio
Lynne Jennings - In Progress / Taking Effect -

Progress Update - Controls

Target Risk
Score

TR0001/001

N/A
Reviewed on
Probability:

Impact:

Agenda Pack Page 466

DRAFT RISK: The
programme to deliver
transformation throughout
the organization aims to
fundamentally change the
way the council operates to
provide significant savings
and improvements in the
way we deliver our services.
In the event that the council
does not change how it runs
(*), there is a risk that we will
have to find other ways to
reduce spending which
could result in the council
being unable to deliver
important services; a lack of
resilience to provide
business continuity,
undertake further change
and continue to meet
financial constraints and so
significantly impact on the
people and communities of
Hertfordshire. (*through
redesigning staff structures,
automating and digitising a
range of processes to
increase flexibility and
productivity; modernising
council workplaces;
streamlining back office and
front office processes and
ensuring activity (including
greater commercial activity)
enhances, drives and
supports effective service
delivery)

Risk owner

Created: 13/06/2019
Delivering our Vision

38
Report produced by JCADCORE © 2001-2019 JC Applications Development Ltd | www.jcad.com

Agenda Item
No:

10

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 AT 2:00PM
RISK FOCUS REPORT – PROPERTY/FACILITIES MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT
Report of the Director of Resources
Author:

Michael Cunningham - Head of Facilities Management

Executive Member: Ralph Sangster – Resources and Performance
1.

Purpose of report

1.1

To provide further information regarding the risk (and associated controls)
recorded on the Hertfordshire County Council Corporate and Strategic Risk
Register relating to risk number PROP0030. Following a recent audit, it has
been recognised that the County Council’s processes were insufficient to
ensure total compliancy, and improvement was required to the controls and
systems to confirm full compliancy for its portfolio moving forward.

1.2

To enable Members to understand the history, present position, likelihood and
potential impact of the risk, as well as the more comprehensive approach that
Hertfordshire County Council is taking to ensure that measures are in place to
mitigate and control the risk effectively.

2.

Summary

2.1

The original risk score was 48. Under a new Assistant Director for Property,
and a new Head of Facilities Management (FM) controls are being
implemented, and currently the risk has been reduced to a score to 32 with a
probability of ‘unlikely’ and an impact of ‘very high’. Further work is being
undertaken to meet the targeted score is 16, with a probability of ‘rare’ and an
impact of ‘very high’.

2.2

Property manages three broad categories of property assets:

2.3

Operational Sites
The sites under this category are: Rural, Fire and Rescue, Adult Care,
Libraries, Youth and Register Offices. The aforementioned properties fall
under the definition of ‘Operational Sites’. The Operational sites statutory
compliance is secured by the Council’s Measured Team Contracts (MTC).
These are fixed external contractors that have been procured under the
Council’s frameworks and are managed by the Facilities Management team
within Property.

1

Agenda Pack Page 467

2.4

2.5

2.6

Central and Shared
The four main office sites are categorised as ‘Central and Shared’ (SMS).
Compliancy for these sites sits under Facilities Management (FM)
responsibility.
Corporately Managed Sites
The remaining properties rest within the category of ‘Corporately Managed
sites’ (CMP). These sites are managed by third party agents, and various
housing associations. Under this category the responsibility of compliancy
falls under the individual agents managing the properties, and through the
various tenants within these properties. Compliancy is further determined by
individual lease and license arrangements.
Council Property Database
The County Council manages and owns a Council Property Database (CPD),
which contains information on the full portfolio of sites. Within the CPD leases
and licences are held as well as other relevant site information. Until now,
CPD has not captured site compliancy data; however it has the capability to
do so, and the CPD team are presently developing this functionality.

3.

Recommendations

3.1

The Audit Committee are asked to note:




The content of this report;
That assurance can be provided that external, as well as internal sites, are
managed in as far as compliance regulations, and that assessments are
recorded, and acted upon to appropriately to mitigate all risk; and
Contractual obligations are in place to ensure that third party agents
confirm the responsibility and monitoring of compliance adherence as
determined by the individual lease and contractual arrangements in place
with the County Council.

4.

Background

4.1

Two years ago, the FM team was a part of the Building Management Team
(BMT) covering aspects of both service delivery for properties and schools.
This involved repairs and maintenance and capital works for service delivery
assets and capital works for schools. Unfortunately, compliancy at that time
was not a primary focus.

4.2

As the FM team’s responsibilities started to grow which also included
management of the rural estate (to ensure their contractors were compliant
and using best practise), it was decided that the FM team would be best
placed to have direct management of their own team. Therefore, BMT and
FM split and became separate departments.

4.3

This restructure within Property created both a BMT department and an FM
department. The FM team then consisted of two parts, hard and soft FM.
The hard FM team had two compliance officers who looked after the main
2

Agenda Pack Page 468

SMS sites. At that time a single FM officer was tasked to focus on improving
compliance throughout the operational properties starting with Water Risk
Assessments. At this time Fire Risk Assessments (FRA’s) were not included
under any sort of scheduled scheme or program of works.
4.4

A schedule of properties was determined which included libraries, some youth
sites for which Property had accepted responsibility, and Adult Care, all to be
structured within a rolling programme.

4.5

Fire and Rescue (F&R) sites were excluded from the programme as a
separate ‘Blue Light Project’ was underway. Properties where a third party
was responsible for compliance were excluded, for example all residential and
supported living properties, as well as other segments of the Council’s
portfolio.

4.6

During the audit, 331 property assets, from CPD, were sampled under the
definition of ‘operational properties’. This however, did not present a true
picture under the definition stated in (2.3) as this sample included some of the
service delivery properties which are directly managed by the FM team. The
sample also included several of environment sites (managed by a third party),
some residential houses, and various plots of land and other sites that were
not managed by the FM team, or did not require compliance assurance.

4.7

Owning to the inconsistence of the samples used, it was decided that a
pragmatic approach should be taken. This was to first establish the actual
responsible organisation for compliance be it a third party, or the County
Council, and what health and safety might be required.

4.8

All properties that fell under the County Council’s responsibility were
scheduled on a rolling program for compliance checks to be confirmed and
where required updated. All other remaining properties that fell outside of the
County Council’s direct responsibility would require a systematic management
regimen to ensure that the third party or housing company had met their
compliance requirements. With regard to third parties, the degree of
responsibility between themselves and tenants is determined within any lease
and licensing agreement.

4.9

Presently CPD does not hold compliancy documents for the County Council’s
portfolio of properties. Nor does it instantly define lease and license
responsibilities. To determine such information, it would be necessary to
interrogate each document in detail.

5.

Risk Assurance & Controls
Compliancy Master Sheet (CMS)

5.1

Responding to the audit’s findings the County Council’s FM team has
established a Compliancy Task Force to tackle the present compliancy risk. A
separate compliancy data base tool was created; accompanied with a robust
and systematic approach to not only understand all positions in relation to
3

Agenda Pack Page 469

compliancy but deliver a total management system. The Task Force is
currently working closely with officers in the Rural, Estates and the CPD team
to ensure that compliancy is managed comprehensively in relation to
regulations that apply to buildings within the County Councils portfolio.
5.2

The initial approach was to use a data cleansed sample of all 2,318
properties. This data was derived from CPD. A live compliancy data base has
been created from this data cleansed list, presently entitled the compliancy
master sheet. FM is ensuring that all elements of Health and Safety,
compliance legislation and building regulation are captured, as well as
ensuring compliance under the current H&S Act 1974 & Management of
Health & Safety at Work Regulations 1992.

5.3

The elements that have been captured in the live database are as followed:
Primary:






Fire Risk Assessments
Water Risk Assessments
Gas certificates
Asbestos
Electrical Inspection condition certificates (PAT testing certificates)

Other:
 Oil certificates
 Air condition certificates (TM 44 A/C certificates, Air filter certificates)
 LOLER-goods lift & passenger lifts
 Lightening protection certificates
 Dividing doors certificates
 Oil intervention pumps
 Gate inspection
 Kitchen & commercial extraction certificates
 Smoke vent servicing certificates
 Evacuation chair certificates & Equality Audits 2010
The database not only identifies and captures the following elements but also
records the valid dates of the documents, as well as renewal dates.
5.4

Presently the database records each property under its specific category and
property type: i.e. Adult Care, Libraries, Youth, Operational site. This
database allows users the ability to filter categories down to determine the
appropriate agency that is responsible for each specific element of
compliancy. This knowledge is crucial as it definitively states whom is
responsible for total compliance, giving the council assurance and direction as
the duty holder to implement robust management systems for all parties
responsible; irrespective of being external or internal.

4

Agenda Pack Page 470

Compliancy Responsibility Structure
5.5

The Property department has been able to interpret the complex relationship
between those third parties managing multi-tenanted and single occupied
dwellings, the 23 Housing Associations, Property Management Organisations
and properties managed by the County Councils FM team relative to each
specific duty holder’s responsibility. The defined lines of responsibility have
been clarified; giving greater assurance that total compliance will be managed
and monitored systematically going forward.

5.6

Diagram 5.6.1 illustrates the relationship and whom the responsibly agent is in
accordance with each specific category of properties.

5

Agenda Pack Page 471

5.6.1 Diagram (A)

Agenda Pack Page 472

6

Additional Assurance Mitigating Risk
5.7

Operational Sites
The responsibility for compliance for properties within the category is with FM.
Dates of risk assessments and certificates are current being held within the
CMS. These dates are also recorded within the CPD along with the actual
copies of risk assessments and certificates.

5.8

Central and Shared
The responsibility for compliance for properties within the category is with FM.
Dates of risk assessments and certificates are current being held within the
CMS. These dates are also recorded within the CPD along with the actual
copies of risk assessments and certificates

5.9

Corporately Managed Sites
Properties under this category are managed by the County Council’s agents
Carter Jonas. Compliance Satisfaction Return Forms are requested annually
from tenants they manage. Additionally, on carrying out the annual inspection
Carter Jonas will request sight of compliance documents and highlight any
concerns. Under this category all high risk properties and those housing
Council staff will have assurance check carried out to ensure the specific
compliant documents are in place. Any remedials identified will also be
recorded and placed on an action plan for rectification. Along with this
verification, there will be a 10% sample taken on a rolling annual schedule;
acting as an additional check.

5.10

The CPD Team and FM Task Force managing the compliance database and
are collaborating to ensure all criteria is captured and will be reflected
accurately in the CPD. There is the capability to create an interface with any
third party organisation managing sites. The plan is to create an alert function
in CPD that will notify third parties of documents that will require a renewal.

6.

Risk Control Measures for Risk Register: PROP0030 - Corporate &
Strategic Risk Register - Corporate
In the event of a failure to comply with property related Health & Safety
compliance requirements across the council’s property portfolio (e.g.
completion and acting upon fire risk assessments, fixed wiring tests, legionella
testing, retaining up to date asbestos registers) there is a risk of injury, illness
and death to both service users and employees. The consequences of this
risk include service disruption; loss of reputation; fines from the HSE and
claims for compensation.

6.1

PROP0030/001 RISK
Asbestos register held at each site (where applicable) and contractors
instructed to refer to these whilst working with asbestos
Risk Mitigation:
Asbestos registers are held on each site in hard copy form as well as an
electronic copy.
7

Agenda Pack Page 473

6.2

PROP0030/002 RISK
Check compliance as per relevant management regimes; subject to nature of
occupation, staffing, contractual/property records
Risk Mitigation:
Compliancy is presently being verified and checked through to CPD and the
Compliancy database. Each element of responsibility is being captured
alongside the responsible agent and then recorded. Levels of responsibility
are being determined through understanding the Duty Holder relationship,
contractual arrangement and lease/licence details.

6.3

PROP0030/003 RISK
Works and/or identified improvements are carried out/implemented within a
reasonable time frame
Risk Mitigation:
The Risk Assessments programme is currently on-going with remedial works
being assessed on a priority basis.

6.4

PROP0030/004 RISK
Operational measures are in place at each location such as testing of fire
alarms and
fire drill
Risk Mitigation:
Operational measures are in place on each site resulting in fire alarm testing
and fire drills being conducted with results being recorded. This responsibility
presently falls on 3rd party contractors, In-house hard FM team and the
councils Health and Safety Department, Corporate and FM.

6.5

PROP0030/005 RISK
Staff are trained on fire evacuation procedures
Risk Mitigation:
All staff are trained on fire evacuation procedures with records held locally. A
rolling program exist managed by H&S Corporate Department as well as H&S
FM/Property.

6.6

PROP0030/006 RISK
Fixed wiring tests completed every 5 years and any requirements are acted
upon ASAP (dependent on severity)
Risk Mitigation:
5-year fixed wire testing program (EICR’s) are presently on a rolling program.
Remedials are RAG rated and rectified accordingly to their significance and
risk. This is being managed by the Hard FM, through energy initiatives, &
through MTC contracts.

8

Agenda Pack Page 474

6.7

PROP0030/007 RISK
Legionella risk assessments are up to date and regular testing is undertaken.
Risk Mitigation:
Legionella water testing program is current in place and is expected to be
completed in Oct 2019.

6.8

PROP0030/008
Full review of Adult Care Services assets being undertaken as part of the
“supported accommodation” review project
Risk Mitigation:
The supported accommodation review project has been completed. The
County Council received a report in May 2019 and will decide on the best
course of direction.

6.9

PROP0030/009
Use intelligence and information from the Council’s Health & Safety Manager
to ensure periodic audits are carried out as required
Risk Mitigation
Intelligent tools and a newly created strategy have been developed to identify
high risk properties that will be placed on a rolling audit schedule. The County
Council’s H&S Management Team along with the Compliancy Task Force
team are collectively implementing an intelligent auditing program that
includes 3rd party audits in-line with Duty of Care responsibilities.

7
7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Hertfordshire County Council Compliant Status
Fire Risk Assessments
The programme has moved forward substantially from where it was a few
months ago. The goal is to be accomplish 100% status of FM responsible
properties by October 2019.
Water Risk Assessments (WRA’s)
The WRA program has also significantly progressed since the initial audit
results. The expectation is that by October 2019, 100% of FM responsible
properties will be completed. These WRA are in place to mitigate the risk of
Legionella across the portfolio.
Electrical Inspection Condition Test
These are electrical condition reports that are required because electrical
installations deteriorating over time. It is recommended that they should be
inspected between 3-5 years. There is presently an ongoing program
managed by the Hard FM team.
Gas Certification
This area of compliancy is managed by the Managed Term Contracts.
Properties are issued with an annual GAS CP12 certificate and all appliances
are serviced under SFG20. Commercial Properties are issued an annual GAS
9

Agenda Pack Page 475

CP17 certificate as well as service the appliances to SFG20 standards.
SFG20 define standards for building maintenance and those responsible for
all governing parameters that they work within.
7.5

Asbestos (2006)
Asbestos remains at 100% compliant across all operational sites inclusive of
the main SMS sites. Records are on site in the form of hard copies and
electronic. In addition, a Competent Person is available to give key guidance
and site Asbestos Management for those who may have planned work that
may encounter any (ACMS)- Asbestos Containing Material. The Asbestos
Team have created a priority list of sites that are recognising any impending
and required works that are needed to mitigate risk.
Additional Statutory Compliance

7.6

The County Council’s statutory compliance for its 210 plus operational
properties is managed by its Managed Term Contracts. The County Council
stands at 100 % compliant; these robust checks are currently being scheduled
through the County Council’s Help Desk in the form of Preventative Planned
Maintenance. The County Council maintains assurance from the receipt of
confirmation of works received in their monthly contract meeting.

7.7

To instil assurance and confidence of works, going forward the management
of this area of works will be inspected through a random sample program
managed by the FM team. In addition, the County Council plans to create an
individual interface that links each Managed Term Contractor direct to the
CPD, enabling the synchronisation of data.

7.8

7.9

PAT Testing - Portable Appliance Testing
Electrical appliances are routinely checked for safety. The formal term for the
process is "in-service” inspection and testing of electrical devices. This
remains as a rolling schedule under third-party management.
Summary of progress to date
% complete

Operational sites
-HCC responsible
Current
Mar 2020
94%
100%
(250)
(266*)

Central and Shared
-HCC responsible
Current
Mar 2020
100%
100%
(10)
(10)

Asbestos

93%
(247)

100% (266*)

100%
(10)

100%
(10)

Water Risk

78%
(208)

100%
(266*)

100%
(10)

100%
(10)

Electrical
Inspection

45%
(121)

100%
(266*)

100%
(10)

100%
(10)

Gas inspection

98%
(177)

100% by Oct
2019
(266*)

100%
(10)

100%
(10)

Fire Risk

10

Agenda Pack Page 476

Denoted in brackets () is the number of properties
*326 total properties (60 excluded as not applicable e.g. waste site, land etc).
7.10

As has been previously highlighted the responsibility for compliance for the
Corporately Managed Estate it is a tenants responsibility, rather than the
Councils, to ensure compliance. Following discussion with the Assurance
Team it was agreed to introduce additional measures to provide some comfort
that the Council tenants were aware of their responsibilities and had actioned
accordingly. Hertfordshire County Council agents, Carter Jonas, have
therefore written to all tenants to advise them of their obligations and request
that they confirm that they have undertaken their responsibilities. Additionally,
whilst already queried as part of the annual inspection, a compliance form is
now taken on each inspection to ensure and document that key compliance
and insurance documents are seen.

7.11

Current status from Carter Jonas is set out below. They have confirmed that
they expect to be able to move to 100% ‘Compliance confirmation received’
by the end of March 2020 for those properties recently included in their
contract or where confirmation has been requested but not received.
Corporately Managed Sites – Tenants (Carter Jonas undertaking compliance checks)
Current
Compliance confirmation received

25% (116)

Compliance confirmation requested awaiting response from
tenant
Added to CJ contract – being actioned

55% (260)

Sub total
Mar 2020

472

Additional sites recently added through tenancy changes
(children’s Centres)

75

Total Compliance

100% (547)

20% (96)

932 total Corporately Managed Properties (minus Land only 385 assets)
547 to be compliance checked.
8.

Conclusion

8.1

The County Council recognises the present position it’s in, as well as the
importance of achieving 100% compliancy. It is working with all departments
and third parties to improve compliance monitoring across the County
Council’s assets. The County Council will need to invest additional resource to
meet this objective successfully.

11

Agenda Pack Page 477

8.2

The County Council intends to strategically manage compliance in a
reasonably cost effective and pragmatic way; weighing up its of Duty of Care
with the encouraging and monitoring the achievement of compliance by third
parties. Ensuring compliance whilst not taking on additional and unnecessary
responsibility; and in turn increasing the County Council’s risk and costs.

8.3

Risk management is being managed appropriately along with the formation of
a strategy designed to systematically manage the total risk. Compliance is
therefore moving in a positive direction relative to its past position.

12

Agenda Pack Page 478

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No:

11

AUDIT COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 AT 2:00PM

END-OF-YEAR REPORT ON THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT SERVICE AND
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2018/19
Report of the Director of Resources
Author:

Rob Thurlow, Senior Accountant (01992 555061)

Executive Member: Ralph Sangster, Executive Member, Resources and Performance
1.

Purpose of Report

1.1.

The CIPFA Prudential Code and CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury
Management in the Public Sector require the County Council to produce an
annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and assess
performance indicators and the treasury function throughout the year.

1.2.

This report fulfils the requirement to provide an End-of-Year report on
performance against the prudential indicators which were specified in the
Integrated Plan, Part D approved by the County Council on 20 February 2018.

1.3.

The report provides a summary of treasury management performance and
activity for the financial year ended 31 March 2019, and follows on from the MidYear report to Audit Committee as at 30 September 2018. Treasury management
performance indicators and narrative are also reported to Resources and
Performance Panel within the quarterly budget monitor.

1.4.

A glossary of technical terms used in this report can be found at Appendix B.

2.

Summary

2.1.

The County Council has been compliant with the Prudential and Treasury
Management Indicators set out in the Integrated Plan.

2.2.

The total interest earned on Treasury Investments was £2.395m, exceeding the
budget of £1.392m.

2.3.

The performance of the UK economy has been subdued, with annual GDP
growth of 1.4%, which was below the long-term average. Significant uncertainty
around the outcome of the EU withdrawal, and weak global economic confidence
weighed on economic growth. This is analysed in further detail in section 6.

2.4.

The County Council has continued to operate a diverse investment portfolio.
Pooled fund investments are held for the long-term to mitigate capital volatility
and generate income. Daily liquidity needs are met using a variety of instant1

Agenda Pack Page 479

access bank and Money Market instruments, along with short term lending to and
from other local authorities.
2.5.

An additional disbursement from the Administrators of the Icelandic investment
with Kaupthing, Singer & Friedlander [KSF] was made in August 2018. No
further funds have been received for the Icelandic investments with Heritable.
The recovery to date from these particular investments stands at 85.75% for KSF
and 98.00% for Heritable respectively.

2.6.

As previously reported in the mid-year Treasury Management report, a control
failure occurred in June 2018 as a result of an operational error. The procedural
changes and improvements implemented as a result of this error were reviewed
by Internal Audit as part of the annual review of Treasury Management
arrangements and no further recommendations were made. Section 5 provides
further details.

2.7.

£30m of existing long-term loans were refinanced during the year. In addition,
new long-term borrowing of £20m was arranged during the year. These actions
reduce risk exposure and create revenue savings. Section 10 provides further
details.

2.8.

There was no short-term borrowing during the year.

3.

Recommendations

3.1.

Members are invited to note the Treasury Management End-of-Year report.

4.

Background

4.1.

The County Council operates its treasury management function in accordance
with the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury
Management in the Public Sector. The Codes require the Council to set
prudential indicators for its capital expenditure and treasury management
activities prior to the start of each financial year.

4.2.

The Codes also require that regular reports are provided reviewing performance
and compliance at the end of each financial year and on a half-yearly basis. In
addition to these reports, performance against the prudential indicators and
treasury management activities are reported to Cabinet as part of the quarterly
budget monitoring report.

5.

Control Failure

5.1.

As reported in the mid-year Treasury Management report, there was a control
failure on 4th June 2018 on the renewal of a £5m loan to another local authority.
With a renewal of a loan, the borrower repays the interest due on the original
loan but retains the principal as a new loan. In this case however, an additional
£5m principal was advanced to the borrower in error. With the support of
Barclays Bank, the £5m was recovered within 48 hours, and the financial impact
was approximately £110 of lost interest on overnight balances.

2

Agenda Pack Page 480

5.2.

Internal processes were subsequently reviewed and improvements were made.
The annual Internal Audit review of treasury management noted that “there is a
robust control environment in place” and that “appropriate improvements have
been made to further strengthen the control environment” following this error. No
recommendations for further improvement were made.

6.

Arlingclose Economic Review

6.1.

The County Council’s Treasury management activities in this period were
undertaken in an environment marked by uncertainty over the UK’s future
relationship with the EU. Geopolitical tensions, in the form of protectionist US
trade policies and tensions with China which has the potential to impact wider
trade relationships contribute to a broader base of economic uncertainty.

6.2.

Despite a decline in household, business and investor sentiment in the face of
political uncertainty, the UK economy continued to grow throughout the year,
although at 1.4% this was below the long-term trend of around 2%.

6.3.

UK inflation has been above the Bank of England’s 2% target for much of the
year, but had fallen to 1.9% by March 2019.

6.4.

The labour market has also shown resilience, with the headline unemployment
rate at 3.8% in the three months to April 2019. UK wage growth was stronger
than the previous year, and was positive in real-terms throughout the year.

6.5.

Concern about the potential inflationary pressures as a result of continuing
steady wage growth prompted the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) of the
Bank of England to increase the official interest rate to 0.75% from 0.50% in
August 2018. The Bank has indicated that the outlook is for further rate
increases over the coming year, but that economic performance will be a key
determinate of the timing for any increase. The action to increase rates during
2018 also gives the Bank more flexibility to provide economic stimulus at a later
date if required.

6.6.

Graph 1 (below) provides the Arlingclose (the Council’s treasury adviser) interest
rate forecast for the period March 2019 to June 2022. This indicates their view
that the Bank of England is now unlikely to sanction further interest rate rises for
the foreseeable future, as a general weakening in global economic performance
is forecast. Arlingclose contend that despite the Bank’s optimism for the
economic outlook conditions will not support an increase in rates.
Graph 1: Arlingclose Interest Rate Forecast for Base Rate

3

Agenda Pack Page 481

Arlingclose's Interest Rate Forecast
1.40%
1.20%
1.00%
0.80%
0.60%
0.40%
0.20%

Jun-22

Apr-22

Feb-22

Oct-21

Dec-21

Jun-21

Aug-21

Apr-21

Feb-21

Oct-20

Dec-20

Jun-20

Aug-20

Apr-20

Feb-20

Oct-19

Dec-19

Jun-19

6.7.

Aug-19

0.00%

Graph 2 provides the Arlingclose forecast for 20-year gilt yields, compared to the
market implied forecast. This supports the above view that rates are likely to
remain low overall. This also indicates that long-term borrowing rates are likely
to remain low, along with the range of uncertainty for future PWLB borrowing
rates.
Graph 2: Arlingclose 20-Year Gilt Projection

7.

Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators

7.1.

The Prudential Code requires the County Council to set and monitor a range of
prudential indicators relating to borrowing. The objectives of the Prudential Code
are to ensure, within a clear framework, that capital investment plans for local
authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that treasury
management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional practice.

7.2.

The County Council measures and manages its exposure to treasury
management risks using a range of indicators related to interest rate exposure,
refinancing risk and liquidity risk. In addition, treasury activity is measured against
a range of performance indicators related to security, liquidity and yield.
4

Agenda Pack Page 482

7.3.

Appendix A provides evidence of compliance with the prudential and treasury
management indicators and reports on treasury activity performance indicators.

8.

Treasury Investments

8.1.

In setting the 2018/19 TMSS, the County Council approved a Lending Policy that
continued to enable flexibility in use of investment instruments whilst maintaining
security and liquidity of investments. The 2018/19 Lending Policy was
unchanged from the 2017/18 TMSS.

8.2.

The Lending Policy continued to reflect the on-going risks in the wider economy
and banking institutions. The primary considerations when placing investments
continues to be the security and liquidity of the County Council’s funds and only
once both of these factors have been taken into account will the yield on
investment be considered. Long term borrowing is only considered when it
becomes necessary to avoid a prolonged short term overdraft position.

8.3.

During the year to 31 March 2019, investments have been held in a range of
instruments detailed in Table 1.
Table 1: Counterparties and Investment Instruments 2018/19
Counterparty

Investment Instruments

Local Authorities

Fixed Term

UK Banks / Building Society

Call / Notice Accounts and Fixed
Term Deposits

AAA rated Money Market Funds

Call / Notice

Pooled Fund – Property

Notice

Pooled Fund – Bond

Notice

Pooled Fund – Equity

Notice

Pooled Fund – Multi-asset

Notice

Debt Management Office

Account Deposit Facility [DMADF]

8.4.

Table 2 (below) provides a summary of the value of investment instruments
outstanding as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 and the percentage of
investment instruments compared to the overall investment portfolio.
Table 2: Investment Balances
As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019
Counterparties

Investment
Instrument

31/03/2018

31/03/2019

£m

£m

%

%

Local Authorities

Fixed Term

23.00

16.3

45.00

25.9

UK Banks / Building Society

Call / Notice

9.97

7.0

22.15

12.7

Money Market Funds

Instant Access

61.03

43.1

59.24

34.1

5

Agenda Pack Page 483

Money Market Funds

Notice

17.50

12.4

17.50

10.0

Pooled Fund – Property

Notice

10.00

7.1

10.00

5.8

Pooled Fund – Bond

Notice

10.00

7.1

10.00

5.8

Pooled Fund – Equity

Notice

6.00

4.2

6.00

3.4

Pooled Fund – Multi-asset

Notice

4.00

2.8

4.00

2.3

141.50

100.0

173.89

100.0

TOTAL

8.5.

Table 2 reflects the diversified investment portfolio being operated by the council
within the bounds of the TMSS.

8.6.

Cash balances increased by £32.39m between 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2019. Factors which contributed to the increased cash balance include an
increase of £27m in the amount of Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Capital
funding held in the Council’s accounts, and £9m of 2019/20 grant funding
received before 31 March 2019. It also includes additional borrowing of £20m
agreed in March 2019. Excluding these factors, the Council’s underlying cash
balance reduced by approximately £24m during the year.

8.7.

£0.45m of interest earned on LEP balances was apportioned to the LEP at year
end.

8.8.

Table 3 (overleaf) shows the number and value of maturities and new
investments in fixed term instruments during the year.
Table 3: Value of Maturities and New Investments
1 April 2018 – 31 March 2019
Instrument Type

Investment
No.

95 Day Notice Account
Fixed Deposit – Other Authority

8.9.

£m

Maturities
No.

2

10

0

23

162.09

21

Fixed Deposit – Bank

1

DMADF

9

TOTAL

35

5
106.70

283.79

0

£m
0
(140.09)
0

9

(106.70)

30

(246.79)

A total of £30m continues to be invested over the long term in a number of
diversified pooled funds. At 31 March 2019, the net market value of the
investment in these funds was approximately £30.55m. This represents a
reduction of £156k on the valuation at 31 March 2018. The changes in market
value are fluid depending on market conditions and are therefore not recognised
as gains or losses in the financial statements.

8.10. Interest rates for investments have ranged between 0.25% and 1.10% for fixed
durations of up to 364 days. Interest rates on variable investments were as low
as 0.37% at the start of the year and were as high as 0.86% during the year.
6

Agenda Pack Page 484

Rates increased following the decision by the MPC to increase base rate in
August 2018, but by year end were becoming subdued as a consequence of
continued political and economic uncertainty.
8.11. Table 4 provides a summary of the treasury activity in the year to 31 March 2019,
with prior year values for comparison.

Table 4: Treasury Activity - 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019
Measure
Average size of portfolio (excluding Iceland
investments)
Weighted average term (fixed term only)
Average rate earned
Interest earned

2018/19

2017/18

£171.82m

£144.88m

41 days

64 days

1.40%

1.26%

£2.395m

£1.830m

8.12. The overall rate of return peaked in the fourth quarter at 1.55%, compared to
1.35% in the first quarter. Returns declined during the second quarter, at 1.30%
before recovering to 1.41% in the third quarter. The average return for the year
was 1.40%
8.13. The variability in the overall rate of return reflects a number of factors, including
changes in overall balances, and decisions about liquidity risk management
which impacted the choice of instruments used:
Choice of Instruments
The chart below shows the average exposure to different types of instruments in
each month of the year. This reflects decisions on instrument choices made with
reference the expected liquidity demands.

7

Agenda Pack Page 485

The chart demonstrates a marked reduction in the proportion of funds held in
liquidity instruments, during the second half of the year. The increase in the
proportion of investments held in longer term investments, including notice and
loans to Local Authorities represents a more efficient use of the cash surplus,
which have on average lower credit risk exposure and higher-rates of return than
liquid investments. This approach was possible as a result of improved
forecasting of the expected use of cash for LEP projects and the County
Council’s capital programme.
The reduction in average balance during the second half of the year results from
cash used for the capital programme, and £10.77m cost of refinancing £30m of
LOBO loans in November/December. The interest foregone on the £10.77m is
significantly outweighed by the interest cost saving of the refinancing
arrangement. Further details of the refinancing are reported in Section 10.
The DMADF was used during periods of peak balances, in order to avoid
excessive exposure to Liquidity Funds. DMADF pays low rates, but has the
advantage that a deposit can be made for any duration of the depositors
choosing, improving the ability to match maturities to planned cash outflows. The
result of this approach is an increased bias towards lower yielding investments.
8.14. The total interest earned on treasury investments during the year is £2.395m,
which exceeded the budget by £1.003m.
8.15. The pooled fund investments continue to make a significant contribution to
overall interest income. The return for the year on pooled fund investments was
4.71% per annum compared to 4.67% last year. The pooled funds have
continued to perform strongly and returns exceed the 4% target level.
8.16. The rate of return for the year (1.40%) includes underlying returns of 0.69% for
the investment portfolio excluding the pooled fund investments. The 0.69% rate
8

Agenda Pack Page 486

compares to 0.37% achieved in 2017/18 and exceeds the average of the 7-day
LIBID benchmark of 0.51% by 0.18%.
8.17. The pooled funds have experienced some variations in capital value during the
year. This variability is expected as the nature of these types of investments in
bond, equity and multi-asset funds means that income yield and fund values are
influenced by market movements. It is important to recognise the long-term
nature of these investments in mitigating this expected volatility.
8.18. There was a small capital gain on these pooled fund investments as at 31 March
2019. Appendix A, Section 3 provides more details of how the Council intends to
utilise and balance these instruments alongside its existing investments with
regards to management of security, liquidity and yield.
8.19. With the exception of the breach described in Section 5, all treasury management
activity undertaken during the period complied with the approved Treasury
Management Strategy, the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management
and the relevant legislative provisions.
9.

Icelandic deposits

9.1.

Of the original four Icelandic banks in which the County Council had deposits, the
outstanding Landsbanki claim was sold in 2013/14 resulting in a total recovery of
92%. The outstanding Glitnir claim was resolved in February 2015 resulting in a
total recovery of 101% of the amounts originally deposited.

9.2.

The recovery rate of 101% for Glitnir reflects exchange rate gains following the
conversion of disbursements held in Escrow in Icelandic Krona into £ Sterling.

9.3.

As of 31st March 2019, repayments for the investments in Heritable total 98.0p in
the £. The Administrators, Ernst and Young (EY), are not forecasting any
additional distribution to creditors. The claim cannot be closed as a reserve has
been retained to cover administrator costs and expenses until outstanding legal
matters are resolved.

9.4.

A repayment of 0.25p in the £ was announced by the administrator (EY) for the
investments in Kaupthing, Singer & Friedlander (KSF) and paid in August 2018.
A further dividend of 0.40p in the £ is expected in June 2019.

9.5.

EY estimates that the total return will be between 86.5p and 87.0p in the £.
Recovery as at 31 March 2019 stood at 85.75p in the £.

9.6.

Table 5 provides details of dividends received to 31 March 2019 together with
current information about the anticipated value and percentage recovery for
Icelandic investments.
Table 5: Icelandic bank deposits at 31 March 2019
ALL Claims
Bank

Original
Deposit

Recovered
at

9

Total expected
distribution

Agenda Pack Page 487

Claim
Status

31/03/2019
£m

£m

10.

£m

%

Glitnir

7.00

7.05

7.05

100.71

Closed

Landsbanki

10.00

9.23

9.23

92.30

Closed

Heritable Bank

7.00

6.88

6.88

98.00

Open

KSF

4.00

3.52

3.58

86.75

Open

TOTAL

28.0

26.67

26.74

95.49

Borrowing
Long Term Borrowing

10.1. The difference between planned capital expenditure and capital funding (from
revenue or capital receipts and specific capital grants) is known as the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR), and is met via borrowing. Borrowing can be
funded from externally sourced loans, for example from the Public Works Loans
Board (PWLB), or internally from the council’s own resources.
10.2. Table 6 (overleaf) shows total long term borrowing outstanding at 31 March 2019,
the future maturity profile of borrowing and an analysis of sources of borrowing
shown as a percentage of the total.
Table 6: Borrowing Maturity Profile as at 31 March 2019
Sources of Borrowing

Total
£m
Borrowing at 31
March 2019

PWLB 1
£m
%

LOBO 2
£m
%

Commercial 3
£m
%

278.78

153.28

54.98

19.40

6.96

106.10

38.06

Maturing in 2019/20

2.68

2.68

0.96

0.00

0.0

0.00

0.0

Maturing in 2020/21

5.32

5.32

1.91

0.00

0.0

0.00

0.0

Maturing later

258.53

145.28

52.11

19.40

6.96

106.10

38.06

Average interest rate

4.38%

4.30%

4.74%

4.43%

1

Borrowing sourced from the government’s Public Works Loans Board
2 & 3 Borrowing sourced from commercial banks

10.3. At 31 March 2019 there was a total of £278.78m long term borrowing
outstanding. £153.28m (55%) was sourced from the government’s Public Works
Loan Board and £125.50 (45%) was sourced from commercial banks.
10.4. New Long Term Borrowing was arranged during the year. A total of £50m of new
loans were taken from PWLB. Of this £30m was borrowed to refinance two
LOBO loans which were repaid early during the year. The remaining £20m was
10

Agenda Pack Page 488

borrowed to mitigate a portion of the County Council’s accumulated unfunded
borrowing requirement.
10.5. The majority of the County Council’s loans were arranged prior to April 2009, and
consequently interest rates for these long-term loans reflect historically higher
rates than are currently available. The refinancing and new loans agreed in
2018/19 have resulted in a lower average rate of interest payable. The average
rate of interest for total borrowing has reduced to 4.38% compared to 4.61% in
2017/18.
LOBO PREPAYMENT
10.6. The Commercial Loan portfolio of £155.5m at the start of the year included
£49.40m of Lender Option Borrower Option loans, which is a product which
confers on the lender the right to increase the interest rate. In the event that this
happens the borrower has the right to repay the loan without penalty.
10.7. The long-term borrowing portfolio is kept under review in consultation with the
County Council’s treasury advisor Arlingclose to identify opportunities to reduce
borrowing costs by restructuring existing loans. Arlingclose identified an
opportunity to negotiate the repayment of two loans with Royal Bank of Scotland
(RBS) on terms which would offer value to the County Council.
10.8. Following negotiations agreement was reached to repay the £30m of loans, with
a break cost of £10.77m. Break costs represent compensation to the lender for
the loss of future interest income. In this case the break cost was agreed at a
significant discount to the fair value of the loans (£57.91m as at 31 March 2018).
10.9. The break cost is written down of the remaining life of the loan repaid – this is
reflected in the “premium” line in Table 7 (overleaf).
10.10. The RBS loans were on a maturity basis, with 60 years remaining, and at an
average rate of 4.13%. These were refinanced with a single £30m 21 year loan
from PWLB, at a rate of 2.16%.
10.11. This loan is on an Equal Instalments of Principal basis (EIP) which means that
the loan will be repaid in equal semi-annual amounts across the 21 year life.
This structure means that the amount of interest payable each year reduces with
reducing loan balance.
10.12. Near-term savings of the refinancing arrangement are shown overleaf:
Table 7: LOBO Prepayment Savings

Annual Interest Original
New Loan
Premium
Cost/(Saving)

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
(0.27)
(1.24)
(1.24)
(1.24)
(1.24)
(1.24)
0.20
0.63
0.60
0.57
0.54
0.51
0.17
0.17
0.17
0.17
0.17
0.17
0.10
(0.44)
(0.47)
(0.50)
(0.53)
(0.56)
11

Agenda Pack Page 489

10.13. These savings will continue in the longer-term, but the long-term saving is
sensitive to interest rate changes and so is less certain. The original loans had a
further 60 years to run; the combination of the shorter duration, repayment
structure and lower rate of interest means that the long-term savings will be
significant.
10.14. The refinancing arrangement also reduces the County Council’s exposure to
interest rate risk and refinancing risk.
10.15. Interest rate risk had crystallised on these loans, because the loan rate was
substantially higher than the prevailing interest rate and it was not possible to
refinance the loans on affordable terms without the bank offering a discount.
10.16. The nature of the Lender’s option on the loan meant that it was likely that the
lender would only call the option in the event that market rates had increased
beyond the rates on the existing loans. In this event the County Council would
either repay the loan from cash (foregoing interest income), look to refinance at
market rates or accept the lender’s new terms (increasing interest cost).
10.17. As a result of refinancing this uncertainty and risk of additional cost is eliminated.

NEW BORROWING
10.18. Because the cost of long-term borrowing remains significantly higher than the
return on short-term investments, the County Council has made prudent use of
its resources to fund an element of its borrowing requirement from surplus cash
balances held in respect of its reserves, known as “internal borrowing”. This has
allowed the County Council to maintain a lower level of external borrowing, which
has in turn minimised the pressure on revenue budgets from interest payments.
10.19. This is a prudent approach which reduces the cost of interest paid on borrowing
in the short term. In the longer term, as reserves and provisions are used it will
be necessary to meet the accumulated borrowing requirement using long-term
loans from external sources.
10.20. This deferred borrowing results in Interest Rate Risk; the risk that interest rates in
future will be higher than borrowing at current rates. The County Council’s
internal borrowing as at 31 March 2018 was approximately £300m and additional
borrowing funded Capital Expenditure of £24m was incurred during the year.
10.21. Based on an accumulated borrowing need of £300m, the County Council’s
exposure to Interest Rate Risk in respect of deferred borrowing is approximately
£750k per 0.25% change in interest rate.
10.22. In order to mitigate the impact of this risk, a new PWLB loan was agreed in
March 2019. £20m was borrowed from PWLB on an EIP basis. This loan runs
for 20 years at a rate of 2.03%. This rate is significantly lower than the forecast
12

Agenda Pack Page 490

for long-term rates, and projections indicate that the cost of carry in the shortterm will be outweighed by the long-term saving in terms of future interest
payments.
11.

Short Term Borrowing

11.1. No short-term borrowing was required during the year.
12.

Hertfordshire Police and Crime Commissioner – Treasury Management

12.1. The Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) contracts with Hertfordshire County
Council to deliver its Treasury Management services.
12.2. A separate treasury management strategy is maintained for the PCC. Data
concerning the Police’s cashflow is provided to the County Council’s treasury
officers and any surplus cashflow is invested in accordance with the investment
criteria outlined in the PCC’s Treasury Management Strategy. The Police’s
cashflow and investment portfolio is maintained separately from the County
Council’s funds.
12.3. The reporting arrangements for the PCC are similar to the County Council’s. An
annual treasury management strategy is prepared before the start of each
financial year, with mid-year and end-year reports subsequently delivered on
treasury management activities and delivery of the strategy. Quarterly reports are
also provided according to the schedule of meeting dates provided by the PCC.

13

Agenda Pack Page 491

APPENDIX A: PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2018/19
1.

Capital financing Indicators

Indicator

Agenda Pack Page 492

1

2

3

Description

Integrated
Plan Ref.

2018/19
IP

2018/19
Q1

2018/19
Q2

2018/19
Q3

2018/19
Q4

Indicators 1 to 3 demonstrate the affordability and sustainability of the capital programme. The projections for financial
years 2019/20 to 2021/22 are set out in the Integrated Plan at the reference shown in the table below.
Capital Expenditure
Monitors capital expenditure for 2018/19
against the projections set out in the
Integrated Plan
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
Monitors the Council’s underlying need to
borrow for capital purposes for 2018/19
against the projections set out in the
Integrated Plan
Ratio of financing costs to net revenue
stream
Monitors the percentage of revenue budget
set aside to service capital financing costs
(borrowing costs net of lending income) for
2018/19 against projections set out in the
Integrated Plan.

2.4
Table 1

£244.02m

£215.34m

£187.04m

£186.61m

£172.20m

2.13
Table 3

£642.16m

£633.42m

£614.50m

£610.97m

£606.79m

2.14
Table 4

2.61%

1.71%

1.65%

1.56%

1.55%

14

Indicator

Description

Integrated
Plan Ref.

2018/19
IP

2018/19
Q1

2018/19
Q2

2018/19
Q3

2018/19
Q4

Agenda Pack Page 493

Treasury Position:
The Treasury Management Prudential Indicators are set to contain lending and borrowing activities within approved limits.
The indicators are set at a level that will provide enough flexibility for effective treasury management whilst managing the
risk of a negative impact on the Council’s overall financial position in the event of adverse movements in interest rates or
borrowing decisions. The indicators are also used to demonstrate that Net Borrowing does not exceed the Capital
Financing Requirement. The projections for financial years 2019/20-2021/22 are set out in the Integrated Plan.
Net Borrowing
4A Monitors actual borrowing less actual
NA
NA
£75.34m
£79.57m
£110.77m
£104.88m
lending
Net Borrowing Less than CFR
4B
NA
NA




Comparison of net borrowing to CFR
Borrowing:
Indicators 5 and 6 control the overall level of borrowing. The limits for 2018/19 to 2020/21 are set out in the
Integrated Plan. The Authorised Limit is the maximum amount that may beyond which borrowing is prohibited without
Member Approval. The Operational Boundary is an estimate for the external debt for the financing year – this is not a limit
but an indicator to ensure the authorised limit is not breached.

5
6

Total Borrowing in Place at Quarter End
Maximum Borrowing Exposure in Quarter

Borrowing in £ at Q End

£258.78m

£258.78m

£258.78m

£278.78m

Quarter Maximum in £

£258.78m

£258.78m

£258.78m

£278.78m

Limit

£545m

£545m

£545m

£545m

Complied?









Indicator

£515m

£515m

£515m

£515m

Complied?









Authorised Limit
Compliance Indicator
Operational Boundary
Compliance indicator

6.5 Table 10

15

2.

Treasury Management Indicators

Indicator

Agenda Pack Page 494

7

8

9A
9B
9C
9D
9E
9F

Description

Integrated
Plan Ref.

2018/1
9
Budg
et

2018/19
Q1

2018/19
Q2

2018/19
Q3

Interest Rate Exposure:
Indicators 7 and 8 limit the Council’s exposure to both fixed and variable interest rate movements.
The limits for 2018/19 to 2021/22 are set out in the Integrated Plan.
Upper limit on Fixed Interest rates (against maximum
position)
6.7
£445.00m
£258.78m £258.53m
£258.53m
Table
Monitors the limits set for 2018/19 for the volume and value of
(LIMIT)
12
the (lending)/borrowing portfolios that may be committed for
fixed interest rate investments or borrowing
Upper limits on variable interest rates (against maximum
position)
6.7
£133.50m
Monitors the net limits set for 2018/19 for the volume and value Table
(£183.44m) (£179.45m) (178.25m)
(LIMIT)
of the (lending) /borrowing portfolios that may be committed for
12
variable interest rate investments or borrowing

2018/19
Q4

£278.53m

(£174.14m)

Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing (against maximum position):
Indicator 9 limits the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing in the same period.
The indicators are set relatively high to give the council enough flexibility to respond to opportunities to repay or reschedule
debt during the financial year, while remaining within the parameters set by the indicators.
Under 12 months
12 months to 2 years
2 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years
10 years to 20 years
20 years to 30 years

6.8
Table 12

9G 30 years and above
16

50%
50%
60%
80%
85%
90%

0.00%
0.10%
2.09%
5.60%
7.10%
9.88%

0.10%
0.00%
2.28%
5.41%
7.10%
9.88%

0.65%
0.55%
3.93%
10.10%
12.18%
8.94%

0.09%
1.04%
1.97%
7.17%
12.10%
18.55%

100%

75.24%

75.24%

63.65%

59.08%

Indicator

10

Description

Integrated
Plan Ref.

2018/1
9
Budg
et

2018/19
Q1

2018/19
Q2

2018/19
Q3

2018/19
Q4

Investments greater than 364 days (against maximum limit):
Indicator 10 measures the Council’s exposure to investing for periods greater than one year.
This indicator is required to ensure that the Council is aware of the cashflow implications for long term investments.
This includes deposits at risk in Icelandic Banks.
6.9
Investments greater than 364 days (Maximum Limit)*
£50m
£30.61m
£30.60m
£30.60m
£30.60m
Table 13
*Includes Pooled Fund investments, which can be withdrawn in less than one year but the intention is to hold for the long-term to
minimise the risk of capital value volatility, as agreed at Full Council on the 25th November 2014.

Agenda Pack Page 495
17

3.

Treasury Management Performance and Activity Measures

Indicator

Integrated
Plan Ref.

Description

2018/19
Q1

2018/19
Q2

2018/19
Q3

2018/19
Q4

Agenda Pack Page 496

The CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice requires the Council to set performance indicators to assess the
treasury function. Group A measures performance for “Security, Liquidity and Yield” and Group B measures the
performance of “Operational Activities”
GROUP A: Security, Liquidity and Yield
Average Investment Portfolio
7.3
£164.10m £194.58m £170.77m £157.45m
Table 15
Monitors the average amount HCC has had invested in third parties.
Average borrowing portfolio
6.3
Table 9 £258.78m £258.78m £248.99m £262.56m
Monitors the average amount HCC has as long term borrowing during
the quarter
Security Indicator: Average Credit Rating of Investments held
Section
3.63
3.56
3.79
3.80
Measured on a 1 to 10 scale, where 1 is a very good Credit Rating,
6.10
i.e., government guaranteed
Liquidity Indicator: Weighted Average Maturity of investments held
Section
15.65
34.30
45.44
41.24
6.10
Measures the liquidity/accessibility of investments in average days
Yield Indicator: Interest Earned*

7.3
Table 15

Monitors the interest earned on HCC investments. Shown as the
actual amount (in quarter) and equivalent annual percentage of
amount invested
Yield Indicator: Interest Paid

7.2
Table 14

Monitors the interest earned on HCC investments. Shown as the
actual amount (in quarter) and equivalent annual percentage of
amount borrowed

£0.574m

£0.612m

£0.578m

£0.608m

1.40%

1.26%

1.35%

1.54%

£3.09m

£3.12m

£2.98m

£2.93m

4.79%

4.84%

4.10%

4.26%

*includes Pooled Fund investments, see Yield section below for further information for rate excluding Pooled Funds
18

Security, Liquidity and Yield
Security - Exposure to Risk
The Treasury Management Strategy was approved on 20 February 2018 as Part C of the Integrated Plan. This maintained the
range of investment types approved for use in 2017/18. The approved instruments were last changed in 2014/15 to enable greater
diversification of the investment portfolio; these changes introduced greater flexibility in use of investment instruments whilst
continuing to maintain security and liquidity of investments.
The following diagrams illustrate the credit rating breakdown of all investment instruments by credit rating grade and investment
type for the Council’s investment portfolio as at 31 March 2019.

Agenda Pack Page 497
Investments shown as “Unrated” in diagram 1 relate the 6 strategic pooled fund investments (total value £30m) which the Council
holds. These funds are not credit rated but are assessed and recommended by Arlingclose. The credit-worthiness is assessed by
reference to other indicators, including historic performance, fund manager track record and fund management policies and
investment criteria. Arlingclose monitor these funds regularly to ensure they continue to be managed appropriately and identify any
changes in risk profile.

19

Investment Portfolio and Activity
The greater proportion of the investment portfolio is held in highly liquid money market funds and call accounts. This reflects the
need to ensure adequate liquidity in the management of cash balances to meet daily cashflow requirements.
Investments in pooled funds consist of the CCLA Property Fund, two bond funds, two multi-asset funds and one equity fund.
5 new fixed term deposits were made, and 7 matured, during the period. 1 was a bank deposit, and the remainder were with Local
Authorities.

Agenda Pack Page 498

Liquidity
Cash balances have been high throughout 2018/19. A significant amount (approximately £70m) relates to forward funding being
held on behalf of the Local Enterprise Partnership.
During the first quarter of 2018/19, as a result of uncertainty about cashflows for capital expenditure a large proportion of the
portfolio was held in short-term investments – and the DMADF was used during periods of high cash balances. As time has
passed, the level of certainty about liquidity needs has increased, allowing an increase in the use of fixed-term loans to other local
authorities was possible during the second half of the year, and further investments have been made in the latest period.
Diagram 3 provides a graph showing the liquidity of the Council’s investments portfolio as at 31 March 2019.

20

Agenda Pack Page 499

The potential capital volatility of the pooled fund investments means that they are intended to be held for 3-5 years, but in the graph
below these investments are shown on the basis of their accessibility. These funds are all classified as “liquid”, except the Property
Fund which accessible on 30 days’ notice.
Yield
Yield: Short-Term Investments
The benchmark used for assessing the performance of return on short-term lending is the 7-Day London Interbank Bid Rate
(LIBID). Diagram 4 shows yield against the benchmark for the last four quarters (solid lines, right-hand axis) and the actual cash
earned (dashed line, right-hand axis).
LIBID was 0.57% during the quarter, and the return excluding pooled fund interest increased to 0.86%. The overall rate of return
increased during the quarter as the result of new fixed term investments, which yield higher returns than instant access
investments, and higher prevailing rates.

21

Agenda Pack Page 500
Yield: Pooled Funds
The performance of the Council’s strategic investments is benchmarked against the target yield level of 4.00%, which forms the
basis of the income budget. Diagram 5 shows yield against budget for the last four quarters (sold lines, left-hand axis) and the
actual cash earned (dashed line, right-hand axis).
The Pooled funds have continued to provide returns exceeding expectations, with a yield of 4.45% during the final quarter, and
4.71% for the year.

22

Agenda Pack Page 501

The variability in pooled fund returns during the year reflects a degree of seasonality in equity fund dividends, which tend to be
higher during the first two quarters. This is in part due to the timing of company results and dividend payments, and the fact that
distributions from equity funds were generally high in the first half of 2018/19.
Overall returns from these strategic investments remain relatively stable when compared with previous years and exceed the 4%
target for these funds.

23

Appendix B: Glossary of Technical Terms and Key Concepts
Call Account
An instant access bank account.
CFR - Capital Financing Requirement
The Council’s Underlying need to borrow to fund capital expenditure
CNAV/LVNAV - Constant Net Asset Value / Low Volatility Net Asset Value
Types of highly liquid money market fund. CNAV funds have been superseded by LVNAV
funds under Money Market Fund regulations which were implemented in 2018/19. These
funds aim to maintain the value of a single unit of investment at or very close to £1. The
Council uses these funds to manage its day-to-day liquidity needs. The Treasury
Management Strategy Statement sets a limit on the overall exposure the Council has to
these funds.
DMO / DMADF – Debt Management Office / Account Deposit Facility
The UK Debt Management Office is an executive agency of HM Treasury which is
responsible for debt and cash management for the UK government. The DMO arranges
loans to local authorities in the guise of the PWLB and takes deposits into the Account
Deposit Facility. The Council considers the Debt Management Office its safe-haven facility
in the event of severe market events, and makes use of the facility to manage excess cash
balances for short periods to balance the overall exposures within the investment portfolio.
GDP – Gross Domestic Product
A measure of national economic activity.
Gilts – Gilt Edged Securities
Sovereign Debt issued by the national government on a fixed interest basis. These
instruments are actively traded, and the value of gilts is a function of the interest rate (or
yield) at the time the gilt was issued. If interest rates increase, gilt prices will decline,
increasing yield and vice-versa. The Council does not invest in gilts, but gilt yields are
monitored because the cost of borrowing from PWLB is set based on prevailing gilt yields.
Gilt yields also provide an indicator of market confidence.
Interest Rate Risk
The risk that changes in interest rates will result in the current cost of loans being higher than
the cost of an equivalent loan arranged today, or the risk that interest rate changes mean
deferring borrowing in the short-term may result in higher interest costs in the longer-term.
The opposite risks apply to long-term investments.
Loan Premium / Discount
This is also referred to as break cost for borrowing. A loan premium is payable if the
borrower wishes to repay a loan early. It acts as compensation for the lender for lost interest.
A premium will be payable in the event that the interest rate on an existing loan is higher than
current rates. A discount will be received (the borrower pays back less than the face value
of the loan) in the event that current interest rates are higher.

24

Agenda Pack Page 502

LOBO Loan – Lender Option Borrower Option Loan
A type of loan which confers on the lender the right, at set intervals, to increase the rate of
the loan. If this option is exercised the borrower may accept the new rate or repay the loan
without penalty.
Because the Lender is likely only to exercise its option when the current rate is higher than
the loan rate this gives rise to Refinancing Risk – the options favour the lender.
Money Market Fund
A pooled investment fund. Investors in Money Market Funds purchases shares, and the fund
invests in a broad range of underlying assets, which depend on the nature of the fund. The
Council’s funds include CNAV/LVNAV liquidity funds, in which the underlying assets are high
quality forms of short-term debt issued by banks and corporations, and its “Strategic Pooled
Funds”, which invest in different classes of asset with the intention of generating long-term
income returns.
The benefit of pooled investments is that it gives access to a diverse range of asset classes.
If the council were to invest directly in these types of asset, the result would be to
concentrate its exposure to a limit number of counterparties. In a pooled fund, the Council’s
risk exposure is diversified across a range of counterparties, lessening the risk of exposure to
a single default.
Notice Account
A type of longer-term bank account, where funds may be withdrawn after a set notice period.
The Council has notice account facilities ranging from 32 – 95 days duration.
Prudential Indicators
The Prudential Code sets a number of mandatory and voluntary limits and indicators to allow
the performance of the capital programme to be monitored against the principals of
Affordability, Sustainability and Prudence.
PWLB – Public Works Loan Board
Part of the DMO, which issues loans to qualifying public sector borrowers for capital
purposes. Loans can be fixed or variable rate, with repayment by instalment or on maturity,
and may range in duration from 1 – 50 years. Borrowing rates are set with reference to Gilt
Yields.
Refinancing Risk
Refinancing Risk is the risk that loans will mature and require repayment at a time when
prevailing interest rates are higher than the existing loan. If cash is not set aside to repay,
new borrowing will be needed at greater cost. Refinancing risk is managed by using a
mixture of repayment and maturity loans, and avoiding excessive concentration of loan
maturities in a single year.
Treasury Management Indicators
Under the Treasury Management Code, the council is required to set limits and indicators to
support the effective performance management of treasury management activites.

25

Agenda Pack Page 503

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item
No:
HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 19 JULY 2019 AT 2:00PM

12

WHISTLEBLOWING ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
Report of the Director of Resources
Author:
1.

Quentin Baker, Chief Legal Officer (Tel: 019952 555527)

Purpose of Report
To provide members with an overview of the disclosures made through
the County Council’s whistleblowing process and the operation of the
Whistleblowing Procedure in the year 2018/19.

2.

Summary

2.1

The County Council’s Whistleblowing Procedure provides that a report
will be made annually to the Audit Committee on the operation of the
Procedure and on the whistleblowing allegations made during the
period covered by the report.

2.2

The number of concerns raised under the Whistleblowing Procedure in
2018/19 was 9 and of these allegations 4 were investigated.

3.

Recommendations

3.1

The members of the Committee are invited to note the contents of the
report and the on-going work to raise awareness and to provide
assurance on the effectiveness of the County Council’s whistleblowing
arrangements

4.

Background

4.1

The County Council’s Whistleblowing Procedure is intended to provide
a means for employees and others (including agency workers,
contractors working for or providing services to the County Council) to
raise concerns about any suspected serious misconduct, wrong doing,
financial irregularity or possible unlawful action in a way that will ensure
confidentiality and protect those who raise such concerns in the
reasonable belief that it is in the public interest to do so from being
victimised, discriminated against or disadvantaged.

Agenda Pack Page 505

1

4.2

The Whistleblowing Procedure provides that a report will be submitted
annually to the Audit Committee on the operation of the Procedure and
on the whistleblowing allegations made during the period covered by
the report.

4.3

The Chief Legal Officer as Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility
for the Whistleblowing Procedure. The Chief Legal Officer meets
regularly with the Head of Assurance Services and the Assistant
Director – HR Services (all three of whom are ‘Reporting Officers’ as
defined in the Whistleblowing Procedure) to monitor the effectiveness
of the Whistleblowing Procedure, any allegations made under it and
learning from the allegations/process.

4.4

During the year 2018/19 the campaign to raise awareness of the
Whistleblowing Procedure (‘Speak Out’) has continued with regular
publicity on the intranet and by the use of posters in the County
Council’s offices. There has also been regular reminders to staff via the
Team-Talk bulletin.

4.5

In response to the recent staff survey, 85% of staff who responded
answered that they were aware of the County Council’s Whistleblowing
Policy. This is 12% higher than the response to a similar question in
the previous staff survey.

5.

Whistleblowing Allegations 2018/19

5.1

The Chief Legal Officer maintains a register of whistleblowing
allegations that are made through the Whistleblowing Procedure. The
number of allegations that are included in the register for 2018/19 is 9.
The numbers for the preceding 4 years are:
2014/15 - 5
2015/16 – 3
2016/17 – 6
2017/18 - 7

5.2

Of the 9 allegations received in 2018/19 - 5 were from employees or
former employees, 1 was from the former employee of a contractor and
in 3 cases the status of complainant was not clear. The allegations
concerned:
a) Oppressive working environment/bullying and discrimination (2
allegations)
b) Oppressive working environment and poor management (1
allegation)
c) Bullying (2 allegations – 1 concerned of impact on clients)
d) Identification of work required, procurement practices and
quality of work undertaken (1 allegation)
e) Inappropriate consideration of a vehicle cross over application (1
allegation)

Agenda Pack Page 506

2

f) Inappropriate relationship between manager and member of
staff (1 allegation)
g) Inappropriate management instruction (1 allegation)
5.3

Investigations were undertaken into two of the allegations relating to
oppressive working environment, the allegation at d) above and the
allegation of inappropriate management instruction.

5.4

In relation to the one allegation relating to oppressive working
environment and discrimination it was determined that there was
insufficient evidence to substantiate the allegations and in relation to
the other allegation relating to oppressive working environment that
was investigated it was concluded that the allegations were unfounded.
Improvements in management and recruitment practices were,
however, suggested in both cases and these are being taken forward.

5.5

Following investigation into the allegation concerning incorrect
identification of work required, procurement practices and quality of
work undertaken a number of recommendations were made in respect
of control weaknesses that were identified. These are now being
implemented by Senior Managers.

5.6

The outcome into the investigation relating to inappropriate
management instruction is awaited.

5.7

Feedback was received from managers who were subject to one of the
whistleblowing investigations that they felt unsupported during the
investigation process. These comments will be reflected upon in future
investigations.

5.8

The allegation that there had been inappropriate consideration of a
vehicle crossover application related to an application that was made
several years ago. The allegation was considered by the Shared
Internal Audit Service who concluded that the application had been
dealt with correctly

5.9

The bullying allegations and the allegation relating to oppressive
working environment that was not investigated under the
whistleblowing procedure were referred to HR for consideration.

Background documents
Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 and associated guidance

Agenda Pack Page 507

3

This page is intentionally left blank

